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Construction of a 25-Megawatt
photovoltaic park in Ivory Coast;

Construction and expansion of 25
substations for the Société Tunisienne de
l’Electricité et du Gaz (STEG), in Tunisia;

CHAPTER
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EMPOWERING
THE FUTURE

Partnership with HTMS, Électricité de
France (EDF) Group, to provide services
for the installation and maintenance
of Power Transformers in France;

Selection, by CEM, in Macao of
Efacec’s intelligent network
platform for the management of
electric vehicle charging stations;

Message from the PBD and the CEO

Manufacture of two GSU (Generator
Ângelo Ramalho, CEO, and Mário Leite da Silva, President of the Board of Directors

Step-Up) transformers, with Shell
technology for DUKE Energy, in the US,

THE YEAR 2017 CONFIRMED
EFACEC’S COMPETITIVENESS
AND SUSTAINABILITY AFTER
THE RETURN TO POSITIVE

Orders grew by 22%, to nearly 500M, EBITDA

Our achievements in 2017 attest to the trust

which were the heaviest three-phase

grew 3% to 36M€ and Net Debt/EBITDA

that our customers place in Efacec, as well as

transformers ever made in Portugal.

decreased from 2X to 1.3X, in a year in which

to our high technical quality, technological

Efacec made central investments in the Efacec

advancement and competitiveness of our

2020 strategy:

energy, environment and mobility solutions.
As an example, we cannot fail to mention some

For the first time since the financial crisis of
2008, while some markets maintain a downward
trend in investment in the traditional energy

FINANCIAL RESULTS IN 2016,

New Electric Mobility plant, located in

WHICH GIVES CREDIBILITY

ing the annual production capacity to

TO OUR BRAND’S PROMISE :

of expansion up to 9,000 units, and the

Supply of ultra-fast electric chargers for

in renewable energies has reached peak levels

creation of another 340 jobs by 2025;

the electric vehicle charging network that

and electric mobility is increasingly a trend

“EMPOWERING THE FUTURE”

Maia (Portugal), which will allow increas-

of the most emblematic projects entrusted
to us in 2017:

grid in 2017, global growth has surpassed
forecasts and significant developments have
taken place in emerging sectors. Investment

3,800 fast chargers, with the possibility

will cover the main highways in the US;
New Service and Repair Centre in Luanda

for the future, as we can plainly see from the

(Angola), equipped with some of the

Construction of the Odense Light Rail (14

intentions announced by different countries in

most innovative and unique equipment

km of railways, 26 stops, 14 vehicles and

Europe, America and Asia, of limiting the sales

in the country and specialised teams

a command centre), in which Efacec will

of combustion vehicles over the coming years,

dedicated to the development of mainte-

be responsible for all electromechanical

nance activities for the energy, oil & gas

systems;

and industry sectors.

including for urban public transportation. The
Energy Revolution and the Fourth Industrial
Revolution were incorporated into the daily
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lives of companies and industries, with digital solutions,
robotics and, increasingly, artificial intelligence.
Throughout 2017, Efacec consolidated its position, not
only as a company geared for the future, but as an active
player in the construction of that future, strengthening

8
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TODAY, THERE IS AN ALMOST
UNIQUE OPPORTUNITY,
WHICH RESULTS FROM THE
COMBINATION OF OUR SKILLS
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IT IS OUR HONOUR
TO LEAD EFACEC,

its commitment to investing in Portugal-based innovation.
This year, our investment in R&D grew 40% over 2016. It
is this investment, and our intention to maintain our focus
in R&D in the coming years, that will allow us to support
our customers in building the necessary infrastructures
for the future of sustainable energy.
Efacec is particularly well-equipped to support key international players in achieving the Paris Accord, accelerating

AND THE CURRENT ECONOMIC
CONTEXT, TO PROJECT EFACEC
AS ONE OF THE MOST
IMPORTANT AND RELEVANT
INTERNATIONAL BRANDS.

A COMPANY COMMITTED
TO THE FUTURE,

the integration of renewable energies and electric mobility
into people’s daily lives, and contributing to the drastic
improvement of energy efficiency, through the streamlined
management of networks and the supply/demand ratio.

Therefore, we are committed to preparing our People for a “new
economy”, where concepts like artificial intelligence, robotics and

TO SUSTAINABLE

virtual reality will be common denominators. Investment in Human
Capital and in knowledge creation are part of Efacec’s DNA, which we
will continue to stimulate.
In addition, we will continue to invest in our industrial structures,

DEVELOPMENT

with the aim of increasing our production capacity in different
business areas, thus increasing the competitiveness of our products
and solutions, improving the working conditions for our staff and
reinforcing safety conditions.
Lastly, we will continue to focus on partnerships and direct cooper-

AND TO THE GENERATIONS

ation with knowledge centres and universities, seeking to intensify
university-business relationships and stimulate applied research, as
well as to develop a sustained policy aimed at supporting the creation
and growth of start-ups.

TO COME.
We would like to finish with a word of thanks to our People, who are the
talent and commitment behind the Efacec’s transformation. To our customers and partners, we are grateful for the trust they have placed in the
company and in our products and solutions, and we reiterate our commitment to continuing to be part of your choices. And to our shareholders, we
express our gratitude for believing in Efacec.
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best practices in brand management. Its name

CHAPTER
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was changed to Brand and Communication

IN THE PRESENT
WITH ENERGY
OF THE FUTURE

Division and it now centralises the management of all the Efacec Group’s corporate and
commercial communication, being organised
into three areas that, together, work everyday
to materialise Efacec’s brand promise in a
more integrated way, together with all its
stakeholders.

Brand and Advertising
Ensuring that the Brand is represented similarly in all its brand touchpoints and geographies.

Sandra Pombo, Brand and Communication

Internal Communication
Ensuring the creation and maintenance of
a strong Brand culture, thus creating a single
Voice.
OUR VALUES

OUR VISION

The Efacec brand has also evolved in 2017,

through the creation of energy solutions that

We are focused on our

To anticipate solutions for a sustainable

reflecting the team’s ambition and the strategic

improve the lives of thousands of people, the

customer’s success.

world in the new era of energy.

plan that underpins it. Because brands must

personal development of all those involved,

reflect and match the profile of the companies

the permanent strengthening of ties with

they represent, in 2017 Efacec revisited its

the academic and scientific community and

We create value, with energy,

Brand promise and changed it to “Empower-

support to the sections of society most in

We learn and adapt

environment and transport solutions

ing the Future”. A promise that reflects the

need. Efacec’s new brand promise focuses not

to achieve excellence

that improve our daily lives

ambition of the Efacec 2020 strategic plan,

only on what it does today, but, most of all, on

as well as its scope, and which translates the

the future that it is building. A future that is

individual mission of each Efacec member and,

intended to be more innovative, more disrup-

We promote the advancement of people,

simultaneously, the mission of the organisa-

tive, more collaborative and more sustain-

We overcome challenges

in an organisation that values learning

tion as a whole. Efacec’s new brand promise

able. 2017 also brought new developments in

and deliver results.

and continuous improvement.

looks beyond the technology it develops and

Efacec’s brand management model. A year in

embraces the real dimension of the impact of

which the Corporate Communication Division

Efacec’s work in Portugal and in the World –

was restructured in order to keep up with the

We promote efficiency in order

OUR MISSION

to maximise competitiveness.

by integrating different skills
We build trust by ensuring

and innovative technologies.

safety and integrity.

Commercial Communication
Ensuring the creation and dissemination of
strong competitive advantages for each Efacec
business unit.

As Efacec is a different company today, its
brand promise has also evolved. A holistic,
development-focused brand promise, which
encourages everyone to commit to building
a better future.
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2,305

78%

EMPLOYEES

OF EXPORTS
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Launch of the new

8 new Innovation

Optimisation of several

Electric Mobility

projects: in Portugal

production lines:

industrial unit.

and in Europe.

Core Transformers –
25% reduction in TPT
(Trought-Put Time);

New service and repair

More than 150 initiatives

Distribution Transformers

Centre – Angola.

as part of the Efacec 2020

- 35% reduction in TPT;

Transformation Project.

Mobile substations – 30%

97%
OF CUSTOMERS WOULD

reduction in TPT

CONSIDER EFACEC
FOR FUTURE SUPPLIES

CHAPTER

More than 20 new products

Over 500 million

and services launched.

in Orders in over 92

and 43% increase in OTD
(On-Time Delivery).

countries.

01 1.3

Creation of a new
Strategic Pillar –

EFACEC
				 I N 2 0 1 7.
496.7M€

431.7M€

IN ORDERS

IN REVENUE

Sustainability: launch

ONE YEAR
OF ENERGY.

15.8M€

IN EBITDA

IN INVESTMENT

and the Ethical Line;
launch of pilot projects
in Circular Economy;
Adherence to the BCSD
Portugal Charter
of Principles; Efacec
Safety Culture.

More than 15 talent-fos-

Creation of the 2020

Increased commercial

tering initiatives.

Agents, a group of Efacec

skills – Best Selling Team.

employees chosen
by their peers to identify

35.9M€

of the Code of Conduct

75% increase in the

opportunities for internal

number of hours

improvement: 31 people;

of training provided

5 geographies; 6 continu-

to employees.

ous improvement projects;
for the whole organisation; to be implemented
in 2018.
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TRANSFORMATION
PROJECT
EFACEC 2020
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Efacec 2020 appears as a transformation
project, which aims at balancing the company
from an economic and financial point of view and
to reaffirm Efacec as a reference company and
brand on an international scale. The Efacec
2020 strategy was set up around 5 strategic
pillars – Technological Innovation, Operational

IN 2016, EFACEC, THROUGH A COLLABORATIVE AND INCLUSIVE

Excellence, Commercial Proactivity, Custom-

PROCESS, WHICH BENEFITED FROM THE PARTICIPATION OF THE

er Focus and Talent Development —, with

DIFFERENT BUSINESS AND CORPORATE TEAMS, AS WELL AS

the addition, in 2017, of a 6th pillar —

OTHER STAKEHOLDERS (SHAREHOLDERS, PARTNERS, CUSTOMERS

Sustainability.

o

AND SUPPLIERS), LAUNCHED A STRATEGIC REFLECTION PROJECT
The inclusion of this 6 th pillar in our strategic

(DUBBED EFACEC 2020) WHICH AIMS AT RETHINKING THE GROUP

priorities clearly reinforces Efacec’s longstand-

IN ITS DIFFERENT ASPECTS.

ing commitment to Sustainability. Efacec
“Time to Transform” Initiative

believes that sustainable development is
a structuring element in business strategy, particularly because the sector where it
operates offers numerous opportunities for
the creation of a better society.

In 2017, this transformation project has
matured, with the establishment of indicators
and targets to be met by 2020.
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01
TECHNOLOGICAL
INNOVATION
UPDATING OF THE PRODUCT AND
SERVICE PORTFOLIO WITH A VIEW
TO INCREASING COMPETITIVENESS
AND PROFITABILITY
STRATEGIC GOALS

04
02

03

OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE

COMMERCIAL
PROACTIVENESS

ALIGNMENT OF INTERNAL ATTITUDES

GREATER ORGANISATION, PRAGMATISM,

AND PRACTICES WITH CONTINUOUS

AND COMMERCIAL AGGRESSIVENESS,

IMPROVEMENT TARGETS

WITH AN EXPORT-BASED APPROACH

STRATEGIC GOALS

STRATEGIC GOALS

CUSTOMER
FOCUS
FOCUS ON OUR CUSTOMERS,
FULFILLING ALL COMMITMENTS
UNDERTAKEN AND POSITIONING
OURSELVES AS TRUE BUSINESS
PARTNERS
STRATEGIC GOALS

Investment in technological development, namely by strengthening relations

Improved offer and customer service

with scientific, technological, certificaRevising the organisation with a view

Export-based approach led by

Focus on the development of new

to maximising synergies and knowledge

the Business Units, in the various

and better solutions, in partnership

transfer within the organisation

geographies

with our Customers

Promoting a culture of operational

Fostering of commercial synergies

Drive to exceed Customer expectations,

excellence along the entire business

among businesses through the Market

by anticipating their needs and the

Promotion of the individual

value chain (product/solution

Intelligence and Business Development

market’s requirements

profitability of each business,

development, manufacturing and

roles, ensuring systematic coordination

while focusing on Efacec’s global

assembly, design, logistics, etc.)

and best practices

Optimising instrumental and support

Investment in strategic commercial

processes

geographies complemented

tion and business institutions

Focus on increasing competitiveness
in terms of functionalities, processes
and performance

profitability and sustainability

2020 INDICATORS

by opportunistic deals

2020 INDICATORS

Investment in Technology Research

2020 INDICATORS
2020 INDICATORS

& Development (TR&D)
Non-quality costs
Revenue from new products
and/or services

Tendering Efficiency
Productivity
Orders from new geographies

Volume of projects financed

Absenteeism rate
Orders from new customers

Customer satisfaction index
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Inspection of Medium-Voltage Equipment - Boavista, Portugal
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O U R

05

06

TALENT
DEVELOPMENT

SUSTENTABILIDADE

INVESTMENT IN OUR EMPLOYEES,

AMBIENTAL E SOCIAL, GARANTINDO E POTENCIANDO O ENVOLVIMENTO

ENSURING THAT WE HAVE THE VERY

E ALINHAMENTO DE TODA A ORGANIZAÇÃO

BEST IN TERMS OF SKILLS,

DESENVOLVIMENTO E GESTÃO EQUILIBRADA DAS DIMENSÕES ECONÓMICA,

STRATEGIC GOALS

2020 INDICATORS

COMMITMENT AND ADDED VALUE
FOR THE COMPANY

Assurance of best practices in

Recycled waste

governance and transparency, leveraged
STRATEGIC GOALS

by the development of ethical

Carbon footprint

and integrity relations and a robust
Energy intensity

Strengthening of employees’ behavioural

and integrated risk management policy

(“knowing how to act”, in line with the

that ensures the protection of its assets,

company’s culture, mission, vision and

as well as the security of its products

Number of hours of corporate

values), functional (“knowing how to be”)

and services throughout the entire

volunteering

and management (“knowing what to do”)

value chain
Frequency Rate

competences
Focus on promoting energy efficiency
Promotion of meritocracy and develop-

and preventing/minimising negative

ment opportunities, based on a strategic

environmental impacts, by participating

Human Capital management model that

directly and actively in the low-carbon

reaches across the different Business

economy and circular economy through-

Units and geographies

out the entire value chain

Orientation towards goals, within

Active role in the promotion of Human

an empowerment model that ensures

Rights and development of local

accountability

communities and content, encouraging
initiatives of a social, cultural or technological nature with high potential

2020 INDICATORS

and impact, as well as promoting equal
opportunities, integration, growth

Number of training hours

and participation of all employees in a
positive and balanced organisational

Internal climate index

climate, always seeking to ensure the
health and safety of all those involved.

Mobility Index

Risk management maturity

Renewable energy sources
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Efacec has a diversified business portfolio and each

and diversity, strategic pillars are declined for each Business

Business Unit has its specificities, related to its

Unit and performance indicators are adjusted – more

offer (Products vs. Systems) and respective maturi-

details in the chapters dedicated to each Business Unit.

ty, sector and markets, positioning in the value
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TRANSFORMATION COMMITTEE
EFACEC 2020 GOVERNANCE MODEL

chain and profiles of Customers and Competitors,
among others. In order to frame these specificities

6 workstreams

Efacec 2020 transformation project follow-up model

respective stages and level of compliance.

by the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the Chief Transfor-

procurement and logistic

Central electronic repository of initiatives and

The Transformation Committee is permanently staffed

continuous improvement

(based on pre-defined indicators).

of initiatives;

CORPORATE
AREAS

transports

Stage gates model for monitoring the progress

environmen

initiative and monitoring the progress/results achieved

operations

initiatives;

SYSTEMS

energy

ed to follow up on the implementation/execution of the

14 líderes

transformers

for monitoring, following up on and challenging

14 sub-workstreams

PRODUCTS
(TRF/SRV)

service

meetings are the so-called War Rooms, which are intend-

ELECTRIC
MOBILITY

marketing and commercial

Transformation infrastructure responsible

switchgear

are attended by the company’s top executives. The main

PRODUCTS
(AMT/ASE)

automation

weekly meetings, with a fixed structure and agenda, which

business development

was generally maintained. It is based on 3 levers:

marketing and commercial

The regular monitoring of the programme is based on

MARKETING
AND SALES

working capital

In 2017, the monitoring model established in 2016

6 sponsors

180 initiatives
95 persons
in charge

mation Officer - CTrO, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
The transformation infrastructure is composed up of the
Transformation Office and the Transformation Committee.
The Transformation Office, led by the Chief Transformation
Officer, is responsible for monitoring the 6 workstreams
and 14 sub-workstreams, which are set up to ensure the
implementation of strategic initiatives. Each work front is
streamlined by an Executive Director, and the sub-workstreams are coordinated by a Managing or Corporate
Director. The persons responsible for the initiatives lead
their implementation and ensure the delivery of results,
working with multi-functional teams that ensure that
every opportunity is fully realised.

and the Strategic Planning Division, and is streamlined
by the Transformation Office. Depending on the issues

TRANSFORMATION OFFICE

under discussion, the remaining Executive Directors may

CTro

|

Drivers |

Controllers

|

Communication

sit in sessions.
In 2017, the Transformation Committee met weekly, for

The progress of initiatives is monitored through

process is carried out using a web based tool

a total of 36 meetings, and was responsible for ensuring

a stage gate system, which allows for full

where all the initiatives and respective stages

that the Efacec 2020 Transformation Plan was reported to

and regular visibility on all the indicators

are registered, as well as the respective level

the Executive Committee and Board of Directors.

necessary to monitor success, both in terms

of compliance.

of deadlines and results. Through 5 gates
with milestones, deliverables and associated
approvers, the process status is known in real
time and its effects are thus enhanced. This
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IMPLEMENTATION METHODOLOGY
FOLLOW UP ON TRANSFORMATION INITIATIVES

Evolution of the Efacec 2020 transformation project
STAGE GATE L1-L5

Efacec 2020 is a living transformation programme: initiatives evolve in their level of execution
and implementation, and can also be eliminated (due to changes in the company’s ecosystem)

ideas refined
and turned into

and replaced by new initiatives.

initiatives
planning
and preparation for

THROUGHOUT 2017, 137 INITIATIVES MOVED FROM IDENTIFICATION

the implementation
of initiatives;

AND CONFIGURATION TO THE IMPLEMENTATION STAGE.
initiatives under

ON 31 DECEMBER 2017, 43 INITIATIVES WERE ALREADY IMPLE-

implementation

MENTED AND GENERATING BENEFITS FOR THE COMPANY.
materialisation

ideas

of impact

EVOLUTION OF INITIATIVES

fully
materialised
impact

THROUGHOUT THE STAGE GATES (2017 VS 2016)

2016

MILESTONES

Deliverables

CONFIRMATION

BUSINESS CASE

ACTION PLAN

EXECUTED

CAPTURED

Person in charge

Designated team

Bankable

All key activities

Impact of initiatives

of the idea

Business Case of the

plan with weekly

of the initiative

reflected in P&L

initiative, assessing

milestones

Impact flowing

and in the Balance

its feasibility, risk

to P&L

Sheet (run-rate impact

and impact

and Cash Flow

achieved)

Common concrete idea
high-level estimate
of its impact

94

100
90
80
70
60
50
40
30

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

Sponsor

CFO

CTrO

CFO

Approvers

CFO

10
0

CTrO

Typical Leakage

150%

130%
Value identification

130%

120%
Value capture

20

100%

6

0

2017
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TOTAL INITIATIVES
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THE TRANSFORMATION PROJECT
HAD AN IMPACT OF € 20.7M ON EBITDA
IN 2017, WITH THE FOLLOWING
INITIATIVES AS THE MAIN DRIVERS:

BY IMPLEMENTATION STAGE AND BY WORKSTREAM

3

OPERATIONS
7

TRANSPORTATION

Scaling of the Scada business

10

IMPACT

ENERGY

Business Development of product SCADA/DMS/OMS in
1

6

2

new markets, capitalisation on upgrades and maintenance

132%

ENVIRONMENT

contracts at customers using the SCADA system.
11

11

12

2

0.9M€

TRANSFORMERS
7

11
7

2

SERVICE
2

1

12

Development plan
for Efacec India

2

AUTOMATION
9

5

IMPACT

Execution of the development plan for new components

SWITCHGEAR

63%

and products in Efacec India, with a view to reflecting
3

6

0.8M€

scale economies and competitiveness gains through the

ELECTRIC MOBILITY
1

increase of local labour.

7

MARKETING
AND COMMERCIAL
2

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
3

2

Widening of the current
footprint, with a focus on Angola

1

IMPACT

WORKING CAPITAL
6

1

Revitalisation of the Service business, with new industri-

4

CONTINUOUS

168%

al facilities to promote the current business segments

IMPROVEMENT
2

1

5

9

0.4M€

and promote services with a focus on the oil segment.

21

PROCUREMENT
AND LOGISTICS

0

10

20

30

40
Planned amount in EBITDA

L0 | IDEA SUBMITTED

L1 | INITIATIVE CONFIRMED

L2 | BUSINESS CASE

L3 | ACTION PLAN

L4 | CARRIED OUT

Value capture %
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Reduction of
Non-Quality costs

IMPACT

Reduction of Non-Quality Costs in Core and Shell

120%

Transformers through increased use of local labour.

Improvement of processes and layout
in the production of electronics
Optimisation of production and support processes

and manufacturing costs in an outsourcing production
model.

Creation of the Transversal
Operation Division (DTO)
To ensure the efficient and effective implementation
of contracts, ensuring the optimisation of the resources

THROUGHOT 2017, EFACEC REVIEWED THE

employed and compliance with contractual requirements,
with a view to continuous improvement and custom-

STRATEGIC PLAN OF EACH BUSINESS UNIT, AND

er satisfaction, thus reducing implementation risks

ADJUSTMENTS WERE MADE TO STRATEGIC

for Efacec.

INITIATIVES. THESE ADJUSTMENTS WILL BE REFLECTED
IN THE EFACEC 2020 IMPLEMENTATION PLAN, WHICH

01

08

WILL CONTINUE TO BE MONITORED BY THE TRANSFORCENTRAL SUPPORT

MATION OFFICE AND THE TRANSFORMATION COMMITTEE

STRUCTURE

PLAN

THROUGHOUT 2018.

RISK

02

07

MANAGEMENT

COORDINATION DURING
INVESTMENT STAGE

87%

0.7M€
PRODUCTIVITY

03

06

MANAGEMENT

MANAGEMENT

INTEGRATED
PLANNING

Aspects of the creation of the DTO

CONTRACT

05

04

ORGANISATIONAL
PROJECT STRUCTURE

S T R A T E G Y

IMPACT

90%

and improvement of the layout and reduction of material

0.4M€

VALUE CAPTURE

O U R

1.02M€
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capabilities in which a company’s activities, people,
culture and structure must be synchronised and aligned
with a set of organisational goals. In this respect, the
consolidation of our structure and the experience of the
teams involved in Efacec 2020, leveraged by a changing

ELICITING
CHANGE

culture and a communication that has rapidly become
clearer and more transparent, have decisively contributed
to the overall goals we have set for 2017. By involving the
entire organisation, we ensured that the transformation
process was developed in a fast and integrated way, and
aligned with the strategic goals.
Our teams are now better equipped to plan, monitor and
implement transformation initiatives in an effective way,
continuing to rely on management empowerment and
commitment at all levels of the process. The organisation
is now more agile in its response to change and is eliciting
change itself.

WHAT IS YOUR
APPRECIATION OF EFACEC

At the end of 2017, the Group and Business Unit Strategic
Plan was revised to adjust Efacec 2020’s initiatives in a
way that ensures the continuity of the alignment with the

2020’S DEVELOPMENT
THROUGHOUT 2017?
JOÃO PAULO PINTO
Executive Director, Chief Transformation
Officer (CTrO)

Studies show that the success of a transformation process is
supported and leveraged by a strong culture and a high level
of alignment with the organisation’s strategic goals. At the

TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMMES ARE COMPLEX. AT
EFACEC, WE WERE ABLE TO ENSURE THE CONDI-

beginning of 2017, Efacec faced a challenging context, but
also great opportunities. The Efacec 2020 project entailed
a major reformulation of the cultural pillars and that was

TIONS TO MAKE OUR TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME
A REALITY WITH VERY SIGNIFICANT RESULTS.

one of our great expectations to ensure the performance
of the entire programme.
The path was not always easy, particularly because a
transformation process involves developing skills and

Group’s strategic goals and priorities.
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LOUIS V. GERTSNER ANSWERED, WHEN

HOW HAVE CULTURAL

THE

QUESTIONED ABOUT IBM’S RESTRUCTUR-

TOPICS BEEN

TRANSFORMATION

ING AND TRANSFORMATION PROCESS:
“I CAME TO SEE, IN MY TIME AT IBM,
THAT CULTURE ISN’T JUST ONE ASPECT
OF THE GAME-IT IS THE GAME”.

INCORPORATED
INTO THE EFACEC
2020 PROJECT?

DO YOU AGREE WITH THIS STATEMENT
WHEN APPLIED TO EFACEC?

RESULTS

ACHIEVED
PROJECT

BY

THE

IN

2017

A

ARE STILL FAR FROM THE GOALS SET
FOR LATE 2018.

WHAT ARE YOUR EXPECTATIONS FOR THE

A transformation process will only achieve the results it
sets out to achieve if the organisation in question is aligned

NEXT 12 MONTHS?

around a common vision, mission and values, i n which all
employees clearly understand their role and their impact
on the company’s overall performance.
Culture is, therefore, an enabler of the transformation
process and the achievement of the Group’s strategic
goals, and is essentially addressed by the Efacec 2020
project at two levels:

2018 will be a year of growth for Efacec, so we will
need to be even more agile in responding to challenges
and opportunities.
The consolidation of the Efacec 2020 project’s operational model, as well as the results of initiatives already
implemented at various levels of the organisation, have

In the set of transformation initiatives underway,

developed the necessary basis to give us confidence

monitored and challenged by the Transformation

regarding the achievement of the goals set for next year.

Office.. The initiatives played an extremely important

A number of new initiatives are planned, which respond

role in the breakdown of functional and departmental
silos, decisively driving a new dimension of teamwork

to the adjustments made to the strategic plans of the

and sharing. There is a clear focus on customer

different areas with finer planning and which will continue

service throughout the value chain and a lower

to be revisited within the framework of the follow-up

aversion to failure risk.

operational model.

In the Efacec 2020 operational model, materialised in

In 2018, we must renew our ambition, while maintaining

the existence of a structured self-government model,

our resilience, enthusiasm and commitment. We will contin-

based on a progress monitoring methodology. By

ue to ensure the alignment of transformation initiatives

encouraging and monitoring change, the continuous
identification of opportunities for improvement and

with the Group’s strategic priorities, thus leveraging our

the sustainability of results achieved, the implemen-

performance and differentiation within an increasingly

tation of the Efacec 2020 project encourages cultural

competitive and demanding market.

transformation.

In 2018, the Efacec 2020 project will continue to be a driving
force for transformation and performance improvement
at Efacec.

Service and Repair Centre – Angola.
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CHAPTER

02 2.2
EFACEC’S PORTFOLIO IS

ENERGY PRODUCTS

SYSTEMS

ORGANISED INTO THREE
SEGMENTS:

Efacec designs, develops and manufactures products for different stages of

In the field of Sy stems, Efacec develops and implements Engineering, Procurement & Construc-

ENERGY, SYSTEMS AND

the Energy sector’s value chain. Complementarily, it ensures the maintenance,

tion (EPC) turnkey solutions and projects for the Energy, Environment and Transport sectors,

refurbishment and revamping of both its own and third-party equipment.

while offering expertise in infrastructure maintenance and exploitation.

ACTIVITY

ELECTRIC

MOBILITY

PRODUCTS — AND EIGHT
BUSINESS UNITS.

Efacec’s activities along the Energy value chain
Efacec’s activities along the Systems value chain

GENERATION

TRANSMITION

TRANSFORMERS (TRF)

DISTRIBUTION
CONCEPTION

ENGINEERING

CONSTRUCTION

SERVICE (SRV)

ENERGY (ENE)

SWITCHGEAR (AMT)

ENVIRONMENT (AMB)

AUTOMATION (ASE)

TRANSPORTS (TRP)

MAINTENANCE
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ELECTRIC MOBILITY
In the area of Electric Mobility, Efacec is dedicated to developing electric vehicle charging
solutions and integrating them into network management systems, covering the entire value
chain, from design to maintenance of infrastructures and equipment. This business operates
in a startup logic, although Efacec is already one of the main references worldwide in the
electric mobility sector.

Efacec’s activities along the Electric Mobility value chain

CONCEPTION

COMMERCIALIZATION

ENGINEERING

PRODUCTION

MAINTENANCE

ELECTRICT MOBILITY (EEM)

New Electric Mobility facilities – Maia, Portugal
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TRANSFORMERS (TRF)

TURNOVER
2016

2017

146.3M€ 125.2M€
NUMBER
OF EMPLOYEES

EBITDA
2016

2017

7.2M€ 8.4M€
627

CHAPTER

02 2.2.1

PORTFOLIO

Power Transformers: ‘shell’ and ‘core’

CERTIFICATIONS

BUSINESS UNIT

ISO 9.001 (Quality)

THE TRF BUSINESS UNIT DE-

type (up to 1500 MVA);
ISO 14.001 (Environment)
Mobile Substations (up to 60 MVA);

VELOPS AND MANUFACTURES

transformers and substations.
The transformers are developed and produced

PRODUCTS AND SOLUTIONS
OSHAS 18.001 (Safety)

at the Arroteia plant, located just outside Porto.

FOR THE GENERATION, TRANS-

Efacec’s commercial activity is developed

The Unit has achieved significant growth in

PORTATION AND DISTRIBUTION

through a network of distributors, partners

demanding and competitive markets, driven by

OF ELECTRICITY,

and agents located in the geographies with

Distribution Transformers
(up to 6300 kVA).

Acting through three market segments: power

its commitment to RDI projects and continuous
improvement activities, which enable it to
maintain its status as a reference manufacturer in Europe.

the most potential.
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MAIN GEOGRAPHIES
TRANSFORMERS

Iberdrola selected Efacec in an international tender
for the supply, supervision and commissioning of eight
group transformers and six auxiliary service units for the
UK

Gouvães, Alto Tâmega and Daivões power stations. These

USA
PORTUGAL
FRANCE
SPAIN

plants are part of the Tâmega Power Production System,
an important hydroelectric project carried out in Europe
over the last 25 years.

ALGERIA

COLOMBIA
ANGOLA

URUGUAY

ARGENTINA

MAIN FACTS IN THE YEAR
In 2017, the company manufactured and transported the

Seven of the largest and most powerful transformers

heaviest three-phase transformers ever manufactured

were also manufactured for a Hydroelectric Power Plant

in Portugal. The transportation of the two SUG Step-Up

in the Malanje province, Angola. The transformers were

Generators with Shell technology required a vehicle with

manufactured for the customer Andritz Hydro with a power

a total length of 90 m and a total weight of 710 tonnes,

of 371 MVA and voltage levels of 400/18 kV, in a solution

for the largest transportation operation ever carried out

with a dissociate-phase configuration. Efacec’s service

in Portugal. These transformers were manufactured for

included the transportation and follow-up of the machines,

customer DUKE Energy, based in Charlotte, USA.

from their arrival at the port of Luanda to Laúca, as well
as all assembly, filling, testing and assistance operations
and commissioning. In 2017, the first three units were
successfully installed.

Dissociated-Phase Power Transformer – Hydroelectric Power Plant – Malanje,
AngolaAngola

Hydroelectric Power Plant – Malanje, Angola
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EFACEC 2020 – AMBITION
As part of the transformation project underway at Efacec, the TRF Business Unit has also defined a set of priorities
based on the six strategic pillars defined for the Group:

01

02

03

04

TECHNOLOGICAL
INNOVATION

OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE

COMMERCIAL
PROACTIVENESS

CUSTOMER
FOCUS

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

Focus on products with a competitive

Elimination of existing production

Prioritising a fly-in/ fly-out model, using

and sustainable advantage, namely

process inefficiencies (e.g.: One piece

Efacec’s local structures, when available

Mobile Substations (MS) and Power

flow, pull logic, supplier-customer

Transformers

relationship, etc.)

Maintenance of DT supply in Oil technol-

Enhancement of cost-reduction

ogy, and reinforcement of supply in Dry

measures, such as partnerships with

Strengthening our presence in priority

and LDTs 

suppliers, standardisation, modularisa-

markets (e.g. USA)

Improved Through-Put Times

Adaptation of products to customer
Maintaining a business/product

requirements

line-based differentiation strategy
Improved On-Time Deliver rates

Improved efficiency in contract management and communication with Customers

tion and/or product redesign
Development of more competitive

Exploring opportunities for framework

solutions and greater convergence

agreements in other countries (e.g.

with market trends

Netherlands, France and Spain),
by leveraging the experience acquired
in the UK and strengthening the presence
in private customers
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05
TALENT
DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGIES

Development of a dual career model,
which fosters the professional develop-

06
SUSTAINABILITY

ment of technical roles, as well
as management roles

Revision of the performance assessment
model, incorporating the specificity of
functional families vs. functional groups
in the entire Efacec group.

Revision of the compensation and benefit
model, promoting an orientation towards
strategic (e.g., commercial proactivity)
and tactical goals

Definition of a talent-management
model that enables the identification
of high-potential employees and their
guidance into faster professional
development paths.

Development of a behavioural, functional
and management training plan aimed
at preparing employees for the Efacec
2020 Vision

STRATEGIES

Implementation of best practices
in governance and transparency,
supported by the development
of ethical relationships and an
integrated risk management system

Increased energy efficiency and
reduction of negative environmental impacts, by participation in the
implementation of Circular and
Low-Carbon Economies

Implementation of a proactive Human
Rights policy, promoting equality,
integration and personal development
among employees, with a view to creating
a safe working environment and supporting initiatives by the local community and
by society in general

Distribution Transformer
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
UNITED KINGDOM

PORTUGAL

In the year 2017, the UK remained the main European market for

In Portugal, highlight goes to a contract with Iberdrola

the TRF. British utilities UK Power Networks, Scottish and Southern

Generacion, for a hydroelectric power generation project in

Energy (SSE), Electricity North West (ENWL), Scottish Power

Alto Tâmega. This year, we should also highlight the sales of

In Europe, there is a lingering downward trend in new

and Northern Powergrid renovated eight multi-year contracts for

distribution transformers to various industrial customers,

investment in Energy infrastructures, including power

distribution transformers and two multi-year contracts for power

distributors and exporters.

transformers. This downturn in investment has been

transformers. In addition to these contracts, a new contract was

Utilities Gas Natural Fenosa and Iberdrola continued to be

partly offset by the strategy of strengthening cross-border

signed with ENWL for Grid Transformers. The private market also

among our main customers in 2017, having maintained their

interconnections, like in the Nordic and Baltic countries,

gained a stronger expression in 2017, with important integrators

trust in Efacec for the supply of transformers, both for their

aiming at an energy-interconnected Europe, but also by

and installers among our partners.

distribution networks and energy production facilities, with

EUROPE

reactivating someprojects to reinforce at reinforcing

FRANCE

the installed wind power capacity, as well as new solar
energy projects.

USA

particular highlight to Gas Natural Fenosa Renovables, which has

ARGELIA, ANGOLA E MOZAMBIQUE

signed a contract for the supply of several transformers for wind
power projects, including four Shell technology transformers.

Geographies with economies heavily dependent on oil, such
as some African countries, including Algeria, Angola and

In recent years, the French market has been gaining relevance

In the year 2017, there was a remarkable increase in orders

Mozambique, have seen planned investments postponed or

in the TRF market, with multi-year contracts for power

of distribution transformers for the Spanish market, mainly

cancelled, and a recovery is not expected to occur in 2018.

transformers being signed with partners ENEDIS and Réseau

for the private sector.

de Transport d’Électricité (RTE). As part of the Haute-DuDue to its size, the US market remains highly relevant for

MIDDLE EAST

rance project, the first transformer was assembled on-site

USA

and an order for the construction of the second unit was received.

the TRF, despite a moderate growth forecast. In Canada, a
strong investment is expected in power generation projects

The Middle East stands as a region with a significant

(e.g. hydro), which will naturally translate into business

market size, where investment continues to provide good

for the Transformers segment.

business opportunities. Once the always lengthy and

The US market continued to be the main market for Efacec’s

THE NETHERLANDS

mobile substations, with the order, in 2017, of 13 new substations
for customers Alabama Power, Duke Energy, Intermountain

time-consuming stages of product and factory approval

In 2017, a distribution transformer multi-year contract was signed

Rural Electric, National Grid, Pacific Gas and Electric and Green

are completed, Efacec believes it is possible to access a

for utilities in the Dutch market. A contract with a minimum

Mountain Power. Highlight goes also to orders of Shell-tech-

competitive but very standardised market, whose benefits

duration of four years, for the supply of equipment to new

nology transformers by customers MidAmerican Energy

are volume and serial effect.

customers Alliander, Delta, Enduris, Enexis, Rendo and Stedin.

and Florida Power and Light.

This contract is a significant landmark in Efacec’s approach to
the North-European markets.
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R&D PROJECTS

IN 2017,
SEVERAL PROJECTS
HAVE ADVANCED
SIGNIFICANTLY:

SmarTHER / QT2 / iCubas5D

Other projects for the development of
products and associated services

Active part mooring system – reduction of losses and
noise, and improvement of mechanical behaviour.

NEXTSTEP / Transformer substation for the future
– in partnership with the EEM Business Unit, Eneida,

Oil circulation in windings - improved heat dissipa-

University of Coimbra, INESC TEC (Institute of

tion and heat exchanger efficiency.

Systems and Computer Engineering of the Faculty
of Engineering of the University of Porto), ITeCons

Calculation and design of internal connections –

(Institute of Research and Technological Develop-

design with parametric 3D modelling.

ment in Construction, Energy, Environment
and Sustainability of the University of Coimbra)

ICubas – registration of a patent for a new power

and EDP (Eletricidade de Portugal).

transformer tank design that allows for a significant
reduction in mass (solution already implemented in a

EFAsset / AssetManagement – in partnership

design for a customer).

with the Technology Management Office and
the SRV and ASE Business Units.

GreenEst / Green Ester Transformers – in partnership with FEUP (Faculty of Engineering of the University of Porto).

R&D Project - ICubas5D
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Information and Calculation Tool Platform

Graphic User Interfaces & Expert System:
generic interface re-architecture supporting the
various engineering processes with conditioned
access, based on a matrix of individual employee skills. Implementation of tendering processes,
contract management and part of the components
of product engineering, as well as automatic size
calculations.

CORET / Calculation Platform: improvements
introduced with tools to support budgeting
and calculation of new windings; direct programming
of the DT winding machines from design and enlargement and evolutions in the execution of immersed
transformers; start of the restructuring of calculation
programs for Shell and POWERCAST transformers
and expansion of the calculation platform to external
programs.
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At the same time, there was a strong focus on expanding the number of R&D project partnerships with
external entities:
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CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

University of Porto - LSRE-LCM FEUP, High-Voltage

During the year 2017, great progress was made in terms

In terms of the TPT (Trought-Put Times) of the various

Lab – FEUP and FCUP (Portugal);

of the reduction of non-quality issues and costs, as a result

production lines, the intermediate reductions planned for

of the implementation of improvements in processes and

the end of 2017 were achieved, and actions are ongoing

manufacturing control.

that will allow reaching, in June 2018, the 50% reductions

With regard to manufacturing facilities and the respective

planned at the beginning of the project. In addition,

layouts, several improvements and changes were made, with

frame-agreement negotiations with suppliers, based on

a significant impact on processes and working conditions.

forecasts of needs, are already underway.

University of Minho - ITeCons (Portugal);

University of Coimbra (Portugal);

University of Cantábria (Spain);

Carlos III de Madrid University (Spain);

As a result of the aforementioned actions, there was a
significant improvement in the On-Time-Delivery (OTD)

REN – National Power Grid (Portugal);

index, and penalties for delays were virtually eliminated.

REE – National Power Grid (Spain);

ISQ – Institute for Welding and Quality (Portugal);

INSTITUTIONAL AND COMMERCIAL PRESENCE

Instituto Superior de Engenharia (Higher School
of Engineering) (Portugal);

INESC – Institute of Systems and Computer
Engineering (Portugal);

INEGI – Institute for Science and Innovation in
Mechanical and Industrial Engineering (Portugal);

IN 2017, THE TRANSFORMER BUSINESS
UNIT PARTICIPATED IN SEVERAL EVENTS,
FAIRS, CONGRESSES AND REFERENCE
WORK GROUPS IN THE ELECTRIC SECTOR,
NAMELY:

Hydro-Québec (Canada);
CIRED and EURO TECH COM, in Scotland;

CWIEME, In Germany;

IEEE, in the US;

T&D Europe, in Belgium;

MIDDLE-EAST ELECTRICITY, in Dubai;

EURODOBLE, in Portugal.

Eneida Wireless & Sensors (Portugal);

ENEDIS (France);

EDP – Eletricidade de Portugal (Portugal).
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Mobile Substation Transformer Module

TRF
(MILLION EUROS)

2017

CHANGE

%

Orders

102,7

122,4

19,6

Backlog

105,6

102,7

-2,9

Revenue

146,3

125,2

-21,1

-14,5%

18,3

22,5

4,2

23,0%

12,5%

17,9%

5,5%

7,2

8,4

1,2

4,9%

6,7%

1,8%

Gross Margin
Gross Margin %
EBITDA
EBITDA/Revenue

Close-up of Distribution Transformer

2016

19,1%

16,1%

In 2017, orders increased by 20 million euros,

mainly due to the improved margin in the US

a 19.1 % increase over the same period in 2016.

(CT – Core Transformers), UK (DT – Distri-

The countries that contributed the most to this

bution Transformers) and Angola (ST – Shell

increase were the US (+9.6 million euros),

Transformers). Lastly, EBITDA increased by

Portugal (+8.7 million euros) and France (+7.5

1.2 million euros compared to 2016, due to

million euros). However, highlight goes to

an improvement of 4.2 million euros in the

the significant drop in the UK market, which

gross margin. On the other hand, increased

recorded a drop of nearly €9 million euros YoY.

indirect costs (+0.8 million euros) and R&D

In terms of revenue, there was a decrease

costs (+1 million Euros) had a negative impact

of approximately 14.5% compared to 2016,

on EBITDA.

which translates into about 21 million euros.
The United Kingdom, where our partner
Scottish and Southern Energy plc. is the largest
customer, proved to be the most relevant
country in terms of revenue decline, with a
contribution of 6 million euros. Gross margin
grew by 5.5pp in 2017. This increase was
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OUTLOOK FOR 2018

A POSITIVE PERFORMANCE FOR THE BUSINESS IS EXPECTED FOR 2018, DESPITE THE

PERFORMANCE
FOR THE
		 B U S I N E S S
IS EXPECTED
			 F O R 2 0 1 8 .

UNFAVOURABLE DEVELOPMENTS IN EUR/USD EXPORTS AND INVESTMENT CUTS IN
COUNTRIES AFFECTED BY THE DROP IN OIL PRICES.
Our commitment to the continuous improvement of

Regarding the entry into new markets and customers, our

processes across the entire TRF value chain, based on a

focus will be mainly on Europe (Northern and Central),

wide range of initiatives under the Lean Transformation

on strengthening our US presence with the introduction

programme, will surely translate into an increase in the

of our Core range, and in the Middle East, based on the

global competitiveness of the business and in the improve-

type-approvals already achieved in 2017.

ment of the operational performance of industrial units,

The mobile substation business should remain very promis-

which will reduce working capital and delivery times, and

ing, and an exclusively dedicated team has been created,

increase the delivery capacity.

with a view to doubling our business in three years

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

A C C O U N T S

56

57

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

A N D

O U R

Y E A R

THE EFACEC 2020 STRATEGIC PLAN
PROVIDES FOR A RECONFIGURATION OF

DIVERSIFY

THE BUSINESS UNIT’S TARGET MARKETS.

TO
SUCCEED

HOW IS THIS DIVERSIFICATION PROCESS
GOING AND WHAT
IMPACTS ARE WE
SEEING IN TERMS
OF TRENDS AND
CUSTOMER DEMANDS?

The reconfiguration of target markets essentially results

FERNANDO VAZ
Transformers

ONE YEAR AGO,
FORECASTS POINTED
TO A GROWTH OF ABOUT
50% IN ORDERS,
WHICH DID NOT OCCUR.
WHAT WAS THE REASON
FOR THIS?

In reality, at the end of the year, there was a 23% deviation in the
number of orders in relation to the budget, although it was still

17% higher than 2016. The five key TRF markets (Portugal,

from the need to replace traditional markets such as

France, Spain, United Kingdom and USA) surpassed the

Algeria, Angola and Mozambique, where there has been

order volume forecast for 2017 by 5.9 % and generated 20.2

a drastic reduction in investment volumes in the energy

% more than in 2016. Conversely, traditionally profitable

industry. Given this scenario, the company focused on

markets for Efacec (Angola, Mozambique and Algeria)

diversifying to other markets, Northern Europe and

recorded a strong slowdown (19.1 %, over 2016) with no

the Middle East being the new regions where we will

short-term recovery expectations.

be focusing our efforts. In Northern Europe, markets

This slowdown was not offset by an increase in traction

require standards of excellence and additional technical

in new target markets for 2017 (Northern Europe and

sophistication (e.g., more demanding noise restrictions

Middle East), which, despite their great potential, require

and a focus on circular economy), which is highly valued

additional time for type-approvals and product adaptation.

in the final evaluation of tenders. On the other hand, they

In South America, and especially in the countries with the

allow us to sign framework agreements, which guarantee

highest order history (Chile, Uruguay and Argentina), the

greater stability and predictability for the operational

main projects identified were postponed until 2018

activity of our production plants, although at much more
competitive prices.

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

A C C O U N T S

58

59

In the Middle East, challenges are a bit different, as this

In 2017, investment focused mainly on optimising produc-

market entails a long process of type-approval for both

tion processes, through the adoption of Lean methodolo-

products and production plants, while ensuring compet-

gies for the identification and elimination of waste as an

itiveness and suitability of the products to the market’s

integral part of our business identity in the DT, Core and

specifications, as well as redesigning and size calculations

Mobile Substation lines. In 2017, the Lean Transformation

for a reality of repetitive, medium-series production.

programme was responsible for streamlining and supporting

In the US, in 2018, we will have the possibility of resuming

a culture of continuous improvement. The involvement

the sale of Core-technology machines, based on which

and commitment of the entire Business Unit was insured,

we foresee a growth in turnover in this geography. This

thanks to the involvement of around 400 employees in

being a market that we know well and where we are well

more than 40 improvement projects. An ambitious target

recognised, we will be strengthening the network of agents

was set to reduce TPT by 50% and increase OTD to above

present in the field and the tendering and commercial

95% by June 2018.

network allocated to this market. We are certain that

In terms of cost optimisation, special emphasis was placed

we will continue to be successful in this very important

on reducing waste, optimising the establishment plan,

market and that we will be able to leverage and materialise

eliminating non-quality costs and penalties for delays. The

a greater number of opportunities.

participation of the Engineering, Logistics and Supply Chain
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teams was ensured, thus guaranteeing the involvement
of the entire value chain.

THROUGHOUT 2017, THE BUSINESS UNIT
INVESTED IN THE OPTIMISATION AND MOD-

In the areas of Engineering, several advances have already
been achieved, both in terms of technology and processes
and, in the short term, we intend to provide the Business

ERNISATION OF PRODUCTIVE PROCESSES.

Unit with the latest design, calculation and simulation
tools, with a view to increasing productivity and optimising

HOW WAS THIS INVESTMENT REFLECTED
AND WHAT ARE THE

the design of machines, so as to reduce sizes and costs.
This programme’s expansion plan will continue to be
implemented over the upcoming year, with the ultimate
goal of reaching all areas of the TRF business.

RESULTS ACHIEVED
AND EXPECTED BY THE
END OF 2018?

Dissociated Phase Transformers
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SWITCHGEAR (AMT)

TURNOVER
2016

2017

61.8M€ 66.2M€
NUMBER
OF EMPLOYEES

EBITDA
2016

2017

6.4M€ 7.3M€
280
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CERTIFICATIONS

Primary Distribution: broad portfolio of

Transformer substations: turnkey

Medium-Voltage (MV) solutions

solutions for electricity distribution with
a high degree of customisation

Secondary distribution: portfolio of

Portugal: ISO 9.001 (Quality)

ISO 14.001 (Environment), OSHAS 18.001 (Safety)
and NP 4457 (Innovation)

solutions including modular switchgear,

Switchgear: range of products

modular compact cells and overhead

comprising, among others, disconnectors,

distribution system vacuum reclosers

circuit breakers and switches.

Prague: ISO 9.001 (Quality)

India: ISO 9.001 (Quality)

Spain: ISO 9.001 (Quality)
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O U R

MAIN GEOGRAPHIES

BUSINESS UNIT

SWITCHGEAR

The AMT Business Unit develops solutions for

The AMT’s commercial approach targets

the generation, transmission and distribution

markets such as Europe (including

of High- and Medium-Voltage electricity,

Eastern Europe), the Middle East, Latin

operating in primary and secondary distri-

America and Africa, through its own

bution, and providing transformation substa-

sales teams, operating in all segments

tions and switchgear. It provides a broad,

of the geographies where it has industrial

cross-cutting range of products and services

presence, as well as for utilities

that include manufacturing, installation and

and contractors worldwide. In geogra-

post-sales services. The AMT develops its

phies that are harder to reach, the

activity globally, through five industrial units:

AMT relies on a network of agents,
distributors and partners (the latter

CZECH REPUBLIC

PORTUGAL

Matosinhos (Portugal): Engineering and

selected based on product and/or market

R&D competence centre, which coordina-

synergies).

FRANCE
SPAIN

tes all the vectors of the global Switch-

QATAR
DUBAI

MOROCCO

gear supply chain;

SAUDI ARABIA
ANGOLA

Santa Bárbara – Tarragona (Spain):
competence centre for compact substations. Its area of operation is the entire
Spanish market;

Prague (Czech Republic): an industrial
unit operating for the entire Eastern
European market;

Buenos Aires (Argentina): an industrial
unit that covers all of South America;

Nashik (India): an industrial unit
that manufactures components
and semi-finished products for the
other industrial units.

ARGENTINA
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MAIN FACTS IN THE YEAR

EFACEC 2020 – AMBITION

In India, the AMT has strengthened its productive capaci-

As part of the transformation project underway at Efacec, in 2017, the AMT developed a set of activities based

ty to supply different industrial units, having increased

on the six strategic pillars, aimed at enabling the Business Unit to meet the new challenges posed by its markets

its supply capacity. In Portugal, new production lines

and customers:

have been commissioned to supply primary distribution

NORMACEL range of Medium-Voltage Panels

equipment to Middle East markets and cross-cutting Lean
Manufacturing projects have been launched with the aim
of strengthening the Business Unit’s competitiveness and
agility in global markets.

One of the key events of the year was the progress of the
type-approval process for Normacel primary distribution
cells, for utility Kahramaa, in Qatar. This type-approval,
which requires the full certification of the product and the
respective production process by international labora-

01
TECHNOLOGICAL
INNOVATION

02
OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE
STRATEGIES

tories, should be completed in the first half of 2018. In
2017, Efacec built prototypes, validated the solution and

STRATEGIES

conducted about 50 type-tests in accredited international
laboratories.

Reduction of direct costs through
increased production in LCC

Increasing the scale of current product

and the continued development

lines, by widening the portfolio

of efficiency efforts

and complementing the offer
Also worthy of note is the contract for the supply of

Continuous application of lean manufac-

compact secondary distribution panels for French utility

Upgrading the current offer through

ENEDIS. This two-year contract provides for the supply

the rationalisation of product variations

of approximately 2,000 Fluofix panel units.

turing methodologies to production lines

(Primary Distribution, Secondary

Increased Engineering capacity based

Distribution and Switchgear)

on the strengthening of R&D teams
(reduction of time to market), customer

On the other hand, the AMT’s overall performance improve-

Developing and strengthening the

ment project is in the final stages of implementation, aiming

existing R&D competences (cutting,

at raising overall operating ratios, namely On-Time-Delivery

modelling and sensor technologies, etc.)

customisation and industrialisation

Optimisation of the global supply chain,
including new demand forecast models

(OTD) to excellence levels.
Strengthening of the Purchase and
Procurement strategy
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03

04

05

COMMERCIAL
PROACTIVENESS

CUSTOMER
FOCUS

TALENT
DEVELOPMENT

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

Priority to a fly-in/fly-out model

Shorter product certification times

and partnerships with a view to minimising local structures

Development of a dual career model,
which fosters the professional

Improved On-Time-Deliver rates
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06
SUSTAINABILITY

development of technical roles as well
as management roles

STRATEGIES

Intensification of the focus on markets
with recent certifications, while

Revision of the performance assessment

Implementation of best practices

strengthening priority geographies, such

model, incorporating the specificity of

in governance and transparency,

as Middle Eastern markets

functional families vs. functional groups

supported by the development of ethical

in the entire Efacec group.

relationships and an integrated risk

Armamar Substation – Viseu, Portugal

Intensification of joint commercial

management system

efforts, with a view to enhancing

Revision of the compensation and benefit

synergies in markets and/or customers

model, promoting an orientation towards

Increased energy efficiency and

(upsell and cross-sell)

the Group’s and the Business Unit’s

reduction of negative environmen-

strategic (e.g., commercial proactivi-

tal impacts by participating in the

ty) and tactical (e.g., reduction of the

implementation of Circular

accident rates) goals

and Low-Carbon Economies

Definition of a talent-management

Implementation of a proactive Human

model that enables the identifica-

Rights policy, promoting equality,

tion of high-potential employees and

integration and personal development

their guidance into faster professional

among employees, with a view to creating

development paths.

a safe working environment and support-

Switchgear Facilities – Matosinhos, Portugal

ing initiatives by the local community and
Development of a behavioural, functional
and management training plan aimed at
preparing employees for the Efacec 2020
Vision

by society in general
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MARKET OVERVIEW
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
During the year 2017, we were able to consolidate our AMT
operations in our target markets (Europe, Middle East,
Latin America and Africa), as confirmed by the strong
growth in revenue.

The Saudi Arabian market, one of the most important in the

The European market as a whole showed moderate activi-

Middle East, is undergoing a deep transformation process,

ty, in line with previous years. However, the Spanish and

brought about by the launch of its National Transformation

Portuguese markets recorded an interesting resumption

Globally, the level of orders remained stable, strongly driven

Plan in 2016. In 2017, the National Transformation Plan

of investment and, thus, provided new opportunities.

by the European market (45 % growth over the previous

lost momentum, as was noticeable by the weak investment

The Latin American and African markets, despite having

year) and the Middle Eastern markets, thus rewarding the

of Saudi utilities, which resulted in very low AMT activity

several opportunities in renewables, maintained their

efforts and investment made therein.

levels. A recovery is expected for 2018.

tendency of weak growth.

ARGENTINA

The Argentinian market, which remained stagnant in
2016, showed signs of recovery (with high-value orders
from utility EDENOR), allowing the consolidation of AMT

In the field of renewable energies, there was a great

Technological trends for the computerisation of distri-

number of opportunities for the supply of Photovoltaic

bution networks, as well as the use of ‘green’ equipment,

Substations (PS), both in the European market (driven by

continued to accentuate, causing manufacturers to offer

European directives), and in the Latin American market

operations in Buenos Aires and laying the foundations for

EASTERN EUROPE

an expected strong growth in the coming years.

products with a high level of sensor integration (current,

In Eastern Europe, the Russian market turned out

DUBAI

or the African market. Therefore, numerous orders were

voltage, partial discharges, etc.). The preference for

to be a good investment for the supply of second-

made, and this trend is expected to continue in 2018,

SF6-free equipment was also very noticeable.

ary distribution (compact panels), whose order

Throughout 2017, the Switchgear unit carried out its

volume significantly increased, when compared to 2016. On

business through contractors aimed at utility Dubai

the other hand, Efacec’s operations in the Czech Republic

Electricity and Water Authority (DEWA), for the supply

have carried out all AMT business for the Czech Republic,

of primary distribution equipment, of the Normacel range,

Slovakia, Poland, Bulgaria and Romania..

for Dubai’s electrical distribution network.

driven by environmental directives all around the globe.

PORTUGAL

Regarding the domestic market, the AMT continues to
be a market leader, having, in 2017, once again
been chosen by EDP Distribuição for the supply
of secondary distribution equipment (Normafix and
Fluofix), thus demonstrating the national distributor’s
recognition of Efacec’s capacity.
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R&D PROJECTS

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

2017 was a year of strong investment in R&D, namely in

The launch of the AMT performance improvement project brought about a number

the certification of new primary and secondary distribution

of cross-cutting initiatives to reduce throughput times (TPT) and optimise on-time

products. Type-approval procedures for Dubai and Qatar

delivery (OTD) rates.

utilities were successfully completed.

On the other hand, the launch of new production lines for primary distribution

The type-approval of secondary distribution products

and production of low-voltage compartments, based on Lean Manufacturing

for German utility E.ON and Czech utility CEZ is another

methodologies, will enable increasing production in response to the demands of

example of the fact that investing in technology opens

Middle Eastern markets.

doors to new markets.

Still in the area of continuous improvement, the implementation of multi-year

Highlight goes also to the successful tests of the Normafix

contracts with partners and suppliers is underway.

Y E A R

25kV in Budapest, in a Haramia PUC of Czech utility CEZ,
and the development and launch of the 36kV Revac recloser.

INSTITUTIONAL AND COMMERCIAL PRESENCE
DURING THIS YEAR, THE AMT
BUSINESS UNIT PARTICIPATED
IN SEVERAL TRADE FAIRS AND
INDUSTRY EVENTS, THUS REINFORCING ITS VISIBILITY AS A
GLOBAL PLAYER;

Detalhe de Aparelhagem de Alta Tensão

EUROPEAN UTILITY WEEK
in Amsterdam;

BIEL 2017, in Buenos Aires;

MIDDLE EAST ELECTRICITY,
in Dubai.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

AMT
(MILLION EUROS)

2016

2017

CHANGE

%

Orders

82,3

70,4

-11,9

Backlog

70,7

74,6

3,9

Revenue

61,8

66,2

4,4

7,1%

Gross Margin

14,1

13,6

-0,5

-3,6%

22,8%

20,5%

-2,3%

6,4

7,3

0,8

10,4%

11,0%

0,6%

Gross Margin %
EBITDA
EBITDA/Revenue

-14,5%

13,1%

The AMT business is characterised by a combination of

though EBITDA grew in relation to 2016 (7.3 million euros

small and medium supply contracts, usually with short

versus 6.4 million euros), the gross margin decreased by

duration and constant, typical of the secondary distribution

3.6% due to an increase in direct costs, which offset the

market segment, and larger, less frequent contracts, with

increase in revenue. Lastly, highlight goes to the decrease

longer supply cycles, typical of the primary distribution

in fixed costs (-4 %), which, together with the exchange

segment. In the year 2017, the unit recorded a decrease

rate developments (+0.5 million euros), led to an EBITDA

in orders equivalent to 12 million euros, which represents

increase of around 13 %

a 14.5% decrease YoY. This difference is mainly due to the
order placed by Kahramaa (Qatar) in 2016, in an amount
close to 32 million euros, unduly attenuated in this period.
Although orders showed a negative growth trajectory, the
backlog at the end of 2017 recorded a positive variation, and
was able to amount to slightly more than one year of revenue
(an amount predominantly justified by the agreement
with ITCC-Imperal, Trading & Contracting Company). In
terms of revenue (+7.1 % compared to 2016), the Middle
East market clearly stands out, with increased supply to
Saudi Arabia, Qatar and the United Arab Emirates. Even

DIVAC - Medium-Voltage Circuit Breaker
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OUTLOOK FOR 2018
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THE YEAR 2018 IS EXPECTED TO BRING
SHARP GROWTH

E X P E C Y E D 		

The year 2018 is expected to bring sharp growth, boosted
by backlog orders from the Middle East, as Saudi Arabia
is expected to recover. At the same time, several initiatives will be launched to support this growth, in order to

TO BRING

rapidly bring the AMT to a turnover that is more in line
with its technological capacity and its product portfolio.
Strengthening our R&D and industrialisation capacity,
so as to reduce our products’ time-to-market, as well as
strengthening our tendering capacity and expanding our
production plants’ productive capacity, will be key aspects
in responding to the growth expected for 2018.

SHARP

GROWTH
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WHAT IS THE REASON
BEHIND THIS SUCCESS?

ON
							 T H E
FOREFRONT

IS CONCENTRATION EXPECTED TO INCREASE
IN THE BUSINESS
UNIT’S TURNOVER
IN THESE MARKETS
IN THE FUTURE?

The recent success of the AMT in Middle East markets was
the result of a strategy that hinges on several factors. The
Middle East has the fastest growing markets globally,
only second to Asian markets, and, on the other hand, the
AMT has a product portfolio that perfectly matches the
needs of these markets, so they are undoubtedly a good
bet. Another factor concerns the type-approval of AMT
equipment in these markets. In addition to a high level
of investment, this type-approval requires technological
capabilities only within the reach of Efacec and other large

ARMANDO FERNANDES
Switchgear Business Unit

worldwide players. Lastly, there is the competitiveness
factor, for which the AMT is fully equipped to stand up
to the challenge.

MIDDLE EAST MARKETS ARE BECOMING

Strategic AMT markets include Europe, the Middle East,

INCREASINGLY RELEVANT FOR THE AMT.

Latin America and Africa. Strategic consolidation and
growth initiatives are planned for all of these. Given
the volatility of Latin American and African markets,
the European and Middle Eastern markets may come to
increase their significance.
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OF THE STRUCTURAL

WHAT DOES

MEASURES LAUNCHED

THE AMT120 PLAN

IN 2017, WHICH

CONSIST OF?

A
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A N E W M O V E M E N T

DO YOU SEE AS MORE
RELEVANT FOR THE
STRATEGY SET FOR
THE 2020 HORIZON??

The AMT120 Plan consists of a series of strategic initiatives that will boost AMT’s growth to 120 million euros
in revenue by 2021 (growth of over 80% over 4 years).
These initiatives are developed by means of three
components: Product and Skills, Business Model and

The strengthening of our R&D, engineering and tendering

Operational/Productive Efficiency. A wide range of

capacity and, on the other hand, the reduction of direct

initiatives were prepared for each of these components,

costs (increased capacity and further verticalisation of

with a view to boosting growth.

our plants in India), as well as the optimisation of our
entire supply chain, are the structuring measures which
will foster sustained growth for the AMT.
On the supply side, we always have keep in mind the goal of
reducing costs, so that we remain permanently competitive
in the market. In terms of demand, our approach is based
on selling more products to the same customers and acquiring a larger customer portfolio within the same markets.

Inspection of Medium-Voltage Equipment
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AUTOMATION (ASE)

TURNOVER
2016

2017

39.8M€ 50.4M€
NUMBER
OF EMPLOYEES

EBITDA
2016

2017

3.7M€ 5.4M€
291
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CERTIFICATIONS

Network Management Solutions

Power Supply Systems

Portugal: ISO 9.001 (Quality),

Automation Systems

Solar Inverters

ISO 14.001 (Environment), OSHAS 18.001 (Safety)

SmartGrid Components and Solutions

Products for the aerospace industry

and NP 4457 (Innovation)

Brazil: ISO 9.001 (Quality)

Central Europe: ISO 9.001 (Quality), ISO 14.001
(Environment), OSHAS 18.001 (Safety)
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O U R

MAIN GEOGRAPHIES

BUSINESS UNIT

AUTOMATION

The ASE Business Unit provides design,

Algiers (Algeria): operational

development and supply services for energy

Competence Centre for the Maghreb;

system supervision, control and automation

Maputo (Mozambique):

products and solutions. It also operates in the

Operational Competence Centre

power supply, power electronics inverters,

in Mozambique;

storage and space segments.
Centralising systemic skills and as a technol-

Luanda (Angola): Operational
Competence Centre in Angola;

ogy partner, the ASE operates as a supplier of products, including protection relays,

S. Paulo (Brazil): Commercial and

control units, SCADA/HMI software, power

operational Competence Centre for

supply systems or inverters, but also computer

ROMANIA
PORTUGAL

Brazil;

solutions for turnkey power systems, including

Santiago (Chile): Operational

substation automation systems, SCADA and

Competence Centre for the rest of Latin

remote control solutions, photovoltaic, storage

America.

BAHRAIN
ALGERIA

or smart grid solutions.

ANGOLA
BRAZIL

This unit develops its business at a global
level, together with its partners, in eight
competence centres:

Maia (Portugal): Head Office and
Competence Centre for R&D, operation,
production and marketing/sales;

Lisbon (Portugal): Competence Centre
for R&D;

Bucharest (Romania): Commercial and
operational Competence Centre for
Central and Southeast Europe;

CHILE

MOZAMBIQUE
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MAIN FACTS IN THE YEAR
In the field of s mart grids, highlight goes to consol-

(ESP) and Alcochete (REN) substations, the new range of

idation in Portugal, with a special mention to the

products and the SAS order for REN’s Estarreja substation

national roll-out of the view4grid solution, for public

(220/60kV). In Mozambique, a PAC system was installed,

lighting management and business continuity in the AMI

which will manage the power for the Maputo Port, through

segment. Internationally, in 2017, Efacec’s platform for

DP World. In Brazil, a system was commissioned at the

the management of electric vehicle charging stations

Papicu Substation, for a new customer, ENEL Ceará. Orders

was selected by CEM, in Macao. Also noteworthy is the,

were also received from three batches of 21 substation

NEDO/Daikin project, a Demand Response solution also

automation systems for Algeria’s distribution network, and

based on the view4grid platform.

a first order was received for an entirely digital innovative

Orders for dispatches for the Luanda distribution network

substation automation solution in Peru.

and the Benguela distribution network attest to the trust

Still in the field of protection, automation and control of

that the Angolan Electricity Distribution Company (ENDE)

Very-High-Voltage, High-Voltage and Medium-Voltage

continues to place in Efacec’s SCADA/DMS (Distribution

(VHV, HV and MV) networks, in 2017, the new generation

Management System). Also worthy of note is the order

of Efacec products stood out, not only as a unified solution

to upgrade the Lydec dispatch for the management of

for all voltage levels, but also thanks to its ease of use

electricity and water distribution network in Morocco

and level of standard implementation. With projects in

and the award of an upgrade for EDA (Azores Electrical

almost all geographies, either delivered, in progress or

Company), in the Azores.

awarded, 2017 marked the introduction of the range into

As for photovoltaic inverters, Efacec’s technological value

the international market.

proposition allowed leveraging its entry into the Dutch
market (18 MW delivered or in progress). In this area, we
should also highlight the development of the first power
plants in Portugal with 1500 VDC technology and solutions
for hybrid systems (PV+Diesel) in South Africa.
In the field of PAC, highlight goes to the consolidation of
our position in the national market, in Algeria and Brazil.
In 2017, Bahrain renewed it’s trust on Efacec’s solutions
and regarding Latin America, there was significant success
in Chile and Peru. In Portugal, we should highlight the
automation system installed at EDA’s Caminho Novo
thermal power plant, the commissioning of the Ermal

View4grid - Smart Grid Management
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EFACEC 2020 – AMBITION
As part of the transformation project underway at Efacec,
in 2017, the ASE Business Unit developed a set of activities
based on the six strategic pillars, aimed at enabling the
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01
TECHNOLOGICAL
INNOVATION

03

04

business

COMMERCIAL
PROACTIVENESS

CUSTOMER
FOCUS

Positioning as a reference partner

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

Business Unit to meet the new challenges posed by its
markets and customers:

O U R

STRATEGIES

Focus on productisation

Scaling of the Network Management

in the roll-out of Medium-Voltage
Inspection of automation equipment – Ermesinde, Portugal

hardware, within the scope of smart

Focus on geographies with larger scale

Greater swiftness in type-approvals

grid development

and better margins, balanced with

and R&D projects

presence in lower-risk countries
Improved On-Time-Deliver rates

02
OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE

Focus on markets with local
or regional utilities

Strengthening of local partnerships to
serve opportunistic markets and/or
countries difficult to access by Efacec

Intensification of joint commercial
STRATEGIES

efforts, with a view to enhancing
synergies in markets and/or customers

Continued development of efficiency
efforts to reduce operating costs, namely
through procurement optimisation

(upsell and cross-sell)
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05
TALENT
DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGIES

Development of a dual career model,
which fosters the professional

06
SUSTAINABILITY

development of technical roles as well
as management roles

STRATEGIES

Revision of the performance assessment

Implementation of best practices

model, incorporating the specificity of

in governance and transparency,

functional families vs. functional groups

supported by the development

in the entire Efacec group.

of ethical relationships and an integrated
risk management system

Revision of the compensation and benefit
model, promoting an orientation towards

Increased energy efficiency and

the Group’s and the Business Unit’s

reduction of negative environmen-

strategic (e.g., commercial proactivi-

tal impacts by participating in the

ty) and tactical (e.g., reduction of the

implementation of Circular

accident rates) goals

and Low-Carbon Economies

Definition of a talent-management

Implementation of a proactive Human

model that enables the identification

Rights policy, promoting equality,

of high-potential employees and their

integration and personal development

guidance into faster professional

among employees, with a view to creating

development paths.

a safe working environment and supporting initiatives by the local community and

Development of a behavioural, functional

by society in general

and management training plan aimed at
preparing employees for the Efacec 2020
Vision

Close-up of automation equipment – Viseu, Portugal
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MARKET OVERVIEW

The ASE’s operating profile includes international markets,

multiple competitors, along with continued strategies

management challenges, which were the major drivers of

automation abilities in electrical systems, appear rather

balancing geographies with mature electrical systems

aimed at reducing costs, mergers and acquisitions

a transformation in the sector in 2017.

relevant for the future of the industry. Also relevant are

(Europe), developing infrastructures (Maghreb and

and increased agility. The competitive level remains high

Highlight goes also to a trend in which asset managers

opportunities in the field of the integrated management

Southern Africa) or intermediate electrical systems (Middle

in most geographies, with a growing presence of multiple

are increasingly focused on global life cycle efficiency and

of the Low-Voltage network, with integrated SCADA/

East and Latin America). The Portuguese market contin-

players, which are adopting differentiated local strategies.

agility, to the detriment of strategies exclusively focused

ADMS systems, including DMS and OMS, in coordination

ues to merit the attention of the different ASE segments.

In recent years, ASE target markets have presented an

on fostering infrastructure development. In this context,

with the AMI infrastructure.

In international markets, the focus of each segment is

overall growth rate of around 5%/year, with new digital

the progressive evolution into fully digital, standard-based

differentiated, with the area of photovoltaic inverters

and flexibility support domains, still in the initial maturity

substation automation solutions and the progressive

focused on Europe and Latin America, the SCADA area

stages, recording two-digit growth rates. In geographies

emergence of digital asset management solutions stand

favouring Portuguese-speaking countries, the Maghreb

where the development of electrical infrastructures is a

out. Cybersecurity is also unequivocally established as an

and Europe, the intelligent network area launching an

priority, we consider that the business driver is not only

integral vector of automation systems and processes and

internationalisation process in specific geographies, and

investment in the expansion of the network, but also

as a multidimensional challenge presented to the sector.

the Protection, Automation and Control (PAC) area geared

increased automation of existing networks, motivated by

Regarding the transformation of the power grid model,

towards a wide range of target geographies.

the need to increase service quality. Business growth rates

the growing penetration of renewable energy generation,

The competitive environment in the world market is

in geographies with more mature electrical systems are

particularly photovoltaic and hybrid systems, increasingly

dominated by large global players (Siemens, ABB, GE,

more accentuated in the segment of distribution networks,

able to compete with conventional generation alterna-

SEL, Nari, Schneider) from several geographies, combined

with cybersecurity concerns, as well as regulation models,

tives, and the increasing dispersion of generation create

with the international presence of intermediate players

still limiting sharper growths in automation. The industrial

important challenges and opportunities in the very short

and manufacturers/integrators with a local expression

technological context is essentially mature and is currently

term, as the outlook on the penetration of own consump-

or a more specialised business scope. Highlight goes to

transitioning into a third generation of digital solutions.

tion and electric mobility remains unchanged. In this

investment in innovation, a focus on product and comput-

In the ASE’s field of operation, highlight goes to the

context, increased flexibility options, namely electrical

erisation as value creation and risk reduction strategies by

penetration of renewable energy sources and flexibility

storage and electronic power use, in addition to greater
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

R&D PROJECTS

In 2017, the ASE Business Unit was able to fulfil important orders, among which the following stand out:

In 2017, the expansion of the core DMS functions was
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Digital Asset Management;

completed, namely the advanced versions of Power Flow,
Status Estimator, Short Circuit Analysis, Distribution

ANGOLA

SCADA: two power dispatches.

BAHRAIN

Automation and Protection Distributed across
4G (industrial projects) and 5G (co-financed

Network Optimisation, Analysis V Contingencies, among

R&D projects H2020 SliceNet and P2020

others.

5G Mobilizer);

PAC: more PAC orders (Efacec equipment is already

The “e-Balance” TR&D project, which will monitor

installed in nearly 50 substations).

low-voltage networks with micro-generation control,

NEXTStep (Transformation Substation for the
Future);

in consortium with European partners (including

THE NETHERLANDS

Portuguese partners EDP and INESC INOV), was also
System Point – Platform for systems and data management solutions

DEMOCRAT Storage Demonstrator.

Inverters/PV Stations: 18MW installed or in progress,

completed in 2017.

with another 15MW planned for early 2018.

Still in 2017, the development of the AMI G Smart data

The extension of the EFASOLAR inverter range to 1500

concentrator, 4 th Edition was completed with highlight

VDC solutions, with power solutions between 1200 kVA

to reduced production costs, and MID B certification was

and 1500 kVA, was one of the main challenges in the field

obtained for the M Box I300 three-phase meter.

of inverters. The respective certification processes were

Smart Grids: technical infrastructure management

In the field of power supply systems, highlight goes to the

concluded in 2017.

system for the use of chargers from multiple manufac-

certification of the full range of Battery Chargers and UPS

In the field of innovation for digital substations, there

turers, currently in the implementation stage.

(Uninterruptible Power Supply) and the type-approval of

has been a significant advance in the DSGrid project, with

the new Battery Charger in Portugal.

new products and cybersecurity capabilities planned for

Since April 2016, the ASE has also been developing a project

industrial launch in 2018. With regard to new products,

for the development of an ADMS (Advanced Distribution

highlight goes to the launch of the first version of System

PAC: installation under the frame agreement, with the

Management System) for Low-Voltage, called ADMS4LV,

Point, a solution for the technical management of data and

possibility of a new order in 2018.

which uses technologies such as machine learning, artificial

cybersecurity for networks and assets.

intelligence, big data and augmented reality.

Lastly, 2017 brought the conclusion of an important

Other new R&D initiatives were launched in 2017, of which

development cycle of the new unified range of protection

the following stand out:

and control products for generation, transmission and

MACAO

ROMANIA

ARGERIA

PAC: Installation of Efacec relays in 60kV substations,
in progress.

distribution, including Medium-Voltage, with the launch of
the DCU 220, intended for the automation of Transformation
Substations. The IEC 61850 Ed.2 certification completed
the extended range certification plan and approvals for
over 10 new customers, attesting to the solidity of Efacec’s
portfolio in this field.
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INSTITUTIONAL AND COMMERCIAL PRESENCE

the integration of several vertical business processes.

The ASE participated in the SGTech 2017 conference

With regard to photovoltaic market trade fairs,

were defined and implemented. An R&D process applied

The procurement and expansion efforts developed by the

in Amsterdam, The Netherlands, with a communi-

the ASE was present at Intersolar Europe 2017,

across all business segments was implemented in the Smart

network of outsourced partners were also key factors in

cation and an exhibition stand disseminating ADMS

in Munich; Genera 2017, in Madrid; Solar Solutions

solutions. It was also present at the CIRED 2017

2017, in Amsterdam; Intersolar South America 2017,

Grids division, as planned. As a result of this implemen-

increasing our capacity in terms of system supply.

conference in Glasgow, Scotland, with communi-

in São Paulo, and PVSEC 2017 in Amsterdam.

tation, the Smart Grids division was audited by APCER,

Lastly, in 2017, two initiatives were developed to improve

cations and an exhibition stand presenting a wide

and no non-compliances or opportunities for improvement

the layouts of manufacturing processes, as well as personal

range of automation and smart grid products, notably

The new range of EFASOLAR inverters for 1500 VDC

the worldwide launch of ADMS and the extended

solutions with power solutions between 1200 kVA and

presentation of System Point. At the European Utility

1500 kVA, was lauched onto the market at Interso-

Week 2017, in Amsterdam, The Netherlands, the ASE

lar, in Munich, with the presentation of the 3 MVA

the processes, highlight goes also to the focus and overall

prepared a hands-on presentation of its technological

solution, in a 20 ft. HC metal container. The P21020

strengthening of the team, with a view to improving

offer. Still in Europe, communications and products

POWERFLOW project has allowed optimising and

were presented at PAC World 2017 (Poland) and

developing new battery inverter platforms, especially

RUGRIDS (Russia).

with a focus on customisation for flow batteries .

In 2017, product management, R&D and quality processes

were identified.

and organisational development, and Lean Manufacturing

In product management, in addition to improvements to

was strengthened in production and logistics.

customer focus. Also in this area, the launch of new digital
operation management tools has created the basis for
significant increases in ASE’s operational responsiveness.

The ASE also participated in the Smart Energy World

In terms of operational excellence, the harmonisation of

Summit in Lisbon, the Clean Energy for all European Islands in Greece and the ADMS & DERMS 2017

power electronics solutions for power outputs exceeding

conference in Atlanta, USA.

500 kW allowed reducing components and systematising
platforms, with significant increases in competitiveness. Significant developments were observed in the
standardisation of design solutions and the globalised
management of items and bills-of-materials, along with

EFASOLAR Management
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

ASE
(MILLION EUROS)

2016

2017

CHANGE

%

Orders

44,5

52,5

8,0

Backlog

56,8

54,7

-2,1

Revenue

39,8

50,4

10,5

26,5%

9,1

12,2

3,0

33,3%

22,9%

24,1%

1,2%

3,7

5,4

1,7

9,4%

10,8%

1,4%

Gross Margin
Gross Margin %
EBITDA
EBITDA/Revenue

18,0%
EDP Dispatch Centre – Porto, Portugal

45,0%

In terms of orders, the ASE Business Unit witnessed an

EBITDA recorded a favourable evolution, as a result of the

18% increase over the previous year, particularly due to the

improvement in the gross margin. EBITDA also grew as a

performance of the Portuguese market, which has a weight

result of the stabilisation of indirect costs. We should note

of 32.3% on orders. We should highlight the geographical

that exchange rate differences had a negative weight of

area of t he Maghreb, where orders amounted to a total of

0.2 million euros this year – and in 2016, they amounted

9.2 million euros, with a positive deviation of 4.7 million

to 0.8 million.

from the initial budget. In terms of revenue, the increase
was mainly driven by the Angolan market and the African
region of the Maghreb, which contributed with 7.5 million
euros to a total increase of 10.5 million euros. In terms
of gross margin, there was an improvement of 3 million
euros over 2016, in absolute terms. In relative terms,
the gross margin rose from 22.9% to 24.1%, particularly due
to the performance of the African, UK and Irish markets.

ScateX+ at the First Smart Power Grid
Lab in Latin America
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OUTLOOK FOR 2018

THE OUTLOOK FOR 2018 INCLUDES THE

				 F O R 2 0 1 8

OPENING OF SOME NEW MARKETS.
The ASE plans to move to a more aggressive business
growth phase in 2018, with a strong focus on the wider

				 I N C L U D E S

marketing of its product portfolio, and greater aggressiveness in terms of promotion and qualification. The
outlook for 2018 includes the opening of some new markets

THE OPENING OF

in Europe and the Middle East, without losing focus on
increasing penetration in markets where the Business
Unit has been successful in recent years. The ASE intends,
therefore, to consistently reinforce internationalisation,

SOME NEW

seeking to develop new partnerships and strengthening the
local capacities of international structures, as a means of
ensuring the customer centricity that differentiates Efacec.

				 M A R K E T S .

The transformation programme will continue to focus on
operational excellence, aiming to increase capacity and
reduce response times, with a strong focus on increasing
the levels of profitability of the business.

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

A N D

O U R

Y E A R

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

A C C O U N T S

100

101

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

A N D

O U R

Y E A R

improvement, by launching a wide range of initiatives to
improve our processes, towards operational excellence.

TOWARDS
OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE

We strongly wish for this orientation to translate into a
competitive edge in our value proposition to the market
and, consequently, increase our customers’ satisfaction.

It was, therefore, a year full of transformational reforms,
where we created the necessary bases to sustain the
aggressive growth plan that we have prepared for the
upcoming years. As main successes, I would highlight
our ability to overcome all the quality-related goals we
set out at the beginning of the year. Although we were
going through a transformational phase, we did not lose
focus on delivering results, having achieved a 15% growth
in turnover, accompanied by a 17% reduction in working
capital and a 40% increase in EBITDA, in relation to 2016.

PAULO VAZ
Automation

WHAT IS YOUR APPRECIATION OF THE LAST

EFACEC’S 2020 STRATEGIC PLAN

12 MONTHS AND WHICH

ENVISAGED A PROFOUND CHANGE IN THE

ARE THE BUSINESS

ASE’S BUSINESS MODEL.

UNIT’S MAIN SUCCESSES AND CHALLENGES?

From a qualitative point of view, I would highlight the
results achieved by strengthening the type-approval plan
and launching new product ranges in the field of digital
relays and smart grids, as well as the consolidation of our
position in some geographies, such as Romania, Algeria
and Brazil, which were important milestones, in addition
to the enablers resulting from the ongoing transformation
processes.

In short, we are confident that we are on the right track
The balance for the last 12 months is extraordinarily

and that we are building a solid structure, with the

positive. In fact, 2017 was a year of great challenges for the

right resources to position ourselves, in the short term,

Business Unit, such as launching new products, opening new

among the best companies to work in, in Portugal, in this

markets, stepping into new business areas and introducing

field of activity.

a new organisational model. On the other hand, we have
sought to strengthen our culture in terms of continuous
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Digital transformation is effectively at the origin of the

In conclusion, I cannot fail to mention that the greatest

We will seek to open new markets, such as Spain, the United

Business Unit. It is part of our DNA and we are looking

challenge in digital transformation today is innovation

Kingdom and France, without neglecting the opportunity

at new opportunities as a natural evolution. We are also

in terms of business management models, for which we

to continue growing in markets where we have recently

aware that each customer’s context is unique and the way in

are also preparing.

been very successful, such as Central Europe, North Africa

which value is created based on digital solutions is differ-

and the Middle East.

ent, depending on the reality, in terms of infrastructure

THE ASE IS PROBABLY THE EFACEC

and technology, organisation and skills, or on regulatory,

BUSINESS UNIT THAT IS MOST EXPOSED

legislative, and even social contexts. There isn’t one single

TO DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION IN ITS

or unifying solution.

DIFFERENT ASPECTS.
Over the last two years, the concepts of digital transformation have extended to the various sectors of the economy,

THROUGHOUT 2017,
WAS THE STRENGTHENING OF THIS PARADIGM
NOTICEABLE IN TRENDS
AND CUSTOMER
REQUIREMENTS?
WHAT DOES IT TRANSLATE INTO AND WHAT
IMPACT DID IT HAVE

boosted by new basic technological solutions, in particular

Internally, we give priority to improving our performance

WHAT WILL BE
ASE’S PRIORITIES
FOR THE NEXT THREE
YEARS?

and R&D projects (reducing time-to-market). On the
other hand, we will complete the implementation of our
operational excellence project, with a view to increasing
capacity and improving delivery deadlines.

the IoT, cloud storage and new large-scale data process-

Lastly, we will implement a cross-cutting behavioural,

ing abilities, using artificial intelligence, but also due

functional and management training plan, which will

to the acceptance of new business models, with a more

Within the priorities set for the different strategic pillars, I

prepare our employees for the Efacec 2020 vision, in

disruptive character than those of the previous decade.

would highlight those with the most significant short-term

order to sustain the Business Unit’s ambition to double

This new social and economic context, now also dubbed

impacts. Our priority, internationally, is to strengthen

its turnover in the next four to five years.

the Fourth Industrial Revolution, is promising and allows

our local competences in strategic markets. We want to

harnessing new value, even in conservative areas, such as

maintain a global management view of the business but

the electricity sector.

acting locally, and to this aim, we will strengthen our local
teams in Brazil, Chile, Romania and Algeria, with a view to

Therefore, in order to adapt to this context, we are

sustaining the growth already achieved in these markets.

already providing intelligent automation solutions for
distribution networks and software for the management

Simultaneously, we will strongly focus on promoting new

of electric vehicle infrastructures and introducing new

products, particularly our new products for energy automa-

digital substation and SCADA/ADMS automation solutions

tion systems, on rolling out the demonstrator to leverage

for Medium- and Low-Voltage, which offer our customers

the new storage business we have launched in 2017, as

We are still feeling the strengthening of this trend of digital

real added value, in line with their strategy. Our technology

well as in the field of solar power, with our PV stations,

innovation in the electricity sector. We are now reaching

development programme is, therefore, very active, with

which were introduced to the market as a solution that

a level of maturity that gives us greater confidence to

multiple ongoing initiatives, where the areas concerning

combines all products under one single brand (Efacec),

stand by the investments made in our technological

the intelligent management of network flexibility and

which is a differentiating feature that stands out among

development programme.

optimisation of assets and their exploitation will be key

our most direct competitors.

ON THE UNIT?

levels with regard to engineering design, type-approvals

to the assertion of the ASE by 2020.
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SERVICE (SRV)

TURNOVER
2016

2017

26.4M€ 23.6M€

EBITDA
2016

2017

4.0M€ 2.9M€

NUMBER

158

OF EMPLOYEES
CHAPTER

02 2.2.4

PORTFOLIO

Maintenance and revamping of Power

CERTIFICATIONS

BUSINESS UNIT

Portugal: ISO 9001 (Quality),

The Service team is dedicated to the provision

It also ensures global maintenance contracts

of inspection, testing, diagnostics, mainte-

and develops equipment and installation

nance, repair and commissioning services

revamping solutions, based on customer needs.

for the main equipment in the energy sector,

In addition, it provides specialised condition

such as transformers, motors, alternators,

assessment and asset management services.

generators, circuit breakers, disconnectors

It is present with service and repair units

and switches, both at the customer’s premises

in Portugal, Angola, Algeria, Spain and

and at the workshop.

Mozambique, developing its business from

Transformers
ISO 14001 (Environment) and OSHAS18 001
Maintenance and revamping of rotating

(Safety)

machines and Distribution Transformers
Spain: ISO 9001 (Quality)
Maintenance and revamping of Mediumand High-Voltage (MV/HV) switchgear

Revamping of Medium- and High-Voltage
(MV/LV) facilities

these geographies.
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MAIN GEOGRAPHIES

EFACEC 2020 – AMBITION

SERVICE

As part of the transformation project underway at Efacec, in
2017, the Service team developed a set of activities based
on the six strategic pillars, aimed at enabling it to meet

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

01
TECHNOLOGICAL
INNOVATION

the new challenges posed by its markets and customers:
STRATEGIES

Autonomisation of the Business Unit,

USA

based upon a Product-based logic

PORTUGAL
SPAIN

Expanded range of services, focusing
on business lines with a competitive
ALGERIA

and sustainable advantage
Transformer Revamping at the new
Service and Repair Centre - Angola

ANGOLA

Enhancement and expansion of the
electrical equipment and installation

MOZAMBIQUE

revamping business

02
MAIN FACTS IN THE YEAR
In 2017, the new Service and Repair Centre was inaugurated in the Viana Industrial Park, in Angola, provided

OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE
STRATEGIES

with innovative and unique equipment in the country, as well as specialised teams, which ensure the maintenance of
products for the energy, oil & gas and industry sectors.

Optimised management of workshops

With regard to business, highlights goes to the signing of a partnership agreement with the company HTMS, which

and repair units

is fully owned by the Électricité de France (EDF) Group, in order to carry out the installation and maintenance
of Power Transformers in France.

Improvement/relocation of repair
facilities in selected geographies
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03

04

05

COMMERCIAL
PROACTIVENESS

CUSTOMER
FOCUS

TALENT
DEVELOPMENT

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

Preliminary approach to small-/medium-

Improved compliance with SLAs

Development of a dual career model,

sized markets/customers with relevant

(Service Level Agreements) signed

which fosters the professional develop-

installed capacity

with Customers

ment of technical roles as well

Use of existing commercial structures

Improved On-Time-Delivery
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06
SUSTAINABILITY

as management roles
STRATEGIES
Revision of the performance assessment

at Efacec’s strategic geographies

model, incorporating the specificity of

Implementation of best practices

Development of local partnerships

functional families vs. functional groups

in governance and transparency,

to broaden the potential customer base,

in the entire Efacec group.

supported by the development of ethical

Equipment revamping – Paredes de Coura, Portugal

increase local knowledge and establish
agreements with equipment suppliers

relationships and an integrated risk
Revision of the compensation and benefit

management system

model, promoting an orientation towards
Intensification of joint commercial

the Group’s and the Business Unit’s

Increased energy efficiency

efforts, with a view to enhancing

strategic (e.g., commercial proactivi-

and reduction of negative environ-

synergies in markets and/or customers

ty) and tactical (e.g., reduction of the

mental impacts, by participating in the

(upsell and cross-sell)

accident rates) goals

implementation of Circular and Low-Carbon Economies

Definition of a talent-management
model that enables the identification

Implementation of a proactive

of high-potential employees and their

Human Rights policy, promoting equality,

guidance into faster professional

integration and personal development

development paths.

among employees, with a view to creating
a safe working environment and support-

Development of a behavioural, functional

ing initiatives by the local community and

and management training plan aimed

by society in general

at preparing employees for the Efacec
2020 Vision
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MARKET OVERVIEW

In 2017, the installed capacity of power utilities continued
to witness a deterioration and ageing trend, especially in
Europe and North America, as a result of the deferral of
new investments and the extension of the useful lives of
network assets. In markets heavily conditioned by the
price of oil, the trend of minimal investment in network
maintenance continued.
In addition, at the global scale, we continued to witness the
outsourcing of service and maintenance activities by
utilities. Working autonomously with its own teams or
in partnership with important local operators, the SRV
sought to continue to take advantage of the preference
for outsourcing.
In this field, highlight goes also to the transformation of
the business through the use of digital technologies, which
enables easy and instant access to data on equipment
and the promotion of service models based on a preventive, rather than on a corrective, approach. Throughout
2018, there should be a trend towards the emergence of
integrated asset management solutions.

Commissioning of a transformer for MidAmerican Energy - Iowa, U.S.A.

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

A N D

O U R

Y E A R

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

A C C O U N T S

112

113

O U R

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

THE MAIN CONTRACTS AWARDED IN 2017
WERE AS FOLLOWS:

PORTUGAL

SPAIN

PORTUGAL

The Service team was resilient in the face of an adverse

It has consolidated its position in the main energy

scenario of strong reduction of investment in infrastructure

utilities, being increasingly recognised as a strategic

maintenance, remaining one of the main players dedicated

partner of great importance.

to providing specialised maintenance and repair services
for power equipment.

SPAIN
Renewal of the contract for the maintenance of

tures of EDP Renováveis’ Wind Parks

transformer load regulators for Gas Natural Fenosa,
extending the scope of operation to Coruña, León,

Renovation of the 30 kV installation of the Miranda

Orense-Lugo, Pontevedra, Madrid 1 and Segovia.

hydroelectric plant for EDP Produção.

MOZAMBIQUE AND ALGERIA

MOZAMBIQUE

MVA 11kV 1500rpm for FISIGEN, including re-insuContinuing the work of previous years, the Service unit

lation of stator plating, stator rewinding and rotor

Refurbishment of the cooling systems of the main

offered a portfolio that was differentiating at various

repair.

transformers of the Cahora Bassa hydroelectric

Despite the unfavourable macroeconomic environment, the

levels to the companies with which it developed its

SRV invested in the improvement of facilities, assets and

business.

power plant.

ANGOLA

working conditions in general, in order to better serve

ALGERIA

Refurbishment of an Efacec 60MVA 220/60kV

its customers in a market with great needs in terms of
infrastructure maintenance and refurbishment.

A N D

Preventive maintenance on the electrical infrastruc-

Complete workshop repair of a BRUSH alternator, 21

ANGOLA

S T R A T E G Y

transformer at the Cazenga substation.

Refurbishment, including replacement of accessories,
drying of the active part and painting, of two GEE

Service and Repair Centre – Angola.

SRI LANKA

62MVA, 110/6.9kV three-phase transformers at the
Ascó Nuclear Power Plant.

Assistance to Voith for the rewinding of large

Refurbishment of three TOSHIBA 17MVA, 60/5.5kV

alternator.

three-phase transformers for Sonatrach.

LEBANON, ZIMBABWE
AND CAPE VERDE
Revamping de equipamentos antigos Efacec.
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CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

In 2017, a cross-cutting asset management project was

concerns, particularly regarding the implementation of

The launch of the SRV performance improvement project brought about a number of cross-cut-

launched at Efacec, with a view to offering the market,

Circular Economy initiatives. A standard solution was also

ting initiatives to reduce throughput times (TPT) and optimise on-time delivery (OTD) rates.

as early as 2018, an Online Conditioning Monitoring and

developed to replace Medium-Voltage circuit breakers

On the other hand, the launch of new production lines for primary distribution and produc-

Diagnosis (OCMD) solution for power transformers, which

containing gaseous dielectric SF6.

tion of low-voltage compartments, based on Lean Manufacturing methodologies, will enable
increasing production in response to the demands of Middle Eastern markets.

allows a more assertive monitoring of performance, plans
and maintenance actions and supports decision-making

Lastly, a new synchronous motor excitation system was

Still in the area of continuous improvement, the implementation of multi-year contracts with

by customers.

developed and designed for the copper washing mills of

partners and suppliers is underway.

In 2017, the SRV also launched inspection services using

ALMINA, Minas do Alentejo.

multicopters with image collection (video, photography
and thermal imaging) using high resolution sensors.
In addition, the transformer oil regeneration service

In 2017, the SRV also embraced

The certification of the Arroteia facilities

was also launched, in response to growing environmental

an ambitious Lean Transformation

by the Association of Electrical and

project, focusing on administrative and

Mechanical Trades (AEMT) was also

operational processes, in order to signifi-

achieved and specialised training was

cantly reduce throughput times (TPT),

provided on the repair, enhancement

improve compliance with deadlines (OTD)

and recovery of equipment used

and ensure the budgetary control of

in explosive atmospheres.

projects, thus contributing to a compet-

Inspection services using multicopters with image
collection, using high resolution sensors.

itive offer for customers of specialised

Lastly, in Angola, a technical training

services.

centre was created at the new facilities.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

SRV
(MILLION EUROS)

2016

2017

CHANGE

%

Orders

26,1

21,1

-5,1

Backlog

9,6

6,4

-3,2

Revenue

26,4

23,6

-2,8

-10,8%

7,5

6,7

-0,8

-10,9%

28,4%

28,3%

-0,1%

4,0

2,9

-1,1

15,0%

12,4%

-2,7%

Gross Margin
Gross Margin %
EBITDA
EBITDA/Revenue

-19,3%

-26,7%

The year 2017 proved a rather challenging year for the SRV. This Business Unit recorded
a drop in orders compared to the previous year, in particular due to the declining performance of the Spanish (-35%), Angolan (-28%) and Mozambican (-78%) markets. On the other
hand, it strengthened its position in the Portuguese market, with a market share growth
of 11%. In terms of revenue, the decrease was mainly due to the Mozambican market, where
there was a decrease of 3.5 million euros against 2016. In terms of gross margin, the percentage margin remained stable in 2017. However, and as a result of lower revenues, the absolute
amount margin fell by 0.8 million euros. In turn, EBITDA accompanied the downward trend in
revenue and fell by around 1.1 million euros. In addition to this impact, the increase in External
Supply and Services, of around 0.5 million euros, also contributed to this decline.

Service and Repair Centre – Angola.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2018

				 A Y E A R
2018 is expected to be a year of great challenges and

OF GREAT

decisive for strengthening the SRV’s position as a source
of growth, both in and outside Efacec. Although a general
trend towards reduced investment by traditional custom-

CHALLENGES

ers and cost containment in the conservation of existing
infrastructures is expected, the SRV aims at achieving a
significant growth of activity, when compared to 2017.
This growth will be boosted by a focus on new geographies,

				 A N D D E C I S I V E

such as the US, greater support for domestic customers
and a wider diversification of our innovative service offer.
The SRV will also strengthen its commercial activity in
order to capitalise on more opportunities and structure
its operations in order to present a more cohesive, flexible
and multipurpose structure, indispensable to offer a more
efficient response to our customers and foster the growth
of the various lines of business.
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INGREDIENTS
					 F O R
THE FUTURE
WHAT IS YOUR
APPRECIATION OF THE
YEAR 2017, IN WHICH
THE SERVICE UNIT’S
SCOPE WAS REVISED
TO INTEGRATE ALL 
T E C H N I C A L M A I N T E N A N C E ,
REPAIR AND
REHABILITATION
ACTIVITIES HITHERTO
DISPERSED BY THE
TIAGO GONÇALVES
Service

VARIOUS PRODUCT
BUSINESS UNITS?

This was a year of reorganisation and strategic redefinition, which led to an abnormal employee turnover in
some key roles of the organisation. These were important
and fundamental changes, necessary to overcome future
challenges. In a business where a relationship of trust
among the different stakeholders is a key aspect, it will
take some time for these changes to bring about the
expected results. At the moment, I would say that we have
all the necessary ingredients, as we have a much younger
and motivated team, aware of the current challenges and
committed to customer satisfaction and business success.

We have not yet fully taken advantage of the potential for
optimising resources, sharing knowledge and standardising
practices. However, the integration of all the maintenance
activities is already allowing us to offer integrated service
solutions to a very diverse universe of customers, thanks
to a more qualified and diversified staff
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THROUGHOUT 2017,
THE SRV SOUGHT
TO DIVERSIFY ITS
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S T R A T E G Y

These are more mature and demanding markets, where

trends towards smarter asset maintenance, based on the

competition is strong, but less unpredictable, and where it

real-time performance of the equipment and models that

will be easier to build stable relationships with customers,

can predict and prevent malfunctions, optimise operation

which is key to building a more solid business portfolio.

and maintenance, and support new investment decisions
by customers.

TARGET MARKETS
AND BECOME MOREAND

O U R

WHAT ARE THE

MORE INTERNATIONAL.

BUSINESS UNIT’S

WHAT SUCCESSES

PRIORITIES FOR

AND CHALLENGES

2018 AND WHAT

WOULD YOU HIGHLIGHT

ARE THE EXPECTED

REGARDING THIS

RESULTS?

PROCESS?
In 2018, we will continue to focus on SRV’s transformation
Indeed, the business is still very dependent on the

and on implementing a set of initiatives that are perfectly

Portuguese market and on some business in developing

aligned with the organisation’s goals, aimed at ensuring

geographies, such as Mozambique and Angola. Given the

an effective and long-lasting success.

unfavourable macroeconomic environment for Service
activities in these countries, for different reasons, growth

We will invest in improving our facilities in Portugal,

must inevitably be achieved through the diversification of

including redefining the factory layout and installing new

supply and the expansion of the geographical footprint.

equipment, which will allow us to optimise workflows,
reduce transit times and exert better control over our

However, in a business that requires customer proximity

operations. These are great investments, all made with

and where human resources make all the difference,

the customer in mind, and aiming at better serving the

internationalisation is more complex, and access to opportu-

customer.

nities that allow us to demonstrate our capacity is more
time-consuming. We are entering new markets, such as

Contrary to standard practice, we will also invest heavily

France or the United Kingdom, through recognised local

in innovation and technological development, with a

partners, whose scope of action is complementary to ours.

view to creating solutions that respond to new market

We will take on a clear strategy of geographic diversification, outside traditional markets, mainly with the relaunch
of our activity in the USA. This is a rather demanding market
but it is also a market where we had good results in the
past, and where we are known for technical excellence.
The success of this relaunch will certainly be decisive for
the achievement of the goals we have set
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ENERGY (ENE)

TURNOVER
2016

2017

90.9M€ 89.8M€
NUMBER
OF EMPLOYEES

EBITDA
2016

2017

5.3M€ 7.5M€
213

CHAPTER

02 2.2.5

PORTFOLIO

CERTIFICATIONS

Substations: Very-High Voltage (vhv),

Renewable Power Sources: photovoltaic

Portugal: ISO 9.001 (Quality), ISO 14.001

High-Voltage (HV) and Medium-Voltage

(solar, own consumption’) and hybrid

(Environment) and OSHAS 18.001 (Safety)

(MV), up to 500KV

(solar, thermal and storage) power
generation solutions for connection to

Hydroelectric Power Plants: plants for the
production and storage of water-generated power

the power grid

Central Europe: ISO 9.001 (Quality)
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O U R

MAIN GEOGRAPHIES
ENERGY

BUSINESS UNIT

The ENE Business Unit is responsible for

the other Efacec Business Units, particularly

carrying out projects for the construction

those of the Products segment. The ENE

of electrical and mechanical infrastructures

develops its activities through the enhance-

for customers in the industrial and power

ment of local and technological partnerships,

generation, transmission and distribution

which allow access to specific markets and

sectors, with a turn-key/EPC approach and

applications.

creating value through the integration of

SLOVAKIA

PORTUGAL

ROMANIA

different skills and technologies.

GEORGIA

The ENE operates globally and has international

ALGERIA

presence, developing its business through
five competence centres, located in Portugal,

ANGOLA

Austria, Chile, Angola and Mozambique. The
CHILE

ENE has a close commercial relationship with

MOZAMBIQUE
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MAIN FACTS
IN THE YEAR

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

EFACEC 2020 – AMBITION
As part of the transformation project underway at Efacec,

Regarding hydroelectric plants, the year 2017 was charac-

in 2017, the ENE Business Unit developed a set of activities

terised by the completion of ongoing works in Portugal,

based on the six strategic pillars, aimed at enabling the

particularly for EDP and Ruiverg, as well as by an increase

Business Unit to meet the new challenges posed by its

in the number of commercial proposals for Latin America.

markets and customers:

Regarding Transmission & Distribution (T&D) projects,
the ENE continued to explore geographic alternatives to
Hydroelectric Power Plant for Ruiverg – Ruivães, Portugal

widen its footprint, particularly in Africa, with orders in
two new markets: Guinea-Bissau and Rwanda.
In the area of substations, the ENE completed several projects,
including turnkey and refurbishment projects, in Algeria,
Tunisia, Angola, Chile and Mozambique.
In Chile, Efacec completed the expansion of a 220 kV
substation for Transelec, a project of extreme importance

01

02

TECHNOLOGICAL
INNOVATION

OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

for strengthening the national transmission system.
In Tunisia, the construction and expansion of 25 substations, for customer Société Tunisienne de l’Electricité et
Development of the offer of financing

Integrated management of project

solutions for customer projects

execution resources in systemic areas

from Coca-Cola Bottling Luanda and from Vidrul.

Proactive search for business opportu-

Development of skills/risk management

The application of new technologies linked to solar photovol-

nities associated with public investment

and project management processes

funds for the construction of electrical

Hydroelectric Power Plant for Ruiverg –

installations

Ruivães, Portugal

du Gaz (STEG), was continued. Regarding the Angolan
and Mozambican industrial sector, orders were received

taic generation materialised in an order for Operation
& Maintenance (O&M) of the Rabagão floating solar
photovoltaic park, and a pilot installation with bifacial

Investment in the diversification

module technology for EDP Renováveis, in Évora. At the

of renewable generation projects, with

end of 2017, an order was received for a 25MW photovoltaic
park in Ivory Coast.

a view to balancing risk and profitability,
with an emphasis on small and mediu
sized projects and on O&M contracts
for own projects and construction
by third parties
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03

04

05

COMMERCIAL
PROACTIVENESS

CUSTOMER
FOCUS

TALENT
DEVELOPMENT

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

Enhancing commercial skills, promoting

Development of project-complementary

Development of a dual career model,

synergies with other systemic areas

partnerships, with a special focus on risk

which fosters the professional develop-

sharing and implementation fidelity

ment of technical roles

Widening our footprint to ensure scale

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

A N D

06
SUSTAINABILITY

as well as management roles
STRATEGIES

Strengthening the network

Revision of the performance assessment

of commercial partnerships in countries

model, incorporating the specificity of

Implementation of best practices in

where Efacec has difficulty accessing

functional families vs. functional groups

governance and transparency, supported

the market

in the entire Efacec group.

by the development of ethical relation-

Construction and expansion of substation for
Société Tunisienne de l’Electricité et du Gaz (STEG) – Tunisia

ships and an integrated risk management
Revision of the compensation and benefit

system

model, promoting an orientation towards
Shell Transformer – Power Plant – Guinea-Bissau

the Group’s and the Business Unit’s

Increased energy efficiency and

strategic (e.g., commercial proactivi-

reduction of negative environmen-

ty) and tactical (e.g., reduction of the

tal impacts by participating in the

accident rates) goals

implementation of Circular and Low-Carbon Economies

Definition of a talent-management
model that enables the identifica-

Implementation of a proactive Human

tion of high-potential employees and

Rights policy, promoting equality,

their guidance into faster professional

integration and personal development

development paths.

among employees, with a view to creating

Development of a behavioural, functional
and management training plan aimed
at preparing employees for the Efacec
2020 Vision
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
The ENE’s current strategy is to consolidate its position in the utilities sector in Portugal, strengthen the existing
relationship with local customers and utilities in Africa, Central Europe and Chile by expanding its activities to new
customers and selected target markets, by diversifying its EPC portfolio, by leveraging internal synergies (e.g. Smart

Many of today’s global trends generate great business

such as the Maghreb. In Angola, the ENE has dedicated

Grid/Digital Substations), and by establishing strategic operational and commercial partnerships in line with the

opportunities, especially for the ENE. Examples of this are

special attention to the country’s industrialisation efforts.

targeting strategy.

the ongoing processes of decarbonisation, decentralisation

As for photovoltaic power generation, a new boom was

Following the strategy that has set out, in 2017, the ENE was awarded important contracts, of which the following

of electricity consumption and generation, urbanisation,

observed during 2017, driven by the aforementioned

stand out:

industrialisation and computerisation. These trends

dynamics and the decline in technology costs. Programmes

impact each geography differently, but they open up new

to license new projects are already underway in several

opportunities around the world. The ENE seeks to focus

countries, such as Portugal, Spain, Mexico, Argentina and

on geographies that are best suited to its competences.

France. Projects are being reviewed all around the world,

As far as hydroelectric plants are concerned, the main

taking into account the cost of energy, the availability of

priorities for 2017 were still internationalisation, continuity

financing and the cost of technology. The ENE’s commercial

of works in Angola and investment in Latin America, in

presence in some of these markets will be strengthened as

geographies where investments in water generation are

early as 2018. There is also a dedicated plan to deal with

expected to occur, namely in Colombia, Peru and Mexico.

opportunities generated by own consumption facilities

The ENE also sought to take advantage of the opportunities

in Portugal.

generated by T&D projects, particularly those arising from
renewable energies in mature markets, particularly in
Portugal and Northern Europe. It continued to develop its

RWANDA
3 220kV Substations (Rwabusoro, Mamba and

25MW photovoltaic park for Novapower.

Rilima), for STEG.

PORTUGAL
ANGOLA
Completion of the 2x150MVA Hydroelectric Plant of Foz
Calumbo, Batch 3, for ENDE.

Tua, for customer EDP. Completion of the Hydroelectric

Engineering for the Hydroelectric Power Plant

Plant of Ruivães, in partnership with Ruiverg, a turnkey

of Caculo-Cabaça.

equipment project with emphasis on the supply of a 4.2MVA
turbine-alternator set.

Progress made in the Luachimo Hydroelectric Plant.

business in geographies with great needs for investment in
the electricity and power generation network, particularly

IVORY COAST

ARMENIA

Chile, Eastern Europe and certain geographies in Africa,
Refurbishment of 3 substations for hydroelectric
dams in Vorotan, for ContourGlobal.

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

A C C O U N T S

134

135

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

Central Mini-Hídrica - Portugal

R&D PROJECTS

CONTINUOUS
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

In 2017, an international patent application was submitted,
for a Laser-assisted hermetic encapsulation process and

Throughout 2017, changes were made to the design process,

product thereof, for photovoltaic panels.

through the use of 3D tools, thus improving the efficiency
and customisation of substation solutions. In 2017, we
began developing and expanding AVEVA E3D software
libraries for hydroelectric plant projects, a process that
will be continued in 2018.

INSTITUTIONAL
AND COMMERCIAL
In 2017, the ENE set up an exhibition stand at the
Ribeiradio and Hermida Dam – Portugal

most important solar power trade fair, INTERSOLAR
2018, in Munich. It was also present at the Water
Storage and Hydropower Development for Africa
conference, held in Marrakesh, and at the Hydro 2017
conference, in Seville.

Due to the current importance of the topic for the
domestic market, the ENE participated in the Efacec
Days on Own Consumption, held at Exponor, in May.

A N D

O U R

Y E A R

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

A C C O U N T S

136

137

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

ENE
(MILLION EUROS)

2016

2017

%

Orders

105,4

100,7

-4,7

Backlog

190,2

198,0

7,7

Revenue

90,9

89,8

-1,1

-1,2%

Gross Margin

10,9

14,2

3,4

30,8%

12,0%

15,9%

3,9%

5,3

7,5

2,2

5,8%

8,4%

2,6%

Gross Margin %
EBITDA
EBITDA/Revenue

-4,5%

42,3%

In 2017, the ENE Business Unit recorded a

the end of 2017 corresponds to approximately

total order amount of around 100 million

2 years of revenue. When compared to last

euros, which is a 4.5% decrease over the

year’s revenues, there is a slight decrease,

previous year. In the Substations segment,

of around 1%, resulting from an increase of

orders in 2017 include several important

approximately 14 million euros in Substations,

contracts. We highlight the contract signed

which was offset by a negative deviation

with the Ministry of Energy and Waters of

compared to 2016 in the Renewables segment.

Angola, in relation to project LOT3-SE Calumbo,

By enhancing the performance of projects

which amounts to approximately 31 million

carried out during the year 2017 in Angola,

euros. In addition to this, there were also

Tunisia and Mozambique, it was possible to

contracts with EAGB for the construction

achieve a substantial increase in the gross

of Substations in Guinea Bissau, as well as

margin for the year (3.4 million euros), directly

with STEG (Rwanda) and CountourGlobal

impacting EBITDA, thus mitigating a slight

Hydro Cascade CJSC (Armenia), amounting

increase (around 4%) in fixed costs, as well

to approximately 10 million euros. In the

as unfavourable exchange differences in the

Renewables segment, Efacec signed a contract

amount of 0.5 million euros.

with Korhogo Solaire, for a 25MWp PV Plant, in
the amount of 25.5 million euros. With regard
to backlog, the amount of orders recorded at

Ribeiradio and Hermida Dam – Portugal

VARIAÇÃO

A N D

O U R

Y E A R

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

138

A C C O U N T S

139

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

A N D

O U R

Y E A R

OUTLOOK FOR 2018

MARKET
DYNAMICS

Market dynamics are expected to remain unchanged in

In the T&D system, the ENE will develop two types of

2018, most notably the global decarbonisation, urbanisa-

market-based approaches. In developed markets, the ENE

tion and industrialisation trends. The needs for electrical

will pay particular attention to the interconnection of new

infrastructures in emerging markets will continue to exert

renewable energy systems (wind and photovoltaic), as

heavy pressure on utilities and government entities, so it

well as to the renovation of existing installations. On the

becomes necessary to work with multilateral financing

other hand, with regard to developing countries, the ENE

opportunities.

will focus on countries that have investment programmes

Internally, the ENE will pay particular attention to the

supported by multilateral financing in place. In the specif-

following aspects:

ic case of Angola, there will be a special emphasis on
industrial substations.

ARE EXPECTED
TO REMAIN
UNCHANGED IN 2018

Strengthening of the business’ core, cross-cutting
and centralised competences in the design
and preparation of projects that are customised and

In the field of Renewables Energy Sources, in Portugal,
the ENE will monitor the evolution of new projects in the

adapted to the customer’s needs; Computerisation

field of grid connection and the developments in own

for efficiency gains in internal technical processes;

consumption. Portugal is also the market where the ENE will
most likely invest in the development of new technologies,

Partnerships with higher education institutions
and technological hubs (in the case of the develop-

such as floating parks or energy storage integrated into

ment of GIS substations and digital substations),

photovoltaic parks. Other priority markets are Argentina,

as well as with complementary engineering/

Mexico, Spain and France. In African countries, the ENE

design companies;

will be primarily focused on countries with funding, signing
contracts with government guarantees (Ghana, Kenya,

Ongoing development of digital and 3D productivity and
quality project tools, improving and speeding up execution
and allowing a better interface between the project and the
customer’s needs;Ongoing efforts to improve execution,
engineering and procurement processes, in search of
greater competitiveness, alignment with customer needs
and shorter response times.
Regarding hydroelectric power plants, the ENE will continue
to focus on the goal of internationalisation, on continuing
the work carried out in Angola, and on investments in
Latin America.

Tunisia, Mozambique, among others). Off-grid projects,
such as hybrid photovoltaic-thermal applications, will
certainly play an important role in these regions.
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OPPORTUNITIES
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IS THERE A MARKET
DIVERSIFICATION
STRATEGY IN PLACE?
OR IS THIS INCURSION
INTO NEW GEOGRAPHIES THE RESULT
OF AN OPPORTUNISTIC
APPROACH TO SOME
OPPORTUNITIES?

DAVID CLAUDINO

It was, and shall remain, a great challenge for us all!

Energy

From the point of view of the ENE, it is already yielding

From the point of view of geographic diversification, we

positive results. I’ll try to summarise it – we’ve had some

have two goals, which may seem contradictory but, in

improvement in terms of process harmonisation, improved

truth, are not: on the one hand, we wish to strengthen our

visibility of the availability of human resources of functional

presence in some geographies where we have been present

teams and the possibility of rotating more people across

for a long time, but regarding which we consider there is

areas of expertise.

still much space for development; on the other hand, we

THE DTO (TRANSVERSAL OPERATIONS DIVISION), WHICH IS COMMON TO ALL SYSTEMS BUSINESS
UNITS (ENE, AMB AND TRP) WAS
ESTABLISHED IN JANUARY 2017.

WHAT IS YOUR
APPRECIATION

intend to obtain projects in new geographies where we
And, in 2018, there will certainly be more challenges to

do not yet have references, as a way of compensating

overcome. For example, we will strive for a higher level of

for geographies that are too dependent on the prices of

international organisational alignment. Thus, we expect

raw materials.

to maintain the appropriate level of expertise in each

For example, we will be strengthening our activity in Chile,

business segment within the ENE.

a geography where we have been present, and we will
also invest in new geographies, such as Guinea-Bissau,

OF THE DTO

Rwanda, Mauritania, Ghana, Ivory Coast, France, Argentina,

AFTER 12 MONTHS

IN 2017, THE ENE WON SOME COMPE-

IN EXISTENCE??

TITIONS IN GEOGRAPHIES THAT ARE
RELATIVELY NEW FOR EFACEC, SUCH
AS GUINEA-BISSAU.

Colombia, Peru and Mexico, among others.
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THE ENERGY SECTOR IS IN DEEP TURMOIL,

projects are also emerging. This change in the energy

WITH GROWING SUSTAINABILITY CON-

matrix is also taking place in consumption, i.e. on the

CERNS FOR THE COMING GENERATIONS.
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W A Y O F T H I N K I N G
A N E W M O V E M E N T

side of users, who are also making an effort to reduce
CO 2 emissions. For example, the increased penetration
of electric vehicles is an opportunity not only for our

IN YOUR VIEW, WHICH
TRENDS APPEAR
TO BE EMERGING
IN THE MEDIUM-TERM
AND WHAT
CHALLENGES AND/OR
OPPORTUNITIES
DO THESE OFFER
FOR THE ENE?

electric charging systems, but also for our electric grid
management systems, as energy consumption will be much
more variable. Decentralised energy production will also
contribute to this variability.

These changes have created a relatively new context: the
traditional markets, also known as mature markets, are
once again an opportunity for the ENE, in this dynamic
of changing energy matrices and decentralisation of
consumption. At the same time, the so-called developing
markets have increasing needs for energy infrastructures
and a higher level of electrification. In short, the world is
ripe with opportunity!

The deep changes currently taking place on our planet are
a great opportunity for the ENE. For example, many of the
efforts made to reduce CO 2 emissions are causing a shift
in the energy matrix of several countries. This change
involves the increasing use of electricity in general, but it
is also occurring in terms of primary sources, as more and
more renewable energy generation systems are emerging,
be it hydro, wind or photovoltaic.

In addition to the opportunities generated by investments
in these power generation systems, grid interconnection

Bergen 1.2 MW Project – Sunprojects, The Netherlands
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ENVIRONMENT AND INDUSTRY (AMB)

TURNOVER
2016

EBITDA

2017

46.5M€ 48.6M€

2016

2017

4.3M€ 2.9M€€

NUMBER
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OF EMPLOYEES
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WATER

SOLID WASTE

Water collection, pumping and

Simple mechanical treatment, automatic

supply stations and lifting stations

and biological treatment using anaerobic

Water Treatment Plants (WTP)

DEDUSTING

Sealing of landfills and gas fields

Conventional Power Plants
(e.g.: gas, diesel, HFO)

digestion and aerobic composting or

Remote management and supervision

involving organic recovery

of infrastructures

and Domestic or Industrial Wastewater

Sleeve and electrostatic filters

THERMAL POWER PLANTS

Silage and unloading systems
Combined-cycle and cogeneration
Mechanical and pneumatic

Treatment Plants (WWTP)

Preparation of Waste-Based Fuels (WBF)

Remote management of water and

Energy recovery of biogas from

sanitation networks and infrastructures

anaerobic digestion and landfills

conveying of materials

Biomass power plants

Electric and control systems
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MAIN GEOGRAPHIES

CERTIFICATIONS

ENVIRONMENT AND INDUSTRY

Portugal: ISO 9.001 (Quality),

Central Europe: ISO 9.001 (Quality)

ISO 14.001 (Environment) and OSHAS
18.001 (Safety)

SPAIN
DENMARK

BUSINESS UNIT

PORTUGAL

ROMANIA
MALTA

MOROCCO

The AMB Business Unit develops integrated

the main target geographies, the Business

solutions, from the conception and design

Unit also has its own local teams, with commer-

to the implementation, commissioning and

cial and project management skills in Algeria,

operation of systems in the field of Water

Angola, Mozambique and Romania, taking

and Solid Waste (Environment) and Thermal

advantage of synergies with other areas of

Power Plants and Dedusting (Industry). In the

Efacec. The AMB is also supported by a set of

field of Environment, Efacec also operates in

partnerships/agents.

CAPE VERDE

ALGERIA

SAO TOME

ANGOLA

AND PRINCIPE
MOZAMBIQUE

the Service segment, which consists of the
operation and maintenance of infrastructures.
The AMB develops its business globally
from Portugal, with the support of two hubs

MAIN FACTS IN THE YEAR

with commercial, engineering and project
management skills, located in Maia and in the
Lagoas Park, in Lisbon. Taking into account

In 2017, the AMB received orders worth 68 million euros,

of only two groups competing for an Urban Waste Facility

which is more than double the orders received in 2016.

Concession in the Shafdan Area (Tel Aviv, Israel).

There was also a significant improvement in the business’

The commitment to opening up new markets has led to

operating cash flow. In organisational terms, the Transver-

the pre-qualification for two batches of infrastructures

sal Operations Division was established and a new process

(1 batch for WTPs and 1 batch for WWTPs) from Irish

design method was implemented.

Waters, whose annual investment amounts are expected

In terms of business, a relevant portfolio was raised for

to exceed 200 million euros (as of 2018).

the Services (Environment) area. In the Waste segment,
the AMB was selected as the technological leader of one
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EFACEC 2020 – AMBITION

Cazenga Distribution Centre – Luanda, Angola

As part of the transformation project underway at Efacec,
in 2017, the AMB Business Unit developed a set of activities
based on the six strategic pillars, aimed at enabling the
Business Unit to meet the new challenges posed by its
markets and customers:

01
TECHNOLOGICAL
INNOVATION

02

03

OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE

COMMERCIAL
PROACTIVENESS

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

Integrated management of project

Enhancing commercial skills, promoting

execution resources in systemic areas

synergies with other systemic areas

Widening the offer in the Water

Development of skills/risk management

Maintenance of the fly-in/fly-out model

and Waste segments, through technolog-

and project management processes

for countries without an Efacec structure,

STRATEGIES

ical partnerships

O U R

through the use of local presence
for radiation to surrounding countries

Increased supply in the activities
Geographical diversification to drive
growth
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05

06

TALENT
DEVELOPMENT

SUSTAINABILITY
STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES
Implementation of best practices in
governance and transparency, supported

Development of a dual career model,

by the development of ethical relation-

which fosters the professional develop-

ships and an integrated risk management

ment of technical roles as well as

04
CUSTOMER
FOCUS

system

management roles

Increased energy efficiency and reduction

Reviewing the performance assessment

of negative environmental impacts by

model, incorporating the specificity of

participating in the implementation of

functional families vs. functional groups

Circular and Low-Carbon Economies

in the entire Efacec group

Implementation of a proactive Human

Revision of the compensation and benefit

Rights policy, promoting equality,

model, promoting an orientation towards
STRATEGIES

integration and personal development

the Group’s and the Business Unit’s

among employees, with a view to creating

strategic (e.g., commercial proactiviDevelopment of project-complementary

ty) and tactical (e.g., reduction of the

partnerships, with a special focus on risk

accident rates) goals

a safe working environment and supporting initiatives by the local community and
by society in general

sharing and implementation fidelity
Definition of a talent-management
model that enables the identification
of high-potential employees and their
guidance into faster professional
development paths.

Development of a behavioural, functional
and management training plan aimed at
preparing employees for the Efacec 2020
Vision

Bou Ismail WWTP – Algeria – Construction phase
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
During the year 2017, the AMB managed to secure a significant number of orders, whose amount exceeded 68 million
euros. These orders reflect the investments made in new geographies and the presence of the Business Unit in Portugal,
North Africa (Algeria), Portuguese-Speaking Countries (Angola, Mozambique, Cape Verde and Guinea Bissau) and

ENVIRONMENT

WATER

In the Environment (Water and Waste) market, particularly

In the Water market, significant shortcomings in water

in target geographies most dependent on oil resources

supply and sanitation have also been identified, particularly

(Algeria and Angola), there was a postponement of invest-

in the African and Balkan Europe markets, geographies

ment policies. The external macroeconomic environment

closely monitored by the Business Unit, given the historical

also continued to condition other traditional AMB geogra-

and potential future of infrastructural projects (taking

phies (Morocco, Tunisia and Mozambique). As a consequence

advantage of European Union funding). In Portugal, in

of the market diversification strategy, the Business Unit

the Waste market, there was a deadlock in the investment

has strengthened its activity in Northern European markets

cycle, resulting from a complaint filed before the European

(Ireland, Denmark, Norway and Sweden), where, due to

Union, in relation to the use of structural funds by one of

the existing environmental awareness, there has been a

the main players in the market, a situation that was only

significant investment in infrastructures.

resolved at the end of 2017, leading us to expect a strong
momentum in 2018.

INDUSTRY

Northern Europe (Denmark). Given their size and strategic importance, the following projects are noteworthy:

PORTUGAL
Reinforcement of the pumping capacity of the Alamos

Supply of mechanical, electrical and automation

Lifting Station, for EDIA.

equipment for a Biogas Production Plant with a
treatment capacity of 708,000 t/year for Nature

Exploration and Maintenance Services for the AVE

stations for a period of seven years, for Águas
do Norte.

Reinforcement of water abstraction in Bengo,

for Navigator’s Setúbal and Cacia Facilities

to increase the energy production capacity
of the Combined-Cycle Plant of the Luanda Refinery,

GUINEA BISSAU

with a capacity of 15MW, for JA Delmas/EAGB.

ALGERIA

of hybrid production in African markets. On the other
hand, markets with needs in terms of refurbishment and

Pumping stations for drinking water supply to Wilaya

upgrading of existing infrastructures are also priorities

de Constantine, for Kou GC.

for the AMB. Despite the existing financial constraints
arising from the oil crisis, the needs are so pressing that
the activity achieved was significant.

ANGOLA

Biomass boiler dust emission reduction systems

in geographies with significant needs in terms of the
production of thermal energy, developing the concept

Energy.

WWTP, lift stations and corresponding interchange

Electromechanical systems for the BOR powerplant,
In the Industry market, the AMB maintains its presence

DENMARK

for Sonangol.
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R&D PROJECTS
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INSTITUTIONAL
AND COMMERCIAL
PRESENCE

During 2017, the Business Unit implemented projects of

In Mozambique, construction began at the Bilene Electric

high complexity and size, and was active in more than

Power Generation Plant, with a production capacity of 4MW,

ten countries, most notably Portugal, Denmark, Algeria,

where the AMB is in charge of its turnkey implementation,

Angola, Cape Verde and Mozambique.

for Eletricidade de Moçambique (EDM). Also in Mozambique,

In 2017, there was a strengthening of contacts with entities

In the Water segment, we highlight the Refurbishment

constructions works were carried out to reinforce the

of the national scientific system and new partnerships were

of the Vale da Pedra Water Treatment Plant, one of the

Medium-Voltage power supply at the port of Maputo, as

established with various organisations, with highlight to

Throughout 2017, there were several institu-

largest in Portugal, where the AMB was in charge of the

well as to supply the necessary emergency generators to

the Higher Institute of Agronomy (ISA).

tional visits to relevant trade fairs in this

entire electromechanical solution implemented, as well

customer SHAFA.

The new Technology area, with an exclusive resource

field, such as Aquatech, in The Netherlands.

as the execution of the entire electromechanical instal-

Meanwhile, a contract for the supply and execution of the

allocation, was also created.

In addition, the Business Unit participated in

lation of the Wastewater Treatment Plants (WWTPs) of

electromechanical facilities of the Sal Island Hilton hotel,

Matosinhos and Beja.

in Cape Verde was successfully completed. In Algeria,

In the Waste activity, operations began at Musami’s

significant advances were made in the supply and assembly

mechanical sorting plant, in the Terceira Island, Azores.

of electromechanical solutions for the Bou Ismail WWTP.

Also in the Azores, but in the field of Thermal Power Plants,
the remodelling of the Caminho Novo thermal power plant

several relevant events/congresses, such as:

4. o International Conference – Wastes –
Solutions; Treatments; Opportunities.

CONTINUOUS
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

10. o Jornadas técnicas internacionais
de Resíduos ENEG- Encontro Nacional
de Entidades Gestoras de Água

is underway, for EDA.

e Saneamento: as oportunidades no setor

In the Environmental Services, the Exploration and Mainte-

During the year 2017, the Transversal Operations Division

nance of the AVE WWTP, and of the corresponding Lifting

was created, and the respective processes were reviewed

e as alterações climáticas (Internation-

Stations, for Águas do Norte, was successfully continued,

and optimised. Within the scope of Engineering, the

al Technical Days on Waste – National

with highlight also to the commissioning of the WWTP of

Energy, Mechanics and Automation competences were

Meeting of Water and Sanitation Manage-

Matosinhos, as well as the commissioning of maintenance

mainstreamed to the different activities of the AMB.

services for the Sanitation System of Oeste and Mafra, for
Águas do Tejo Atlântico.
In addition, in 2017, an Operation and Maintenance contract
was commenced for the Luanda Refinery Combined-Cycle
Plant (CCRL), for Sonangol, and, in the Water

segment,
projects were successfully implemented at the Cazenga
Lifting Station and Distribution Centre and at the Lifting
Stations and distribution network of the Calueque dam,
in Angola.

da Água, os grandes desafios atuais

ment Entities: Opportunities in the water
sector, major current challenges and
climate change).
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

out in Angola, which greatly influenced the result of the
indicator, despite the good results obtained in regions such
as the Maghreb and Mozambique. The decline in EBITDA,
from 4.3 million euros in the previous year to 2.9 million

AMB

euros, is related to the deterioration of the gross margin,
(MILLION EUROS)

2016

2017

CHANGE

%

which surpassed the effect of the decrease in fixed costs

Orders

29,2

68,2

39,0

Backlog

88,8

92,0

3,3

Revenue

46,5

48,6

2,1

4,5%

Gross Margin

10,2

8,0

-2,3

-22,1%

22,0%

16,4%

-5,6%

4,3

2,9

-1,5

9,3%

5,9%

-3,4%

Gross Margin %
EBITDA
EBITDA/Revenue

133,5%

(approximately 15%).

-33,5%

In 2017, the AMB Business Unit recorded a total

there was an increase of around 2 million

order amount of around 68 million euros, which

euros, which represents a relative increase of

is a 134% increase over the previous year. This

4.5%. Contributing to this process is business

increase was driven by a strong penetration

in the W
 ater segment, which had a weight of

in the African and European markets, partic-

about 6 million euros in Algeria and 3 million

ularly in geographies such as Guinea-Bissau

euros in Portugal. A similar dynamism was

(+14 million euros, Thermal), Algeria (+6.3

recorded in Mozambique for Thermal power,

million euros, Water) and Denmark (+6.2

which represented an increase of 3.6 million

million Euros, Waste). Also within this scope,

euros. On the other hand, and despite being

important business was concluded in Portugal

adequately offset, the decrease in revenue

(64% increase), which also boosted the order

in Angola, mainly in Thermal Power Plants

amount. The increase in the amount of orders

(4.5 million euros) and the drops in Waste

registered in 2017, compared to the same

recorded in Malta (2.6 million euros) and

period of the previous year, led to an increase

Denmark (2 million euros) prevented the

in the Unit’s backlog. However, by the end of

Unit from performing better with regard to

2017, the backlog still accounted for approxi-

this indicator. Regarding gross margin, a

mately 2 years of revenue coverage. In relation

deterioration in performance was evident,

to 2017 revenues, when compared to 2016,

mainly due to some of the projects carried

Vale da Pedra WTP – Portugal

Bou Ismail WWTP – Algeria

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

A N D

O U R

Y E A R

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

A C C O U N T S

158

159

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

A N D

OUTLOOK FOR 2018
The activity carried out in 2017 and, in particular, the
volume of orders raised, lead us to expect a positive
year for the AMB, with a significant increase in turnover.
Geographical diversification is expected to continue, with

A SIGNIFICANT

the consolidation of the business in Northern European
countries, namely Denmark, and the possibility of initiating
activities in Ireland. We also plan to reinforce the use of
our own technology in all activities, through an increasing

INCREASE

integration of the Engineering Division in the various
business segments, as well as to increase technological
partnerships with external partners.

IN TURNOVERS

Lifting stations and distribution network of the Calueque Dam – Angola
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THE AMB GAINED NEW LIFE IN 2017, WITH
THE AWARDING OF A FEW RELEVANT
PROJECTS.

OUR EYES
IN THE FUTURE

HOW IS THE AMB
POSITIONING ITSELF
IN THE VALUE CHAIN
OF THE ENVIRONMENT
SECTOR AND WHAT
ARE ITS DISTINCTIVE
FEATURES, WHEN
COMPARED TO THE
COMPETITION?

JOSÉ SOUSA
Environment and Industry

THE DTO (TRANSVERSAL OPERATIONS
DIVISION), WHICH IS COMMON TO ALL

WHAT IS YOUR
APPRECIATION OF THE
DTO AFTER 12 MONTHS
IN EXISTENCE?

The AMB is present across the entire value chain, from the
design of solutions to their operation and maintenance. One
of the strategic goals of the Business Unit is to increasingly
integrate our own technology into the solutions offered

SYSTEMS BUSINESS UNITS (ENE, AMB

to customers and also to increase our ability to integrate

AND TRP) WAS ESTABLISHED IN JANU-

third-party equipment and products.

ARY 2017.

As in everything that is new, there were some difficulties

As a distinguishing feature for a Business Unit of our size,

related to the start of its activity, but, in my opinion, the

I would highlight the technical ability to carry out complex

balance is positive, as there was a standardisation of the

and critical solutions, which, together with well-controlled

processes related to Project Management and the creation

fixed costs, make us highly competitive, when compared

of a number of new processes within this same activity.

to the main players in the market.
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND WASTE MANAGEMENT ARE KEY ISSUES, IF WE CONSIDER
THE GROWTH OF THE POPULATION ON A
GLOBAL SCALE.

WHICH PRIORITIES
DO YOU BELIEVE
WILL BE TAKEN
ON IN THIS REGARD
IN THE MEDIUM-TERM?
WILL EFACEC BE ABLE
TO STRENGTHEN
ITS POSITION IN THIS
SECTOR?

Environmental pressure and the need to raise awareness
among all parties involved are indeed a factor. Challenges
related to improving the environmental situation, such
as the need for the actual implementation of the Circular
Economy, will be an opportunity to increase the AMB’s
business. We have been preparing for these challenges
through the targeted diversification of the geographies
in which we operate (keeping in view, as much as we can,
the synergies with the rest of Efacec’s activities) and the
technological strengthening of the activity, which leads
us to expect a growth in business.

Cazenga Distribution Centre – Luanda, Angola
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TRANSPORTS (TRP)

TURNOVER
2016

2017

29.9M€ 35.7M€
NUMBER
OF EMPLOYEES

EBITDA
2016

2017

3.0M€ 4.5M€
191
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Energy for transports

CERTIFICATIONS

Portugal: ISO 9.001 (Quality), ISO 14.001 (Environment),
OSHAS 18.001 (Safety) and IRIS (Railway industry)

Signalling and telematics

Infrastructures and telecommunications
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MAIN GEOGRAPHIES
TRANSPORTS

BUSINESS UNIT
NORWAY

The TRP Business Unit has an integrated offer

surveillance (INOSS) and transmission and

dedicated to the supply of power, telematics

communications systems.

and signalling solutions for the railway (light

Business is developed globally, with projects

rail, subway and railway) and road segments,

completed in over 15 countries, although its

incorporating its own products and technology,

competence centres are located in Portugal:

which constitute the basis for the differen-

Power competence centre in Oeiras and

tiation of its international performance in

Telematics and Signalling competence centre

the most demanding markets. Integrated

in Maia. In addition, the TRP Business Unit has

communication infrastructure solutions for

an industrial unit, located in Maia.

mobile operators and utilities are also part
of the TRP Unit’s portfolio.
In the Business Unit’s offer, highlight goes
to Operation Support Systems (OSS) for light
railways (Timekeeper and TramKeeper) railway
signalling systems, including automated safety
solutions for level crossings (AEGIS and XSafe),
integrated command, control and operation
platforms (EFARAIL), traction systems and
energy distribution infrastructures, public
information systems and intelligent video

DENMARK

IRELAND
PORTUGAL

UK
SPAIN

ALGERIA

BRAZIL

S T R A T E G Y
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MAIN FACTS IN THE YEAR

EFACEC 2020 – AMBITION

During the year 2017, the TRP worked mainly in the Northern

Relationships with this customer were initiated in 2011,

As part of the transformation project underway at Efacec,

European countries, Portugal and the Maghreb, which are

with the supply by Efacec of the traction power systems

in 2017, the TRP Business Unit developed a set of activities

highly competitive markets in the Rail Transport segment.

for phase 2 of the Light Railway. Later on, Efacec supplied

based on the six strategic pillars, aimed at enabling the

Two orders from Northern Europe stand out: in June, the

all communication, command and control systems for line

Business Unit to meet the new challenges posed by its

TRP, along with COMSA (Spain) and MUNCK (Denmark),

3, including a new control centre and a depot operation

markets and customers:

was awarded the construction of the Odense Light Rail,

management system, based on the TramKeeper system.

O U R
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A N D

01
TECHNOLOGICAL
INNOVATION
STRATEGIES

Dynamisation of Energy, Signalling

comprising 14 km of railway lines, 26 stations and a

& Telematics Solutions for Transports

control centre. This is a contract worth 47 million euros
for Efacec, where the TRP will be responsible for all

Positioning as prime contractor in new

electromechanical systems (the other two partners will

light rail projects

be in charge of construction). This is a project in which

Metro Ligeiro LUAS - Dublin, Irlanda

the TRP Unit will install its entire range of Light Railway
products and systems. Also in Northern Europe, at the end
of 2017, the TRP signed a contract with customer Bybanen
Utbygging, (Bergen, Norway), regarding phase 4 of the
Bergen Light Rail, which consists of the construction of
10 km of railway lines and eight stations. At that time,
the project phase was formalised, and the contracting of
the construction of the systems (EFARAIL, Timekeeper,

02
OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE
STRATEGIES

Tramkeeper, passenger communication and information
systems) is scheduled for late 2018.

Integrated management of project
execution resources in systemic areas

Development of skills/risk management
and project management processes
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03

05

COMMERCIAL
PROACTIVENESS

TALENT
DEVELOPMENT

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

Use of existing commercial structures

Development of a dual career model,

at Efacec’s core geographies

which fosters the professional
development of technical roles as well

Dynamisation of the integrated global

as management roles

scope offer for light railway

06
SUSTAINABILITY
STRATEGIES

Revision of the performance assessment
model, incorporating the specificity

Implementation of best practices

by promoting the exploration

of functional families versus functional

in governance and transparency,

of new markets and partners

groups in the entire Efacec

supported by the development of ethical
relationships and an integrated risk
management system

model, promoting an orientation towards

04
CUSTOMER
FOCUS
STRATEGIES

S T R A T E G Y

Electrification of the Porto Metro line – Rio Tinto, Portugal

Improve business performance

Revision of the compensation and benefit

O U R

the Group’s and the Business Unit’s

Increased energy efficiency and

strategic (e.g., commercial proactivity)

reduction of negative environmen-

and tactical (e.g., reduction of

tal impacts by participating in the

the accident rates) goals

implementation of Circular and
Low-Carbon Economies

Definition of a talent-management
model that enables the identification

Implementation of a proactive Human

of high-potential employees and their

Rights policy, promoting equality,

guidance into faster professional

integration and personal development

development paths.

among employees, with a view to creating
a safe working environment and support-

Strengthening and diversification

Development of a behavioural, functional

ing initiatives by the local community

of complementary partnerships for the

and management training plan aimed

and by society in general

product aspect and for global transport

at preparing employees for the Efacec

offers

2020 Vision
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In terms of achievements, the year 2017 brought a large
number of successes, of which the following stand out:

MARKET OVERVIEW

PORTUGAL

In order to maximise the identification of opportunities

OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE

Recovery in the activity of mobile communication
operators.

and achieve the desired success, the Transport unit has
identified target geographies, such as Northern Europe

In 2017, the main orders obtained in the

and North Africa. In these geographies, opportunities are

Transport segment were as follows:

Public opening of the Modivas Norte station,
Porto Metro

followed up by the business development team.

IRELAND

At the same time, partnerships were developed with
major contractors, who hold complementary positions in

PORTUGAL

DENMARK
Inauguration of the LUAS CROSSCITY Line of the

large projects (especially Civil Construction, Railway and
IP – Infraestruturas de Portugal:

Odense Metro: Contract for the supply

Contract for the maintenance of telecom-

of a comprehensive power, communi-

consortia or subcontracting agreements. For Signalling and

munication systems for the northern

cation, signalling and control centre

Telematics products, the TRP has developed a network of

Portugal.

solution

Catenary contractors) and with which Efacec can establish

partners in several countries, which promote the sale of
services and products for integration into other systems.

Porto Metro: Supply of Efacec Signalling
System.

SWEDEN

The TRP Business Unit also strives to maintains a close
relationship with its customers, so that it is well prepared

Porto Metro: Contract for the upgrade

ALEX: Refurbishment of all level

for its next investments (e.g. new railway lines or expansions

of the Energy and SCADA systems.

crossings in Sweden.

of existing ones).

ALGERIA
ESTEL: Contract for TB and BM lines.

NORWAY
Bergen Metro: Contract for the design
of Phase 4.

Dublin subway, where, in addition to the power
and telecommunications components, Efacec’s AEGIS
signalling system was also commissioned, for the
first time outside Portugal.

NORWAY
Commissioning of the first Tramkeeper system,
for phase 3 of the Bergen Metro.

ALGERIA
Inauguration of the Thenia railway line – TiziOuzou,
with traction power systems supplied by Efacec.

CHINA
Commissioning of the first light rail management
system at the CRRC demonstration laboratory.
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CONTINUOUS
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

In 2017, the TRP Strategic Plan for Technological Development was structured and approved, based on the develop-

We should also highlight the implementation of the

ment of product lines and containing the main functionalities

Transversal Operations Division (DTO), which leads the

to be implemented by 2021.

implementation of the projects, in coordination with the

During this year, TramKeeper, a DMS (Depot Management

various Systems Business Units. This new management

System) system that implements an operations manage-

model has allowed enhancing synergies across the various

ment platform in rolling stock parks, was created. The first

systemic areas, with a view to fostering and promoting

implementation of TramKeeper was successfully completed

best practices and management models, thus fostering

in 2017, in the Bergen Light Rail Project (Norway).

the exchange and sharing of resources.

Also worthy of note is the certification of the XSafe

Throughout 2017, the project management and risk

(Automatic Level Crossing) product for the Polish railway

management processes were reviewed, considering the

In 2017, the TRP Business Unit was present in a number

network, achieved in 2017, thus ending a long process,

best practices observed in other systemic businesses.

of trade fairs (for example, ELMIA, in Sweden) and took

which began in 2015.

INSTITUTIONAL
AND COMMERCIAL
PRESENCE

part in several congresses and information sessions on
future investments, organised by current and potential
customers.
In 2018, the Business Unit will be participating in

Cadiz Metro – Spain

Innotrans, the world’s largest trade fair in the field of
Railway Transportation.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

TRP
(MILLION EUROS)

2016

2017

CHANGE

%

Orders

25,5

63,8

38,3

Backlog

44,5

69,9

25,3

Revenue

29,9

35,7

5,8

19,5%

6,2

7,3

1,0

16,8%

20,9%

20,4%

-0,5%

3,0

4,5

1,5

10,1%

12,5%

2,4%

Gross Margin
Gross Margin %
EBITDA
EBITDA/Revenue

150,2%

New railway lines – Algeria

48,4%

In 2017, the TRP Business Unit received orders

completion of phase 3 of the Bergen Metro.

in the amount of 64 million euros, which

Regarding the gross margin, we witnessed

corresponds to a 150% increase over the

an unfavourable evolution compared to 2016,

previous year. The origin of this expansion is

as a result of a sharp increase in direct costs

related to the performance achieved in the

(approximately 20%), which exceeded revenue

Danish markets with the Odense Metro project.

growth. Nonetheless, EBITDA grew by 1.5

The order amount contributed to increasing the

million euros, due to a continued downward

backlog by 25.3 million euros. At the end of the

trend in indirect costs (23%).

year, this figure represented approximately
2 years of revenue coverage. Comparing with
the same period of the previous year, revenues
for 2017 showed a positive performance,
showing an increase of 5.8 million euros,
which translates into a relative increase of
19.5%. This dynamic of revenue expansion was
strongly impacted by the Portuguese (Porto
Metro and Infraestruturas de Portugal) and
Irish (TII - Transport Infrastructure) markets,
contrary to the decline observed in Norway
Inauguration of the expansion of the LUAS Light Rail – Dublin, Ireland

(Hordaland fylkeskommune), as a result of the
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TO DO MORE
									 T O D O
			 B E T T E R
THE DTO (TRANSVERSAL OPERATIONS

WHAT IS YOUR

DIVISION), WHICH IS COMMON TO ALL

APPRECIATION OF THE

SYSTEMS BUSINESS UNITS (ENE, AMB

DTO AFTER 12 MONTHS

AND TRP) WAS ESTABLISHED IN JANUARY 2017.

IN EXISTENCE?

The TRP Business Unit, due to compliance with the IRIS
standard, in many aspects more specific and demanding
than the ISO 9.001, was already operating according to very
high standards, so the standardisation of best practices, one
of the DTO’s requirements, was not particularly felt. With
the growth of the business, we will face other challenges,
related to the optimisation of resources and we hope to
rely on a structure that is capable of promoting synergies,

VITORINO ROCHA

i.e., to achive more with the same number of employees.

Transports

O U R

S T R A T E G Y

A N D

O U R

Y E A R

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

A C C O U N T S

180

181

Light Rail and Railroad Scheme

The future of mobility includes and encourages the growth
of railway transport. Sustainable mobility, both in cities
with light railway systems and underground subways,
and long-haul (high-speed) transportation, is expected
to show a strong growth in the coming years. We should
not forget that, when we talk about electric mobility,

TRANSPORT IS A RECURRING TOPIC ON

we are also including railway transport, which is more

THE POLITICAL AGENDAS OF THE VARIOUS

traditional, more evolved and more effective, because

COUNTRIES, ON A GLOBAL SCALE.

it is a mass transportation system. Therefore, efforts to
electrify lines not yet electrified will continue across the

IN YOUR OPINION,

whole of Europe, including markets where we already
have a solid presence.

WHAT WILL
BE THE MAIN
TRENDS IN RAILWAY
TRANSPORT IN THE
COMING YEARS?
IS EFACEC READY
FOR THE NEW
CHALLENGES?

In terms of technology, Efacec offers state-of-the-art
products for the light railway segment, and is capable of
offering comprehensive solutions for the entire electromechanical component. We will continue to develop our
signalling products, in order to obtain consistent references in the railroad segment, as we have a product that is
recognised as innovative and in line with the preferences
of many customers.

But, because we know that we need to be constantly
evolving, we have already prepared a roadmap for the
evolution of our EFARAIL and INOSS products, with a
view to be able to offer cloud-based solutions integrating
artificial intelligence and machine learning mechanisms
in the near future. Still in terms of new business, the
TRP Unit is making a strong commitment to the study of
solutions for smart cities.
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ELECTRIC MOBILITY (EEM)

TURNOVER
2016

2017

12.3M€ 17.6M€

EBITDA
2016

2017

1.0M€ 1.0M€

NUMBER

88

OF EMPLOYEES
CHAPTER

02 2.2.8

PORTFOLIO

CERTIFICAÇÕES

Electric chargers for implementation

Chargers for specific installations,

Portugal: ISO 9.001 (Quality),

in public or private facilities

namely for electric bus charging, utility

ISO 14.001 (Environment),

pole installation and with power storage

OSHAS 18.001 (Safety) and

capacity

NP 4.457 (Innovation)

Fast and ultra-fast chargers

Wireless chargers
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MAIN GEOGRAPHIES
ELECTRIC MOBILITY

BUSINESS UNIT

NORWAY
SWEDEN

The EEM is dedicated to the development of

The EEM develops its business globally,

innovative energy solutions, with a partic-

out of an industrial unit located in Maia

ular emphasis on charging solutions for

(Portugal), and a unit located in Norcross-

electric vehicles and their integration into

GA (USA), which provides commercial,

network management systems.

project management and customer support

It’s goal is to introduce electric vehicles into

services for North American customers. It

people’s everyday lives, by offering a full range

also relies on a vast network of partners

of electric vehicle chargers for the private,

(distributors, agents and representatives)

public, fast, ultra-fast and wireless charging

and customers under preferential agreements,

segments. Characteristics such as innovation

which enables it to cover the markets in which

and high performance reflect a portfolio in

it operates, particularly Europe and the USA.

UK
USA

PORTUGAL
SLOVENIA
GERMANY

THE
NETHERLANDS

continuous development, which covers the
most demanding markets.

MAIN FACTS IN THE YEAR
In October 2017, Maia’s renewed and expanded production

the markets in which it operates. This was particularly

plant, which now takes up the entire building, entered into

evident in the fact that it is the only company in the industry

operation. This investment gave the EEM the necessary

with presence in the majority of high-power projects in

conditions to successfully carry out its business plan for

Europe and the USA.

the next few years.
In 2017, the EEM consolidated its global leadership in the
sector, both in terms of technology and of its position in
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EFACEC 2020 – AMBITION
As part of the transformation project underway at Efacec, in 2017, the EEM Business Unit developed a set of activities
based on the six strategic pillars, aimed at enabling the Business Unit to meet the new challenges posed by its markets
and customers:

01

03

TECHNOLOGICAL
INNOVATION

COMMERCIAL
PROACTIVENESS

STRATEGIES

STRATEGIES

Development of new charging solutions

Development of the business
of alue-added remote services

which fosters the professional
development of technical roles

06
SUSTAINABILITY

as well as management roles
STRATEGIES
Revision of the performance assessment
model, incorporating the specificity

Implementation of best practices in

of functional families vs. functional

governance and transparency, supported

groups in the entire Efacec group

by the development of ethical relationships and an integrated risk management

Revision of the compensation and benefit

system

the Group’s and the Business Unit’s

Increased energy efficiency and

strategic (e.g., commercial proactivi-

reduction of negative environmen-

ty) and tactical (e.g., reduction of the

tal impacts by participating in the

accident rates) goals

implementation of Circular and Low-Car-

CUSTOMER
FOCUS
STRATEGIES

Increased productive efficiency

Establishment of partnerships

through operational enhancements

with customers for the development
of products and solutions

the market growth

Development of a dual career model,

in order to include global ones

OPERATIONAL
EXCELLENCE

of production to keep abreast with

STRATEGIE S

model, promoting an orientation towards

04

Optimisation of the industrialisation

TALENT
DEVELOPMENT

Broadening the network of partnerships

02
STRATEGIES

S T R A T E G Y

05

Footprint diversification to potential
emerging markets

O U R

bon Economies
Definition of a talent-management model
that enables the identification of high-po-

Implementation of a proactive Human

tential employees and their guidance into

Rights policy, promoting equality,

faster professional development paths.

integration and personal development
among employees, with a view to creating

Development of a behavioural, functional

a safe working environment and support-

and management training plan aimed

ing initiatives by the local community

at preparing employees for the Efacec

and by society in general

2020 Vision
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The EEM operates globally, despite the fact that its largest

countries and cities announce their intention to prevent

The EEM operates globally, with Western Europe and the

volume of business resides in Western Europe and the

the sale of combustion vehicles in the near future and to

US representing the largest shares of its turnover. The

US, markets where electric mobility is more developed

initiate plans for the electrification of public transportation,

EEM is also steadily expanding to markets such as Eastern

and where the largest penetration of electric vehicles is

a segment for which the EEM also has a competitive offer.

Europe, some countries in Asia, such as Macao, Hong Kong

concentrated.

The growing penetration of electric vehicles also raises

and Thailand, Australia, the United Arab Emirates, Turkey,

These markets have, therefore, been worthy of strong

energy management and power grid integration concerns.

Brazil and Colombia.

public investments for the creation of the necessary

The EEM has also been active in this area and has launched

The Business Unit positions itself in the market by offering

infrastructures for the sector to develop. On the private

solutions that include energy storage or load management.

high-quality and innovative electric vehicle charging

side, investment has also increased, particularly on the

The sector, being recent, has required, and will continue to

solutions. This positioning has allowed it to achieve a

part of automakers, electricity utilities and, more recently,

require, a strong technological development. An example

leading position in the most differentiated segments,

fuel distributors.

of this is wireless charging, a segment in which the EEM

such as fast and ultra-fast DC charging, electric buses

Other markets are now also starting to show signs of not

is one of the few playersworldwide.

and wireless charging. The EEM’s offer also includes AC

wanting to stay behind, which translates into realities

Putting behind the first years of doubts about the

Slow Charging products

such as automakers beginning to include, in the short

future of electric mobility, current forecasts are unanimous

term, electric vehicles in the range of vehicles offered in

and diverge only with regard to the speed of the growth

all geographies, as well as growing and increasingly global

curve, heralding a promising future for all those who, like

sustainability concerns.

the EEM, have invested in it since the beginning.

despite the fact that each of these countries has very
specific characteristics, from a technological point of view
and from the point of view of operational requirements.
There is great investment in the fast charging and, more
recently, in ultra-fast charging, segments, where the EEM
is a market leader. This wave of investment is expected to
continue over the next five years. However, slow charging
will continue to be the most common way to charge electrical
vehicles and will thus continue to have great potential.
Environmental issues play a significant role, and many

S T R A T E G Y

OPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE

MARKET OVERVIEW

China and India emerge as markets with great potential,
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Close-up of electric vehicle charger

A N D

O U R

Y E A R

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

A C C O U N T S

190

IN 2017, EFACEC WAS AWARDED SEVERAL
IMPORTANT CONTRACTS, OF WHICH THE
FOLLOWING STAND OUT:

191

São Paulo – Rio de Janeiro connection (Brazil),
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R&D PROJECTS

a project by EDP Brasil and BMW, for the installation
of fast chargers along the Nova Dutra motorway.
In 2017, other contracts were awarded in Brazil, such
as partnerships with Volvo and Jaguar Land Rover,

Electrify America (USA), an ambitious charging

for private charging;

infrastructure project, which aims at creating an
extensive network in the country;

Several projects in Germany, in partnership
with Innogy;

Ionity (Europe), an ultra-fast charging infrastructure project in Europe, launched by a joint venture

Several projects in Scandinavia, in partnership

that brings together automakers Porsche, Audi,

with Garo, with highlight to Volvo and Fortum Charge

BMW, Daimler and Ford – this project is currently the

& Drive;

In 2017, it maintained its efforts in R&D, one of the

These new standards will allow for significant advances

strategic pillars that can help the Business Unit achieve

in charging system connectivity and intelligence, with

the intended positioning.

highlight to the plug & charge functionality, due to the

Highlight goes to the completion of the EVolution project,

information security requirements that it entails.

supported by P2020, which focused on the following aspects:

Ultra-fast charging has undergone important developments, for example, with the introduction of liquid-cooled

largest of its kind in the world;
Several ultra-fast charger orders for automaker

High-Power Charging (HPC);

Ultra-E (Europe), a project launched by a consor-

laboratories, some of them still in the confidentiality

tium that includes Allego, to create a pilot ultra-fast

stage;

Fast charging with built-in energy storage;

followed by the Mega-E project, which is comparable

Several orders for fast chargers from Nissan,

Wireless charging;

in size to Ionity;

to be installed in Europe;

which chose Efacec to supply the chargers – the first

Greenlots (Zeco);

stage of this project was already launched in 2017,
with implementation essentially in England and The

Orders for bus chargers, which is a growing sector.

asset management.

These developments have given rise to patent applications

Netherlands (the project is developed in partnership

and design registrations, following a practice that the EEM

with Allego and, in the UK, with Siemens);

has sought to follow in recent years.
Several other developments also stand out in 2017, for

Transport for London (England), a project to install
fast chargers to serve consumers and, in particular,

Dissemination of information about electric vehicle chargers to the public

characteristics. ETL certification was also achieved for
public AC chargers, which allows the marketing of this

Definition of functionalities for online
Some relevant orders in the US – e.g. EV Connect,

been revised, with a view to optimising aspects such
as cost, ease of maintenance, aesthetics and technical

charging network in Europe – this project will be

Shell – first fast-charging project by this company,

charging cables and connectors. Several products have

Porsche: B-sample wireless charging, an ultra-fast mobile

the new taxis, which will all become electric in the

charging solution and an ultra-fast charging project to

city of London;

equip the this automaker’s development and testing sites.
Also noteworthy are several integrations with customer
back-office systems and payment methods, such as credit
card, in several countries, and, particularly, version 1.6 of
the OCPP protocol. 2017 was also marked by the selection
and validation of a new charger central processing solution,
which will support the advanced functionalities of OCPP
1.6 and 2.0 and, particularly, the IEC 15118 standard.

product in the USA.
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IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

INSTITUTIONAL
AND COMMERCIAL PRESENCE

In 2017, continuous improvement initiatives were continued, such as:

In 2017, the EEM was present at several trade

Mobility for Smart Cities, in Cascais; Vexpo, in

fairs of the industry, with its own exhibition

Lisbon, and APREN, also in Lisbon.

stand. Highlights include the New Mobili-

The EEM was also visited by prominent person-

ty World, in Frankfurt; the Latin American

alities during the year 2017, including a visit

Implementation of the Planner and Scheduler planning programmes,

Electric Vehicle Trade Fair, in São Paulo;

by European Commissioner Maroš Šefčovič,

with a view to improving capacity management and production planning/

EVS30, in Stuttgart; eMove360, in Munich, and

accompanied by the Minister for the Environ-

forecasting;

Busworld, in Kortrijk. In Portugal, Efacec was

ment, João Matos Fernandes, Bishop D. Pio

present at VExpo, in Lisbon; at UVE’s annual

Alves and the Secretary of State for Interna-

meeting, in Porto; at the Hybrid and Electric

tionalisation, Eurico Brilhante Dias.

Launch of the implementation of the requirements of the IATF 16949

Motor Show, in Porto, and at the European

The EEM was distinguished, in 2017, with an

standard, applicable to automotive suppliers, with a view to obtaining

Mobility Week in Maia.

Honourable Mention in the category National

The EEM was also present in the Efacec

Brand, in Exame Informática Magazine’s ‘Best

by the automotive industry, will facilitate relationships with customers

Group’s exhibition stands at Cired, Eurelectric,

of Technological Portugal’ Awards.

in this sector. With regard to wireless charging, the adoption of this standard

Amper, MEE and BIEL, and supported various

will be especially important.

attendances by partners, at events such as

Projects in partnership with the Kaizen Institute, focusing on productivity
and production capacity;

Acquisition of a 3D printer for quick prototyping;

certification by the end of 2018. The practices due to be implemented
will be important to improve the EEM’s processes and, being recognised

FISE, Expoelectric and FIAA17.
In addition to trade fairs, the EEM was invited
to present communications or to participate
in debates at various events, such as the EV
ChargePoint Symposium, in Nice; Energy and
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EEM
(MILLION EUROS)

2016

2017

CHANGE

%

Orders

17,7

30,7

12,9

Backlog

8,4

20,5

12,1

Revenue

12,3

17,6

5,3

43,3%

4,1

5,0

0,9

22,6%

33,1%

28,3%

-4,8%

1,0

1,0

-0,1

8,4%

5,5%

-2,9%

Gross Margin
Gross Margin %
EBITDA
EBITDA/Revenue

73,0%

-6,9%

Visit by European Commissioner Maroš Šefčovič to
Efacec Electric Mobility – Maia, Portugal

In terms of orders, the EEM increased its sales by 73% over the previous
year, which enabled it to perform well in terms of revenue, as well as to
significantly strengthen its backlog. Although this is a business that is
still in the development stage, reaching positive levels of profitability,
it begins to show some pressure on margins, as evidenced by the 2017
percentage gross margin, which was lower than that of the previous
year. With regard to EBITDA, it remained unchanged in relation to the
previous year, with the EEM ultimately showing a positive performance
in this indicator. In 2017, it corresponded to about 6% of revenue,
even considering the R&D costs incurred, of about 1.1 million euros.

Wireless charger for electric vehicles
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OUTLOOK FOR 2018
The year 2018 is expected to be quite challenging for the
EEM, which intends to, once again, double its turnover. In
technological terms, the unit intends to put a great focus

MAINTAIN

on innovation and differentiation, which are key aspects
of its business.
In terms of business development, the EEM will consolidate

			 E F A C E C ’ S

its current geographies and enter new markets, such as
Asia and Latin America. Europe and the USA, where fast
and ultra-fast charging networks are being developed, will
remain as its most important markets. New segments, such

INDUSTRY

BENCHMARK

as buses and wireless chargers, are currently raising high
expectations, given the expected developments.
In terms of production, the expectation is that the invest-

		

STATUS.

ment being carried out will allow achieving the planned
execution capacity, in view of the current portfolio and
new orders expected.
The EEM will also continue the efforts it has been developing for the dissemination of its image, by being present at
trade fairs, conference presentations, product and website
design and all other communication components, in order
to maintain Efacec’s industry benchmark status.
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SOLUTION OF
THE FUTURE
WHAT IS THE SIGNIFICANCE OF THIS MILESTONE
PEDRO SILVA

FOR THE BUSINESS UNIT’S STRATEGY?

Electric Mobility

THE COMMISSIONING OF THE NEW

The EEM has had a very significant growth, having started

The setting up of the production plant was one of the

EEM PRODUCTION PLANT WAS

virtually from scratch in 2011, after two years of investment

Business Unit’s ambitions. The project was presented to

ONE OF THE MAJOR MILESTONES

in the mobi.e project. Since then, the EEM has practically

the Board in January 2016, and was only completed in

doubled its orders each year and its business plan forecasts

October 2017. Thanks to this production plant, we are now

that this pace will continue over the next few years.

able to meet the current needs and the growth expected

OF 2017.

for the coming years.
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THE EEM WON TWO
MAJOR CONTRACTS
IN 2017: ELECTRIFY
AMERICA AND IONITY.
ARE THESE AWARDS
A RECOGNITION
OF PORTUGUESE
TECHNOLOGY?
WILL THEY ENTAIL
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Porsche, which was completed in 2017, and which allowed
it to stay ahead of its competitors in this technology. The

competitiveness of its offer and the new production plant

S T R A T E G Y

COMING YEARS.

The continuous presence in a large number of

which may complete a project in a country and then
leave, requires having a solid network of partners
providing value-added activities in these countries,

were decisive.

beyond mere sales..

WHAT CHALLENGES
I should mention that the EEM is the only one among its
competitors that is involved in virtually all the major
projects that are currently being launched. In terms of
target markets, the two projects I mentioned reiterate
Western Europe and the US as our main markets, and

DO YOU EXPECT
THE BUSINESS
UNIT WILL BE FACING?

high-power charging as most deserving of the EEM’s focus.

O crescimento acelerado traz consigo alguns desafios,
dos quais salientava os seguintes:

THE EEM’S

The ability to attract and retain duly qualified
Ultra-fast charger for the Electrify America Project – U.S.A.

human resources. The industry is evolving
at breakneck speed and requires strong investment
in R&D, marketing, commercial, complex project
management across many geographies, product

These awards are very important for the EEM, as they

engineering, design and production. The EEM must,

represent recognition by a significant share of the market

therefore, continue to expand its team and provide

and, moreover, these are two customers from the automo-

growth opportunities to those who are already
working with us.

tive sector. Electrify America is part of the VW group
and IONITY is a joint venture by Porsche, Audi, BMW,

Growing competition forces us to always keep our

Daimler and Ford. They are also indicative that the EEM

focus on innovation and competitiveness, and forces

is able to face the challenge of developing and delivering

the entire Business Unit to always keep that focus.

high-end products in large numbers and in time to meet

Technological evolution in all segments, such

the ambitious plans outlined by these projects.

as wireless charging or integration with the power
grid (bidirectionality, storage, load management...)

Both projects focus on ultra-fast charging, which is a new

will require us to keep our engineering teams (R&D,
product and design) focused on creating solutions

technology that will be important for the long-range vehicles

for the future, without neglecting the further

that will be entering the market. The EEM was already

development of current solutions;

working on a project involving this type of equipment with

A N D

markets, as our business is different from others,

CREASE IN ORDERS AND REVENUE IN THE

good performance, the capabilities it demonstrated, the

RECALIBRATING
TARGET MARKETS?

THE EEM EXPECTS A SIGNIFICANT IN-
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ANALYSIS OF THE BUSINESS IN 2017

During the financial year 2017, EPS reached an order

revenue (and 80.3% of orders) in the period. The weight

volume of 496.7 million euros, a 22% increase over the

of strategic markets, such as North America, France, the

previous year, thanks to the contribution of important

Maghreb and the Middle East, in the Group’s portfolio has

contracts concluded by the Transformers, Electric Mobility,

grown, while more traditional markets, such as Portugal,

Environment and Industry and Transport Business Units.

Angola, the UK and Eastern Europe have slightly declined

The revenue amount of 432 million euros is in line with that

in relation to the previous year.

CHAPTER

of the previous year, mainly due to the non-fulfilment of

02 2.3

orders that should have generated revenue in this period,
as well as to delays in the start of some projects. As defined
in the Strategic Plan, the international market remains of
crucial importance for the business, accounting for 78% of

THE PURPOSE OF THIS CHAPTER IS TO ADDRESS THE MAIN FINANCIAL IMPACTS ON THE EFACEC POWER SOLUTIONS (EPS) GROUP
IN 2017, WITH REGARD TO THE ACTIVITY IN THE CURRENT YEAR,

2016

2017

%

ORDERS

406.2

496.7

90.5

22%

REVENUE

431.5

431.7

0.2

0.2%

DIRECT COSTS

-351.5

-342.4

9.0

-3%

GROSS MARGIN

80.0

89.2

9.2

12%

INDIRECT COSTS

-50.1

-50.9

-0.7

3%

5.0

-2.4

-7.5

N.A

34.9

35.9

1.0

3%

THE EVOLUTION OF ITS FINANCIAL SITUATION AND THE FINANCING
POLICY ADOPTED.

The indicators used are based on reports

in the Income and Financial Position

submitted to the Management Bodies that

Statements, a reconciliation is presented at

regularly monitor the EPS Group’s activity.

the end of the chapter regarding the main

Therefore, the concepts used in this context

indicators: Revenue, EBITDA, Amortisations,

differ from the accounting criteria followed

Earnings Before Taxes.

OTHER INCOME

(A)

in the financial statements. So, to better
understand the figures presented in this

MANAGEMENT EBITDA

analysis in comparison with the figures given
a) Includes R&D costs, net of subsidies (5.1 M), negative exchange differences (2 M), amortisation coverage (4.3 M) and other operating
results (0.3 M).
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MANAGEMENT EBITDA,

2016

USED TO GAUGE

MANAGEMENT EBITDA

THE PERFORMANCE

(2)

OF THE BUSINESS UNITS,
IS OBTAINED BY DEDUCTING
THE DIRECT AND INDIRECT

S T R A T E G Y

2017

A N D

%

34.9

35.9

1.0

-15.8

-0.8

15.0

NON-OPERATING
I N C O M E (A)

4.1

-2.5

-6.5

STATUTORY EBITDA

23.2

32.7

9.5

AMORTISATIONS

-6.1

-6.1

0.0

-2.0

-6.9

N.A.

-7.1

-6.9

0.2

MANAGEMENT EBT

8.0

12.7

N.A.

PPA AMORTISATIONS

-3.0

-2.1

0.9

EARNINGS BEFORE
TAXES

5.0

10.7

5.6

TAXES

-0.1

-3.1

-3.0

DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS

-0.7

0.0

0.7

NET INCOME

4.3

7.5

3.2

COSTS ARISING FROM
CONTRACT TERMINATIONS

OF THE GROUP AND EACH

O U R

3%

41%

COSTS FROM THE REVENUE:
PROVISIONS

(B)

NET FINANCIAL COSTS
Direct costs include all the cost items allocated to projects

In 2017, the Group’s management EBITDA amounted to

or manufactured products (materials, direct labour,

.9 million euros, representing an EBITDA margin of 8.3%

sub-contracted services, general charges and expenses

of turnover, against 8.1% in the previous year. The main

directly related to sales). By deducting direct costs from

contribution for this growth came from the Medium-Volt-

revenue, we determine the gross margin, whose average

age Switchgear, Automation, Energy and Transports

value in 2017 stood at 20.7%, compared to the 18.5%

Business Units.

recorded in 2016.

Despite the maintenance of revenue, EBITDA grew by 3% in
relation to the previous year, due to the improved margin

Indirect costs essentially include structural costs, minus

achieved through a more efficient execution of projects

the amounts allocated to projects.

by the various Business Units, as well as to the impact of

(C)

N.A.

111%

the initiatives implemented to reduce costs. This increase
In addition, and besides the deduction of indirect costs

in EBITDA is even more relevant if we consider exchange

from the gross margin, in order to calculate the manage-

rate differences, which, in contrast to 2016 (when this

ment EBITDA, the effect of other operating income is also

item was positive, at 3.9 million euros), had a negative

taken into account, namely foreign exchange differences

effect of 2 millions of euros in 2017.

and R&D costs. Management EBITDA, contrary to statutory

75%

A) Essentially includes (1) debits to MGI Capital, in the amount of 3.5 million euros (3.1 million of which are related to the increase in the
provision created for impairment in customer CPTM), (2) a cost of 1.9 million relating to variable remunerations for the year 2016 and (3)
consultantancy expenses, in the amount of 4.6 million euros.

EBITDA, does not include non-recurring items (see section

B) The increase in the value of provisions recorded in 2017, in relation to 2016, includes an increase in provisions, in the amount of 3.1 million
euros, resulting from the impairment of customer CPTM; this amount is expressed with an opposite sign in the Non-Operating Income item,
to offset the cost recorded here for EPS.

on the reconciliation of the main indicators, at the end

C) Net Financial Costs in 2017 include an amount of 0.5 million euros related to the amortised cost portion recognised for the year.

of the chapter).
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THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT EBT INCREASED

OF THIS INCREASE RESULTED FROM A SHARP
DROP IN COSTS WITH CONTRACT TERMINATIONS (WHICH STOOD AT 15.8 MILLION EUROS
IN 2016, AS A RESULT OF THE COMPANY’S

A N D

O U R

2017

638.2

673.3

35.1

Tangible and intangible assets

122.6

158.6

36.1

29%

Goodwill

120.2

120.2

0.0

0%

Deferred tax asset

57.1

56.0

-1.0

-2%

Inventories

36.3

29.1

-7.2

-20%

Accrued income

72.6

85.1

12.5

17%

166.8

159.5

-7.3

-4%

29.0

31.1

2.1

7%

329.1

327.6

Financial debt

73.4

70.7

-2.7

-4%

Suppliers

85.8

109.8

24.0

28%

Deferred income

79.2

70.7

-8.5

-11%

309.1

345.7

36.6

ASSETS

Y E A R

%
5

main items and changes:

MILLION EUROS IN 2017, THANKS TO AN
IN STATUTORY EBITDA). A LARGE SHARE

S T R A T E G Y

2016

FROM 8 MILLION EUROS IN 2016 TO 12.7
IMPROVEMENT IN EBITDA (AROUND 41%

O U R

Customers
Cash and cash equivalents

RESTRUCTURING PROCESS).

LIABILITIES

-1.4

0%

main items and changes:

The management EBT generated in 2017 - 12.7 million

million euros; this deferred tax is based on the existence

euros - allowed achieving a positive net result of 7.5 million,

of estimates made in previous years, which were adjusted

75% higher than that of 2016. This was also due to a drop

during the validation of access requirements, namely, by

in the “PPA Amortisation” item, from 3.0 to 2.1 million

certifying entities.

LIABILITIES

12%

euros, referring to assets valued using the Purchase Price
Allocation method in the transfer of financial investments
carried out upon the incorporation of EPS. On the other
hand, there was an increase in tax expenses of around 3
million euros. In 2017, tax costs include adjustments to
deferred taxes relating to investment tax benefits of 2.3

The table above highlights the most relevant balance sheet

The increase in revenue, from 72.6 to 85.1 million euros

items. Tangible and intangible assets increased by 6%,

was driven by an increase in revenue from the Switchgear,

from 638.2 million euros in 2016 to 673.3 million euros

Automation and Electric Mobility product segments.

in 2017, mainly due to the transfer of real estate, namely

Inventories also recorded a 20% reduction, as a result

the Arroteia and Maia industrial centres, in the amount of

of ongoing initiatives to optimise stock management.

28.4 million euros, from MGI Capital to EPS.

AT THE END OF 2017, THE GROUP’S CONSOLIDATED ASSETS STOOD AT 673.3
MILLION EUROS AND EQUITY AT 345.7 MILLION EUROS, WHILE THE FINANCIAL

Customer debt continued to decline in 2017, from 166.8
million euros in 2016 to 159.5 million euros in 2017, as
a result of continued collection efforts, already carried

A U T O N O M Y R A T I O S T O O D A T 5 1 %.

out in 2016.
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As mentioned in the 2016 year closing report, the majority

Equity had an extraordinary contribution from a capital

As regards financing, net debt included in the Statement of Financial Position as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December

of the amounts recorded under deferred tax assets relate

increase, in kind, in the amount of 28.4 million euros,

2016, was as follows:

to the tax effects of 44 million euros recorded by Efacec

through which EPS included into its assets the properties

Energia in 2014, as a result of the sale of the assets held

that constitute its base of operations in Portugal, located

by subsidiary PTI in the United States. In 2016, PTI was

in Arroteia and Maia, which, to that date, were not yet

liquidated, materialising the loss already recognised in

owned by it.

previous years and allowing the use of the respective

In addition, their value was positively impacted by the

tax credit.

net income for the period and by the appreciation of

2016

2017

%

BANK DEBT

75.4

72.1

-3.3

-4%

CASH AND CASH
E Q U I V A L E N T S (A)

-29.0

-31.1

-2.1

7%

FINANCIAL DEBT

46.4

40.9

-5.4

-12%

AMORTISED COST

-2.0

-1.4

0.5

-28%

NET BALANCE
SHEET DEBT

44.4

39.5

-4.9

-11%

the derivative financial instruments in the portfolio, to
On the liabilities side, the largest variation was recorded

hedge foreign exchange exposure, namely exposure to

in the Suppliers item, which increased by 28% due to

the US dollar. Equity is also influenced by the translation

the high turnover of the last quarter. In addition, the

differences arising from the conversion of the balance

following was also noted: i) a slight reduction in gross

sheets of subsidiaries and international branches, which

financial debt, by means of a greater release of cash flows

are also disclosed in ‘Other changes’.

channelled towards debt reduction; (ii) a reduction in
deferred income, from 79.2 to 70.7 million euros, mainly
through the execution of several projects throughout 2017,

a) In 2017, this item includes an amount of 5.6 million euros related to Treasury Bonds (OT) of the People’s Republic of

mainly in Systems Business Units that had carried out early

Angola indexed to the US Dollar, which were in the portfolio at the end of the year, as well as term deposits in Angola

collections, given the degree of completion of projects

indexed to the US Dollar, in the amount of 3.4 million euros, and a term deposit in US Dollars, in the amount of 0.85

in previous years.

million euros.

2016
EQUITY AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

DURING THE YEAR

2017

2017, THE GROUP
308.7

309.1

0.5

REDUCED ITS BANK

Capital Increase

0.0

28.4

28.4%

Net Income

4.3

7.5

3.2%

Other Changes

EQUITY AT THE END
OF THE YEAR

-3.8

309.1

0.7

345.7

4.5%

36.6%

DEBT, FROM 75.4
MILLION EUROS IN
2016,TO 72.1 MILLION
EUROS IN 2017.

This good performance was essentially achieved through
cash flows generated in the period, in the amount of 12.7
million euros.
At the end of 2017, the Group’s Statement of Financial
Position showed a net financial debt of 40.9 million euros,
which corresponds to a decrease of 5.4 million euros
over 2016.
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2016
FINANCIAL DEBT
OPENING NET

49.9

MANAGEMENT EBITDA

CAPEX

CHANGES IN
WORKING CAPITAL

%

46.4

34.9

-3.6

35.9

-4.5

(A)

OTHER ITEMS

2017

-15.8

1.0

-7%

-3%

-11.4

O U R
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The Group’s consolidated working capital was positive,

increase in the Suppliers item, as a result of an increase

with an operating variation of 12.9 million euros in 2017.

in invoices received in the last quarter of the year.

Working capital basically includes the items Customers,
Accrued Income, Inventories, Suppliers and Deferred

The maturities of medium- and long-term bank debts extend

Income. The main contributions for the positive variation

to 2022 and the Group’s average borrowing cost was 3.7%

recorded were (i) the continuation of the collection efforts

in 2017. The net financial debt/EBITDA ratio, calculated

started at the end of 2016, (ii) the reduction of inventory

based on the consolidated statutory accounts was 1.3.

based on an efficient stock management, and (iii) the
(B)

(C)

5.6

4.0

-1.6

-1.3

-11.2

-9.9

19.0

12.8

-6.1

Efacec’s financing policy
OPERATING CASH FLOW

INTEREST PAID

(D)

-10.6

-6.4

-32%

4.1

The financing policy defined for the Group determines that

Throughout 2017, there was a focus on the three goals that

medium- and long-term debt and the majority of short-term

had been defined at the beginning of the year:

debt should be concentrated essentially in Portugal, and
OTHER CHANGES

(E)

-4.8

-1.0

3.8

overseas companies may resort to some lines of credit to
support any cash requirements.

REDUCTION
OF NET DEBT

3.6

5.4

1.8

FINANCIAL DEBT
CLOSING NET

46.4

40.9

-5.4

-12%

The expansion of the pool of financial entities with
which EPS is related, allowing it to increase the range
of financial options that support the growth of the

As such, most of the Group’s debt is concentrated in a

business and the structural financing of the Group -

financing agreement entered into with a banking syndicate,

the fulfilment of this goal was materialised essential-

which is divided into two instalments:

ly through access to new lines of credit
for the issuance of bank guarantees and surety bonds;

A loan in the amount of 60 million euros, whose
Notas:

2017

(a)
CAPEX
(Tangible
and intangible
investment)

16.3
-0.1
-0.3

(b)
Working capital

12.9

Asset acquisition
Subsidies
Currency translation differences

2017

(d)
Interest

-3.4
0.4

15.8

-6.2
-2.7

-3.0
-3.4
Operating changes
in working capital
Contract terminations
Current taxes

-4.0

(c)
Other items

Notas:

-1.9
-3.1
-1.3
-6.1
1.2
-11.2

Variable remuneration in 2017
Cash-out – non-recurring costs
with consultants
Cash-out related to the use
of provisions
Changes due to CPTM
impairment Other

repayment shall begin in October 2018
Interest paid according
to the statement of cash flows
Interest received according
to the statement of cash flows
Other financial expenses

6.4

(e)
Other changes

Mainly debt from non-core activities
and net debt currency translation
changes

and which will be fully repaid in October 2022;

A line of credit in the amount of 30 million euros,
due in October 2020.

The implementation of financial solutions to support
the administrative processes of billing and collection,
giving greater financial agility to EPS - to fulfill this
goal, in the first half of 2017, a number
of systems to make automatic payments to suppliers
were implemented, with the support of two financial
institutions;

Abroad, EPS maintains small lines of credit to support
its business in some of the countries where it has a local

The beginning of the process for refinancing the

presence, namely Angola, Algeria, Spain and Mozambique.

syndicated financing tranche due in the 4 th quarter
of 2018 - for this purpose, contacts were made
with several entities, which we believe will materialise in new financing streams throughout 2018.
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In 2018, we will concentrate our efforts on providing
EPS with the necessary liquidity to carry out its growth

INDICATOR

plan, by contracting new financing, and we shall continue
the process of expanding the range of solutions for the

MANAGEMENT
ACCOUNTS

STATUTORY
ACCOUNTS

DIFFERENCE

431.7

431.9

0.2

35.9

32.7

-3.2

Management EBITDA reflects the income and
costs related to operating activities in the various
business segments. Non-operating expenses and
costs, as well as those related to other functions
are disclosed after EBITDA. In statutory accounts
EBITDA = Operating income + Amortisation and
depreciation + Provisions and impaired assets.

- 0.8

Costs arising from contract terminations

- 0.8

Non-core activities

- 4.6

Consultants

issuance of bank guarantees and surety bonds, thus being
Revenue

able to respond to the challenges that business growth will
present in the different geographies where we operate.

Reconciliation of management indicators with the statutory financial statements

EPS ANALYSES ITS PERFORMANCE ON A

In a context of reconciliation of these management figures

MONTHLY BASIS, BASED ON THE MAN-

with statutory figures, we should mention that the Group

AGEMENT ACCOUNTS, FROM A DUAL

JUSTIFICATION

The EPS Group includes non-core activities,
which had a marginal contribution and tend
to be fully discontinued. In the year 2017 these
represented about 0.2 million euros in revenue
(6.5 million euros in the previous year)

EBITDA

still includes some non-core activities, whose evolution is
not considered in EPS’s regular operational management.

PERSPECTIVE OF: I) ORGANISATION BY
BUSINESS UNIT AND II) RESULT-BASED

or discontinued companies that, due to formal and legal

FUNCTIONAL GENERATION OF RESULTS.

issues, could not be detached from the companies that

THIS ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

constituted them and remain, therefore, included in EPS’s

OF CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS IS ALSO

4.3

These activities refer to specific projects being shut down

scope of consolidation. Despite their reduced weight, they

- 1.9
0.5

financial statements and the management statements,

THEREFORE SHOULD BE ANALYSED IN

thus influencing the Group’s annual results. However, the

CONJUNCTION WITH THE CONSOLIDATED

impacts of these non-core activities tend to cancel out in

INCOME AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

the coming years.

The following are comments, justifications, and the
respective figures for 2017, which reconcile management
accounts with statutory accounts.

Management
EBT vs. Earnings
before taxes

Variable remuneration
Other non-operating income

- 6.1

- 8.2

- 2.1

The changes in this item refer to tangible
and intangible assets revalued at the time
of acquisition of EPS subsidiaries

12.7

10.7

- 2.1

The difference corresponds to the amortisations
described above

Amortisations

account for part of the difference between the statutory

BASED ON THIS DUAL PERSPECTIVE AND,

Revenue from entities of the MGI Capital Group
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In order to complement the information in the table above, the main management and statutory items relating to the year 2016 are
also reconciled.

INDICATOR

MANAGEMENT
ACCOUNTS
431.5

STATUTORY
ACCOUNTS
438.0

CHANGE

6.5

Revenue

34.9

EBITDA

23.2

-11.7

-15.8
0.9

JUSTIFICATION

INDICATOR

-6.1

The EPS Group includes non-core activities,
which had a marginal contribution and tend to be fully
discontinued.
In the year 2016, these represented about 6.5 million
euros in revenue.
Management EBITDA reflects the income and costs
related to operating activities in the various business
segments. Non-operating expenses and costs, as well
as those related to other functions are disclosed after
EBITDA.
In statutory accounts EBITDA = Operating income +
Amortisation and depreciation + Provisions and
impaired assets.

MANAGEMENT
ACCOUNTS

STATUTORY
ACCOUNTS

CHANGE

-9.0

-2.9

The changes found result mainly from the identification and revaluation of assets upon the acquisition
of EPS subsidiaries

-3.0

Annual amortisation of amounts allocated to tangible
and intangible assets (equipment, contracts and
trademarks) using the Purchase Price Allocation
method, as a result of the acquisition of companies
as part of the EPS’ incorporation process.

Amortisations

0.3

Recognition of investment grants (deduction from
depreciation)

-2.8

The difference results from amortisation and depreciation related to the acquisition of EPS subsidiaries

-3.0

Annual amortisation of amounts allocated to tangible
and intangible assets (equipment, contracts and
trademarks) using the Purchase Price Allocation
method, as a result of the acquisition of companies
as part of the EPS’ incorporation process.

Costs arising from contract terminations
Non-core activities
Management

1.6

Net impact of fire at the Maia facilities

1.9

Debts to MGI Capital Group entities for services
rendered and Ring Fencing

-0.4

JUSTIFICATION

EBT Earnings
Before Taxes

Other non-operating income

0.1

Non-core activities

In contrast to the analysis of the management accounts, in statutory

Statutory EBITDA grew by 9.5 million euros in 2017, due not only

terms, revenue declined by 6.1 million euros over 2016, taking into

to improvements in operating income, but mainly due to the strong

account the ongoing decline in the weight of non-core activities, which

impact of contract termination costs in this item in 2016 (15.8 million

this year generated only 0.2 million euros in revenue, down from 6.5

euros), which did not reach the same order of magnitude in 2017 (0.8

million euros in the previous year.

million euros).
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Even though it was incorporated in 2014, EPS only effectively entered into business on 23 October
2015, when Winterfell acquired a majority stake in the company and did not make any debits for

Efacec Power Solutions is a Holding Company, which holds,

The results generated by EPS arise from debits made to

directly or indirectly, the financial investments of the EPS

its subsidiaries and from dividends paid by participated

Group’s companies.

companies, according to the management income and

EPS’s financial statements are prepared taking into

financial position statements presented herein.

management services rendered to subsidiaries during that year.

ASSETS

2016

2017

406.8

452.2

%
45.4

11%

account the historical cost convention, except with regard
main items and changes:

to financial assets, financial liabilities and land, which are
recorded at fair value.

Financial investments

Loans to related entities

LIABILITIES

373.3

375.3

2.0

1%

21.1

21.5

0.3

2%

83.1

97.0

14.0

17%

main items and changes:

2016

2017

5.9

5.8

%
Loans to related entities

REVENUE

(a)

0.1

FSE

-2.3

-7.4

-5.1

223%

Staff costs

-2.0

-2.7

-0.8

38%

1.6

1.6

0.0

0%

Other operating income – net ( b )

OPERATING
INCOME
Net financial expenses

3.2

NET INCOME

86,8

13.2

-183%

EQUITY

323.7

355.1

31.4

The increase in shareholder equity is due to the increase of 28.4 million euros in cash referred
to above and to the 3 million euro profit generated in the year.

-2.7

-0.7

0.0

-7.4

7.4

1.2

1.9

0.7

35%

Proposed Appropriation of Profit
60
Considering that the net profit generated in 2017 was € 3,040,212.13 (three million, forty

-0.5

Taxes

-5.9

-2.0

Dividends received

EARNINGS
BEFORE TAXES

-2.7

73.6

0.7

1.1
3.0

1.6
2.3

223%
330%

thousand, two hundred and twelve euros and thirteen cents), the Board of Directors proposes, in accordance with applicable legal and statutory provisions, that, of this net profit, the
amount of €152,011.00 be transferred to legal reserves and that the amount of €2,888,201.13
be transferred to free reserves.

a) Amount related to management services rendered.
b) Amount related to the assignment of space to subsidiaries and income recognised by MGI Capital.

18%

-1%
10
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GOVERNANCE MODEL
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3.2

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

236

3.3

ORGANISATION

244

3.4

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
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GENERAL PRINCIPLES OF THE MODEL

GOVERNANCE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH PARAGRAPH (A) OF SECTION 1 AND SECTION 3 OF ARTICLE 278, WITH PARAGRAPH (B) OF SECTION 1 OF

MODEL
CHAPTER

ARTICLE 413 OF THE CSC, AS WELL AS WITH ARTICLE 10 OF THE
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF EFACEC POWER SOLUTIONS (EPS),
EFACEC’S GOVERNING BODIES COMPRISE: GENERAL SHAREHOLDER
MEETING BOARD, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE SUPERVISORY

03 3.1

BOARD AND THE STATUTORY AUDITOR.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER MEETING BOARD

The corporate governance model adopted by Efacec is in line with
the best national and international corporate governance practices,
and follows a set of principles that aim at ensuring transparency, the
proper control and oversight of the management activity, the adequate
implementation of the corporate strategy and the creation of value,
generally following the recommendations of the Portuguese Securities

STATUTORY
AUDITOR

REMUNERATION,
EVALUATION
AND APPOINTMENT
COMMITTEE

SUPERVISORY
BOARD

Market Commission (CMVM) and the Portuguese Institute of Corporate
Governance (IPCG) on this matter.
Efacec Power Solutions adopted the model of governance provided for

EXECUTIVE
COMMITTEE

BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

COMPANY
SECRETARY

in Article 278(a) of the Commercial Companies Code (“CSC”), known
as the ‘classic’ or ‘monistic’ model.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE AND
SUSTAINABILITY
COMMITTEE

ETHICS
COMMITTEE

FINANCE
AND RISK
COMMITTEE

EPS’ governance model and composition
of its Governing Bodies on 31 December 2017
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THIS MODEL ALLOWS
SEPARATING THE
POWERS OF THE
VARIOUS GOVERNING
BODIES AND EXERTING
ADEQUATE CONTROL
AND SUPERVISION
OVER THE ACTIVITIES
OF THE MANAGEMENT.

223

T H E

DESCRIPTION OF GOVERNING BODIES
AND COMMITTEESS

This model allows separating the powers of the various
governing bodies and exerting adequate control and
supervision over the activities of the Management. The
Board of Directors delegated to the Executive Committee, pursuant to Article 407 of the CSC, the day-to-day
management of the Group and its various subsidiaries
and Business Units, reserving for itself the definition of

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER MEETING BOARD

and deliberation on the Group’s strategic orientation, its

Three-year mandate.

annual and multi-year budgets and decision-making on
matters of major importance, particularly in terms of

It is incumbent upon the General

value and impact on the business. This division of functions

Shareholder Meeting Board to appoint

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

the Chairman of the Board of Directors,

Comprising three to fifteen members

and it may also appoint a Vice-Chairman,

directors, to better monitor the management and to better

elected every three years by the General

who shall replace the Chairman in his

Meeting. It currently comprises

oversee and control management activities carried out by

absence or temporary impediment.

11 directors. *.

It is also incumbent upon the General

The Board of Directors is the governing

Shareholder Meeting Board to appoint

by three specialised committees – Corporate Governance

body responsible for managing

the Remuneration, Evaluation

the company’s activity and its responsi-

and Sustainability Committee; Finance and Risk Commit-

and Appointment Committee and elect

bilities are defined in the Articles

tee, and Ethics Committee – which include independent

the respective Chairman.

of Incorporation and the respective

allows the Board of Directors, particularly non-executive

the Executive Committee.
The functions of the Board of Directors are further supported

Regulations. It is the Board of Directors’

members, who are experts in their areas of debate, thus
contributing to an informed and diligent decision-making

In 2017, the General Shareholder

responsibility to, inter alia, define the

Meeting Board held four sessions.

Group’s strategic direction, and decide

by all members of the Board of Directors.

on the most relevant business, in terms

The current model also includes an enhanced supervisory
structure, which includes the Supervisory Board and the

Composition:

of value and risk, as well as on any other

Chairman:

relevant changes to the Group’s business

Jorge Manuel de Brito Pereira

structure. It is also incumbent upon the

Statutory Auditor, as well as a Company Secretary, who

Board of Directors to control and

is appointed under the terms of article 446-D of the CSC,

Secretary:

supervise the activities of the Executive

who is responsible for providing specialised support to

Maria Joana Machado Lima

Committee and the company’s affairs

de Martins Mendes

in general.

governing bodies and for other legally established roles.
In accordance with CMVM and IPCG recommendations, the

It is also the responsibility of the Board

Remuneration, Evaluation and Appointment Committee was
to

also created, pursuant to Article 399 of the CSC, define
and set the remuneration models for the directors and
executive officers of the Efacec Group.

of Directors to appoint the members
* On 5 March 2018,
Francisco Dias Pereira
de Sousa Talino resigned
from his position as a
voting member of the
Board of Directors

of the Specialised Committees, as well
as the respective Chairmen.

In 2017, the Board of Directors held nine
meetings
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

SUPERVISORY BOARD

T H E

STATUTORY AUDITOR

The Board of Directors created

The Supervisory Board is responsible

The Statutory Auditor is responsible

an Executive Committee and tasked

for supervising Efacec’s Management.

for legally certifying the company’s

it with Efacec’s day-to-day management,

The Statutory Auditor is responsible for

accounts and notifying the Chairman

having determined its composition,

legally certifying the company’s accounts.

of the Board of Directors about any

its operation, the range of delegated

aspects of which he/she becomes

powers, and the attributions and respon-

The Supervisory Board is composed

aware and that are considered threaten-

sibilities of each of its members.

of three full members and one alternate

ing to Efacec’s activity.

member, who are elected at a General
Pursuant to applicable legislation,

Meeting, which also elects its Chairman.

Non-Executive Directors are responsible

Composed of:
Statutory auditor:

for overseeing the activity

Under the terms of the EPS’ Articles

Pricewaterhousecoopers & Associados –

of the Executive Committee.

of Incorporation and the Supervisory

Sociedade de Revisores Oficiais

Board’s Regulations, this board performs

de Contas, Lda

The Executive Committee is composed

its responsibilities and complies

of up to 7 members. Currently,

with the oversight and supervision duties

Alternate:

it comprises 6 members, and exerts

established in Articles 420, 420-A

Herminio António Paulos Afonso

the management powers assigned to it

and 422 of the CSC.

by the Board of Directors, which also
appoints its Chairman.

Composition:
Chairman:

The Executive Committee holds meetings

José Manuel Gonçalves de Morais Cabral

on a weekly basis and frequently meets
with the extended Board of Directors.

Voting members:

Also, in view of its involvement in the

Sérgio Paulo Esteves de Poças Falcão

Group’s development, it meets on a

António Manuel de Castro Vieira Rodrigues

regular basis with senior managers and
managers of the various Business Units
and Corporate Divisions, to present and
discuss results, follow-up on ongoing
projects, establish management
guidelines and discuss and disseminate
matters of interest to Efacec and its
respective branches and subsidiaries.

During FY 2017, the Executive Committee
formally met 46 times for deliberations.
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Fernando Teixeira dos Santos

REMUNERATION, EVALUATION
AND APPOINTMENT COMMITTEE

Voting members:
Mário Filipe Moreira Leite da Silva
MGI Capital, SGPS, S.A., represented by Luís Miguel
Oliveira Nogueira Freire Cortes Martins

Chairman:

FINANCE AND RISK

António Domingues

COMMITTEE

Voting members:
Mário Leite da Silva
Miguel Maria Pereira Vilardebó Loureiro

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Chairman:

AND SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE

Jorge Brito Pereira

Voting members:
Francisco Talino

(left on 5 March)

Miguel Loureiro

Chairman:
Jorge Brito Pereira

ETHICS COMMITTEE
Executive Committee at a Results Presentation – Matosinhos, Portugal

Voting members:
Adeodato Alexandre Freire Valente Lopes Pinto
António Pinheiro
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Board of Directors and Executive Committee

O

8

Ângelo Manuel da Cruz Ramalho
1

4
Position in the BoD: Voting Member

Mário Filipe Moreira Leite da Silva

11
3

Position in the BoD: Chairman of the
Board of Directors

6

7

10

Position in the EC: Chairman | CEO
2

Areas of responsibility: Coordination of the
EC | International | Business Development |
Strategic Planning and Continuous Improvement | Contracts and Risk Management |
Brand and Communication | Quality,
Environment and Safety

Areas of responsibility: Internal audit
Date of 1 st assignment: 23 October 2015
End of the current term: 2019

Date of 1 st assignment: 23 October 2015
End of the current term: 2019

2

Manuel António Carvalho Gonçalves

9

Francisco José Meira Silva Nunes

Position in the BoD: Voting Member
Date of 1 st assignment: 23 October 2015

Position in the BoD: Voting Member

End of the current term: 2019

Position in the EC: CFO

3

Rui Alexandre Pires Dinis
9
Position in the BoD: Voting Member

Areas of responsibility: Administrative and
Financial | Corporate Finances | Management
Control | Procurement and Logistics | Legal
and Compliance | Human Resources |
Infrastructures and Buildings | Cash
Flow Management

Date of 1 st assignment: 14 August 2014

Date of 1 st assignment: 23 October 2015

End of the current term: 2019

End of the current term: 2019
10

António José Gonzalez Almela

4
5

Miguel Maria Pereira Vilardebó Loureiro

8
Position in the BoD and EC: Voting Member
Areas of responsibility – EC: Transformers

Position in the BoD: Voting Member

1

Date of 1 st assignment: 23 October 2015

Date of 1 st assignment: 20 May 2016

End of the current term: 2019

End of the current term: 2019

5

6

7

11

Vanessa Ferreira Loureiro

Luís Henrique Marcelino Alves Delgado

Fernando José Gomes Mota Lourenço

João Paulo dos Santos Pinto

Position in the BoD: Voting Member

Position in the BoD and EC: Voting Member

Position in the BoD and EC: Voting Member

Position in the BoD and EC: Voting Member

Areas of responsibility: Information Systems
Date of 1 st assignment: 15 December 2016

Areas of responsibility – EC: Switchgear |
Automation | Service

Areas of responsibility – EC: Energy | Environment
and Industry | Transport

Areas of responsibility – EC: Transformation
Project | Electric Mobility

End of the current term: 2019

Date of 1 st assignment: 23 October 2015

Date of 1 st assignment: 9 December 2015

Date of 1 st assignment: 22 August 2016

End of the current term: 2019

End of the current term: 2019

End of the current term: 2019

G R U P O

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

&

A C C O U N T S

230

231

SPECIALISED COMMITTEES
In line with corporate governance best practices, the Board of Directors approved the creation
of three permanent specialised knowledge sharing structures: The Corporate Governance and
Sustainability Committee, the Finance and Risk Committee and the Ethics Committee.

COMMITTEE

Finance and Risk Committee

T H E

G R O U P

RESPONSIBILITIES

To analyse the annual, semi-annual, quarterly and other financial statements and report
its conclusions to the Board of Directors;

Composition: up to five members
Activity in 2017: 4 meetings

To advise the Supervisory Board, on behalf of the Board of Directors, on the appointment,
duties and remuneration of the External Auditor;

These Committees assist the members of the Board of Directors in collecting and processing

To analyse the activities of Internal Audit, Management Control and Risk Management,

the information required for decision making and provide inputs for the implementation and

as well as their relationship with the work of the External Auditor;

monitoring of best practices and principles intrinsic to the Group’s corporate strategy. These

To analyse and discuss with the External Auditor, the Internal Auditor and the risk manager

committees are comprised of Executive and/or Non-Executive Directors and of members external

the reports that are produced and, consequently, advise the Board of Directors on any

to the Board of Directors with recognised expertise in the area of activity of the Committee.

relevant aspects;

By initiative of the Board of Directors, the Ethics Committee was established at the beginning
To analyse, discuss and advise the Board of Directors on the Financing Policy, and on the

of this term. It holds specific competences in the promotion of Efacec’s Code of Conduct, the

accounting policies and practices adopted;

new version of which was approved by the Board of Directors in January 2017. The Code of
To issue opinions on the main risks in the balance sheet and in the provisional profit

Conduct is a document that, in accordance with the Group’s principles and values, establishes

and loss accounts, as well as on all other aspects of Efacec’s life to which a high level

rules of conduct and a set of ethical and deontological rules to be observed by all employees

of risk is attributed.

of the Efacec Group, as well as by all its partners.
Ethics Committee

To monitor and check the correct interpretation and implementation of Efacec’s Compliance
System, including the Code of Conduct and the respective Regulations;

Composition: 3 to 5 members
Activity in 2017: 2 meetings

To establish the necessary mechanisms to prevent, detect and investigate behaviours
that violate the Compliance System;
To establish communication channels with the recipients of the Code of Conduct and analyse
any information received;

COMMITTEE

RESPONSIBILITIES
To propose to the Executive Committee a training programme intended for Efacec
employees, on the rules of the Compliance System;

Corporate Governance
and Sustainability Committee
Composition: up to five members
Activity in 2017: 2 meetings

To study, propose and recommend to the Board of Directors the adoption of policies,
rules and procedures necessary to comply with all applicable legal, regulatory and statuto-

To monitor the adequacy of the Code of Conduct and the respective Regulations,

ry provisions, as well as national and international recommendations, opinions and best

and propose updates thereto, where appropriate;

practices in terms of corporate governance, rules of conduct and social responsibility;

To act as a privileged and reciprocal channel for any reports on violations of the rules
of the Code of Conduct;

To ensure full compliance with any legal and regulatory requirements, recommendations
and best practices, in relation to the company’s governance model, and ensure the adoption

To conduct internal investigations whenever requested by the Executive Committee

of governance principles and practices, and follow up on their implementation;

or by the Board of Directors;

To support the Board of Directors in the performance of its function of supervising

To propose to the Executive Committee the application of disciplinary measures

the company’s activities in matters of corporate governance.

for any illegalities detected.
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REMUNERATION, EVALUATION
AND APPOINTMENT COMMITTEE

COMPANY
SECRETARY

FACTOS SOCIETÁRIOS
RELEVANTES

The Remuneration, Evaluation and Appointment Committee

Efacec’s Compensation and Evaluation Policy abides by

Pursuant to and for the purposes of Article 446-A, the

On 21 July, an increase in the Company’s share capital

is tasked with determining the remuneration of each of

the following guiding principles:

Company Secretary and the Alternate Company Secretary

was approved, from €285,874,030.00 to €314,235,160.00,

are appointed by the Board of Directors and shall have the

through the issuance of new shares in the amount of

To be simple, clear, transparent and in line

responsibilities established in the law. Their duties shall

€5,672,226, fully subscribed by shareholder MGI Capital,

with Efacec’s culture, namely regarding individual

be terminated upon the expiration of the term of the Board

SGPS, S.A. This capital increase was made in kind, by means

of Directors that appointed them.

of the transfer by said shareholder, of real estate valued at

The Company Secretary, in line with the responsibilities

a total amount of €28,361,130.00. These properties are part

To be adequate and adjusted to the size, nature,

established in law, is responsible for supporting the govern-

of the Arroteia business park and Efacec facilities in Maia.

scope and specificity of Efacec’s activity;

ing bodies, EPS and its subsidiaries and Efacec’s other

the Directors, as well as planning the succession of the
members of the Board of Directors:

accountability, sustainability of results and creation

To monitor processes for the identification
st

of potential candidates for top positions and 1 line
management;

To establish contingency plans for top managers;

To annually review remuneration policies
and proposals;

To conduct the annual evaluation of the members
of the Executive Committee and the overall evaluation of the Board of Directors and its Committees.

of value to all stakeholders;

To ensure a competitive and equitable overall

bodies on matters related to company law and company

remuneration, in line with best practices and with

governance, carry out and ensure compliance with all

the latest national and international trends,

formalities necessary for the conducting of the meetings

particularly those adopted by reputable companies

of the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee and

similar in size to Efacec;

the General Shareholder Meeting Board, and provide

To relate the fixed component of the remuneration

information to shareholders and members of governing

with the roles and responsibilities of the different

bodies with supervisory roles on the deliberations of the

The Governing Body Remuneration and Evaluation Policy is

members of the Management and Supervisory bodies,

Board of Directors or the Executive Committee.

an instrument of good governance, which allows promoting

in a coherent and homogeneous way;

transparency in matters of remuneration policies, as well
as, in the medium- and long-term, align the interests of

To establish a variable remuneration whenever
justified, based on the evaluation of individual and

managers and other corporate bodies with the interests

organisational performance, in accordance with

of the company.

the degree of fulfilment of the performance and/
or strategic goals established and the creation of
value for the company and its shareholders, including a short-term component and a medium-term
component, both with ceilings;

To adapt to the economic situation.
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SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE
ON 31 DECEMBER 2017

EPS’S SHARE CAPITAL IS € 314,235,160.00,
FULLY SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP.

General information on the capital structure

SHARE CAPITAL
ON 31.12.2017

€ 314,235,160.00

TOTAL NUMBER
OF SHARES

62,847,032

NOMINAL
VALUE

€ 5.00

(per share)

On 31 December 2017, EPS’ share capital was held
by the following shareholders:

33.93 %
21,321,757
MGI Capital, SGPS, S.A.

66.07 %
41,525,275
Winterfell 2 Limited

Sales Convention at Porto Business School – Matosinhos, Portugal
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Internal Control System

CHAPTER

03 3.2

INTERNAL
CONTROL
AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

FIRST LINE

SECOND LINE

THIRD LINE

OPERATIONAL OWNERS

COMPLIANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

AUDITS

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

FINANCE AND
RISK COMMITTEE

Definition of global objectives
and risk-return profile

Risk process monitoring
and auditing

Approval of risk management
policies and key initiatives

Discussion of risk processes
and internal control and audit
processes

Risk monitoring
analysis and discussion

Efacec’s Internal Control System follows the three-lines-of-defence
model of the Institute of Internal Audit (IIA), as well as the Enterprise
Risk Management methodology and principles, of the Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), also
taking into account the ISO 31.000 standard.

BUSINESS UNITS

RISK MANAGEMENT

AUDITS

Management of position at risk

Global risk evaluation
and monitoring

Validation of the proper
implementation of central controls
and processes (and their exceptions)

Contribution to the
definition of action plans

Risk management and control is, therefore, continuously promoted,

Proposed policies
and action plans in accordance
with Efacec's strategy

through the operation of each line of defence, under the supervision
of the Executive Committee and the Finance and Risk Committee.
In order to achieve its objectives, Efacec’s Internal Control System
is based on the Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Audit
functions, which are centralised and transversal to the Group.

Risk-return trade-off
optimisation

CORPORATE
DIVISIONS
Management of position at risk
Contribution to the
definition of transversal policies
and action plans

COMPLIANCE

Ensuring compliance with
legislation, rules and regulations
(internal and external)

Evaluations of the effectiveness
of risk management and
controls implemented
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Risk Management

Compliance

Internal Audit

Risk Management Process

Efacec’s risk policy and management are developed based

Abidance by Efacec’s Compliance System is the responsibili-

The Internal Audit Office’s mission is to ensure, for all

Risk management at Efacec follows the process described

on a functional cross-border and international control

ty of the Board of Directors, whose goals include compliance

stakeholders, the appropriateness and effectiveness of

in the ISO 31.000 standard, and considers the existence of

model, in which the responsibility for its governance lies

with all applicable legal and regulatory provisions, including

the internal control system as a whole, as well as the

six risk categories with relevance for the Group: External,

with the Board of Directors, which delegates to the Finance

those relating to the prevention of money laundering and

adequacy of Efacec’s identification, risk management and

Financial, Commercial, Operational, Information & Technol-

and Risk Committee the responsibility for monitoring

terrorist financing, as well as professional and deontological

governance processes.

ogy and Reputation. The various risks are mapped in a

global risk levels, ensuring that they are compatible with

rules and practices, internal and statutory rules, rules of

This is a permanent, independent and objective activity,

periodically revised risk matrix, and mitigation actions are

the goals and strategies approved for the development

conduct, customer relations and corporate body guidelines,

and the Internal Audit Office carries out its mission through

defined and implemented for risks classified as relevant

of the business.

among others. The Board of Directors delegates to the Ethics

the adoption of internationally recognised principles of

(high and very high risk).

The Corporate Risk Management Division is responsible for

Committee the monitoring of Efacec’s Compliance System.

internal auditing, issuing recommendations based on the

Risk monitoring is carried out throughout the life cycle

developing an integrated vision of all of Efacec’s business

The Legal and Compliance Corporate Division, as part of

results of the evaluations carried out (which should add

of the contracts, with pre-defined control points. During

risks/opportunities and for promoting the implementation

its Compliance function, has the mission to ensure that

value to Efacec and improve the control and quality of

the commercial phase, it is sought to ensure that each

of the risk policies defined by the Board of Directors, while

the management bodies, functional structures and all

its operations) and contributing to the fulfilment of the

potential business is consistent with the defined risk

ensuring the consistency of principles, concepts, methodol-

Group employees, in all geographies, comply with any

Efacec’s Group’s strategic interests.

appetite and that the decisions taken follow the rules in

ogies and tools used for evaluation and management, thus

laws, rules and regulations (both internal and external)

force concerning the delegation of powers. In the contract

allowing for an accurate assessment of the risks incurred

governing Efacec’s activity, in order to avoid placing

implementation stage the risks identified during the

and arising from the Group’s activities.

the Group under risk of incurring in legal or regulatory

commercial and implementation stages are monitored at

sanctions and financial losses – or damages of a reputa-

regular steering committee meetings.

tional nature, resulting from non-compliance with any
laws, codes of conduct, rules, best practices or duties to
which they are subject.

Violation reporting
Efacec has in place the means and instruments, known as
the Ethics Line, for the reporting of irregular practices
by employees and other interested parties, which violate
the Compliance System, namely the Code of Conduct.

Compliance System Workshop
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Contract life cycle
transfer period

OPPORTUNITY

Go No go

COMMERCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Contract specifications

PROPOSAL

AT THE END OF EACH CONTRACT, A ‘LESSONS

DRAFTING

LEARNED’ EXERCISE IS CARRIED OUT,
Bid no Bid

Proposal submission

WHICH AIMS AT UNDERSTANDING AND REFLECTING
ON THE EXPERIENCE GAINED DURING THE PROJ-

NEGOTIATION

ECT, AS WELL AS PERFORMING AN ANALYSIS OF
Contract signing

RESPONSIBILITY FOR OPERATIONS

Contract signing

THE RISKS THAT HAVE ACTUALLY MATERIALISED.
THIS INFORMATION IS RECORDED AND USED AS AN
INPUT WHEN ANALYSING THE NEXT COMMERCIAL

TRANSFER

PROPOSALS.

Entry into force

Monthly RA

of the contract

CONTRACT
IMPLEMENTATION

Monthly RA

Project end

Provisional acceptance

WARRANTY
PERIOD

Final acceptance

Contract closure
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THE ETHICS LINE
HOW DOES IT WORK?

EFACEC’S SUCCESS DEPENDS ON COMPLIANCE WITH ETHICAL STANDARDS
AND PRINCIPLES ADOPTED BY THE COMPANY AND LAID DOWN IN ITS CODE
OF CONDUCT. THE ETHICS LINE IS A COMMUNICATION CHANNEL THAT

01

ALLOWS SHARING, IN A SAFE AND CONFIDENTIAL WAY, THE OCCURRENCE
OF ANY PRACTICES THAT ARE CONTRARY TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT. THE

Becomes aware of an irregular practice
at Efacec and, while considering that

ETHICS LINE IS MANAGED BY AN EXTERNAL ENTITY, PWC–PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS.

it should be reported, they do not wish
ETHICS LINE

02

to do it internally (to the line manager,
the Compliance department or the Ethics
Committee) for one of several reasons

The employee reports the
irregular practice to the Ethics

Confidentiality

Safety

Confidentiality is ensured, given the anonymity.

The use of the Ethics Line cannot determine

(handled by PwC), post (using

PwC has an obligation of confidentiality with

any retaliation by the company or any person

the appropriate form) or email

the user of the line, and may only disclose

against the user

Line, through the means available

03

for this purpose: phone

of the user

Independence
The process is managed by PwC, which has

ETHICS COMMITTEE
Linha Ética Efacec

A ética começa
em cada
um de nós!
O sucesso da Efacec depende do cumprimento
das normas e dos princípios é cos adotados por
nós e expressos no nosso Código de Conduta.
Para assegurar o seu cumprimento, criámos a
Linha É ca Efacec. Um canal de comunicação
que nos permite par lhar, de forma segura e
conﬁdencial, a ocorrência de prá cas contrárias
ao nosso Código de Conduta.

experience in companies of a similar size

Analyses the reported irregularities

checking whether the situation is in fact

04

related to a violation of Efacec's Code
of Conduct – only these are forwarded

Analyses the complaint

to the Ethics Committee

made and (i) archives it on the
grounds that it does not constitute
an irregularity, or (ii) forwards it
to the body which, in its opinion,

05

EC/ BoD

may better carry out a more

Given the seriousness of the irregularity

detailed assessment of the

reported, and following the steps taken,

complaint (internal audit, HR,
police agency,...)

makes a decision (archiving, disciplinary
proceeding, procedural changes,...), based on
the recommendation of the Ethics Committee

to Efacec or greater. The complaints are
studied by PwC and subsequently by the Ethics
Committee, which is chaired by an independent member

PWC

and promotes the first screening,

identification to Efacec in case of legal dispute.
Anonymity is ensured at the express request

EMPLOYEE

Como posso par cipar?

Porque devo par cipar?

Através de um simples telefonema, email ou carta!

O desrespeito pelas normas e pelos princípios é cos do nosso Código de Conduta,
pode causar danos reputacionais e ﬁnanceiros elevados à Efacec, colocando em causa
o bem estar de todos nós e o ambiente social em que nos envolvemos. Nenhum de
nós gosta de ver a sua conduta posta em causa e parte de nós ser sempre o bom
exemplo.

Telefone: 800 10 10 01 (Grá s)
De segunda a sexta, das 9h às 13h e das 14h às 18h.
e ca.efacec@pt.pwc.com
PwC
Linha é ca da Efacec
Apartado 012081
EC Picoas, Lisboa
1061 - 001 Lisboa

A Linha É ca Efacec é gerida por uma en dade independente e
credenciada, que garante a conﬁdencialidade de todas as
comunicações.
Mais informação na nossa Intranet.
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Committee in technical matters or in terms of the supervision of the activity.
Efacec’s organisational structure is also composed of
committees, which are understood as advisory structures

ORGANISATION

or work groups, permanent or temporary, complementary
to the formal organisation of the company, which can
integrate internal elements and elements or organisations/
companies external to Efacec.

In 2017, the following Committees were in operation:

CHAPTER

03 3.3

Technology Committee: a forum for reflection on
Efacec’s technological competitiveness, responsible
for articulating technological competences
and responsibilities across Business Units, promoting
inter-unit projects that enhance the Group’s technological diversity as a differentiating factor
and monitor the implementation of a strategic TR&D
plan in each Business Unit;

Efacec is organsed into eight Business Units, grouped into three

Corporate Services, in turn, aggregate a set of cross-cutting

segments:: Energy, Systems and Eletric Mobility Products.

functions, to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of

Aiming at promoting synergies between businesses, in terms of

Efacec’s operations. The Corporate Divisions are divided

sible for ensuring that Efacec’s organisational model

customer knowledge and resource skills, both the Product business

into two types, according to the nature of their roles, which

works as an element of competitiveness and that the

areas and the Systems operations areas are integrated.

reflect their own goals, cultures and ways of operating:

structure of the company is geared towards achieving

Organisation Committee: support structure respon-

the strategic and business goals set; IT Committee:
a collegiate body responsible for promoting
In order to support the Business Units, there is an International

Corporate, responsible for advisory roles to the Board

the delivery of value through Information and

Network responsible for the development of the Group’s portfolio,

of Directors, the Executive Committee and Business

Communication Technologies (ICT) and the strategic

Top Management, on topics of strategic and tactical

use of information at Efacec, being responsible

relevance for Efacec;

for aligning ICT investments with the Group’s strate-

from an integrative and cross-cutting perspective, operating in the
following areas:

gic goals and prioritise ICT projects and activities.
Shared, roles linked to the operation of the business,

International, from the multi-business structures of Angola,

operating within a logic of service provision

Mozambique and Algeria;

and whose cost will be gradually assumed by the
Business Units, according to the services provided.

Business Development, which supports market analysis and
partnership management.

In turn, the Internal Audit and Technology Management
Offices support the Board of Directors and the Executive
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ENERGY
PRODUCTS

Strategic Plan and Continuous Improvement

Transformers

Management Control

Switchgear

Business Development

Service

Contract and Risk Management

Automation

Corporate Finance
Angola
Infrastructures and Buildings
EFACEC POWER
SOLUTIONS

SYSTEMS

ITERNATIONAL
NETWORK

CORPORATE
SERVICES
Human Resources

Operations

Mozambique

Administrative and Financial

Energy
Treasury

Environment and Industry
Transportation
Algeria

Legal and Compliance

INTERNAL AUDIT
Procurement and Logistics

Quality, Environment and Safety
ELECTRIC
MOBILITY
Electric Mobility

G R O U P

Brand and Communication

Commercial Products
TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT

T H E

Information Systems
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

STAKEHOLDER

FORMS
OF AUSCULTATION

Face-to-face and periodic

FORMS OF EVALUATION

OUTLOOK

Customer Satisfaction Analysis

Quality of the product/service/

auscultation: Customer’s Voice

solution
Systematic review of customer

Satisfaction Questionnaires

complaints

Complaints system

Constant analysis of customer

Innovation associated with
the product/service/solution

feedback following visits, instalSpecific business support
communications
Customers
Communications related

Efacec’s credibility and image

lations and services provided
Adoption and implementation
Analysis of customer audit

of citizenship values and other

results

aspects related to sustainability

Analysis and responses

Business Ethics

to proposal preparation
and contract execution processes

to questionnaires and supply
CHAPTER

03 3.4

Presence at trade fairs and at

qualification requirements

Compliance

commercial and technological

EFACEC RECOGNISES THAT EN-

Efacec views its customers, employees, suppliers/partners, sharehold-

GAGEMENT WITH ITS STAKE-

ers, the media and society in general as strategic stakeholders.

events

Customer Audits

HOLDERS IS A FACTOR IN THE
Efacec’s interaction is subject to internal and external requirements,

CREATION OF VALUE AND IS

which apply to its various processes in a different way, so relationships

CONTINUALLY WORKS TO DEVEL-

with stakeholders constitute a complex system that requires different

OP STRATEGIES FOR DIALOGUE

auscultation mechanisms. All elements captured in the relationship

THAT ENABLE IT TO CONTINU-

with the different stakeholders are analysed and the results are taken

OUSLY MEASURE AND IMPROVE
ITS LEVEL OF SATISFACTION,
AS WELL AS IDENTIFY RISKS
AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE
BUSINESS.

More Performance (performance

Performance analysis, career,

Well-being (pride, occupation,

management and development)

mobility and training needs

compensation , equality, climate)

Organisational Health Index

Analysis of the results of the

Socialisation

(organisational climate survey)

Organisational Health Index
Personal development

into account in the company’s planning and Continuous Improvement

Spontaneous/planned meetings

Evaluation of training and

processes.

and knowledge-sharing (e.g.

development initiatives

Employees

breakfast with the Chairman,
Sales Convention, communica-

Evaluation of meetings, events

tion events and result-based

and others

initiatives)
Evaluation of the service level
and quality of the services
provided by the Corporate
Divisions

Best support services
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FORMS
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FORMS OF EVALUATION
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

STAKEHOLDER

T H E

OUTLOOK

FORMS
OF AUSCULTATION

STAKEHOLDER

Internal satisfaction question-

Conferences

FORMS OF EVALUATION

OUTLOOK

Analysis of references to Efacec
in the media

naires on training, events, etc.
Presentations
Employees

Media

Questionnaires for evaluating

Reputation reports
Interviews

the services provided
by Corporate Divisions

Answer to specific questions

Supplier management

Evaluation, qualification

process (supported

and recognition of suppliers

by the EFASST system)

and partners

Visits and audits to suppliers

Efacec Portal / general email

Reports on applications

Sharing of knowledge

for public recognition

and experiences

Management of support

Support to society/community

and sponsorship proposals

initiatives

Fair evaluation of partners

Participation in public recogni-

and suppliers

tion processes

Qualification of new

Presence in society events

partners and suppliers

(communications, round

Questions on Efacec’s participa-

Collaboration in several

tables, etc.)

tions abroad

studies through the supply

Communication with the

Internal diagnostics

Project management analysis

and partners
Suppliers/
Partners

Business ethics

Reciprocal training

Society and all
Stakeholders

Projects involving partners

of information

community’s institutions
Business projects (contracts)

Participation in community
projects

Participation in publications
Events involving partners

Business Ethics
Participation in associative

General meetings and other

Opinions issued at meetings of

meetings attended by sharehold-

the Board of Directors or others

Business growth

ers or their representatives

Business profitability

Semiannual financial reports

Group sustainability

movements

Compliance

and risk management

Shareholders

Visits by shareholders
(or their representatives),

Progress of the projects

whose meetings include Efacec
employees

Compliance and business ethics

Cired 2017 – Glasgow, United Kingdom

InterSolar Europe 2017 – Munich, Germany

C A P Í T U L O
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PEOPLE

256

4.2

CREATIVITY AND INNOVATION

266

4.3

ENVIRONMENT

274

4.4

SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT

284

4.5

CITIZENSHIP

288
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Review of the Code of Conduct

COMMITMENT
TO
THE FUTURE

Rollout of the Ethics Line
Establishment of the Ethics Committee
Launch of the Circular
Economy Programme

Launch of the Integrated
Safety Programme

Launch of the Integrated People
Management Programme
Subscription to BCSD Portugal’s Charter
of Principles
Launch of the efaAjudar Volunteering
Programme

Building Sustainability
Programme
Launch of the Structured
Volunteering Programme

Review of the Sustainability Policy
& Code of Ethics
Sustainable Development
and Energy Efficiency & Supplier Award
Publication of the Risk Management
Policy

The concern with conciliating the efficiency and profitability

For Efacec, the commitment to Sustainability ensures total

Sustainable Development Award

of operations from a social perspective has always guided

stakeholder satisfaction, improving management balance,

the work of Efacec, which, since 2004, has embarked on a

openness, information reliability, social awareness and

Commencement of Participation
in the Porto de Futuro Programme

path towards sustainable development.

environmental protection, thus contributing to a successful

Sustainable Development Award

As it changed its shareholder structure, Efacec was

economic performance.

Social Responsibility Award

committed to adopting the best policies of transparency and

1 st Sustainability Report

corporate governance, as well as internal rules designed

Participation in the Junior
Achievement Programme

to ensure ethical and responsible behaviour on the part of
all its stakeholders. The strengthening of Efacec’s Sustain-

Launch of the Efacec Academy

Publication of the Sustainability
Policy

Business Responsible Familiarity &
Sustainable Development Award

ability Policy is also reflected in more actions to support
the community, the environment, employee development

Launch of the Sustainable
Development Channel

and the preparation of a sustainable future for the Group.

1 st Code of Ethics/Conduct

Integration into BCSD Portugal
1 st Environmental Certification
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Efacec employees throughout the world

CENTRAL EUROPE
USA

PEOPLE

PORTUGAL

SPAIN

ALGERIA

CHAPTER

INDIA

BRAZIL

ANGOLA

04 4.1

46

MOZAMBIQUE
ARGENTINA
CHILE

REST OF THE WORLD

EFACEC HAS THE AMBITION TO REINVENT ITSELF AND TO BE AHEAD OF ITS TIME
Distribution of employees by functional group and location

IN TERMS OF ITS MANAGEMENT METHODOLOGIES AND THE TECHNOLOGIES USED IN
ITS PRODUCTS AND SOLUTIONS.

PORTUGAL

This ambition is impossible to achieve without our

Who are we?

employees, so Efacec is committed to developing their

FUNCTIONAL GROUP

6

Directors

28

18

16

0

2

64

Managers

40

32

12

1

11

96

Coordinators

75

47

20

1

23

166

Experts

274

304

147

0

128

853

Technical Staff

115

102

11 35

1

11 48

11 301

49

20

22

4

18

113

433

53

20

19

81

606

41

15

11

1

32

100

1,061

591

283

27

343

2,305

85% WERE BASED IN PORTUGAL.

priority to local contracting, competitive remuneration

10 geographies: Spain, Central Europe, India, Algeria,

and offering a set of benefits that simplify its employees’

Angola, Mozambique, Brazil, Chile, Argentina and the USA.

personal and family life.

TOTAL

0

more conducive to high-performance activities.

countries, its employees are essentially concentrated in

OTHER
GEOGRAPHIES

0

EFACEC HAD 2,305 EMPLOYEES, OF WHICH

employer in the countries where it operates, giving

OTHER

0

potential and implementing work environments that are

Internationally, even though Efacec is present in over 60

OEIRAS
0

Executive Directors

In addition, Efacec aims at always being a benchmark

MAIA

6

ON 31 DECEMBER 2017,

skills, creating new mechanisms for recognising their

ARROTEIA

Supervisors
Operational staff
Administrative Staff
Overall total
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A significant number of employees are part of the “Experts”
functional group (37%), which demonstrates Efacec’s
commitment to the development of products and solutions.

84.6%

BEING A
TECHNOLOGICAL

15.4%

COMPANY,
AT EFACEC, ACADEMIC

2%

QUALIFICATIONS

22 %

14 %

TEND TO BE
QUITE HIGH.
45% of employees have a bachelor’s, licentiate’s, master’s
or doctoral degree, and only 24% of employees have a

31 %

27 %

rd

qualification equal to or less than the 3 cycle of education.

4%

In recent years, Efacec has made continuous efforts to
ensure gender diversification and non-discrimination.

19 %

1%

2%

2%

8%

3%

5%

Although, in 2017, only 15.4% of employees where women,
an increase of 0.7 p.p. (14.7%) was observed over 2016.

1 st

This majority of male employees is a direct consequence

2 nd

of the sectors in which Efacec operates, which are closely

COMPLETE

MASTER’S

SECONDARY

AND DOCTORAL DEGREES

linked to traditionally male-dominated activities such as

CYCLE
AND

3 rd

BACHELOR’S DEGREE
CYCLE

EDUCATION

LICENTIATE’S DEGREE

7%

30 %
5%
56 %

34 %

7%
6%

Engineering and manufacturing operations.

14 %

EXPERTS

DIRECTORS

TECHNICAL STAFF

MANAGERS

TECHNICAL STAFF

MANAGERS

FISCAL

COORDINATORS

OPERATIONAL STAFF

COORDINATORS

OPERATIONAL STAFF

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

EXPERTS

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

DIRECTORS
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MAIS Formação (MORE Training):

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT
OF HUMAN RESOURCES

IN 2017, THE FOUNDATIONS WERE LAID
DOWN FOR THE NEW MAST3R ACADEMIA

The year 2017 was a year of transformation in the manage-

MAIS Desempenho (MORE performance):

ment of People at Efacec.

EXPANSION OF SKILLS, TALENT MANAGECONSTRUCTION OF A MODEL FOR ANALYS-

IN THE CONTEXT

ING THE PERFORMANCE AND POTENTIAL OF

OF THE HUMAN

EMPLOYEES, WITH A VIEW TO ENSURING

RESOURCES TRANSFORMATION PLAN,
THE “MAIS PESSOAS”
(MORE PEOPLE) HUMAN
CAPITAL STRATEGIC
MANAGEMENT
PROGRAMME WAS
IMPLEMENTED, WHICH
AIMS AT PROMOTING
GREATER EMPLOYEE
ATTRACTION, DEVELOPMENT AND RETENTION,
BASED ON FIVE
CRITICAL ASPECTS.

EFACEC, WHICH AIMS AT PROMOTING THE

GREATER RIGOUR AND OBJECTIVITY IN
EVALUATIONS AND PROMOTING A CULTURE
OF FEEDBACK AND ALIGNMENT WITH THE
EFACEC GROUP’S STRATEGY
MAIS Desempenho, implemented at the beginning of

MENT AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE
EMPLOYEES’ POTENTIAL, PROMOTING
A SENSE OF BELONGING TO THE COMPANY. WITHIN THE SCOPE OF MAST3R
ACADEMIA EFACEC, A COMPREHENSIVE
APPROACH WAS DEVELOPED, BASED ON
THREE SCHOOLS:
CORPORATE School – focused on the training

2017, is a management tool that enables the alignment of

and development of employees in terms of culture

all employees with Efacec’s strategy, through objectives

and corporate processes.

defined by top management and its unfolding throughout
the organisation.

MANAGEMENT School – aims at training leaders,
giving them the ability to manage their teams,

This model is in line with the new Skill Management model

motivating them to achieve goals and the standardi-

implemented at the end of 2016, which includes a set of

sation of rigorous, transparent and mobilising project

competencies that must be demonstrated transversely

and business management practices.

by all employees and that is aligned with Efacec’s values.

TECHNOLOGICAL School – to promote a shared vision

It is a more rigorous and objective model for the final

about the future of Efacec’s technology and the

evaluation of employees, which equally values results

development of differentiating technical competen-

and behaviours shown. It is focused on the development

cies to support the Group’s technological roadmap.

of employees, contemplating Individual Development
Plans that contribute to the excellence of their individual
performance and nourish their professional aspirations.
In 2017, all employees were evaluated according to this
model and this was a very important milestone in the
implementation of the Efacec Group’s new Human Resource
management strategy.

In 2018, specific training programmes will be developed
for each functional family, consisting of modules from each
of the Schools, which will be compulsory or recommended,
according to the functional group, and required for professional development, in line with Efacec’s Careers Model.

Outdoor Training of the Product Sales Division –
Vila Nova de Gaia, Portugal
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MAIS Carreira (MORE Career):

MAIS Reconhecimento (MORE Recognition):

DESIGN OF CAREER PATHS FOR THE VAR-

DESIGN OF ROLE-BASED REMUNERATION

Under this model, two instruments were created to materi-

IOUS ROLES, WITH CLEAR, RIGOROUS AND

AND BENEFIT POLICIES AND DEFINITION

alise the ‘variable compensation’ component:

TRANSPARENT PROGRESSION CRITERIA.

OF CAREER PROGRESSION AND ACCELERATION MODELS.

Efacec Performance Award: with a view to aligning
the Organisation around the goals defined in the
budget, depending on Efacec’s results;

In 2017, a new Career and Talent Management Model was
defined and implemented, which addressed the following

In order to promote greater equality in internal remunera-

Incentives: tactical instrument to promote the

aspects:

tion policies, ensuring an alignment with market practices

accomplishment of specific goals dependent on

Preparation of career paths for the various roles,

and external competitiveness, Efacec defined a Compen-

with clear, rigorous and transparent progression

sation and Benefit Model based on a logic of total compen-

criteria for the organisation;

sation and adjusted to the characteristics of each role in
the organisation.
This new model consists of 3 components:

Maintenance functional families is planned for 2018
Fixed Compensation;

with a view to promoting the recognition, motivation and

along with management careers.
Variable Compensation (greater weight for roles
In 2018, we also plan to implement professional acceleration programmes for employees with high potential,

families associated with Production, Sales and Tendering,

Management, Research & Development and Industrial

isation of the sector in which it operates,
which values the furthering of technical careers

In 2017, mechanisms were designed to promote functional

and the implementation of incentives for the Project

Implementation of a dual career model, critical
for the Efacec Group, given the technological special-

individual/team performance.

retention of talent at Efacec.

with a direct impact on Efacec’s results);

Benefits.

which will enable us to guarantee the retention of talent
that is critical for the sustainability and the future of
our business.

Outdoor Training of the Product Sales Division – Vila Nova de Gaia, Portugal
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VALOR
SEGURANÇA PROJECT

Efacec Academy is a training entity certified by DGERT –

The overall assessment of training satisfaction reached

Directorate-General for Employment and Labour Relations,

88%, in line with 2016.

PERSONNEL SAFETY

In 2017, with the goal of improving Efacec’s Safety perfor-

in the areas of Personal Development, Foreign Languages

Training and Awareness-Raising
on Safety

We should also note that, in addition to the volume

mance, the first phase of the Valor Segurança (Safety

Safety and Occupational Health.

of in-house training for employees, Efacec Academy

Value) project was developed, supported by an external

Throughout 2017, Efacec Academy provided 43,716 hours

accompanied, along with the Business Units, the training

consultant and involving Efacec’s entire population, by

Based on a video, which warns of the number of accidents

of training, an increase of 90% over 2016, involving 1,902

process for Customers, providing 2,017 hours of training

means of more than 1,100 surveys, interviews to several

that have occurred in recent years and the importance of

employees. In line with Efacec’s Strategic Plan, priority

in this context.

employees with different responsibilities, documentary

reaching home safely, the company intended to appeal to

was given to training on Quality, Environment and Safety,

analyses and operational visits to the manufacturing areas.

the individual responsibility of each employee, the costs

technical training and training on new technologies,

The Valor Segurança project thus established for Efacec the

of accidents and the need to change attitudes at work.

Management and Finance.

goal of reaching the benchmark performance by 2020, i.e.

and Literatures, Computer Science, Electricity and Energy,

<2 accidents with casualties per million of hours worked.
Within the scope of Leadership, 2,300 hours of training were

In order to achieve this goal, a plan of action was drawn

provided, with the support of an external entity, addressed

up, whose implementation starts in January 2018.

to Directors, Officers, Coordinators and Supervisors.

In 2017, as part of Valor Segurança, a number of initiatives

1%

8%

Intended for sales teams and conducted by an external
entity, the Best Selling Team training course was held,
which aimed at improving sales and negotiation skills.

were carried out to raise awareness and prepare Efacec

29 %

for improving personnel safety.

20 %

This programme, developed throughout 2017, reached a
training volume of 1,649 hours and involved 67 employees.
In the Project Management area, actions towards PMP

8%
12 %

(Project Management Professional) Certification were

Efacec – Winners of the Brightest Cost Management Award

continued. In this context, Efacec was present at Bright
Challenge – The Project Management Games. This challenge,

22 %

which targets the international community of Project
Managers has a training component based on SIMULTRAIN®
– the world’s leading Project Management simulator – and
is part of Efacec’s Annual Training Plan. This year, Efacec’s
team won in category Brightest Cost Management, having
reached the highest score ever.

QUALITY, ENVIRONMENT
AND SAFETY

MANAGEMENT AND FINANCE

CULTURE AND HUMAN
BEHAVIOUR

FOREIGN LANGUAGES
AND DOCTORAL DEGREES

TECHNICAL ASPECTS
AND NEW TECHNOLOGIES

INNOVATION

COMPUTER SCIENCE

SALES AND MARKETING

Best Selling Team Training Initiative
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IDEA MARKETPLACE
In 2017, Efacec invested in a model called Idea Marketplace, which focused on People. This model had
the following benefits:

Ideas geared towards the company’s top

Potential collaboration of all company

priorities (known as Challenges);

employees in the idea evaluation process.

Potential collaboration of all employees
in the idea development process;
CHAPTER
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The Idea Marketplace brought together 256 validated ideas, of which 41 were approved. The programme’s
greatest success was in the ASE Business Unit, with the awarding of nearly 13% of original ideas.

DATA PLACED

CREATIVITY IS MORE AND MORE IN

These concepts take on strategic importance

EFACEC’S DNA: FROM PEOPLE TO

across the entire structure, reflected in specific

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES, TO A

projects that contribute to a dynamic organi-

HOW TO INCREASE OUR EMPLOYEES’ SKILLS?

HOW TO REDUCE DIRECT COSTS?

global supply.

HOW TO IMPROVE CUSTOMER FOCUS?

BY GREATER AUTONOMY IN THE

In 2017, creativity and technological innovation

HOW TO IMPROVE THE WORK-LIFE RELATIONSHIP?

CONCEPTS IT GENERATES, AND A

materialised through the use of several internal

KNOW-HOW THAT IS CONSOLIDATED

interlocutors, who carried out complementary

DAY AFTER DAY. INNOVATION, AS
A CONCEPT THAT ENCOMPASSES A

initiatives.

298

VALIDATED

256

APPROVED

41

RATE OF IDEAS
HOW TO INCREASE CLARITY AND QUALITY IN EFACEC
DOCUMENTATION?

APPROVED

HOW TO IMPROVE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN
INTERNAL CUSTOMERS?

TO BE IMPLEMENTED

HOW TO BETTER MANAGE EFACEC’S PROCESSES?

GUIDELINES, SUPPORTS ALL THE

CREATIVITY AND TECHNOLOGICAL

SUBMITTED

HOW TO REDUCE EFACEC’S ECOLOGICAL FOOTPRINT?

MULTITUDE OF APPLICATIONS AND

ACTIVITY OF A COMPANY FOR WHICH

TOTAL NUMBER OF IDEAS

HOW TO AVOID WORK-RELATED ACCIDENTS?

sational environment, with an impact on

WHOLE CULTURE THAT IS AFFIRMED

IMPLEMENTATION DATA

RATE OF IDEAS
TO BE IMPLEMENTED

16%

11

4%

HOW TO IMPROVE THE EXECUTION CAPACITY
OF EFACEC’S PROJECTS?
HOW TO MAKE R&D PROJECTS MORE
COMPREHENSIVE?

In 2018, Efacec will implement its new

DEVELOPMENT ARE THE FOUNDA-

Colombo programme, which will benefit

TIONS OF A PATH OF GROW TH AND

from the lessons learned from the Idea

SUCCESS.

Marketplace.
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INNOVATION

C O M M I T M E N T

T O

S U S T A I N A B I L I T Y

Projects in the year
In order to reinforce the technological aspects of its
activities, Efacec has launched several projects through-

manage, implement and recognise the creative ideas
of its employees, called the Colombo programme. This

The coordinator of the organisation’s technological

In order to define Efacec’s technology and innovation

programme has had very positive results, in terms of the

efforts, the Technology Management Office (GdT) was

strategy, the GdT brings together contributions from:

benefits for Efacec and the motivation of its employees.

created in the second half of 2016 and has, since then,

In 2018, Efacec will implement its new Colombo

consolidated, with a special focus on:

programme, which will benefit from the lessons learned

out 2017, of which the following stand out:

The improvement of the metrics used to monitor
Current and future Customer needs;

Innovation and Technology activities, particularly
the definition of Technological Intensity;

Internal analysis: product development

from the Idea Marketplace, a new model that internally

Promoting the development of Efacec’s Technology

fosters creativity.

and Innovation strategy;

and CRM;

Technological Innovation Desk, a platform for the
New areas of business: Synergies and skill and

Streamlining the preparation of the technological

management of technological projects;

development Clusters;
The management of Efacec’s participation

roadmap of Products;
The market: technological trends;

in a Venture Capital and the formalisation of the first
investment in startups, through the HCapital ;

Proposing and carrying out initiatives that promote
the sharing of competences and a cross-cutting

The launch and operationalisation of the BIT –

Competition: technological radar and benchmarking.
The systematisation and semi-annual updating

technological knowledge within the Group;

of the Strategic Technological Development Plans
Leveraging and supporting R&D projects by diversify-

3D scale model of Smart Grid

(PEDTs) for all Efacec Business Units;

ing resources and financing sources;
The creation of new incentives and financing
Monitoring technological intensity and following up

for TR&D projects;

on the implementation of cross-cutting projects;
Enhancements to application merits, with a view
Managing relationships with academic and scientific

to reducing funding rates;

entities, proposing strategic partnerships.
Initiatives to increase the number and success
of European projects (underHorizon 2020);

The creation of the Intellectual Property Management System;

The development of two full business plans for
new business areas (energy storage and energy
asset management).
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TR&D INDICATORS
Investment in TR&D
(% of revenue)

2,4

Number
of employees involved

200

in TR&D activities

Number of scientific and
technological partnerships

>50

Number
of strategic TR&D projects

22

involving external partners

Number of technical papers
presented internationally

Technological Innovation Desk (BIT)

3D scale model for energy production and distribution

In order to ensure the unified operational management

The BIT will increasingly act as a digital enabler of business

of Technological Innovation Proposals at Efacec, the

innovation, through the Business Innovation through

Technological Innovation Desk (BIT) was created.

Technology concept, implementing, across the entire

The BIT is a digital platform, developed in order to

organisation, lean processes that foster technological

allow employees to submit proposals for future RT&D

innovation and technical knowledge management at

projects to the GdT, and to monitor their evaluation and

Efacec. It will certainly generate great value, by increas-

operationalisation.

ing efficiency and effectiveness in the development and

>20

management of technological initiatives. It will provide
It will also be a place where the most appropriate incentive

key performance indicators related to the evolution of

and collaboration opportunities will be made available,

technological innovation at Efacec.

with a view to achieving each Business Unit’s technological development strategic goals. Over time, the BIT will

The transformation of the energy sector presents a

also become a historical repository of information and

challenge, to which Efacec intends to respond with differ-

key documents resulting from technological innovation

entiated sustainable solutions. The need to increase the

initiatives at Efacec.

system’s efficiency, resilience and reliability, even taking
into account all the different assets (including renewable
energy sources), introduces a plurality of technological
solutions. In addition to being a concern in internal
development processes, Efacec actively participates in
international technical groups in order to contribute and
keep abreast of the state of the art regarding standards
and norms, as well as of the regulatory developments in
the sector.

BIT Campaign – Technology Innovation Desk
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Why the continuous focus on Innovation?

Main technological projects for 2018

Technological Innovation at Efacec is based on 3 pillars:

2018 will certainly be a very challenging year. In order to

the creation of value-added solutions for our customers,

create more comprehensive solutions, Efacec is already

optimisation of the products, systems, services and

developing future concepts for the computerisation of

processes endogenous to our business, and the promotion

substations and Smart Cities, projects that require multiple

of differentiation in the results of our activity.

engineering competencies.
The EFAsset – Asset Management – project will allow

Innovation is the basis for responding positively to the

creating new value-added services for customers, through

Startups: Startups HCaptital New Ideas and

challenges of the markets in which Efacec operates,

the optimisation of asset performance and maintenance,

Associação HiSeedTech

offering differentiating solutions that are sustainable

and the deferral of investments. In this way, more and

and generate value for customers and for society in

better digital solutions will be developed to and from

para a Ciência e Tecnologia, COTEC and European

general. As such, technological innovation is of strategic

critical assets, which will lead to the designing of native, 3D

Commission

importance, as is evident in the continuous updating of

systems for inter-model management and interoperability.

the group’s technological portfolio, which includes its own

The evolution of transformers will continue to deserve a

innovative solutions, on an international scale, leveraged

strong focus, namely regarding the use of new materials

Research centres, competence centres, technology

by an ecosystem of differentiating and complementary

and new construction solutions. New techniques and

transfer centres

partnerships, in terms of know how.

technologies for noise reduction in power transformers

Agência Nacional de Inovação, AICEP, Fundação

Universities and other higher schools

will be developed.
Collaborative laboratories, technical laboratories

Technological innovation at Efacec starts with a multidis-

In other areas, such as Transport, a new project to optimise

ciplinary team addressing a need currently experienced by

the operation of public transport systems will soon be

a customer or a future challenge identified. This internal

launched, which includes machine learning and artificial

process of endogenisation of vast and complementary

intelligence technologies. In addition, Efacec will contrib-

technical competencies is supported by heavy internal

ute to the definition of requirements for upcoming 5G

World Energy Council, Future Energy Leaders

investments in Technology Research & Development (TR&D)

networks, so that these can support the safe and reliable

and Associação Portuguesa de Energia

and complemented by an ongoing policy of technological

operation of critical systems in electric power grids and

partnerships with reference entities at a global level.

metro-rail transport systems.

Industrial and business partners

Municipalities, local government and energy user
associations

MOV Network

Lastly, technological innovation at Efacec in 2018 will also
It is through innovation that Efacec is able, today, to

include the installation of an energy storage demonstrator

develop solutions suited to the needs of tomorrow, bearing

in its facilities, which will allow testing, within a micro-net-

in mind the transition into a sustainable world in terms

work, advanced and differentiating functionalities, as well

of energy sources.

as several other technologies.
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Efacec’s contribution to reducing environmental impacts

AREAS

PORTFOLIO

FORM OF CONTRIBUTION
Efacec’s transformers are among the most efficient in the market. They minimise

Transformers

ENVIRONMENT

CO2 emissions and are designed taking into account their entire life cycle.
The transformers can also be disassembled and a significant part of the raw
material can be recovered.
Much of the Medium-Voltage equipment is designed according to ecodesign

Switchgear

CHAPTER

methodologies and avoiding the use of SF6 (a greenhouse gas). A large part of raw
materials can also be recovered.

04 4.3

The Service activity allows refurbishing several types of energy equipment, both

Products

Service

manufactured internally or by third-parties, allowing its reuse and achieving great
savings in raw materials. This activity is designed to ensure maximum circularity
of rotating machines, transformers and High- and Medium-Voltage equipment.

Development of several components for intelligent energy grids, which significantAutomation

ly contribute to increasing their energy efficiency. Interconnection equipment
for renewable energy systems is also developed.

Design and construction of renewable and clean power plants, namely wind
Energy
For several years now, Efacec has sought to improve its

These two components ensure that Efacec is aligned with

environmental performance. This effort is structured in

recent social trends, such as Circular Economy and Low

two components:

Development of new products with better environmental performance or intended to allow for better
environmental performance by customers;

storage) are also developed, so as to ensure a more flexible offer.

Environment
and Industry

Carbon Economy.
In the development of its portfolio and in its R&D activities,

Transports

pollution and climate change.
Systematic reduction of environmental impacts
resulting from the company’s activities.

Design and installation of (waste)water treatment systems, as well as solid waste
recycling stations with energy recovery. Biomass plants are also developed and
telemanagement systems are provided.

Systems

Efacec has focused on the contributions that its products and
systems can make in the fight against material shortages,

farms, photovoltaic and hydroelectric power plants. Hybrid plants (solar, thermal,

Electric Mobility

Design and installation of all operating systems for light rails or metros, projects
with a great social impact and a very significant reduction of CO 2 emissions.
Development and installation of electric vehicle chargers, which gradually reduce
CO 2 emissions from transports.
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PRODUCT LIFE CYCLE MANAGEMENT

In 2017, Efacec dedicated specific resources to
improving its environmental management. The Circular
Economy team was created to promote and coordinate
Efacec’s efforts in this area.
Based on increasing customer requirements in this field
and on the particular situations of each Business Unit, an
action plan was defined that includes specialised training,

DESIGN

PROCUREMENT

improvements to information systems, the publication

Ecodesign

List of materials,
identification of materials

of additional information on products and support to the

R&D Projects

ecological project

and recycled content

Environmental Regulatory

.

Requirements

Suppliers and
origin identification

EFACEC ALREADY HAS A METHODOLOGY FOR THE PREPARATION
Efacec participates in the MEET 2030 Programme

OF LIFE CYCLE ANALYSIS (LCA)
STUDIES, BASED ON A COMPARISON
AGAINST AVAILABLE METHODS.
THIS METHODOLOGY HAS ALREADY
BEEN APPLIED IN THE FLUOFIX AND

In 2017, Efacec participated in the Meet 2030 work group,

END OF LIFE
Large-scale maintenance

PRODUCTION
Environmental aspects

an initiative of BCSD Portugal that aimed at identifying a

operations

set of recommendations for the development of the Low

Disposal instructions

Waste management

Declaration of end of life

Innovation projects

Carbon Economy in Portugal. The final report of the study

and impacts

presents a common vision for Portugal in 2030, as well as
the set of recommendations that BCSD member companies
consider to be fundamental to achieve carbon neutrality.

NORMAFIX IMMERSED DISTRIBUTION
TRANSFORMERS AND NEW STUDIES
ARE UNDERWAY.

What is Circular Economy?
Circular Economy aims at replacing the Linear Economy’s
‘end-of-life’ concept, based on the production and elimination of waste, with new circular flows of reuse, refurbishment and recovery of materials and energy.

USE

TRANSPORTATION

Instruction manuals with

Optimisation of packaging

environmental information

and transportation processes
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The Green Transformer
As part of the work of the Circular Economy team, Efacec has identified the environmental characteris-

FOLLOWING CURRENT BUSINESS REQUIRE-

HOW CAN LIFE CYCLE ANALYSES CON-

MENTS, EFACEC CONDUCTS LIFE CYCLE

TRIBUTE TO THE CIRCULAR ECONOMY

tics of its current transformers and of those that will be developed in the future.

ANALYSES. THESE STUDIES INVOLVE A
COMPLETE AND SYSTEMATIC ANALYSIS

Information on the materials used for the customer

Life Cycle Analyses are key sources of information for

Information on Life Cycle and decommissioning
or refurbishment instructions

developing products and for making them competitive and

OF THE PRODUCTS, IDENTIFYING EN-

Environmental and safety risks

compatible with the current environmental requirements.

VIRONMENTAL ASPECTS AND IMPACTS

Efacec is involved in several projects whose goal is to

THROUGHOUT THEIR HISTORY, FROM THE

improve the environmental performance of its products,

EXTRACTION OF RAW MATERIALS TO

throughout their entire life cycle, with highlights of the

High Efficiency

following:

Recycling of production waste

PRODUCTION, TRANSPORTATION, USE
AND FINAL DESTINATION.

Ecological

Magnetic sheet with recycled
content (20%)

Improvements to productive processes and
layout changes;

Recyclable/Recycled
or vegetable coolant

Reduction of packaging materials;
Optimised tank project

Acquisition of equipment for the regeneration

Easy disassembly

and reuse of mineral oil;
Possibility of extending
the useful life by reusing materials

Transformer refurbishment;

Development of technologies to reduce the level
of noise emitted by transformers;

Work Areas

Development of Medium-Voltage equipment without

As part of the work of the Circular Economy team, Efacec has identified the environmental characteris-

SF6 (sulphur hexafluoride), a natural gas used as an
electrical insulator (dielectric).

tics of its current transformers and of those that will be developed in the future.

Additional product instructions
Material passports
Product and production information
systems
Specialised training
Sustainable project

Refurbishment using recycled materials

Improvements to the purchasing process
and additional supplier information
Awareness-raising initiatives
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Quantity of Equipment Refurbished in 2017

TYPE
OF EQUIPMENT

EQUIPMENT
REFURBISHMENT

Transformers

% OF MASS
TYPICALLY RECOVERED

NUMBER OF REFURBISHED
EQUIPMENTS

50

185

60

342

80

323

90

6.570

60

340

Efacec contributes to environmental sustainability through
the refurbishment of energy equipment (thus doubling
its lifetime), carried out by the Service Business Unit.
These refurbishment operations avoid the unneces-

Transformers

sary consumption of more than 50% of the materials
and components used in a new equipment. Service is,
therefore, a notable example of a business model that
directly supports Circular Economy.
Switchgear

Switchgear

Rotating machines
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Energy Management and Reduction
of the Carbon Footprint
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Waste Management
The complexity of waste management at Efacec stems from a wide diversity of waste types,
producers and recipients. These specificities imply a set of actions, ranging from the proper

The increasing use of video-conference and corporate
collaboration applications has played a very important
role in saving energy from fossil fuels.
Recent investments in buildings (Distribution Transformers/General Services building, the Electrical Mobility plant

REDUCTION IN ENERGY
C O N S U M P T I O N ( - 1 2 %)
2016

2017

separation of waste produced at the source to its disposal at an appropriate destination,
ensuring compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements.
Efacec has kept abreast of technological advances, looking for the best solutions in waste
management. In 2017, efforts and resources were dedicated to ensuring greater efficiency,

and Information System Management offices) also had

namely the construction of new waste facilities at the Maia and Crestins facilities, which will

a very significant impact on energy efficiency, as they

centralise the preliminary storage of waste and serve as a training facility to consolidate the

included the installation of LED lighting, a more efficient

144955GJ 127014GJ

staff’s responsibilities in this area.

use of natural light, the installation of solar thermal
systems, the use of new, better-insulated roofs, double
glazing with thermal cut-off, new VCV (variable coolant

RECOVERY

volume) ventilation systems and automatic doors, as well

R A T E ( + 1 , 8 %)

as the installation of heat pumps and active/intelligent
lighting and temperature control.
The current Energy Efficiency Plan includes a set of

Water and Wastewater Management

continuous actions, such as optimising the operation of
service substation transformers, replacing T8 light fixtures

In terms of sustained water consumption, some initiatives

with T5 light fixtures with electronic ballasts, the gradual

stand out, such as the monitoring of equipment efficiency,

replacement of mercury vapour lamps with LED lamps,

through the installation of flow meters in all taps, supply

and the replacement of metal halide lamps (400w) with

pressure control, use of efficient flushing cisterns and

T5 fluorescent lamps (2x80W), among others.

machinery and timely identification of leaks.

For 2018, an upgrade is planned for the real-time energy
consumption monitoring system of the Arroteia facilities and
a similar monitoring system will also be installed in Maia.

Emission Management

2016

97.9%

2017

+

98.3%

Environmental training actions
The management policy and commitment to environmental issues is visible in the ongoing
programme that aims at the environmental certification of Efacec’s facilities, according to

In 2017, changes were made to the process of dedusting

ISO guidelines, which determine the implementation of a set of mechanisms to minimise

the insulation cutting area, at the shell transformer factory.

environmental impact, improve infrastructure and strengthen compliance with legal obligations.

The installation of the new dedusting system was intended

In the last quarter of 2017, training was carried out on Environmental Responsibility – Waste,

to increase the aspiration efficiency and substantially

which addressed the main concepts, the waste management model, the importance of waste

reduce particle leaks.

separation and individual contributions, examples and curiosities, as well as an introduction to
the concept of Circular Economy within the scope of the reduction and reuse of raw materials.
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Marketing Sales Day - Porto Business School - Porto, Portugal

MANAGEMENT
SUPPLIER

CHAPTER
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Efacec’s suppliers are key partners in the business value

Efacec has implemented a Supplier Qualification and

All processes handled by the Efacec group are recorded in

chain, playing an important role in several areas:

Evaluation process that aims at establishing partnerships

the EFASST platform, so as to guarantee their auditability

that address the aforementioned aspects.

and transparency. Any award decision takes into account

Through this Supplier Qualification process, potential

a multi-criteria analysis based on technical and commer-

suppliers are invited to present a proposal within the scope

cial aspects.

They help reduce the risk associated with the quality

of the tenders that Efacec launches into the market. In

The Supplier Qualification process often privileges

and reliability of products and solutions;

the first phase, applicants register in the EFASST supplier

applicants geographically close to Efacec’s facilities, in

portal and, in a second phase, there is a collection of the

order to minimise total costs. In 2017, approximately

basic requirements in terms of technical capacity, financial

62% of Efacec’s purchases came from suppliers located

capacity and compliance with legal, quality, environment

in the country where the Efacec entity that gave rise to

They help implement an ecosystem that shares

and safety requirements.

the purchase order was located.

ethical, environmental and social values.

The process takes into account the criticality of the

They help raise the technology level in products
and solutions;

They help optimise the costs of products
and solutions;

purchase/supply category and may give rise to a request
for additional elements necessary for the type-approval of
products, such as prototypes and samples, and to visits/
audits to confirm supplier practices. After the analysis of
the results, the Qualification decision is communicated.
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Launch of the supply chain optimisation project

Efacec supplier indicators (2017)

(Supply Chain), which integrated solutions such as:
3,540 suppliers (global purchases)
establishment of framework agreements
with suppliers (which translate into more

2,385 suppliers in Portugal

business opportunities with qualified partners
and better planning of the purchase needs);

The top 20 supplier countries include the 10 countries where
Efacec is established (Portugal, Angola, Mozambique, India,
Brazil, Ireland, Armenia and Argentina), as a result of the priori-

improvements in the ERP’s traceability

ty given to local purchases

of procurement needs;

establishment of key indicators inherent to the
supply process;

12 %
computer development, with a view to increas-

Improvement projects for 2018

ing automation, cleaning and standardisation
of purchasing items (CleanCode initiative);
HOME COUNTRY

26 %

In 2018, Efacec will continue to introduce improvements in the management of its suppliers, namely

COUNTRIES WITH
EFACEC PRESENCE

review of responsibilities for the activity

OTHER COUNTRIES

of timely delivery;

62 %

in terms of:

Process of transferring special supply requirements
more efficient monitoring of the delivery

from the requisitioning area to the purchasing area

of the purchased material/service.

and, ultimately, to the supplier;

International implementation of the procurement

Issue and approval of purchases under framework

model (Angola, Mozambique, Austria and Romania).

agreements, so as to make the process faster
and more reliable;

Initiatives completed in 2017

Automation of key indicators;

In 2017, under the Efacec 2020 Transformation Programme, and in

Procedure for the centralised validation

order to improve supplier processes, several initiatives have been

of items purchased and updating of the respective

carried out, among which we highlight:

Publication of the Efacec Procurement Manual, which establishes the principles and standard rules to be respected during the
procurement process, as well as the responsibilities of each area
at each stage of the process.

master data;

Implementation of the procurement model in
international geographies where it is still missing;

Billing process.
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2017 was a catastrophic year with regard to
fires in Portugal. The first major fire of the
year affected the town of Pedrógão, consuming
43,201 hectares of forest and destroying 169

CITIZENSHIP
CHAPTER

04 4.5

houses of primary residence [in Observador
newspaper, 3/7/2017]. Efacec, sensitive to

More than 150 employees made this initiative

the willingness of its employees to help the

possible, by volunteering for a 48-hour

affected population, organised a solidarity

operation to assemble 534 school kits (1 st ,

initiative in partnership with the Association

2 nd and 3 rd cycles), which were donated to the

of Relatives of the Victims of Pedrógão Grande

students of the schools of Pedrógão Grande,

(AFVPG), on 10 October.

Figueiró dos Vinhos and Castanheira de Pêra.
On the same day, a team of Efacec employees
accompanied 200 children and young people
to Lisbon, to watch the Portuguese National
Soccer Team play against Switzerland.

EFACEC SEEKS TO ESTABLISH
THE BEST RELATIONS WITH SOCIETY, PARTICULARLY WITH THE

SUPPORT TO
VOLUNTEERING
INITIATIVES

COMMUNITIES IN WHICH IT OPERATES, NAMELY BY SUPPORTING VOLUNTEERING INITIATIVES,

Efacec has had ties with Junior Achievement Portugal
(JA Portugal) since 2007, regularly allowing voluntary
employees to participate in their programmes.

ASSOCIATIONS, SCHOOLS AND
OTHER INSTITUTIONS.

In the 2016/2017 school year, Efacec participated in five
editions of JA Portugal, with a total of 13 volunteers.
Of these volunteers, seven visited schools to conduct
educational sessions for children and young people on
ethics, economics, people and citizenship, while the
remaining six received young people at Efacec, for a first
contact with work.

Efacec Volunteering initiative – Pedrógão, Portugal
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IN 2017, EFACEC PARTICIPATED IN 9 EVENTS ORGANISED BY ASSOCIATIONS, SHARING ITS POINT OF VIEW ON THE BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT.

WHAT IS JA PORTUGAL?
JA Portugal is the Portuguese counterpart of Junior

Participation of Efacec speakers in associative events

Achievement, the largest and oldest worldwide organisation dedicated to entrepreneurship education. JA

ASSOCIATION

Portugal’s mission is to inspire and prepare children and

Associação Portuguesa do Veículo
Eléctrico (Portuguese Association
for Electric Vehicles)

young people to succeed in a global economy, through

EVENT

Conference – Energy and Mobility for Smart Cities

transformative experiences based on three fundamental
pillars: Citizenship and Financial Literacy, Education for
Entrepreneurship and Employability Skills.

SUPPORT TO THE
ASSOCIATIVE MOVEMENT

Portuguese Leasing, Factoring
e Renting Association

in the large number of relationships established, but also in

ECONOMY
FOR SUCCESS:

4

FAMILY

1

COMMUNITY

1

EUROPE AND I

1

RIGHT-HAND MAN

6

the involvement of its employees in events or sponsorships.

Number of Associations
of which Efacec is a member

TYPE OF ASSOCIATION

BUSINESS SUPPORT
SUPPORT AND POMOTION
OF TECHNOLOGY
SOCIAL/CULTURAL

NO. OF
ASSOCIATIONS

Automóveis do Futuro (The Mobility Revolution and
the Motor Vehicles of the future)

Efacec’s support to the associative movement is reflected

NO. OF
VOLUNTEERS

(Industry Challenges in Portugal)
Seminar – A Revolução da Mobilidade e os Veículos

Forum for Competitiveness

PROGRAMME
JA PORTUGAL

Conference – Os Desafios da Indústria em Portugal

Business Council for Sustainable
Development Portugal

Annual Conference / Meet 2030

Portuguese Energy Association

World Energy Week

Association for Renewable Energies

APREN Conference

Associação Portuguesa
de Distribuição e Drenagem de Águas
(Portuguese Association of Water
Distribution and Drainage)

National Meeting of Water
and Sanitation Management Entities

22
AIP Foundation

Green Business Week

Portuguese Association of Industrial
Management and Engineering

Dinner and Debate

30

6
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SUPPORT TO UNIVERSITIES AND OTHER SCHOOLS
In addition to several Research and Development projects involving partnerships between Efacec and several schools,

OTHER RELEVANT
PARTICIPATIONS
IN PUBLIC EVENTS

Efacec has participated in several initiatives in the academic world.

Participation of Efacec speakers in associative events

SCHOOL

Efacec also participated in other public events, in which

EVENT/ COLLABORATION

it shared its policies and gave its opinions on the context
Porto Business School

Conversas com… (Talks with...)

Porto Business School

Cycle of Seminars on Management
Control

Porto Business School

of its business.

XII Executive Digest Conference

Católica Porto Business
School

XII Conferência
da Executive Digest

University of Porto

Startup FEST

University of Porto

Gala da Inovação (Innovation Gala)

University of Porto

FEUP Career Fair

REN Award

Support TO the participation
University of Porto

of FEUP students in the REXUS
(Rocket EXperiments for University
Students) programme

We should also note that Efacec has significantly increased the number of internships.
Indeed, as of 31 December 2017, Efacec had

University of Minho

FICIS 2017

91 trainees integrated into its activities,
which represents an increase of around 100%

Instituto Superior
Técnico (Higher
Technical Institute)

Job Shop – Event organised by AEIST

University of Porto
and University of Vigo

Finde.u.up

over 2016.

ORGANISING
ENTITY

EVENT

HUMAN RESOURCES
MAGAZINE

HUMAN RESOURCES
CONFERENCES

VEXPO

VEXPO INDUSTRY
4.0

NATIONAL
ELECTRICAL
UTILITIES

REN AWARD
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INVESTMENT IN THE COMMUNITY:
DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS
As usual, in 2017, Efacec provided financial support to events and entities that were considered most relevant
in their context.

Financial support

TYPE
Donation

REASON

BENEFICIARY ENTITY

Status of the associate

Serralves Foundation

Concert in benefit of Syrian students

Casa da Música Foundation

Grand Conference 2017

Porto Business School

Meet 2030

Business Council for Sustainable
Development (Portugal)

Portuguese Film Festival (Maputo)

Various entities

Wastes 2017 Conference

Waste Recovery Centre

IREP 2017

Instituto de Engenharia de Sistemas
e Computadores, Tecnologia
e Ciência (Systems Engineering,
Computers, Technology and Science
Institute)

Gala da Inovação (Innovation Gala)

University of Porto

Sponsorship

10 International Technical Waste Days

Associação Portuguesa
de Engenharia Sanitária e Ambiental
(Portuguese Association of Sanitary
and Environmental Engineering)

World Energy Council 2017

Portuguese Energy Association

13 th National Congress

Associação Portuguesa para
o Desenvolvimento de Sistemas
de Transporte Integrados
(Portuguese Association for
the Development of Integrated
Transport Systems)

Porto Water Innovation Week

Portuguese Water Partnership
and other entities

th

3D model – Business segments
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5.2

INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

390

5.3

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS: ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

434

5.4

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM CERTIFICATIONS

440

5.5

STATUTORY AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHAPTER
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C O N S O L I D A T E D
F I N A N C I A L S TA T E M E N T S

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
NOTES

MONETARY VALUES ARE EXPRESSED IN EUROS

2017

2016

ASSETS
Non current assets
Tangible fixed assets

5

72,150,155

Intangible fixed assets

6

86,459,121

82,949,642

Goodwill

7

120,242,439

120,158,240

0

1,200

8

316,132

26,132

Financial investments
Financial assets held for sale

39,603,605

Debtors and deferred costs

11

1,000,000

0

Deferred tax assets

18

56,016,276

57,053,564

336,184,123

299,792,382

Total non current assets
Current assets
Assets held for sale
Inventories
Customers and accrued income

0

186,455

12

29,106,894

36 264,015
239 387,332

10

244,560,917

28.2

724,605

724,605

Debtors and deferred costs

11

30,259,747

31,081,122

Income tax

11

365,309

1,755,538

9

995,006

0

Loans to related parties

Financial derivative instruments
Cash and cash equivalents

31,148,216

29,024,861

Total current asset

13

337,160,694

338,423,926

Total assets

673,344,817

638,216,308

285 874,030

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital

14.1

314,235,160

Share premium

14.2

1,947,730

8,000,000

Other equity instruments

14.3

35,900,000

35,900,000

Reserves and retained earnings

14.4

-2,672,500

-16,255,969

Other accumulated comprehensive income

14.5

-3,611,455

-4,252,498

21

-78,244

-117,968

345,720,692

309,147,595

Minority Interests
Total Equity
Non current liabilities
Provisions

19

11,892,451

12,264,625

Bank Loans

17

57,306,624

70,544,456

Suppliers

15

7,121

19,017

Deferred tax liabilities

18
Total non current liabilities

22,009,762

22,382,876

91,215,958

105,210,974

Current liabilities
Bank Loans

17

13,367,561

2,872,165

Suppliers

15

109,794,767

85,783,287

Creditors and accrued costs

16

42,411,242

55,474,604

Deferred income

20

70,692,095

79,184,498

9

142,502

543,187

Total current liabilities

236,408,167

223,857,740

Total Equity and Liabilities

673,344,817

638,216,308

Financial derivative instruments

The consolidation Director

The Board of Directors

Attached notes hereafter are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Equity

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

300

2 0 1 7

301

C O N S O L I D A T E D
F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

MONETARY VALUES ARE EXPRESSED IN EUROS

Sales and services rendered

NOTES

27 e 32

Cost of sales and material consumed
Change in production
External supplies and Services

22.1

Staff Costs

2017

2016

431,886,771

437,954,175

-198,635,735

-209,694,892

-3,149,216

2 ,012,775

-121,332,255

-120,937,441

-85,730,375

-83,459,897

-925,635

-16,308,637

MONETARY VALUES ARE EXPRESSED IN EUROS

2017

2016

7,545,937

4,309,966

Change in currency translation reserve

196,489

-3,162,641

Change in the fair value of derivative financial instr.

585,761

-16,268

782,250

-3,178,909

0

0

782,250

-3,178,909

Consolidated Net Profit

(1)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items reclassifiable for results :

Costs with contracts termination

22.2

Amortization and depreciation

5e6

-8,178,990

-9,039,648

Provisions and assets impairment

22.3

-6,907,171

-2,029,128

Other operating costs

22.4

-5,496,667

-3,558,533

Other comprehensive income for the year

Other operating income

22.4

16,059,081

17,190,013

Tax on Other Comprehensive Income

17,589,807

12,128,785

Change in the fair value of derivative financial instr.

-131,796

3,660

Financial losses and costs

23

-7,367,475

-7,310,618

Tax on Other Comprehensive Income

-131,796

3,660

Financial gains and income

23

433,011

223,090

10,655,343

5,041,257

650,454

-3,175,249

8,196,391

1,134,717

8,165,998

1,151,880

30,393

-17,163

Operating profit

Profit before taxes
Income tax - Deferred

24

-439,051

3,167,308

Income tax - Current

24

-2,670,355

-3,223,311

Results of discontinued operations

4.4

0

-675,287

7,545,937

4,309,966

Consolidated Net Profit

Items not reclassifiable for results

Other net comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

(2)

(1)+(2)

Attributable to:
Shareholders of Efacec Power Solutions

Attributable to:

Minority interests

Shareholders of Efacec Power Solutions

25

7,524,955

4,309,736

Minority Interests

21

20,982

230

Basic

25

0,13

0,08

Diluted

25

0,13

0,08

Net profit per share

Attached notes hereafter are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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C O N S O L I D A T E D
F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

MONETARY VALUES ARE
EXPRESSED IN EUROS

Balance as at 1 January 2016

SHARE CAPITAL

285,874 030

ISSUE PREMIUM

OTHER CAPITAL
INSTRUM.

8,000,000

35,900,000

Comprehensive income for
the year

RESERVES

FINANCIAL

AND RETAINED

INSTRUMENTS

EARNINGS

RESERVES

EXCHANGE
DIFFERENCE

INCOME

MINORITY

TOTAL EQUITY

INTERESTS

-19,894,387

0

-1,094,642

-1,094,642

-102,559

308,682,442

4,309,736

-12,608

-3,145,248

-3,157 856

-17,163

1,134,717

0

1,754

-669,564

-671,318

Other

OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE

Balance as at 31 December
2016

285,874,030

8,000,000

35,900,000

-16,255,969

-12,608

-4,239,890

-4,252,498

-117,968

309,147,595

Balance as at 1 January 2017

285,874,030

8,000,000

35,900,000

-16,255,969

-12,608

-4,239,890

Increase in Capital

28,361,130
-6,052,270

Loss coverage (Note 14.2)
Comprehensive income for
the year

309,147,595

0

28,361,130

6,052,270

0

0

0

641,043

30,393

8,196,391

0

9,332

15,577

-3,611,455

-78,244

345,720,692

453,965

187,079

6,245
314,235,160

1,947,730

Attached notes hereafter are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidation Director

-117,968

0

7,524,955

Other
Balance as at 31 December
2017

-4,252,498

0

35,900,000

-2,672,500

441,357

-4,052,811

Attached notes hereafter are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
2017

2016

Accounts receivable

402,032,980

481,726,460

Accounts payable

313,116,077

386,663,680

88,579,558

92,736,174

337,346

2,326,606

Efacec Power Solutions SGPS, S.A. (“Efacec Power Solutions” or “EPS”) is a limited liability company

MONETARY VALUES ARE EXPRESSED IN EUROS

NOTES

ASSET
Operating Activities

Paid to staff
Cash Flow generated by Activities

A. General Information

(1,626,862)

(2,810,171)

with registered offices at Arroteia, Parish of Leça do Balio, Guifões and Custóias, Municipality of

Other receipts / payments related to operating activities

12,295,565

9,981,727

Matosinhos, Portugal. EPS was incorporated on August 14, 2014, having as object the management

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

11,006,049

9,498,161

of shareholdings as an indirect form of performing economic activities. The incorporation of Efacec

Payment / receipt of income tax

[1]

Power Solutions was part of the restructuring process that Efacec Capital, SGPS, SA ( “Efacec Capital”)
Investing Activities

initiated from the end of 2013 in order to align the corporate structure of the Efacec Group with

Inflows:

covered market segments and target geographies. At the end of 2014, Efacec Power Solutions became

Financial investments

0

474,371

Investment subsidies

6,599,736

3,486,546

411,420

72,278

7,011,156

4,033,196

Interests and similar income

itself a group of companies that gather all the means of production, technologies and technological
and human skills for the development of activities in the fields of Energy, Engineering, Environment,
Transportation and Electric Mobility solutions. The EPS Group also covers a wide network of branches
and agents across 4 continents.

Outflows:
Tangible assets
Cash flow from Investing Activities

[2]

294,828

1,200

7,579,978

1,828,272

On 23 October 2015, the EPS Group experienced a change in its shareholder structure, the majority of

7,874,805

1,829,472

the capital of Efacec Power Solutions being held by the company Winterfell 2 Limited (“Winterfell 2”).

(863,649)

2,203,723

Financing Activities
Inflows:
Obtained / granted non current loans
Obtained / granted current loans

16,342

0

23,791,096

18,975,744

23,807,438

18,975,744

Outflows:
Obtained / granted current loans
Amortization of financial lease
Interests and similar expenses
Cash flow from financing activities

[3]

Change in cash and cash equivalents [D]-[A]-[B]-[C]=[1]+[2]+[3]
Impact of exchange rates [A]
Impact of change in perimeter [B]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year [C]
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [D]

The consolidation Director

13

The Board of Directors

27,012,297

30,352,275

63,507

149,666

3,409,176

9,440,529

30,484,979

39,942,470

(6,677,542)

(20,966,727)

3,464,858

(9,264,843)

(1,364,360)

181,384

22,857

0

29,024,861

38,108,319

31,148,216

29,024,861

Attached Notes hereafter are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

Financial investments

The activities of the EPS Group companies include an extensive range of products with high technological level. This diversity, with skills at production and engineering levels, enables it to provide
technical solutions to a very wide range of business sectors, in domestic and foreign markets.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018. The Board
Directors who sign this report declare that, to the best of their knowledge, the information contained
herein was prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted
by the European Union, which give a true and fair view of the EPS Group consolidated financial
statement, results and cash flows.

The financial information is expressed in euros, which is the functional and reporting currency of
the Group entities, unless otherwise stated.
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B. Accounting policies
1. SUMMARY OF THE PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

307

DESCRIPTION

CHANGES

C O N S O L I D A T E D
F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S

EFFECTIVE
DATE

1. Effective amendments to standards as at 1 January 2017

The accounting policies used are in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) in force during each financial year. They are disclosed in subsequent notes that have been

IAS 7 – Cash flow statement

Reconciliation of changes in financing liabilities with Cash
flows for financing activities

01/01/2017

IAS 12 – Income taxes

Accounting for deferred tax assets on assets measured at
fair value, the impact of deductible temporary differences
in future taxable income estimates and the impact of
restrictions on the recoverability of deferred tax assets

01/01/2017

applied by Efacec Power Solutions since its incorporation, and have also been applied consistently,
every year, by the subsidiaries. Nevertheless, standards, interpretations and revisions issued by
the various bodies that oversee the implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IASB, IASC, SIC and IFRIC, when applicable to the EPS Group, are adopted during the period they
become mandatory.

2. Standards (new and amendments) that will become effective, on or after 1 January 2018, endorsed by the EU
1.1 Basis of preparation
IFRS 9 – Financial instruments

New standard for the accounting of financial instruments’

01/01/2018

IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts
with customers

Revenue recognition for the provision of goods or services,
following a five step approach

01/01/2018

IFRS 16 – Leases

New definition of lease. New accounting of lease contracts to
lessees. No major changes to lessors lease accounting.

IFRS 4 – Applying IFRS 4 with IFRS 9

Temporary exemption for insurance companies only, from
applying IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2021.
Overlay approach for assets within IFRS 4 that qualify as
FVTPL under IFRS 9 and at amortised cost under IAS 39,
being the measurement difference reclassified to OCI.

Amendments to IFRS 15 - Revenue
from contracts with customers

Identification of performance obligations, timing of revenue
recognition from licenses of IP, change to principle versus
agent guidance, and new practical expedients on transition

The consolidated financial statements of Efacec Power Solutions were prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in force since 1 January 2017, as adopted by
the European Union.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared taking into account the historical cost
convention, except for land, financial assets and financial liabilities, (including derivatives instruments) which are recorded at their fair value. Additionally, production equipment located in industrial
facilities in Portugal are also recorded at the fair value, as a result of the valuation made within the
acquisition of financial investments in the incorporation process of EPS (refer to Note 5.1).

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
requires the use of some important accounting estimates. It also requires that the Governing Bodies
practice their judgment in the process applied to the accounting policies of the EPS Group. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2.

The standards, interpretations and revisions issued by the different bodies that oversee the implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards - IASB, IASC, SIC and IFRIC - are listed below,
together with the date of application and approval by the European Union.

01/01/2019

01/01/2018
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CHANGES
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EFFECTIVE
DATE

C O N S O L I D A T E D
F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S

1.2 Consolidation

3. Standards (new and amendments) and interpretations that will become effective, on or after 1 January 2018, not yet
endorsed by the EU

1.2.1. Subsidiaries

3.1 – Standards

power to govern the financial and operating policies generally represented by more than half of the

Annual improvements to IFRS
2014 - 2016

Clarifications to IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28

01-01-2017/
/01-01-2018

IAS 40 – Investment property

Clarification that evidence of the change in use is required,
when assets are transferred to, or from investment
properties category

01/01/2018

IFRS 2 – Share-based payments

Measurement of cash-settled share-based payments,
accounting for modifications and classification as equitysettled share-based payments when employer withholds tax

01/01/2018

IFRS 9 – Financial instruments

Accounting treatment options for financial assets with
negative compensation features

01/01/2019

IAS 28 – Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Clarification regarding long-term investments in associates
and joint ventures that are not being measured through the
equity method

01/01/2019

Annual improvements
to IFRS 2015 - 2017

Clarifications: IAS 23, IAS 12, IFRS 3, IFRS 11

01/01/2019

IFRS 17 – Insurance contracts

New accounting for insurance contracts, reinsurance
contracts and investment contracts with discretionary
participation characteristics.

01/01/2021

Subsidiaries are all entities (including Special Purpose Entities) over which the EPS Group has the

voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights, either currently exercisable or
convertible, are taken into consideration when assessing whether the EPS Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the EPS
Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The cost of an acquisition is measured by the fair value of the assets, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed on the date of acquisition, plus all costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values on the date of acquisition, regardless of the existence of any minority interest. The
excess of acquisition cost plus the share of minority interests over the fair value of acquired assets
and liabilities, or alternatively, increased by the fair value of minority interests share in the acquired
subsidiary, in relation to the fair value of the total net assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiary,
is recorded as goodwill (note 1.5.1). If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the acquired subsidiary, the difference is recognized directly in the Income Statement.

Transactions, balances and gains that were not realized with transactions carried out between

3.2 - Interpretations

companies of the EPS Group are written of. Unrealized losses are also eliminated, except if the transaction reveals evidence of impairment of a transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have

IFRIC 22 – Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration

Foreign exchange rate to apply when consideration is paid
or received in advance

01/01/2018

IFRIC 23 – Uncertainty over income tax
treatments

Clarifies how the recognition and measurement
requirements of IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’, are applied where
there is uncertainty over income tax treatments

01/01/2019

been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the EPS Group.

The amount concerning minority interests is included in Equity. Transactions with “minority interests”
are recorded in Equity, when there is no change in the control over the Entity, meaning that goodwill
or gains or losses are not recorded. When there is a loss of control over the entity, any interest
resulting from the entity is re-measured to the fair value, meaning that the gain or loss is recognized
in the results of the financial year.

The possible impacts of adopting some of these standards are still under analysis, namely
with respect to the application of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16, therefore up to this date
it is not possible to quantify the respective impacts.

The list of subsidiaries included in the scope of consolidation is shown in Note 4, as well as changes
to the perimeter verified in the financial year.
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Associates

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

Associates are all entities over which the EPS Group has significant influence but no control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associ-

JOINT VENTURES

JOINT -OPERATIONS

ates are accounted by using the equity method and are initially recognized at cost. The EPS Group’s
investment in associates includes the goodwill (deducted from accumulated impairment losses)
identified on acquisition (see Note 1.5.1).

The EPS Group’s share in associates’ post-acquisition profits and losses is recognized in the Income
Statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in reserves as

Existence of a separate vehicle
entity

Appropriation of assets/
liabilities and income/costs

counterpart of the financial investment’s book value. When the EPS Group’s share in losses of an

Yes

No

The controlling parties
have joint rights over the
net assets of the JV

The controlling parties
have joint rights over the
assets and joint obligations
on liabilities

Equity method

Line-by-line accounting of
assets/liabilities, profits/
costs

associate equals or exceeds its investment in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the EPS Group does not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the acquired associates, the
difference is recognized directly in the Income Statement.

The goodwill identified on acquisition of associates, deducted from accumulated impairment losses,
is recorded under the heading “Investments in Associates”.

An evaluation of investments in associates is triggered whenever there are signs that the asset could
be impaired. Impairment losses are recorded as costs under the same item. When impairment losses
recognized in previous periods cease to exist, they are reversed, with the exception of goodwill.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the EPS Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the EPS Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of Associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the EPS Group.

1.2.3. Joint arrangements
A norma internacional de contabilidade IFRS.11 qualifica os investimentos controlados conjunta-

In 2014, the EPS Group adopted the IFRS.11, and held a case-by-case analysis of the contracts of
all entities with which it maintains interests. In the cases where the arrangements were classified
as joint operations, their accounts have been integrated line-by-line in proportion to the equity
holding in each of them; where the clusters were considered joint ventures, investment is recorded
at equity method.

1.2.4. Transactions policy between entities under joint control
There are no accounting policies set out in international standards for transactions between entities
under common control, where the parent company retains control of the transferred subsidiary
before and after the transactions are realized. In its absence, the management takes into account
the requirements and guidelines of other standards that address similar issues, having opted for the
purchase method of IFRS 3R, this legislation being fully implemented (see Note 1.2.1). There were
no such transactions during the 2017 financial year.

mente The accounting international standard IFRS 11 describes jointly controlled investments as
joint-operations or as joint-ventures. For the determination of the applicable standards and method
of accounting, the IASB guidelines now require a careful analysis of the incorporation contracts and
statutes of the existing or future entities.
To determine the recognition of an investment as a joint arrangement, the main parameters of
analysis are:
Existence or not of a separate vehicle entity
Statutory ruler regarding decision-making
Ownership of assets / liabilities and income / costs

1.3 Foreign currency exchange
1.3.1 Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the Financial Statements of each of the EPS Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Euro, which is the company’s
functional and EPS Group’s presentation currency.
Currency exchange differences arising from operating activities of the EPS Group are recorded in
the income statement as expenses or operating income. If exchange differences are due to financial
operations, they are recorded as financial results.
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1.3.2 Balances and Transactions

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is calculated by the straight-line method, on a

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates

monthly basis on the cost or revaluation, in order to allocate their cost or revalued amount to their

prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the

residual value, depending on their estimated useful lives, as follows:

settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the Income Statement.
ITEM

YEARS

1.3.3 Group companies
25 – 50

The results and the financial position of all the EPS Group’s entities (none of which has currencies

Buildings and other construction

of a hyper-inflationary economy) which have a functional currency different from the presentation

Plant and Equipment

currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

Vehicles

4–5

Tools and Utensils

4–8

Office Equipment

4–6

(i) Assets and liabilities for each presented Balance Sheet are translated at the exchange rate in

8 – 16

force on the date of the Financial Statements;
(ii) Income and expenses for each Income Statement are translated at average Exchange rates; and
(iii) The exchange differences arising on translating the individual financial statements of the
companies included in the consolidation are recognized in Equity, under the caption «Reserves».

The depreciation process starts in the month following the month in which the asset is brought into
operation.

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the closing

1.4 Tangible Assets
Land and buildings consist primarily of factories and offices. Land is stated at fair value based on
at least three-year periodic reviews, performed by independent external evaluators. Other tangible
assets are stated at historical cost, less depreciation, including all expenditures directly attributable
to the acquisition of property. Following the acquisition of companies by Efacec Power Solutions,
industrial equipment was revalued.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the company and the cost can be measured
reliably. The other repairs and maintenance costs are recognized as expenses in the period they incur.

According to accounting policies of the EPS Group for determining the fair value, land is subject to
triennial evaluations by independent experts. Evaluations rely on using the criteria of market comparison and substitution costs. Revaluations are recognized in equity, net of the related deferred tax.
Depreciations, if any, are deducted from equity within the limits of the revaluation reserves existing
for the same assets. Profit is recognized through the excess of that limit.

When tangible assets recorded at fair value are disposed, the amount included in revaluation reserves
is transferred to retained earnings.

date of financial statement. If the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the asset, it
is immediately adjusted to the estimated recoverable amount (Nota 1.6).

Gains and / or losses on disposals and write-offs are determined by the difference between their
carrying amount and value of sale or write-off, being in the latter case null and included in Income
for the period.

1.5 Intangible Assets
1.5.1 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities from the subsidiary on the date of acquisition (Note 1.2), being included in the
respective item of the consolidated financial statement.

Goodwill is subject to impairment tests on an annual basis and is stated at cost, less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains or losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the same.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the entity and converted at the closing exchange rate, if the functional
currency is other than the euro.
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Goodwill is allocated to cash flow generating units (CGU) to perform impairment tests (Note 2.1). The

For carrying out impairment tests, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which it is possible to

recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on the value in use calculations. These calculations

identify separately cash flows (units generating cash flows).

use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the management, covering a period
of at least 4 years. Under certain conditions, some CGU can be grouped, when there is a high level

1.7 Financial assets

of business dependence on one or more CGU in respect of another integrator CGU, with respect to
technical, financial, commercial, or the ability to hire new business with the its customers.

1.7.1 Rating
The EPS Group classifies its financial assets according to the following categories: financial assets at

EPS Group’s Governing Bodies determine the budgeted operating margin based on past performance

fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, financial assets held to maturity and financial

and its expectations for market development. The weighted average growth rate used is consistent

assets available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets

with the forecasts included in industry reports. The discount rates used are before taxes and reflect

were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

specific risks relating to the relevant segments.
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

1.5.2 Software
The acquisition cost of software licenses is capitalized and includes all costs incurred in acquiring
and putting the software available for use. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful life
(not exceeding 5 years). The costs associated with the development or maintenance of software are

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also classified under this category unless designated for hedging. Currently, the EPS
Group holds 418 thousand euros classified under this type of financial assets.

recognized as expenses when incurred.
(b) Loans and Receivables
Costs directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software controlled by the Group
and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized
as intangible assets. Direct costs include personnel costs employed in software development and the
share of relevant costs. Development costs of software recognized as assets are amortized over their

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans granted and receivables are classified as current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the closing date of the financial year, in which
case these are classified as non-current assets.

estimated useful lives (not exceeding 5 years).
(c) Financial assets held to maturity

1.5.3 Research and Development Expenses

Currently, the EPS Group has no financial assets held to maturity.

Expenditure on research is recognized as an expense when incurred. Costs incurred on development
projects (relating to the design or test of new products and enhancements on existing products) are
recognized as intangible assets when it is probable that the group will obtain economic benefits,
considering its commercial and technological feasibility, and costs can be measured reliably. Other
expenditures for development are recognized as expenses when incurred. Development costs previously
recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset in subsequent periods. Development costs with

(d) Financial assets available for sale
Financial assets available for sale (Note 8) are non-derivative financial assets that are not essential
to the continued operation of the EPS Group. These financial assets are classified as non-current,
unless the assets expire or if management intends to sell them within 12 months after the reporting
date.

a set useful life that have been capitalized are amortized from the start-up of commercial production
of the product on a straight-line basis over the period of its expected benefit, not exceeding five years.

1.7.2 Recognition and measurement
Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade date - the date on which the EPS

1.6 Impairment of non-financial assets, except Goodwill

group commits itself to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognized at fair value
plus transaction costs, unless classified at fair value through profit and loss. Financial assets at fair

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization but are the object of annual

value through the income assets are initially recognized at fair value and their transaction costs

impairment tests. Assets subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or

recorded in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive

changes in circumstances indicate that the value at which they are accounted may not be recoverable.

their cash flows expire, or at the time the risks and benefits of ownership are transferred. Financial

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount of the excess of the carrying amount of the asset to

assets available for sale and financial assets at fair value through the income assets are subsequently

its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher between the fair value of an asset less

measured at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using

costs to sell and value in use. When determining the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are

the method of effective interest rate.

discounted using a discount rate that reflects the current market reviews and specific risk of the asset.
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Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of financial assets classified under the category

The criteria used by the EPS group to determine whether there is objective evidence of an impair-

of fair value through profit or loss, are recorded in the Income Statement as ‘Financial Costs’ in the

ment loss include:

period in which they occur.

Significant financial difficulties of the issuer or debtor;
Breach of contract provisions, such as payment of interest or capital;

Customer’s account receivables and other debtors are initially recognized at their nominal value or

The possibility that the borrower will file bankruptcy or financial restructuring;

fair value, if different, less any impairment loss.

The disappearance of an active market for the financial asset in question for reasons of financial
distress, or

Customer’s amounts receivable are derecognized when, substantially, transferred to another entity

Observable data, indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a

all the significant risks and rewards associated with the cash flows of the financial asset benefits.

portfolio of financial assets, having this decrease occurred after the initial recognition of those assets,

If the entity retains its exposure to the total variability in the present value of future net cash flows

but still not being attributed to individual financial assets. These data include:

associated with the financial asset, there is not a de-recognition of the asset.

(i) Adverse state of those portfolio debtors in meeting payments, and
(ii) National or local economic conditions that correlate with failure to pay for the assets in the portfolio.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impairment is recorded, the cumulative
value of adjustments to fair value recognized in fair value reserves is recognized in the income

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the value at which the asset is

statement as “Gains or losses in other companies”.

measured and the current estimate of future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been registered) discounted at the effective interest rate. The value to which the asset is measured

Interest on securities account classified as available for sale are calculated using the effective interest

is reduced, and the amount of the loss is recognized in the income statement. In practice, the EPS

method, and recognized in the income statement under the heading “Other income”.

Group can measure the amount of impairment based on the fair value of the instrument, using an
observable market price. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases

Dividends of shares available for sale are recognized in the income statement upon the determination

and the decrease can be objectively attributed to an event occurring after the impairment was

of the right to them by the Group.

recorded (such as improved credit rating of the debtor), then the previously recognized impairment
is reversed in the income statement.

1.7.3 Presentation by net value
Financial assets and liabilities are presented in the financial statement on a net basis when there is

(c) Assets classified as available for sale

a legal right to compensate them for this value, as well as the intention to do so.

The EPS Group analyses at each date of its consolidated balance sheet whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, it is used

1.7.4 Impairment of financial assets

the criteria described above in (a). In the case of equity instruments of other entities classified as

(a) Loans and receivables

available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of shares relative to their costs

The adjustment for impairment of account receivables is recorded when there is objective evidence

also constitute evidence of impairment. If such evidence exists for assets available for sale, the

that the EPS Group did not receive all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The

cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the fair value at date,

adjustment amount is the difference between the displayed value and the present estimated value

less any impairment loss previously recognized through profit and loss account for the financial asset

of future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The adjustment value is recognized

in question - is removed from equity and recognized in the income statement. Impairment losses

in the income statement.

recognized in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt security rated available for sale increas-

(b) Assets carried at amortized cost

es and the increase can be objectively attributed to an event occurring after the impairment loss

The EPS Group assesses at each date of its Financial Statement whether a financial asset or group

was recognized in the income, then the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

of financial assets is impaired. If financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired, impairment
losses are recorded only when there is objective evidence thereof as a result of one or more events

The EPS Group checks whether there is objective evidence of impairment of any financial invest-

that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event) and that such an event (or

ment at each date of its consolidated balance sheet. If there is such evidence, the accumulated loss,

events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows produced by the asset or group of assets

calculated by the difference between the gross book value and the current fair value, is recognized

that can be reliably estimated

in the income statement in the accounting period in which the impairment is verified.
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1.8 Accounting for financial instruments - derivatives and hedging

Amounts accumulated in equity are subsequently recognized in the income statement in the period in

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date in which their contractual arrangements

which the instrument affects the income statement (for example, when a transaction of a forecast-

take part, being subsequently measured at fair value. The method by which the changes in fair value

ed hedged sale occurs). The gain or loss on the value of interest rate swaps, to cover variable rate

are recognized depends on the designation (or not) of this derivative as a hedging instrument and,

loans is recognized in the income statement as “Net financial costs.” The gain or loss relating to the

in the case of so being appointed, the nature of the hedged item. The Group designates certain

effective amount of derivatives exchange rate is recognized in the income statement as “Net financial

derivatives as: (1) hedges of the fair value of assets, liabilities or firm commitments recognized (fair

costs.” The gain or loss relating to the effective amount of derivatives on the price of commodities is

value hedge), (2) hedging of a particular risk associated with an asset, liability or a highly probable

recognized in the income statement as “Cost of goods sold and materials used.” The gain or loss on

transaction (hedging of cash flows).

the ineffective amount is recognized in the income statement as “Net financial costs.”

For each transaction, and at its origin, the EPS Group prepares documentation justifying the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, as well as the risk management objective

When a hedging instrument reaches maturity, when it is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the

and strategy for hedging transactions, being also documented either on the trade date of hedging,

requirements for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss recorded in registered capital will

or on a continuous basis, its analysis of the effectiveness with which the hedging instrument offsets

remain that way, being recognized in the income statement when the forecast transaction also is.

changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged instruments. In accordance with IAS 39, the fair

When the occurrence of the forecasted transaction is no longer probable, the cumulative gain or loss

value of option Type derivatives is separated in its intrinsic value and its time value, given that only

recorded in equity is immediately transferred to the income statement as financial income or costs.

the intrinsic value of these instruments may be designated as a hedging instrument. Thus, tests of
validity of the derived type option only include the intrinsic value of these instruments.
The fair value of derivatives used for hedging purposes, when they exist, is disclosed in proper Note.
Movements in the hedging reserve are shown in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. The

1.8.3 Derivatives not qualified for hedging
Certain derivatives do not meet the hedging criteria. Changes in their fair value are recognized
immediately in the income statement as financial income or cost.

full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as non-current asset or liability when the remaining
maturity of the hedged instrument is greater than 12 months and as a current asset or liability when

1.9 Inventories

it is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are classified as current assets or liabilities.
Inventories are recorded at the lowest of cost between the cost and the net realizable value. With

1.8.1 Fair value hedge

regard to raw materials, the cost correspond to the acquisition cost. With regard to finished goods

Changes in fair value of derivatives that are assignable and classified as fair value hedge instruments

and products under manufacture (Note 12), the cost is calculated using the standard cost (that does

are recognized in the income statement together with changes in the fair value of the assets or hedged

not deviate significantly from the actual cost of production), and the cost of these products includes

liabilities attributable to the hedged risk.

raw material costs, labor, direct labor, other direct costs and general expenses of production (based
on normal production capacity). The costs of loans obtained are not considered.

If the hedging relationship ceases to meet the criteria for hedge accounting, then the adjustment to
the carrying amount of the hedged item, for which is used the effective rate method, is amortized
over the period extending until maturity.

The cost of inventories includes the equity transfer of any gain or loss classified as cash flow hedges
related to the purchase of raw materials.

1.8.2 Coverage of Cash Flows
The effective amount of the change in fair value of derivatives assignable and classified as cash

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less variable

flow hedges is recognized in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective amount of the loss is

selling costs.

immediately recognized in the income statement.

1.10 Cash and cash equivalents

The item ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ includes cash, bank deposits and other short-term investments
with high liquidity. Bank overdrafts are presented in the consolidated balance sheet in the current
liabilities, under the heading “Loans”.
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Income tax include current tax and deferred tax, and it is obtained by the sum of tax estimates
calculated by the companies forming the EPS Group.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Additional costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

Current tax is calculated based on current tax law, or substantially prevailing at the date of the financial

deduction, net of tax, of capital inflows.

statement in countries where the subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income.
The management of the Group periodically reviews its analysis in this area and recognizes provisions

1.12 Debts to Financial Institutions and Related Parties

for probable tax contingencies for cases under review, as well as possible adjustments made by tax
authorities. These provisions are recorded at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Loans obtained are initially recognized at their nominal value. Loans are subsequently stated at
amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the amortized

Deferred tax is calculated based on the value of temporary differences between the carrying amounts

value is recognized in the income statement over the period of the loan using the effective interest

of assets and liabilities and their tax base. However, deferred tax is not recorded if it occurs from

rate method.

the initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction, which does not constitute a business
combination that at the time of the transaction does not affect the income and costs, not accounting

Loans obtained are classified as current liabilities unless the EPS Group has an unconditional right

or not taxable. Deferred tax is determined in the light of current legislation and rates, or substantively

to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the date of the financial statement

in force at the reporting date, and are expected to apply when performing the deferred tax asset or

closing date.

settlement of the deferred tax liability.

Interests and other financial charges related to loans are generally recognized as expenses in

Deferred tax assets are recognized only when the existence of future taxable income is expected,

accordance with the accrual accounting principle.

under which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Interests and other financial charges on loans, which are directly related to the acquisition, construc-

Assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented in the financial statement at net value when there

tion or production of fixed assets, are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. The capitalization

is a legally enforceable right to offset current assets and deferred tax liabilities by this amount,

begins after the start of preparation of the construction or development of the asset and stops when

and where assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same taxation

the asset is ready for use or when the project is suspended. Any income earned on loans, directly

authority on the same taxable entity or different entities when there is an intention to settle the

related to a specific investment is deducted from financial costs eligible for capitalization.

amounts on a net basis.

1.13 Payables to suppliers and other creditors

Deferred taxes are classified as non-current, as shown in the balance sheet.

Payables to suppliers and other creditors are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently

1.15 Provisions

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The suppliers’ bills are classified as

Provisions are measured at fair value of the costs that are expected to occur in order to settle the

current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the

obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects the time value of money, as well as specific risks to the

business if longer). If not, the suppliers’ bills are presented as non-current liabilities.

liability, as assigned by market. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

1.14 Income Tax and Deferred Taxes

The EPS Group recognizes provisions for onerous contracts when the costs to be incurred to meet
the contractual obligations exceed the economic benefits estimated, contract by contract, according

Efacec Power Solutions and its national subsidiaries are subject to the Tax Consolidation Regime

to estimates of the responsible staff for works / projects.

(RETGS) applicable to groups that include companies in which they hold shares of 75% or above and
which comply with the conditions of Article 63 of the Corporate Income Tax Code. The consolidat-

1.16 Recognition of revenue

ed tax is determined by the arithmetic sum of the taxable gains and losses as determined by each
company on an individual basis.

Revenue comprises the fair value of sales of goods and services, net of taxes and trade discounts,
and after elimination of internal sales.
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Revenues are recognized at fair value of the amount received or receivable for the sale of goods
and services in the ordinary course of business of the EPS Group. Revenues are recognized at net
value of the amount of value added tax, returns and discounts and after intra-group revenues have
been eliminated.

The EPS Group recognizes revenue when the amount can be measured reliably, when it is probable
that future economic benefits give input on the entity and when specific criteria are met for each of
the its activities as described below. The EPS Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, as well as the transaction type and its characteristics.

1.16.1 Sales
The recognition of revenue occurs when the product is delivered and accepted by the customer and
when the payment of the related accounts receivable is reasonably assured.

1.16.2 Provision of Services
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1.17 Leases
Leases are classified as operating leases if a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
is retained by the lessor. Payments for operating leases are charged to the income statement at the
time of their settlement.

Leases of tangible assets, where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
are classified as financial leases. Financial leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the
lowest value between the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the outstanding liability and finance charges so
as to achieve a constant rate on the outstanding debt. Lease obligations, net of finance charges, are
included under Suppliers. This interest is driven to financial expenses in the period of the lease so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining debt in each period. The tangible
assets acquired through finance leases are depreciated over the shortest of the useful life of the
asset or the lease term.

The provision of services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are provided
and invoiced.

1.18 Grants

1.16.3 Multi-year contracts

Grants received are recognized at their fair value when there is a reasonable possibility that the

Revenues from contracts arising for periods exceeding one year are accounted for under the percent-

grant will be received and the EPS Group will comply with all attached conditions.

age of completion method, with reference to the costs incurred, partial delivery or another approach
to the reliable estimation of the costs of completion of the work. When it is not possible to make a

Grants received in order to compensate the EPS Group for investments in tangible and intangible assets

reliable estimate of the revenues and costs, revenues are recognized when the product is delivered

are included in liabilities as deferred income (Note 20) and are credited to the income statement

to the customer. In this case, the costs incurred until delivery are recorded in ‘Inventories - Products

proportionally to the useful life of the related assets.

and Works in progress’.
Grants received to compensate its incurred costs are recorded in the income statement on a systematic
When the amount invoiced to the customer is greater than what was determined by the percentage of

basis over the periods in which the costs they are intended to compensate are recognized.

completion method, deferred revenue is recognized, representing a liability to the client on the work
to be performed, which is recorded under “Deferred income - Deferred invoicing” (Note 20). When

1.19 Distribution of dividends

the amount invoiced to the customer is lower than that determined by the percentage of completion
method, an accrual is recognized under “Accrued income” (Note 10).

The distribution of dividends to shareholders is recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial
statements of the EPS Group in the period in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders

Costs of contract include raw materials and direct materials, direct labor and also indirect costs

at the General Meeting.

distributed as specified in the contract. Sales and administrative expenses are recorded as costs as
they occur. Provisions are recorded in the income statement for any foreseen losses on completing a

1.20 Discontinued Operations

contract within the period in which they are determined, being immediately recognized in the income
statement. Changes to contracts or cost estimates and forecast costs and / or revenues and margins,

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that was either written off or classified as

resulting from the renegotiation of the conditions with customers or from internal productivity, are

held-for-sale or liquidation and (a) represents a significant line of business or geographical area

recognized in the income statement in the period in which they occur and taking into account the

of operations; (b) or is part of the restructuring process of a business area or geographical area of

stage of completion.

operations.

Materials specific to the contracts which have not been used or installed, are shown under ‘Inventories - products and work in progress’.
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Discontinued operations (or disposal groups), are classified as held-for-sale if their value is realizable

1.23 Cash Flows Statement

through a sale transaction rather than through their continued use. This situation is deemed to arise

The statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the direct method. The EPS Group classi-

only when: (i) the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present

fies assets with maturity up to one year, with high liquidity and for which the risk of change in value

condition; (ii) the Group has given an undertaking to sell; and (iii) it is expected that the sale will

is negligible under “Cash and cash equivalents”.

be finalized within 12 months. In this case, non-current assets are valued at the lower of their book

The Cash Flow statement is divided into operating activities, investment activities and financing

value or their fair value less the sale costs..

activities. Operating activities include cash received from customers and payments to suppliers,
staff and other payments related to operating activities.

1.21 Employee benefits

Cash flows included in investment activities include acquisitions and disposals of investments in
subsidiaries, received cash and payments resulting from the purchase and sale of tangible and

1.21.1 Retirement pensions

intangible assets.

The majority of EFACEC‘s employees is only covered by the social security system.
Financing activities include cash received and payments relating to equity and loans, including bank
There is a closed group of former retired employees that benefits from complementary retirement

overdrafts. They also include payments relating to interests, dividends and finance leases.

or survivor’s pension, which are managed by the EPS Group. The future liability for these payments is
presented in the financial statement under the item ‘Provisions’ (Notes 19 and 30.2) and corresponds
to the current benefits’ responsibilities value defined on the balance sheet date. The assessment of
responsibility is carried out annually by specialized independent entities.

1.24 Subsequent Events
Events subsequent to the balance sheet date that provide additional information about conditions
existing on that date are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events subsequent to the

In subsidiaries based abroad, employees are either covered only by local social security systems or

balance sheet date, which provide information on conditions that arose after that date, are disclosed

can benefit from complementary systems, established according to the local laws and conditions.

in the annex to the consolidated financial statements, if material.

Re-measurements (gains and losses) arising from changes in demographic and financial actuarial
assumptions are recorded in “Other Comprehensive Income”.

2. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

A defined benefit asset is only recognized to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the EPS Group’s management to make

payments is available.

judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts of revenues, costs, assets and liabilities
and disclosures at the date of the financial statement.

1.21.2 Variable Remuneration
Variable remunerations paid to employees are recorded, where they exist, in the income statement

These estimates are determined by the judgments of the EPS Group’s management, based on: (i) the

for the year to which they relate, under “Staff Costs”.

best information and knowledge of present events and in some cases, on the reports of independent
experts, and (ii) the actions that the EPS Group considers it may have to take in the future. However,

1.22 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

at the date on which the operations are carried out, the results may differ from these estimates.

Contingent liabilities for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is only possible,

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed in the notes, unless the possibility of the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next exercises are presented below.

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote , in which case they are not subject to
disclosure. Provisions for liabilities that meet the conditions laid down in Note 1.15 are recognized.

2.1 Impairment of Goodwill

Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed in

For analysis purposes, each year, the EPS Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment,

the Notes to the financial statements when a future economic benefit is probable.

recorded in the financial statement in accordance with the accounting policy defined in Note 1.5.
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. Those calculations require the use of estimates (Note 7).
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2.2 Income recognition

Management exercises significant judgment in determining whether there is a present obligation as a

The EPS Group uses the percentage of completion method in accounting for revenue from its

result of a past event, or whether it is more likely, on the date of the consolidated financial statements,

multi-year contracts. The use of the percentage of completion method requires the formulation of

that from past events outflows of resources can occur, and whether the amount of the obligation

estimates on the degree of construction and services performed to date, as a proportion of the total

can be reliably estimated. The EPS Group periodically reviews the status of these processes using

construction and the services to be performed. Management exercises judgment in determining

counselling, both internal and external. These judgements are subject to change as new information

whether the outcome of a contract can be estimated reliably. Management also makes estimates of

becomes available. The amount of provision may change in the future due to new developments in

the total cost of services, or in some cases, of the total contract costs, which are used in determining

this particular matter.

the recoverable amount of the contracts. The estimates are continually revised based on changes
and information relating to each contract.

2.6 Tangible and intangible assets

2.3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The useful life of an asset is the period during which the EPS Group expects it to be available for use
and this should be reviewed at least at the end of each financial year.

To determine the fair value of a financial asset or liability where an active market exists, the market
price is used. Where there is no active market, which is the case with some of the assets and liabil-

The determination of the useful lives of the assets, the amortization / depreciation method to be

ities of the EPS Group, valuation techniques generally accepted in the market, based on market

applied and the estimated losses resulting from the replacement of equipment before the end of its

assumptions, are used.

useful life due to technological obsolescence is critical in determining the amount of amortization /
depreciation to be recognized in the income statement for each year.

The EPS Group uses valuation techniques for unlisted financial instruments such as derivatives,
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and assets available for sale. The valuation

These parameters are defined using the best knowledge of management, and taking into account

methods, which are used most often, are based on models of discounted cash flow and options,

the best practices adopted by similar companies in the sectors in which the EPS Group operates.

including, for example, interest rates, exchange rates, prices of raw materials and volatility curves.

2.7 Impairment of accounts receivable
2.4 Income tax
The credit risk on the balance of accounts receivable is assessed on the reporting date, taking into
The EPS Group recognizes liabilities for additional taxes that may result from inspections undertak-

account the knowledge of the client and its risk profile. Accounts receivable are adjusted based on

en by tax authorities. When the final outcome of these situations is different from those initially

the assessment made by the management of the estimated collection risks at the reporting date,

recorded, the differences will impact income tax and deferred taxes, during the time in which such

which may differ from the actual risks incurred.

differences are identified.

Additionally, the EPS Group recognizes deferred tax assets on income tax losses carried forward to

C. Risk Management

the extent that future taxable profits will be available. This assessment requires the use of estimates
and the future taxable profits could be different from the assessment done on each balance sheet

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

date. The difference will impact the income tax.

3.1 Factors of financial risk
2.5 Recognition of provisions
The EPS Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign
The EPS Group periodically reviews the obligations arising from past events that should be recognized

exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The EPS Group’s program

or disclosed. The subjectivity involved in determining the probability and amount of internal resources

of risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize

required to meet obligations may give rise to significant adjustments either due to changes in the

potentially adverse effects on the financial performance of the EPS Group. Therefore, various financial

assumptions made, or due to the future recognition of provisions previously disclosed as contingent
liabilities.
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instruments are analyzed to minimize the referred risks, which, in certain circumstances, may be

3.1.1.3 Cash flow risks and fair value related to interest rates

used only to hedge risks arising from EPS Group operations and business.

The interest rate risk of the EPS Group arises mainly from long-term loans, since there no significant

The financial risk management is carried out by a Corporate Financial Management, under policies and

long-term interest bearing assets. The Group has no significant amount of long-term interest-earning

guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. This Financial Corporate Management is responsible

assets. Loans contracted with variable interest rates expose the EPS Group to the risk of changes in

for identifying, assessing and hedging financial risks in close cooperation with the operating units of

cash flows. The EPS Group’s policy is to contract its interest bearing liabilities at variable interest

the Group. The Board of Directors provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies

rate, not being thus exposed to fair value risk associated with interest rate changes.

covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, price risk, interest rate risk, and credit risk,
use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments and investment

The EPS Group implemented an active interest rate risk management policy, in order to limit the

of excess liquidity. The Board of Directors carries out a very close monitoring of such transactions.

risk of change in cash flows associated with interest rate changes. According to the defined policies,
the Corporate Finance Management analyses and decides on derivative financial instruments, and

3.1.1 Market risks

it may do it by negotiating contracts that exchange floating rates to fixed rate, or through options
on interest rate.

3.1.1.1 Foreign Exchange Risk
In the context of its operations, the EPS Group is exposed to foreign exchange rates risks, resulting

Exposure to interest rate risk is monitored dynamically. In addition to the assessment of future

from proposals submitted in foreign currency, supply and construction contracts and future cash

cash flows based on forward rates, sensitivity tests to variations in the level of interest rates are

transactions in foreign currency. In addition, as a result of its foreign subsidiaries and associates,

carried out. Currently, the EPS Group is essentially exposed to the interest rate of the euro curve.

the EPS Group has exposure to foreign exchange rate risk due to recognized assets and liabilities and

The sensitivity analysis is based on the following assumptions:

net investments in foreign operations. The main foreign exchange risk exposures of the EPS Group
were related to assets and liabilities in US dollars.

Changes in market interest rates affect interest gains and losses on variable rate financial instruments;
Changes in market interest rates only affect gains and losses in interest on financial instruments

The EPS Group has developed an internal policy related with foreign exchange rate risk hedging,
which determines that the majority of contracts and orders in foreign currency are hedged using
short-term financial derivatives instruments.

with fixed interest rates if these are recognized at fair value;
Changes in market interest rates affect the fair value of derivative financial instruments and other
financial assets and liabilities; and

In the specific case of Angola, the Group has financial assets of significant amount in kwanzas and

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments and other financial assets and liabilities

reduces its currency exposure through short term applications in US dollars or indexed to the US

are estimated by discounting future cash flows from current net values, using the market rates at

dollar (Note 13).

the end of the year.

The foreign exchange sensitivity tests on the net financial assets and liabilities did not indicate the
existence of material impacts.

For each analysis, regardless of the currency, the same changes to interest rate curves are used. The
analyses are performed for the net debt, i.e., deposits and investments in financial institutions are

3.1.1.2 Price Risk

deducted. Simulations are performed based on the debt net value and the fair value of derivative

The EPS Group is exposed to long term and short-term changes in the prices of raw materials used

financial instruments, at reference dates and taking into account the respective change in interest

in its production processes, when buying raw materials whose price is quoted on the stock exchange.

rate curves.

Such exposure refers mainly to copper.

On 31 December 2017, the EPS Group did not hold any interest rate derivatives. The exposure of
the Group on the same date amounted to approximately 72.1 million euros of bank loans, mainly

The EPS Group implemented policies in order to minimize the impact of price changes of these raw

denominated in euros, offset by 9.6 million euros of short term investments and term deposits.

materials on consolidated net income, having established risk hedging strategies that allow the use

Taking into account the year end assets and liabilities, if interest rates on loans and deposits had

of financial derivative instruments. The Directorate of Corporate Finance is responsible in the EPS

been 0.25% higher or lower, with all other variables equal, the profit before taxes would have been

Group for ensuring the management of that risk in conjunction with the Procurement Department

lower or higher (respectively) by 156 thousand euros. These effects are mainly due to higher or lower

and Business Units using these raw materials.

interest expenses on variable rate loans.

On 31 December 2017, the EPS Group had no option type contracts on any raw materials. .
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3.1.2 Credit risk

The quality assessment of credit risk is performed by the Group’s treasury department in accordance

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty may fail to fulfil its contractual obligations, which may

with the following methodology: if customers hold a rating of independent external credit, these

lead to the recognition of a loss. Credit risk results mainly from the EPS Group’s operating activities,

ratings are used; if no external credit rating exist independently, the credit quality risk is assessed

specifically the risks of lending to customers, including receivables and firm commitments, and its

taking into account its financial position and past experience, among other factors. Individual risk

investment and hedging activities, including derivative financial instruments and deposits with

limits are determined in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of Directors. The approval

financial institutions.

of projects of high or significant risk is also a responsibility of the Board of Directors. The utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored. See Note 10 for additional disclosures about credit risk.

Financial Institutions
Regarding financial institutions, the EPS Group selects parties to do business based on credit ratings

The following table presents an analysis of the credit quality of receivables from customers not overdue:

from independent agencies. The credit risk arising from transactions with banks and financial institu31.12.2017

tions is managed by the Corporate Finance Directorate of the EPS Group.

The following table summarizes, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the credit quality of deposits,
investments, other financial investments and derivative financial instruments with positive fair value

New customers

10,439,539

18,884,333

Institutional customers

24,291,292

27,356,463

Other trade receivables

by reference to external credit ratings:
31.12.2017

31.12.2016

98,906,563

78,872,822

133,637,394

125,113,618

31.12.2016

Maximum risk
Rating

351,348

763,978

from A- to A+

1,219,696

2,622,560

from BBB- to BBB+

3,034,068

4,253,967

from BB- to BB+

4,710,228

4,737,027

≤ B+

11,693,554

12,484,811

Without rating

10,861,643

4,000,903

31,870,537

28,863,247

≥ AA-

The ratings shown correspond to the rating given by Standard & Poor’s. When these are not available,

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk associated to financial assets held
by the EPS Group.
NOTE

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Customers and accrued revenue

10

237,538,426

236,954,777

Other receivables

11

18,297,824

15,596,394

Derivatives

09

995,006

0

Loans to related parties

28

724,605

724,605

Short term instruments

13

5,580,854

3,146,560

Current deposits

13

25,427,818

25,716,687

288,564,533

282,139,022

Moody’s or Fitch’s ratings are used.

Entities without rating are essentially financial institutions from Angola, Algeria, Morocco and

3.1.3 Liquidity risk

Mozambique.

Cash flow forecasting is performed by the operating entities of the EPS Group and aggregated every
year by the Group’s Treasury department when preparing the annual budget, being this department

Customers

responsible for monitoring the forecasted cash flow performed by the EPS Group to ensure it has

With respect to customers credit risk, the EPS Group believes that the risk that a counterparty failing

sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn

to perform its contractual obligations, which could have a significant impact on its consolidated

committed borrowing facilities, including credit lines and commercial paper programs (Note 17), at

financial statements, is limited because the EPS Group seeks to ensure that customers have strong

all times so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants ( where applicable) on any

credit profiles or adequate financing to meet their obligations. Additionally, the EPS Group seeks

of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the EPS Group’s debt financing

to reduce exposure to credit risk from customers by implementing, for some contracts, a policy of

plans, the compliance with internal balance sheet ratio targets and, if applicable, external regulatory

contractual advances.

or legal requirements- for example, currency restrictions and covenant compliance, namely: Cross
default, Pari Passu, Negative Pledges, Debt and ratios, change of shareholders and others related
with operational activities and with the legal, fiscal and operational obligations of the EPS Group.
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The cash surplus, held by the operating entities, over and above the balance required for working
capital management, is managed locally, taking into account the instructions of the EPS Group

3.2 Capital Risk Management

with respect to maturity, liquidity and counterparty. Surplus cash held by the Group is invested by

The EPS Group seeks to keep an adequate level of capital so that it not only ensures the continuity

choosing instruments with appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity to provide sufficient margin

and development of its activity, but also to provide adequate returns to its shareholders and to

as determined by the above-mentioned forecasts.

optimize the cost of capital.

On 31 December 2017, the EPS Group held cash and current deposits amounting to about 21.5 million

The EPS Group may adjust the amount of dividends payable and the return of capital to shareholders

euros, term deposits amounting to about 4.1 million euros and short term investments amounting

or make an issue of new shares or debt in order to maintain or adjust its capital structure.

to about 5.6 million euros (Note 13), which was expected to readily generate cash inflows able to
facilitate the management of liquidity risk. Moreover, the Group had, on that date, unused credit

In accordance with the practices of the industry market, the balance of the capital structure is

facilities of about 28.2 million euros (Note 17).

monitored based on the gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated according to the following
formula: Net Debt / Total Capital. Net debt comprises total loans (including banking and related

The table below shows the non-derivative financial liabilities which are settled at net value (the

companies’ current and non-current loans as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash

EPS Group has no derivative financial instruments that are not settled on a net basis) grouped by

and cash equivalents, other financial investments and current loans. The total capital consists of

relevant residual maturities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual cash flows not

equity capital, as presented in the consolidated financial statements, net debt added. The gearing

discounted. Amounts in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate of the closing date.

ratio at 31 December 2017 shows the following calculation:

Interest payments related to liabilities with variable interest rates, are included in the table and are
calculated using the spot interest rates available at the reporting date. Assets and liabilities that can

NOTE

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Debt to credit institutions

17

70,674,185

(-) Cash and cash equivalents

13

31 ,48,216

29,024,861

39,525,968

44,391,760

be repaid at any time are always allocated to the shorter possible period.

31 December 2017

NOTE

Bank loans
Derivatives

9

Suppliers

15

Other liabilities
Financial guarantees

31 December 2016

30.1

NOTE

Bank loans
Derivatives

9

Suppliers

15

Other liabilities
Financial guarantees

30.1

UNTIL 1
YEAR

2-3 YEARS

4-5 YEARS

>5 YEARS

Net debt
Equity

345,720,692

309,147,595

385,246,660

353,539,355

10,3%

12,6%

16,050,458

36,943,359

24,846,679

0

Total Equity

142,502

0

0

0

Gearing

109,794,767

7,121

0

0

20,974,326

0

0

0

65,417,388

0

0

0

212,379,441

36,950,480

24,846,679

0

2-3 YEARS

4-5 YEARS

>5 YEARS

2,732,368

28,707,499

38,688,143

12,873,963

543,187

0

0

0

85,783,287

19,017

0

0

12,887,082

0

0

0

67,359,823

0

0

0

169,305,747

28,726,516

38,688,143

12,873,963

UNTIL 1
YEAR

73,416,621

In addition, and in accordance with the financing arrangements at the reporting date, the EPS Group
is subject to compliance with covenants related to debt ratios (Note 17).
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3.3 Estimates of fair value

3.4 Financial instruments per category

The following table presents the assets and liabilities of the EPS Group measured at fair value,

On 31 December 2017 and 2016, financial assets were classified in the following categories:

according to the following levels of fair value hierarchy established in IFRS 7:

Level 1: the fair value of financial instruments is based on quoted prices in active liquid markets

FINANCIAL

at the reference date of the statement of financial position. This level essentially includes equity and

ASSETS AT

debt instruments (e.g. NYSE Euronext);

AMORTIZED
COST

Level 2: Fair value of financial instruments is not based on active market prices, but with valuation

DERIVATIVES
HELD FOR
TRADING

DERIVATIVES

HELD FOR

FOR HEDGING

SALE

NON
FINANCIAL

TOTAL

ASSETS

models. The main inputs of the models used are observable in the market;
31 December 2017

Level 3: Fair value of financial instruments is not based on active market prices, but with the use

Financial
investments

of valuation models, whose main inputs are not observable in the market.

31 DECEMBER 2017

LEVEL 1

LEVEL 2

LEVEL 3

Loans to related
parties

31 DECEMBER 2016

TOTAL

LEVEL 1

LEVEL 2

LEVEL 3

Derivatives
Trading

418,174

418,174

0

Hedging

576,832

576,832

0

Tangible assets

17,706,897

17,706,897
316,132

Assets held for sale

0 18,701,903

3,888,050

316,132

316,132 19,018,035

0

3,888,050

Trade receivables
and accrued income

316,132

724,605

Derivative financial
instruments

TOTAL

Assets

Land at fair value

316,132

724,605

418,174

576,832

995,006

237,538,426

7,022,491

244,560,917

Debtors and
deferred costs

18,297,824

13,327,232

31,625,056

Cash and cash
equivalents

31,148,216

3,888,050
26,132

26,132

26,132

3,914,182

287,709,071

31,148,216
418,174

576,832

316,132

20,349,722

309,369,932

Liabilities
Derivatives

31 December 2016

Trading

60,723

60,723

0

Hedging

81,778

81,778

0

0

142,502

0

142,502

0

0

0

0

Financial
investments
Loans to related
parties

For land valuation, the Market Comparison Criteria was used, using market average values per
square meter.

Trade receivables
and accrued income

26,132

26,132

724,605

724,605

236,954,777

2,432,554

239,387,331

Debtors and
deferred costs

15,596,394

17,240,266

32,836,659

Cash and cash
equivalents

29,024,861
282,300,636

29,024,861
0

0

26,132

19,672,820

301,999,588
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D. Consolidation
4. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRESENTATION

OTHER
DERIVATIVES
HELD FOR
TRADING

4.1 Scope

FINANCIAL
DERIVATIVES

LIABILITIES

NON FINANCIAL

FOR HEDGING

HELD AT

LIABILITIES

4.1.1 Companies included in consolidation

TOTAL

We hereby present the list of companies included in the consolidation, shares held by Efacec Power

AMORTIZED

Solutions, directly or indirectly, and the consolidation method.

COST

31 December 2017
NAME

Debts to financial
institutions
Suppliers
Creditors and accrued
costs
Derivative instruments

70,674,185

70,674,185

109,801,888

109,801,888

25,177,093

60,723
60,723

17,234,149

81,778
81,778

42,411,242

142,502
205,653,166

17,234,149

223,029,817

31 December 2016
Debts to financial
institutions

73,416,621

Suppliers

85,802,304

Creditors and accrued
costs
Derivative instruments

33,348,333

526,919
526,919

73,416,621

85,802,304

22,126,271

16,268
16,268

55,474,604

543,187
192,567,258

22,126,271

215,236,716

HEAD OFFICES

CONS.
METHOD

% CONTROL

Efacec Power Solutions, SGPS, SA

Matosinhos

H

FULL

Efacec Energia, Máquinas e Equipamentos Eléctricos, SA

Matosinhos

100,00

FULL

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, SA

Maia

100,00

FULL

Efacec Electric Mobility, SA

Maia

100,00

FULL

Efacec Serviços Corporativos, SA

Matosinhos

100,00

FULL

Efacec Marketing Internacional, SA

Maia

100,00

FULL

Siemens, Suez e Efacec - Serviços de Manutenção, ACE

Amadora

33,00

PRO

EME2 - Engenharia, Manutenção e Serviços, ACE

Lisboa

40,00

ECM

Ensul Meci-Efacec, Cogeração do Porto, ACE

Almada

100,00

ECM

GACE - Gondomar, ACE

Porto

20,00

PRO

EfaServicing, ACE

Matosinhos

100,00

FULL

Efacec, Manutenção do Sistema de Saneamento do Oeste, ACE

Maia

100,00

FULL

Efacec Angola, Lda.

Luanda / Angola

98,33

FULL

Efacec Moçambique, Lda.

Maputo / Moçambique

100,00

FULL

EFASA (Pty) Ltd.

Bedfordview/África Sul

100,00

FULL

Efacec Chile, SA

Santiago / Chile

100,00

FULL

Power Solutions Brasil, Sist. Automação e Potência, Ltda

S.Paulo / Brasil

100,00

FULL

Efacec Power Solutions Argentina, SA

Buenos Aires / Argentina

99,60

FULL

Efacec Equipos Electricos, SL

Tarragona / Espanha

100,00

FULL

UTE Efacec Engenharia SA y Cemesa SL

Tenerife / Espanha

90,00

PRO

UTE Efacec Bahía de Cádiz

Sevilha / Espanha

50,00

FULL

Efacec USA Inc.

Atlanta / EUA

100,00

FULL

Efacec Praha, s.r.o.

Praga / Rep.Checa

100,00

FULL

Efacec Central Europe Limited SRL

Bucareste / Roménia

100,00

FULL

Efacec Contracting Central Europe GmbH

Viena / Áustria

100,00

FULL

Efacec Índia Pvt. Ltd.

New Delhi / Índia

100,00

FULL

Efacec Algérie, EURL

Argel / Argélia

100,00

FULL

Efacec Maroc, SARLAU

Casablanca / Marrocos

100,00

FULL

FULL Full Consolidation Method; PRO Proportional Consolidation Method; ECM Equity Consolidation Method
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4.3 Income Statement Structure

Pursuant to paragraph 85 of IAS1, the EPS Group showed in its Income Statement “Costs with contracts
NAME

NOTES

% CONTROL

terminations” heading (Note 22.2) which albite it is operational, it has differentiating elements and
exceptional components that justify its segregation.

Entries in the scope of consolidation

100,00

Efacec, Manutenção do Sistema de Saneamento do Oeste, ACE

Cost with contracts termination refer to the amounts incurred with compensation for contract termina-

Exclusions from the scope of consolidation

Dissolução

SMA - Serv Manut Centrais Termoelétricas, ACE

tion, that are usually recorded under “Staff costs”. The fact that each compensation reflects a one

100,00

off cost considered as non-recurring and with its own pay-back, justifies our option of segregating
and presenting it as a separate item in the Income Statement.

4.2 Foreign currency exchange rates
4.4 Discontinued operations

The consolidation of the EPS Group’s foreign companies, the constant values of financial statements
concerning assets and liabilities and the values included in the income statement, were converted

The consolidated income statement of the EPS Group in 2016 presented in the heading “Results of

to Euro, respectively, with the following exchange rates - Final and average (rates published by the

discontinued operations” the full results of Efacec Power Transformers, Inc., a US-based company,

European Central Bank).

which in 2014 sold the assets related to the production activity of transformers and was dissolved
in October 2016.

The main functional currencies subject to conversion were as follows:

31.12.2017

FOR 1 MONETARY UNIT – EURO

FINAL

31.12.2016

AVERAGE

FINAL

AVERAGE

Angola

Kwanza

AOA

198,98960

188,36687

174,71918

180,70415

Argentina

Peso

ARS

22,60830

18,93565

16,71276

16,46233

Brasil

Real

BRL

3,97290

3,63193

3,43050

3,79311

Chile

Peso

CLP

737,29000

735,76325

707,08501

741,59708

República Checa

Coroa

CZK

25,53500

26,27703

27,02100

27,04230

Argélia

Dinar

DZD

137,70540

125,95317

116,36705

120,74603

Índia

Rupia

INR

76,60550

73,69677

71,59350

74,18306

Marrocos

Dirham

MAD

11,18790

10,97898

10,65432

10,83450

Moçambique

Metical Novo MZN

71,03850

71,49669

75,25220

68,08077

Noruega

Coroa

NOK

9,84030

9,35942

9,08630

9,25883

Roménia

Novo Leu

RON

4,65850

4,57272

4,53900

4,49312

Tunísia

Dinar

TND

2,97090

2,75380

2,45590

2,37868

Estados Unidos

Dólar

USD

1,19930

1,13480

1,05410

1,10259
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The production equipment was valued by a specialized company in 2014, readjusting its value by 19.4

E. Notes on Financial Statement
on December 31, 2017 and 2016

million euros. The revaluation was considered within the scope of the acquisitions of financial holdings,
in the process of incorporation of EPS. The impact on depreciation and amortization for the year
2017 was 1.8 million euros. The net readjustment amount is 15.9 million euros at 31 December 2017.

5. TANGIBLE ASSETS

The heading “Other tangible assets” at 31 December 2017, includes equipment amounting to 642.936
euros that are obsolete and, therefore, were subject to an impairment of their cost value, in prior
financial years (Note 22.3).

5.1 Movements in the period
Tangible assets on December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the changes in their value were as follows:

Investments
On 31 July, 2017, Efacec Power Solutions had a capital increase in kind through the acquisition of the

LANDS AND
BUILDINGS

VEHICLES
AND
MACHINERY

properties that constitute its base of operations in Portugal, located in Arroteia and Maia (which did

OFFICE
EQUIPEMENT

OTHERS

TOTAL

not belong to the company until then). Pursuant to legal requirements, experts valued the properties
and the respective valuation was subject to the opinion of an independent auditor. The respective
assets were valued at 28.4 million euros, which corresponds to the value of the capital increase

31 December 2016

(Note 14). Expenses with IMT (Property Transfer Tax) and Stamp duty related to this transaction,

14,377,019

26,661,131

1,125,698

1,258,126

43,421,973

-2, 772

-6,955

-5,768

-60,974

-98,469

Additions

329,955

454,271

154,817

1,849,173

2,788,215

Disposals

0

-34,656

-7,078

0

-41,734

-1,828,106

-3,729,514

-446,047

-341,776

-6,345,443

4,275

43,704

40,881

-209,798

-120,938

12,858,370

23,387,981

862,503

2,494,751

39,603,605

Opening net book value
Exchange differences

Depreciation allocations
Transfers and
adjustments
Closing net value

amounting to 2 million euros, were added to the respective assets in compliance with IAS 16 since
they are expenses directly incurred and necessary for the legalization of such assets.

Additionally, the Group also invested 8.4 million euros in tangible fixed assets, which mainly relate
to the improvement of facilities, replacement of manufacturing equipment and information systems.
At the end of the year, a portion of these assets was still in installation process.

Depreciation

31 December 2017

12,858,370

23,387,981

862,503

2,494,751

39,603,605

Depreciation is carried out in accordance with Note 1.4. The value of depreciation shown in the

-87,322

-42,623

-18,317

-101,972

-250 234

income statement considers the appropriations for depreciation of assets, usually deducted from the

Additions

33,423,057

236,060

279,839

4,893,231

38,832,187

value of the investment subsidies recognized in the period. In this period, the deduction through the

Disposals

0

-11,471

-1,575

0

-13,046

-1,711,167

-3,650 ,907

-379,675

-274,786

-6,016,535

25,537

115,209

193,415

-339,981

-5,820

Closing net value

44,508,475

20,034,247

936,189

6,671,244

72,150,155

Cost or fair value

71,210,052

110,924,550

23,827,478

14,920,972

220,883,052

Accumulated depreciation

-26,701,577

-90,890,303

-22,891,289

-8,249,728

-148,732,896

Net book value

44,508,475

20,034,247

936,189

6,671,244

72,150,155

Opening net book value
Exchange differences

Depreciation allocations
Transfers and
adjustments

recognition of subsidies amounted to 144.351 euros in 2017 (321.298 euros in 2016).

5.2 Leased tangible assets
The heading “Tangible Assets” includes the following amounts where the EPS Group is a lessee
under a finance lease:

31.12.2017

Financial lease
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

31.12.2016

369,036

417,899

-271,822

-309,581

97,214

108,318
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The responsibilities relating to these contracts are presented in Liabilities under the item Suppliers

Investment in intangible assets in the financial year 2017 amounted to 5.8 million euros, from which

(Note 15), and are divided by current and non-current liabilities, whether the due payment dates

5.1 million euros relates mainly to R&D projects and expenses with the certification and approval of

are respectively less or more than one year.

products from the business unit Switchgear. Approval procedures are usually lengthy and involve

Operational lease rentals are not part of the assets, the lease cost being included in the balance

several steps to analyze the conformity of products with the applicable technical requirements and

sheet under the heading “External Supplies and Services”.

regulations, to carry out tests in internationally accredited laboratories and to carry out audits of
the company’s quality management system. For the Business Unit, these processes are essential for
being able to place its products in the markets in which it competes, being therefore capitalized and

5.3 Assets pledged as collateral

amortized between 3 and 5 years.
Currently, there are no assets pledged as collateral.

7. GOODWILL
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
There were no changes to the Goodwill in 2017. Its value was affected only by foreign exchange rate

Movements in intangible assets in 2017 and 2016 and their values at the end of each year were as

differences, which mainly affected investments in Mozambique.

follows:

CONTRACTS

R&D

BRAND

OTHER

TOTAL
Opening net book value

31 December 2016
Opening net book value
Exchange differences
Additions
Depreciation allocations
Transfers and
adjustments
Closing net value

1,695,786

2,194,005

79,000,000

866,453

83,756,243

0

-22,121

0

7,927

-14,194

2,201,780

0

0

27,235

2,229,015

-1,047,245

-1,829 ,446

0

-138,812

-3,015,504

355,763

0

0

-361,682

-5,919

3,206,084

342,438

79,000,000

401,120

82,949,642

Additions
Exchange differences
Closing net value - Published

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

120,158 240

121,313,286

0

0

84,199

-1,155,046

120,242,439

120,158,240

For the purpose of the impairment tests on goodwill, the preparation of the business plans was aligned
with the Group’s current structure and the way Business Units are managed.

The EPS Group is organized in different Business Units (BU) and the information system is oriented
to this management model. Each BU Director reports directly to the Group’s Executive Committee

31 December 2017
Opening net book value
Exchange differences
Additions
Depreciation allocations
Transfers and
adjustments
Closing net value

3,206,084

342,438

79,000,000

401,120

82,949,642

0

13

0

-4,235

-4,222

5,112,472

0

0

708,446

5,820,918

-1,854,682

-307,542

0

-144,582

-2,306,806

170,644

0

0

-171,056

-412

6,634,519

34,908

79,000,000

789,694

86,459,121

and the director for the central services of each foreign subsidiary are also subject to a functional
report to Portugal.

Since 2016, this management model resulted in the centralization of the Group and the definition of
a new organizational chart, which defined the areas of Products, Systems/Contracting and a specific
and exclusive business unit for Electric Mobility.

Products is formed by the BU’s of Transformers, Switchgear, Automation and Service, and is centered
The caption “Contracts” and “Brand” relate with acquisition of companies regarding the Efacec

on Efacec Energia legal entity. Systems covers the Energy, Environment and Transportation segments,

Power Solutions incorporation process, in 2014, and consequent allocation of their purchase values.

and is centered on Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas legal entity. Finally, the Electric Mobility Unit is

The values allocated to contracts are depreciated according to its stage of completeness. In 2015,

developed by Efacec Electric Mobility legal entity. These three companies are based in Portugal, and

the Brand was subject to valuation by a specialized company, having been awarded the value of 79

constitute the three global Cash Generating Units (CGU), subject to valuation.

million euros. The Brand is included in the Group’s annual impairment tests (Note 7).
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The international structure is made up of foreign affiliates located in multiple geographies. Some

Impairment Tests

of them depend on a single BU, others are multi-business subsidiaries. In both cases, each business

At year end, impairment tests are performed for the majority of the assets that justify the values

is directed from Portugal, by the respective Business Units and, by extension, integrated in the

of goodwill and the Efacec Brand. The tests are performed in order to evaluate the recoverability

respective CGU.

of goodwill and the Brand, which is disaggregated by the different CGU’s, considering the historical
performance and / or business development expectations. The aggregate value of the assets subject

The international subsidiaries Efacec Central Europe and Power Solutions Brasil have activities

to the test is as follows:

strongly concentrated in the Automation business segment. Likewise, the subsidiaries Efacec India,
GOODWILL

BRAND

TOTAL

Efacec Energia

58,916,478

43,318,212

102,234,690

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas

53,288,396

31,046,128

84,334,525

8,037,565

4,635,659

12,673,224

120,242,439

79,000,000

199,242,439

2017 ASSETS

Efacec Equipos Eléctricos and Efacec Praha also carry out their activity in the Switchgear business
unit. The management of these subsidiaries is under the operational management of the business units
to which they report, and driven from Portugal, acting mainly as representations of Efacec Energia’s
activity in the respective markets. Under this assumption, the business plans of these subsidiaries

Efacec Electric Mobility

were consolidated at Efacec Energia.

Total

For identical reasons the international subsidiaries Efacec Contracting Central Europe, Efacec Algérie

Note: The Efacec Brand is recorded under Intangible Assets (Note 6)

and Efacec Chile were consolidated in Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas. These three legal entities are
branches with strong operation concentration on Contracting business segment; and are particularly

The recoverable amount of a CGU is calculated based on calculations of value in use.

dependent on Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, with regard to references, specific technical skills and
financial resources, working mainly as extensions of Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas activity in the

The valuations are based on cash flows projections based on financial budgets approved by manage-

markets in which it operates.

ment covering a five-year period, which are discounted at a rate calculated in accordance with the
CAPM (Capital Asset Pricing Model). After this five-year period, cash flows are extrapolated using

The subsidiaries of Angola and Mozambique develop their activities in different segments of Products

growth rates estimated on business development expectations.

and Systems, with business plans defined by business unit. The projections prepared for each BU are
allocated to the respective CGU’s.

The assumptions used in the impairment tests performed on 31 December 2017 were as follows:

The contribution of each cash generating unit (CGU) to the goodwill shown in the balance sheet at

REVENUE
GROWTH
RATE

31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Efacec Energia

58,916,478

56,794,222

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas

53,288,396

52,748,009

8,037,565

8,037,565

Efacec Electric Mobility

260,802

Efacec Angola

2,317,642

Efacec Moçambique
Total

120,242,439

120,158,240

EBITDA
MARGIN

DISCOUNT
RATE BEF.
TAXES

PERPETUITY
GROWTH
RATE

2017
Efacec Energia

5,0%

9,7%

8,7%

2,1%

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas

5,0%

7,0%

9,0%

2,3%

22,0%

12,9%

12,7%

2,3%

Efacec Energia

4,4%

8,6%

9,0%

1,9%

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas

5,6%

7,0%

9,5%

1,8%

Efacec Electric Mobility

29,7%

12,7%

12,4%

2,1%

Efacec Moçambique

16,7%

8,7%

11,6%

5,6%

Efacec Angola

20,1%

8,2%

16,0%

1,0%

Efacec Electric Mobility
Efacec Moçambique
Efacec Angola
2016
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n 2016, the multi-business subsidiaries (Angola and Mozambique) were valued individually. Since
2017, the projections were allocated to the CGU Efacec Energia and Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas,

Financial assets held for sale include shares in unlisted companies whose fair value cannot be

according to their respective businesses.

reliably measured as there are no market prices or comparable transactions and as such, they are
recognized at cost.

No goodwill or Brand impairment arose from the tests performed.
In 2017, EPS decided to subscribe a 25% stake in the HCapital New Ideas Venture Capital Fund which

Sensitivity analyses

will have the purpose of investing in technological and innovative Portuguese companies, especially

Evaluations were still subject to sensitivity analyses to the main variables used in order to test the

SMEs, with the potential to generate synergies with the EPS Group. Any investment to be made by

resistance of the recoverable value of the assets to unfavorable changes of each. Variables were

the Fund must first be approved by EPS.

thus subject to the following impacts:

9. DERIVATIVES INSTRUMENTS
REVENUE
GROWTH
RATE
Change in assumptions

-10,0%

EBITDA
MARGIN

-10,0%

DISCOUNT
RATE

+1,0 p.p.

PERPETUITY
GROWTH
RATE

In 31 December 2017, a number of financial derivative contracts were in place for exchange rate
hedging amounting to 12.7 million US dollars and 0.3 million British pounds.

-1,0 p.p.

These financial derivative contracts were valued in 31 December 2017. The impact of the valuation
of these derivative instruments on the balance sheet, at 31 December 2017, led to the register of
current assets of 995 thousand euros and of short-term liabilities of 142 thousand euros. The net

In general, the discount rate and the EBITDA margin are the most sensitive variables in the tests

value of derivative financial instruments of 852 thousand euros includes exchange rate derivatives

performed. However, the impacts produced by these variations are not likely to generate any

recognized via income statement (283 thousand euros) and exchange rate derivatives recognized

impairment.

via equity (569 thousand euros).

The amount recorded in the income statement is recorded under “Other operating income” and

8. FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

impacted exchange rate differences, with an opposite impact on the hedged derivative.

Financial assets classified as held for sale are broken down as follows:

31.12.2017

The classification of derivatives and their impact on the balance sheet are as follow:

31.12.2016

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Financial assets held for sale
ASSETS

Financial investments
NET - Novas Empresas e Tecnologias, S.A.

11,132

INEGI - Instituto de Ciência e Inovação em
Engenharia Mecânica e Industrial

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

11,132
Exchange Options

Other
C.E.I.I.A.- Centro para a Excelência e Inovação na
Indústria Automóvel

LIABILITIES

15,000

15,000

15,000

0

Cash Flow Hedging

576,832

81,778

0

16,268

Trading

418,174

60,723

0

526,919

Total

995,006

142,502

0

543,187

Current

995,006

142,502

0

543,187

0

0

0

0

Non current

HCapital New Ideas - Fundo de capital de risco

275,000

0

Total net investment

316,132

26,132
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10. CUSTOMERS AND ACCRUED INCOME

Denomination

Details of the item on 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

On 31 December 2017 and 2016, the amount ‘receivables’, including accrued income on multi-year
contracts, were denominated in the following currencies:

31.12.2017

Customers - current account
Customers - related parties (Note 28.2)
Customers - receivables
Customers - bad debts
Accrued income - multi-year contracts (Note 32)

156,117,809

146,180,039

1,531,608

19,789,349

Account receivables - net
Accrued income - non financial assets
Total
Non current
Current

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Euro

EUR

166,168,597

166,843,827

American dollar

USD

67,334,996

59,954,455

2,130,725

2,153,971

21,425,689

15,213,883

Chilean Peso

CLP

4,854,883

3,114,068

70,154,026

Brazilian Real

BRL

4,561,774

5,125,372

Mozambican Metical

MZN

2,904,687

1,667,396

-16,536,492

Danish Crown

DKK

2,783,422

542,405

237,538,426

236,954,777

Algerian dinar

DZD

2,614,763

3,794,099

7,022,491

2,432,554

New Leu Romania

RON

2,239,323

1,310,130

Indian rupee

INR

1,480,566

2,257,598

Swedish Crown

SEK

1,360,252

1,175,718

78,054,271
259,260,102

Impairment losses on accounts receivable (Note 22.3)

31.12.2016

-21,721,676

244,560,917

253,491,269

239,387,332

0
244,560,917

0
239,387,332

Other

2,956,838

7,706,201

259,260,102

253,491,269

Structure of seniority – IFRS 7
On 31 December 2017 and 2016, trade receivables, including accrued income in multi-year contracts,
The fair value of account receivables does not differ from their book value.

had the following seniority structure, considering the due dates of the outstanding balances.

There is no concentration of credit risk on the account receivables, as the EPS Group has a large

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

133,637,394

125,113,618

number of customers, internationally dispersed and covering different business segments.
Balance not due (Note 3.1.2)
The increase in ‘Customers – bad debts’ relates to a debt of 6.3 million euros from the client CPTM

Balance overdue:

in Brazil, with whom EPS Group has a contractual dispute (Note 29), and for which an impairment

Up to 90 days

34,231,844

38,982,772

was recorded. On the other hand, a provision for other risks and charges in the amount of 3.2 million

From 90 to 360 days

31,766,074

29,874,973

euros related to this contract (Note 19) was reversed. Pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement
between Winterfell 2 and MGI Capital, the EPS Group has the right to redeem the costs associated
with this project, and therefore the net negative impact of the loss, in the amount of 3.1 million euros,
is offset by the respective accrual of the amount to be charged to MGI in 2018, which in turn is the
main driver for the change in the item ‘Accrued income – non financial assets’.

The caption ‘Accrued income – non financial assets’ refers to income recognitions that comply with
the accrual principle but are not related to multi-year contracts, namely billing to be issued and
investment subsidies to be received. This caption includes an amount to be debited to MGI (3.9
million euros), which includes the amount of 3.1 million euros mentioned above, related to the net
impact of the CPTM project in 2017. This amount is recorded as “Other operating income” (Note 22.4).

Over 360 days
Saldo total
Impairment (Note 22.3)
Balance of Accounts receivable - net

59,624,789

59,519,907

125,622,708

128,377,652

259,260,102

253,491,269

-21,721,676

-16,536,492

237,538,426

236,954,777
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On 31 December 2016, the credits overdue totaled 125.622.708 euros. The value of these receiv-

11. DEBTORS AND DEFERRED COSTS

ables, net of impairment, is as follows:

The details of this item as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

31.12.2017

BALANCE
OVERDUE

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

IMPAIRMENT

BALANCE

BALANCE

OVERDUE

OVERDUE

IMPAIRMENT

NET VALUE

34,23, 844

0

34,231,844

38,982,772

From 90 to 360 days

31,766,074

0

31,766,074

29,874,973

-8,744

29,866,229

Over 360 days

59,624,790

-21,721,676

37,903,114

59,519,907

-16,527,748

42,992,159

125,622,708

-21,721,676

103,901,032

128,377,652

-16,536,492

111,841,160

Up to 90 days

38,982,772

9,174,398

7,991,484

13,856,252

13,093,847

23,030,650

21,085,331

- Losses with impairment (Note 22.3)

-4,732,826

-5,488,938

Other Debtors- Financial assets IFRS 7
(Note 3.1.2)

18,297,824

15,596,394

Other debtors - several
Other debtors - related parties (Note 28.2)

Other Debtors- Non financial assets
State and other public entities

In the financial year 2017, the EPS Group recognized impairments in receivables amounting to 6.6

Deferred costs

million euros and used or reversed impairment amounting to 1.1 million euros (Note 22.3). It is EPS

- Impairment losses (Note 22.3)

Group’s understanding that the estimated impairment losses on receivables are adequately provid-

Total
Debtors and deferred costs - non current

ed for in the consolidated financial statements and reflect the real risk of loss.

Debtors and deferred costs - current
Amounts included in the item Accrued Income relate to the recognition of income from projects

31.12.2016

Income Tax (a)

202,977

774,826

12,738,901

15,144,859

1,270,197

1,320,581

-884,843

0

31,625,056

32,836,659

1,000,000

0

30,259,747

31,081,122

365,309

1,755,538

and work in progress, whose stage of completion is greater than the invoicing (Notes 1.16.3 e 32).
This item includes receivables non-related with the company’s business, current accounts with

Factoring

staff, security deposits and other.

The EPS Group entered, with specialized financial institutions, into factoring contracts with and
Balances with related parties refer mainly to the MGI Capital Group. The accumulated losses with

without recourse, amounting to 19.1 million euros.

impairment includes an amount of 4.6 million euros related to the credit over an associate of MGI
Capital in China.
31.12.2017

31.12.2016
The items included in the balances with the State and other public entities decreased, mainly
related to recoverable VAT. On 31 December 2017 and 2016, the breakdown was as follows:

Assets transferred and de-recognized in
financial statements
Value of assets
Value transferred
Net value
Assets transferred and not de-recognized in the
balance sheet (Note17)

18,775,073

19,982,230

-18,775,073

-18,146,677

0

1,835,552

339,709

1,416,483

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Income tax - current

3,083,872

2,872,775

Value Added Tax to be recovered

7,674,335

11,162,873

Other taxes to be recovered

1 ,980,693

1,109 ,211

- Impairment losses

-884,843

0

11,854,058

15,144,859

The transferred assets fully relate to customer balances, and the non-derecognized assets have
associated liabilities recorded under item Borrowings and classified as ‘Commercial Discount’ (Note
17).

An impairment was recorded on debit balances with the State, amounting to 0.9 million euros,
related to withholding tax in Angola, as it is considered difficult to recover.
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At 31 December 2017, short term investments consisted of treasury bonds from the People’s
The caption “Income tax - current” includes the following amounts:

Republic of Angola indexed to the US dollar, held by Efacec Angola. The bonds were acquired in the
secondary market, with the dual objective of protection against the risk of exchange rate devalua-

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

tion of the kwanza and of profiting from the available cash. Bond maturities are between April 2018
and July 2022, but are tradable at any moment, and the fact that there is liquidity in the market for

-1 825 951

-2 052 156

Payments on account

1 231 520

2 426 166

Withholding Tax

2 392 159

1 327 916

Credits for tax benefits to internationalization

948 057

948 057

Others

338 087

222 793

3 083 872

2 872 775

Estimated income tax (Note 24)

these products justifies the option to register them under the heading “Cash and cash equivalents”.

There are also term deposits in Angola in the amount of 3.3 million euros, indexed to the US dollar
as a measure to protect the risk of currency devaluation.

The values listed in heading ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ at the end of 2017 and 2016 were denominated in the following currencies:
The VAT amounts to be recovered have recurrent nature and relate mainly to activities of the EPS

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Group where there is reverse charge and which are periodically subject to recovery process.

12. INVENTORIES
31.12.2017

31.12.2016

16,497,267

16,287,424

317,675

650,346

Work in progress - pluriannual contracts
(Note 32)

2,740,112

5,590,158

Works in process

6,607,745

9,629,592

Finished goods

3,587,380

4,819,500

Raw materials
Goods

Inventories adjustment (Note 22.3)

-643,284

-713,005

29,106,894

36,264,015

Euro

European Union

14,159,767

14,352,498

Kwanza

Angola

9,425,856

6,587,038

Dólar

United States

1 ,579,959

1,660,054

Dirham

Morocco

860,144

1,712,003

Dinar

Algeria

840,856

540,473

Coroa

Czech Rep.

801,136

409,777

Novo Leu

Romenia

718,569

578,716

Lev

Bulgaria

632,017

552,065

Metical

Mozambique

536,049

4,265

Rupia

India

499,950

1,315,484

Other

1,093,915

1,312,489

31,148,216

29,024,861

14. EQUITY

14.1 Share capital
On 31 December 2017, the share capital, fully paid, was represented by 62.847.032 ordinary shares

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

with a nominal value of 5 euros. The shareholder breakdown on that date and at the end of the
previous year was as follows:
31.12.2017

Cash
Current deposits
Deposits
Short term investments
Subtotal (Note 3.1.2.)

31.12.2016

139,544

161,614

21,334,168

22,203,248

4,093,650

3,513,439

5,580,854

3,146,560

31,008,672

28,863,247

31,148,216

29,024,861

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

ENTITY

NO. SHARES

%

NO. SHARES

%

Winterfell 2 Limited

41,525,275

66,1%

41,525,275

MGI Capital, SGPS, S.A.

21,321,757

33,9%

15,649,531

27,4%

Total

62,847,032

100,0%

57,174,806

100,0%

72,6%
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On 31 July, 2017, a capital increase in the amount of 28,361,130 euros took place, with the issuance

15. SUPPLIERS

of 5,672,226 new shares, carried out by the shareholder MGI Capital, with the contribution in kind

The breakdown of this item, on 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

of the properties where EPS develops its productive activity (Note 5.1).

The company has no shares of its own.
31.12.2017

14.2 Share premiums

Suppliers - current account
Suppliers - related parties (Note 28.2)

In 2017, Efacec Power Solutions transferred the amount of 6,052,270 euros related to share

Suppliers - payable securities

premiums to the heading of ‘Reserves and Retained Earnings’, to cover losses from prior years,

Suppliers - invoices received pending from approval

following a resolution of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 4 August 2017.

14.3 Other equity instruments
Efacec Power Solutions also has additional paid-in capital amounting to 35.900.000 euros, provided

77,010,915

1,299,702

1 ,156,774

473,158

750,058

34 ,016,509

6,071,919
84,989,666

3,410,021

812,638

109,801,888

85,802,304

7,121

19,017

109,794,767

85,783,287

Non current
Current

70,602,499

106,391,867
Suppliers of fixed assets - current account
Total

31.12.2016

by the shareholders in proportion to their holdings (26.074.170 euros by Winterfell 2 Limited and
9.825.830 euros by MGI Capital, SGPS, S.A.). The additional paid in capital is ruled by the regula-

The current debt to Suppliers of raw materials and other services are almost entirely due within 90

tions of supplementary capital.

days and 120 days, according to the following table. With regard to fixed assets suppliers, there are
some values – of small amount - maturing at more than one year, shown as ‘Non-Current’.

14.4 Reserves and retained earnings
The caption ‘Invoices received pending from approval’ registered a significant increase to €
This item is mainly formed by the accumulated annual results and not distributed and, occasionally,

34 million. At the end of the year there was a flow of purchases significantly above the monthly

by amounts recorded directly in reserves, contractual or others.

average, justified by some projects of high value, which contributed occasionally to a concentration
of documents in approval.

14.5 Other Accumulated Comprehensive Income
Exchange differences

Maturity of outstanding amounts of Suppliers – IFRS 7

Reserves of foreign currency translation reflect on exchange variations that took place in the
translation of the subsidiaries’ financial statement in a currency other than Euro, in the update of
31.12.2017

the net investment in subsidiaries and in the update of goodwill, and are not liable to being distrib-

31.12.2016

uted or used to absorb damages.
The caption also includes exchange differences arising from the long-term loans granted by EPS
to the subsidiaries of Angola, Mozambique and Argentina. In the light of IAS 21, these loans are
treated as financial investments and therefore have no set date for repayment.

Suppliers
Accounts payable to suppliers
To be paid up to 90 days

102,189,665

78,905,462

4,202,202

6,084,205

106,391,867

84,989,666

To be paid up to 90 days

3,221,861

718,624

To be paid over 90 days

188,160

94,013

3,410,021

812,638

To be paid over 90 days

Fixed assets suppliers
Accounts payable to suppliers
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Denomination

On the other hand, “Accrued costs” increased by around 3.5 million euros, mainly related to work in

The debt to suppliers, on 31 December 2017 and 2016 was detailed in the following currencies:

progress, which increased by 6.1 million euros, and a reduction of other costs by 2.7 million euros.
The item “Accrued costs - others” includes 4 million euros relating to consultants’ expenses and

31.12.2017

1.4 million euros (6.5 million euros in the previous year) related to the accounting for severance

31.12.2016

payments, because the corresponding agreements were made in 2017 but the respective payments
will only occur in 2018.

Euro

EUR

95,499,875

70,007,066

American dollar

USD

4,282,463

3,457,504

Indian rupee

INR

3,398,303

4,716,198

Liabilities with State and Other Public Entities, on 31 December 2017 and 2016, breaks down as

Algerian dinar

DZD

2,228,174

2,662,735

follows:

4,393,073

4,958,802

109,801,888

85,802,304

Other

31.12.2017

Value added tax – due

2,300,929

1,657,810

Social security contributions

2,298,577

2,355,644

Personal income tax

1,517,437

1,580,553

Other taxes

16. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED COSTS

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

1,455

2,051

6,118,398

5,596,058

31.12.2016

Advance payments from customers

3,061,990

19 ,445,637

Other creditors - several

1,294,618

1,750,569

17. AMOUNTS OWED TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Other creditors - related parties (Note 28.2)

1,140,778

1,015,615

This Note discloses the composition, characteristics and conditions of the bank debt registered in

Other creditors - Financial liabilities IFRS 7

5,497,385

22,211,820

204,013

625,877

6,118,398

5,596,058

30,591,446

27,040,849

Other creditors - Non financial liabilities
State and other public entities

(a)

(a)

Accrued costs:

13,762,969

7,623,321

9,516,566

9,367,336

Accrued costs - payable interests

1,114,188

1,186,021

Accrued costs - others

6,197,724

8,864,171

42,411,242

55,474,604

0

0

42,411,242

55,474,604

0

0

Accrued costs - costs with work in progress
Accrued costs - payable remunerations

Total
Creditors and accrued not current costs
Creditors and current accrued costs
Income tax

(a)

the Consolidated Financial Statement of EPS Group on December 2017 and 2016.

The breakdown of debt by credit instrument is as follows:

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Non current
(a)
These items are considered by
IFRS 7 as non-financial liabilities
(Note 3.4)

Current account

10,000,000

12,300,000

Bank loans

48,177,418

60,203,099

-870,794

-1,958,643

57,306,624

70,544,456

Amortized cost

Current
Bank overdrafts

1,300,873

260,557

The caption ”Creditors and accrued costs” shows a decrease of 13 million euros compared to the

Current account

222,421

1,195,124

previous year, which is a result of the evolution of customer advance payments. At the end of 2016,

Bank loans

12,049,156

0

the Group had two major advance payments received related to two projects in Angola and Central

Commercial Discount

339,709

1,416,483

Europe. In 2017, these amounts materialized in invoices issued and are no longer reflected in the

Amortized cost

balance sheet.
Total loans

-544,598

0

13,367,561

2,872,165

70,674,185

73,416,621
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By comparison, at the end of 2016, the maturity was as follows:

In October 2015, with the entry of the new shareholder, the companies Efacec Energia e Efacec

TYPE OF
INVESTMENTS

Engenharia e Sistemas renegotiated the syndicated loans obtained in 2014 from three credit institutions. At the end of 2017, the overall amount outstanding of this syndicated loan amounted to about

UP TO 1 YEAR

2-3 YEARS

4-5 YEARS

> 5 YEARS

TOTAL

70.2 million euros, of which 10 million in current account. This loan agreement has a covenant based
on the compliance with a debt ratio and an ownership clause that allows creditors to consider the
debt past-due if the reference shareholder has a direct or indirect ownership of EPS of less than 51%.

Bank overdrafts

260,557

0

0

0

260,557

Current account

1,195,124

0

12,300,000

0

13,495,124
60,203,099

0

24,081,240

24,081,240

12,040,620

1,416,483

0

0

0

1,416,483

0

-1,528,683

-429,960

0

-1,958,643

2,872,165

22,552,557

35,951,280

12,040,620

73,416,621

Bank loans
Commercial Discount

In addition to this contract, there are other short-term credit facilities, usually in the form of current

Amortized cost

account contracted in Portugal or directly by foreign subsidiaries with local financial institutions.

Total loans

Commercial Discount
The EPS Group has contracted some invoice discounting facilities to discount invoices issued to

Denomination of loans

customers. When an invoice is collected through a discount before its due date, the Group recognizes

The financial debt contracted by the companies of the EPS Group based in Portugal is fully denominated

the respective amounts in current liabilities.

in Euros. The other values relate to financing contracted locally by international subsidiaries such as
Efacec Algérie and Efacec Equipos Eléctricos in Spain. Currently, all loans contracted with financial
institutions are denominated in the functional currencies of the respective countries.

Descobertos bancários
Bank overdrafts include the use of current credit accounts, according to plafond and conditions previously
negotiated with financial institutions and without defined reimbursement periods, although they are

The book value of EPS Group loans was on 31 December 2017 and 2016, denominated in the following

generally assumed to be of short duration. There are some plafond of bank overdrafts negotiated

currencies:

in Portugal and in international subsidiaries, usually at variable interest rates, in accordance with

CURRENCY

the local interest rate index.

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Euro

EUR

70,057,142

71,555,297

Algerian dinar

DZD

593,516

963,001

About 96% of the bank debt on 31 December 2017 relates to the syndicated loan mentioned above,

Brazilian Real

BRL

23,476

0

repayable between 2018 and 2022.

Angolan Kwanza

AOA

50

0

Mozambican metical

MZN

0

898,323

Total

Total

70,674,185

73,416,621

Debt maturity

The maturity of bank debt on that date is shown in the following table:

TYPE OF
INVESTMENTS

UP TO 1 YEAR

2-3 YEARS

4-5 YEARS

> 5 YEARS

Effective interest rates

TOTAL

The effective interest rates related to debt instruments and currency were, at the end of 2017, as
follows:

Bank overdrafts
Current account
Bank loans
Commercial Discount
Amortized cost
Total loans

1,300,873

0

0

0

1,300,873

222,421
12,049,156

10,000,000

0

0

10,222,421

24,096,179

24,081,240

0

60,226,575

339,709

0

0

0

339,709

-544,598

-775,005

-95,789

0

-1,415,393

13,367,561

33,321,174

23,985,450

0

70,674,185

TYPE OF INVESTMENT

(a)
Includes commercial discount
operations carried out by Efacec
Equipos (EUR) and factoring
operations with recourse in Efacec
Algeria (DZD).

EUR

DZD

BRL

Bank overdraft

3,3%

8,5%

-

Current account

3,7%

-

-

Bank loans

3,2%

-

15,0%

Commercial discount (a)

3,0%

8,5%

-
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Covenants

Comparatively, at the end of 2016 the rates were as follows:

The EPS Group’s main financing agreement includes clauses that establish compliance with a Debt
TYPE OF INVESTMENT

EUR

DZD

MZN

Ratio, defined as Net Debt / EBITDA, whose maximum value should be 2.75. This contract ratio is

-

8,5%

34,3%

Current account

3,6%

-

28,2%

Bank loans

3,5%

-

-

Commercial discount (a)

6,0%

8,5%

-

Bank overdraft

evaluated in the consolidated accounts of Efacec Power Solutions, at June and at December.

These financial statements comply with the contractual ratio, as explained below:

COMPUTATION OF THE RATIO

Unused credit lines

31.12.2016

At floating rate

7,596,714
20,000,000

10,043,223
17,700,000

At fixed rate
expiring within one year

72,1

75,4

-31,1

-29,0

41,0

46,4

17,6

12,1

Amortization and depreciation

8,2

9,0

Provisions and assets impairment

6,9

2,0

32,7

23,2

1,3

2,0

Bank debt

31.12.2017

expiring after one year

31.12.2016

Net financial debt

The EPS Group has unused credit plafond, which is as follows:

expiring within one year

31.12.2017

602,539

572,347

28,199,253

28,315,570

(1)

(1) The bank debt does not include
the amount of financing expenses
incurred in 2014 and registered
under the amortized cost criterion.

Cash and cash equivalents (2)

(2) The caption “Cash and cash
equivalents”, include the short term
applications in the People’s Republic
of Angola treasury bonds held by
Efacec Angola as at 31 December
2017 (Note 13).

Operating profit

Statutory EBITDA

Indebtedness Ratio

Reconciliation of the debt variation with Cash Flows from financing activities
Guarantees

The following table reconciles financial debt with the cash flows arising from financing activities,

With regard to the syndicated financing above mentioned, contracted jointly by the subsidiaries

in accordance with IAS 7:

Efacec Energia and Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, the following guarantees were constituted by

NON-CASH

the borrowers:

EXCHANGE

Crossed guarantee between Efacec Energia, SA and Efacec Engenharia;
31.12.2016

Promissory Notes subscribed by Efacec Energia, SA and Efacec Engenharia, backed by Efacec

CASH FLOWS

VARIATIONS

ACQUISI-

RATE

BY

TIONS

DIFFERENC-

AMORTIZED

ES

COST

Power Solutions;

31.12.2017

Financial Pledge of shares of Efacec Energia and Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas
Non current loans
Current loans
Assets held for loan
coverage
Total cash flows from
financing

Financial leases

(a)

70,544,456

-2,275,122

-1,402

1,087,848

69,355,780

2,872,165

-929,737

-79,425

-544,598

1,318,404
0

0

73,416,621

-3,204,859

114,216

-63,507

Debt interest and similar
expenses

-3,409,176

Total cash flows from
financing

-6,677,542

0

-80,827

543,250

-8,424

0

-89,252

(a) The finance leases are presented under Suppliers. The value in the EPS Group is not materially relevant.

70,674,185

42,286

543,250
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18. DEFERRED TAXES

The most significant amount refers to losses with the Efacec Power Transformers subsidiary in

The assets and liabilities of deferred taxes were, at the date of the financial statement the following

the United States. In 2016, this subsidiary was liquidated and, therefore, Efacec Energia, that had

ones:

the direct financial investment, materialized the effective loss, registering the asset as a tax loss
that could be used in a 12-year period. In 2017, 0.4 million euros were used and, as of 31 December
31.12.2017

2017, the value of the asset amounted to 41.6 million euros, subject to deduction until 2028, under

31.12.2016

the conditions applicable by law.
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets

56,016,276

57,053,564

22,009,762

22,382,876

There are also deferred tax assets related to tax benefits in respect of R&D investments (SIFIDE),

Deferred tax liabilities

which amounted to 10.4 million euros at the end of 2017.

Recoverable after 12 months

The recoverability of deferred tax assets related to tax losses and tax benefits, totaling approx-

18.1 Deferred tax assets

imately 53 million euros, was subject to testing through projections of the business of the main

The value of the item deferred tax assets has the following breakdown:

companies integrating the Tax Consolidation Regime for this period, and based on the following
assumptions:

IMPAIRMENT
LOSSES
FINANCIAL
INVESTMENT

31 December 2015
Charged to the
income statement

44,388,766

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

FINANCIAL
TAX LOSSES

MENTS

RECEIVABLES

203,175

INSTRU-

590,716

0

TAX BENEFIT
TO REPORT

7,759,106

OTHER

ASSUMPTIONS

RISKS AND
CHARGES

1,854,225

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

TOTAL

54,795,988

-44,388,766

0

42,930 ,457

0

3,226,975

394,531

2,163,197

Exchange
differences

0

0

26,101

0

0

5,438

31,540

Charged to equity

0

0

0

3,660

0

0

3,660

Other changes

0

0

12,245

0

0

46,934

59,179

31 December 2016

0

203,175

43,559,519

3,660

10,986,081

2,301,129

57,053,564

Charged to the
income statement

0

-173,955

-789,865

0

-653,484

675,498

-941,805

Exchange
differences

0

0

-47,476

0

0

-45,847

-93,322

Charged to equity

0

0

0

-2,160

0

0

-2,160

Other changes

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

31 December 2017

0

29,220

42,722,178

1,500

10,332,596

2,930,781

56,016,276

Sales growth rate (CAGR) to 5th year

6,0%

6,5%

EBITDA average margin up to 5th year

8,3%

8,9%

Growth rate after the 5th. years
Tax Rate

0%

0%

21,0%

21,0%

Under these assumptions, no evidence of impairment was observed. Complementary sensitivity
analyzes performed allowed to support the consistency of the impairment tests.

The EPS Group recognizes deferred tax assets from tax losses to the extent that the realization of
the relevant tax benefit is probable by means of the existence of future taxable profit. In some of
these companies, including Efacec Contracting, Efacec Algérie and Efacec Angola, the EPS Group
considers that, at this time, there is a reduced capacity for deduction of tax losses on future taxable

The change in deferred tax assets in 2017 resulted mainly from the net use of tax losses and tax
benefits recorded in prior years, which together amounted to 1.4 million euros and to deferred tax
register of 0.5 million euros related to the movements made in provisions.

At 31 December 2017 this caption amounted to 56 million euros.

income, and therefore, no deferred taxes were registered.
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18.2 Deferred Taxes Liabilities

Provisions for pensions

Deferred tax liabilities provide, in a whole, from revaluations of assets made in some subsidiaries

As referred to in Notes 1.21.1 e 30.2, this item shows the responsibility of the EPS Group for the

companies and had the following development:

payment of retirement pension supplements. The amount recorded corresponds to the actuarial value
of defined benefit liabilities, calculated by an independent entity, and reported as of 31 December

ASSETS
REVALUATION

2017. In 2017, the composition of the group of beneficiaries did not change, however there was an

FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

OTHERS

increase of 13 thousand euros, due to the evolution of the drivers that contribute to the calculation

TOTAL

(a)

of the liability, namely wages and pensions.

704,093

0

22,690,474

23,394,566

-323,042

0

-681,069

-1,004,111

0

0

-7,579

-7,579

31 December 2016

381,051

0

22,001,826

22 382 876

Charged to the income
statement

-32,076

0

-470,678

-502,754

0

129,636

0

129,636

31 December 2015
Charged to the income
statement
Exchange differences

Charged to equity
Exchange differences
31 December 2017

Provisions for other risks and charges
This item includes provisions for repairs and after-sales support, penalties and negative deviations
from works in progress. These conditions relate to problems under debate with customers, related
to the attribution of responsibility, and are subject to continuing review by the various companies
in which they occur. The provision is made or enhanced when there is a reasonable likelihood of
unfavorable outcome for the company, presenting more appropriately the potential future liabilities of the EPS Group.

0

0

4

4

348,975

129,636

21,531,151

22,009,762

(a) Relating to
adjustments of
acquisition differences,
according to Note 8.

In 2017, the net change in provisions for other risks and charges was -0.4 million euros. Main new
provisions relate to ongoing projects in Algeria, amounting to 1.5 million euros, 0.6 million euros
for projects in Morocco and 0.5 million euros for Slovakia. There is also in the Transformers Unit a
provision of 1.1 million euros.

19. PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES

On the other hand, the amount presented in reversal of provisions relates to their use as their costs

Provisions for risk and charges showed the following development during the financial years 2017

are recognized, or to other situations that cease to exist. In 2017, certain amounts were reversed,

and 2016 (Note 22.3)

mainly the cancellation of a provision of 3.2 million euros, which had been constituted in 2014 and
2015, and it is now concluded that the inherent risk has ceased to exist and its maintenance is not

PENSIONS

OTHER RISKS
AND CHARGES

justified in the financial statements.

TOTAL
There are no contingent liabilities of environmental nature.

408,026

11,650,664

12,058,690

- additional provisions

98,406

2,052,714

2,151,120

- provisions reversals

-52,899

-1,874,817

-1,927,717

Exchange differences

0

-17,655

-17,655

31 December 2015
Charged to income statement:

0

186

186

453,532

11,811,092

12,264,625

- additional provisions

71,533

4,282,645

4,354,178

- provisions reversals

-58,168

-4,605,324

-4,663,491

Exchange differences

0

-63,779

-63,779

Other changes

0

919

919

466,898

11,425,553

11,892,451

Other changes
31 December 2016
Charged to income statement:

31 December 2017

20. DEFERRED INCOME

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Deferred invoicing

68,106,693

77,982,072

Concerning multiyear contracts (note 32)

66,458,644

75,390,238

1,648049

2,591,834

Other activities
Grants to investment
Other

2,467,735

390,944

117,667

811,481

70,692,095

79,184,498
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22. OPERATING COSTS

the Group’s investments. These amounts are recorded under this heading and recognized as gains

22.1 External Supplies and Services

in subsequent years, according to the useful life of the assets financed.

During the year that ended on 31 December 2017 and 2016, the main external supplies and services
The invoicing schedule agreed with customers is not strictly tied to the degree of completion that ends

were as follows:

up being recognized in the works. As such, the item “Deferred income” includes invoices issued but
not yet recognized in terms of the stage of completion of the respective works (Notes 1.16.3 and 32).

2017

2016

Subcontracts

67,102,934

67,029,735

Transport of goods

12,398,437

11,311,152

On 31 December 2016, the amount of minority interest refers to the component of equity attributable

Rental and leasing

8,486,771

7,726,877

to minority shareholders at Efacec Angola (1.7%), Efacec Power Solutions Argentina (0.4%) and the

Travel and accommodation expenses

8,352,208

9,588,091

enterprise group Efacec Bahia de Cadiz (50%).

Maintenance and repair

2,690,886

2,776,047

Fast wearing utensils and tools

2,514,692

3,816,335

Electricity

1,896,849

2,478,693

Insurance

1,637,669

1,505,942

Fuel

1,196,574

1,734,022

Comission fees

1,177,370

826,895

Fees

1,160,917

1,580,888

940,624

1,119,394

21. MINORITY INTERESTS

% IMINORITY
INTERESTS

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Efacec Angola

1,67

-86,580

-121,623

Efacec Power Solutions
Argentina

0,04

-266

1,602

50,00

8,602

2,053

-78,244

-117,968

UTE Efacec Bahía de Cádiz

Other supplies and services

Net income
Variations in the scope of consolidation
Other variations
Final balance

9,443,370
120,937,441

activities of companies of the EPS Group, having a high correlation with its turnover.

31.12.2017

Exchange rate differences

11,776,326
121,332,255

The item “Subcontracts” is the most expressive of these costs and relates mainly to operating

The variation in the year 2017 is detailed in the following table:

Opening balance

Communications

31.12.2016

-117,968

-102,559

9,410

-17,394

20,982

230

0

1,845

9,332

-91

-78,244

-117,968

22.2 Expenses with contracts termination
In 2017, this item amounted to 0.9 million euros. This amount includes 0.8 million euros of indemnities referring to agreements signed in 2017 with employees, but in which the respective payment
will occur only in 2018.

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

368

2 0 1 7

369

C O N S O L I D A T E D
F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S

22.3 Provisions and impairment of assets
The table below shows the developments in the various items of provisions and impairments and

In the previous year, the figures were as follows:

their reconciliation in the income statement.
ASSETS IMPAIRMENT
TANGIBLE

RECEIVABLE DEBT

AND
INTANGIBLE
2017

PROVISONS

CUSTOMERS

ASSETS

OTHER

ASSETS IMPAIRMENT
TANGIBLE

OTHER
INVENTORIES

RISKS AND

INTANGIBLE

CHARGES

DEBTORS

2016

Financial position:

RECEIVABLE DEBT

AND

PENSIONS

PROVISONS

CUSTOMERS

ASSETS

OTHER

OTHER

INVENTORIES

RISKS AND

PENSIONS

CHARGES

DEBTORS

Financial position:

832,593

16,536 ,492

5,488,938

71,005

11,811,092

453,532

966,271

16,771,016

5,488,938

761,317

11,650,664

Additions

0

6,572,890

934,743

9,945

4,282,645

71,533

Additions

0

752,000

0

78,634

2,052,714

98,406

Reversals

0

-1,124,657

-773,132

-1,350

-4,605,324

-58,168

Reversals

0

-195,589

0

-54,757

-1,874,817

-52,899

Decreases

-100,346

0

-10,371

0

0

0

Decreases

0

-291,862

0

0

0

0

0

-27,391

27,391

0

919

0

Transf. and adjustments

0

Exchange differences

-89,311

-235,659

-49,900

-78,316

-63,779

0

Exchange differences

Balance on 31.12.2016

642,936

21,721,676

5,617,669

643,284

11,425,553

466,898

Balance on 31.12.2015

Transf. and adjustments

In the income statement
Provisions and
impairmen
Other

Balance on 31.12.2016

Balance on 31.12.2016

0

0

0

0

186

-133,677

-499,075

0

-72,189

-17,655

0

832,593

16,536,492

5,488,938

713,005

11,811,092

453,532

In the income statement

6,907,171

-1,598,046

The value of provisions and impairments in operating costs includes additions and reversals.

Provisions and
impairmen
Operating gains and
losses

408,026

2,029,128

-1,270,942
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23. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The EPS Group records in the captions ‘Other operating costs’ and ‘Other operating income’ results
of diverse types that are linked to or triggered by the Group’s main operations.

Financial Losses and Gains

The detail of these items are as follows:
OTHER OPERATING COSTS

2017
31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Foreign currency exchange losses

2,436,300

0

Contractual fines and penalties

1,531,090

1,099,370

Non deductible taxes

724,704

841,479

Levies

136,830

230,044

Other operating costs and losses

667,744

1,387,640

5,496,667

3,558,533

Interests paid

31.12.2017

-2,918,936

-4,119,016

-250,412

0

Other financial costs and losses

-4,198,128

-3 191,603

Total Financial Costs and Losses

-7,367,475

-7 310,618

425,260

126,576

Foreign currency exchange gains

0

92,228

Other financial income and gains

7,752

4,286

433,011

223,090

-6,934,463

-7,087,528

Exchange differences losses

Interests earned

Total financial income and gains
Financial Costs - net

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2016

31.12.2016
In 2017, the financial costs in respect of the Group’s debt decreased to € 2.9 million euros, whereas

0

4,979,115

R&D subsidies

2,438,513

3,204,091

Internal costs capitalization

4,266,157

1,151,965

Services charged to MGI Capital

4,347,375

1,936,444

On the other hand, the caption “Other financial expenses and losses” increased to 4.2 million euros

Use of provisions (Note 22.3)

1,598,046

1,204,644

in 2017 (3.2 million euros in 2016) due to the increase in expenses with bank guarantees and invoice

Other operating gains and income

3,408,991

4,713,754

discounts.

16,059,081

17,190,013

Foreign currency exchange gains

interest earned increased to € 0.4 million euros.

In 2017 this caption includes the following expenses: (a) financing related bank guarantee fees
of 2.1 million euros, (b) 0.7 million euros of commercial discount charges, (c) 0.3 million euros of
Net operational exchange rate differences
The EPS Group recognizes as operating results the exchange rate differences resulting from the

stamp duty on contracts, (d) 0.3 million euros of banking charges, (e) 0.2 million euros of credit
insurance premiums and (f) 0.5 million euros of expenses related to amortized costs.

purchase and sale transactions, as they result from its normal activity in accordance with accounting treatment set on previous year. In 2017 the net exchange rate differences were negative in the

24. INCOME TAX

amount of 2.4 million euros recognized in other operating costs. In 2016, the EPS Group recorded as
‘Other operating income’ 5 million euros of positive net foreign exchange rate differences.

In Portugal, the annual tax returns are subject to review and potential adjustment by tax authorities
for a period of up to 4 years. However, if tax losses are used, these may be subject to review and
liquidation by the tax authorities for a period of up to 10 years. In other countries where the EPS
Group operates, these periods are different and, in most cases, higher.
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The reconciliation of the consolidated income tax is as follows:

the Group are based for the year ended 31 December 2017, were as follows:
2017
COUNTRY

2016

RATE

Portugal

21%

Angola

35%

Mozambique

32%

Algeria

26%

Spain

28%

1) Current income tax of the companies
that integrate the Tax Consolidation
Regime refers mainly to autonomous
taxation and municipal tax. The tax
on branches and foreign affiliates is
calculated based on the tax rates in
force in the geographies where they
are based.
2) The deferred tax adjustment for tax
benefits for R&D is based on estimates
made in previous years, which were
adjusted following the evaluation of
the requirements made by the entities
responsible for certifications.

The estimated tax in the consolidated income statement is as follows:
2017

Current tax (Note 11)

2016

1,825,951

2,052,156

439,051

-3,167,308

Income tax estimate

2,265,002

-1,115,151

Previous years taxes

844,404

1,171,155

3,109,406

56,004

Defered tax (Note 18)

Income tax

3) The deferred tax related to tangible
and intangible assets relates to the
revaluation of production equipment
and the valuation of the orders backlog
in 2014, when EPS made the acquisition
of subsidiaries. The respective amount
is the reversal of the deferred tax
liability by the amortization and
depreciation recognized in the period.

Current:
Previous years tax: Excess / Insufficiency

844,404

1,171,155

1,825,951

2,052,156

2,670,355

3,223,311

Tax estimate

789,865

1,458,310

Tax benefits

789,865

1,458,310

-1,613,359

-3,829,622

Tax estimate

(1)

Income tax - Current
Deferred:
Utilisation of prior year losses

Tax estimate

2,266,843

602,648

653,484

-3,226,975

Deferred tax related to provisions

-501,544

-394,531

Deferred tax related to tangible and intangible
assets (3)

-502,754

-1,004,111

439,051

-3,167,308

3,109,406

56,004

Previous years adjustments

(2)

Income tax - Deferred
Tax estimate

The reconciliation of the income tax rate is as follows:
2017

Profit before taxes

10,655,343

2016

5,041,257

22,50%

22,50%

2,397,452

1,134,283

Tax differences in branches

-584,771

-65,163

Tax rate differences in foreign subsidiaries

-419,236

-91,678

1,039,271

989,282

-52,870

323,941

Notional tax rate
Notional tax

Non recorded DTA in foreign subsidiaries
Costs non-deductible for tax purposes
Reversal of provisions without DTA
Deferred tax corrections from previous years

-669,302

0

2,513,221

-346,079

-1,856,921

-3,776,772

Use of international double taxation

-471,966

0

Tax credits

Tax benefities not used

-278,608

-357,603

Autonomous taxation

481,482

990,188

State surtax

221,877

180,339

Other

-54,627

-95,889

2,265,002

-1 115,151

21,3%

n.a

Corporate income tax
Effective tax rate

25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares issued during the year, excluding ordinary shares
purchased by EPS (Note 14).

2017

Profit attributable to the company’s equity holders
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
Basic earnings per share ( Euro per share)

2016

7,524,955

4,309,736

58,850,193

57,174,806

0,13

0,08
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Diluted

Geographical segment

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of outstanding

Currently, EPS does not use the concept of geographic segment in its management information.

ordinary shares to incorporate the effects of the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,

However, since it is a strongly exporting Group, it keeps the principle of reporting by destination

if any. In 2017 and 2016 years, there are no dilutive effects.

country of its products or services.
In this sense, relevant markets are identified as countries or regions where the EPS Group maintains

26. DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

recurring activity, including markets where it retains its own structures and other markets where it
maintains important customers through its sales network.

During the year 2017, Efacec Power Solutions did not perform any payment of dividends to its
shareholders.

We present below the main EPS Group’s activity indicators, broken down by the above-identified
business areas. Transfers or transactions between segments are made on normal commercial terms

F. Segment reporting
27. REPORT BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS
The EPS Group has a functional structure based on business segments. This structure is used in daily
management for performance appraisal purposes and decision-making.

Business segments
A Business Segment is a distinguishable component of the EPS Group committed in providing an
individual product or service, which is subject to different risks and returns from those of other
business segments.

The EPS Group’s business structure is organized, on a worldwide basis, 8 segments, called Business
Units:

Transformers
Service
Switchgear
Automation
Energy
Environment and Industry
Transportation
Electric Mobility

The tables also include an item called “Other non-allocated and adjustments” that gathers the
assets allocated to corporate centers and the disposals related to internal operations.

and conditions applicable to independent third parties.

27.1 Information by business segment
The financial information by business segment for the financial year ended on 31 December 2017
and 2016, relating to the turnover and profits, is analyzed as follows:
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OTHER NON
TRANSFORMERS

SERVICE

SWITCHGEAR

AUTOMATION

ENERGY

SALES AND SERVICES
RENDERED

ENVIRONMENT
AND INDUSTRY

TRANSPORT.

ELECTRIC

ALLOCATED

MOBILITY

AND

TOTAL

ADJUSTMENTS
2017

125,200,300

23,501,179

66,159,452

50,364,527

93,020,843

2016

151,592,753

26,518,688

61,780,544

39,817,345

100,492,499

2017

48,668,208

35,721,515

17,734,905

-28,484,159

431,886,771

2016

46,532,187

29,868,139

12,883,331

-31,531,312

437,954,175

OTHER NON

INCOME STATEMENT

TRANSFORMERS

SERVICE

SWITCHGEAR

AUTOMATION

ENERGY

INCOME STATEMENT

ENVIRONMENT
AND INDUSTRY

TRANSPORT.

ELECTRIC

ALLOCATED

MOBILITY

AND
ADJUSTMENTS

2017
EBITDA
Amortization and
depreciation
Provisions and assets
impairment

5,380,396

2,359,254

6,190,686

4,434,324

6,197,155

-1,820,833

-341,713

-2,460,779

-111,882

-104,780

2017
EBITDA

-629,937

352,102

10,051

168,064

-2,380,946

2,929,626

2,369,643

3,739,958

4,490,506

3,711,429

Net financial costs
(Note 23)

-1,582,219

48,793

-1,052,553

-878,686

341,792

Profit before tax

1,347,407

2,418,436

2,687,405

3,611,820

4,053,220

Operating profit

TOTAL

Amortization and
depreciation
Provisions and assets
impairment
Operating profit
Net financial costs
(Note 23)

Income tax

Profit before tax

Net profit for the year

Income tax

Attributable:

Net profit for the year

Shareholders

Attributable:

Minority Interests

Shareholders

2,082,247

3,673,283

1,194,348

1,164,276

32,675,968

-53,679

-30,858

-85,265

-3,169,202

-8,178,990

-590,732

-3,125,198

0

-710,575

-6,907,171

1,437,836

517,227

1,109,084

-2,715,502

17,589,807

-182,402

-241,286

-132,407

-3,255,496

-6,934,463

1,255,434

275,942

976,677

-5,970,997

10,655,343
-3,109,406
7,545,937
7,524,955
20,982

Minority Interests
2016
EBITDA
Amortization and
depreciation

3,321,797

2,315,607

4,297,651

3,906,675

3,488,925

-2,447,700

-370,775

-1,587,960

-163,570

- 230,133

EBITDA

Provisions and assets
impairment

-84,411

-27,530

28,249

-51,867

694,328

Operating profit

789,685

1,917,301

2,737,941

3,691,238

3,953,120

Net financial costs
(Note 23)

-1,969,442

-130,199

-1,244,409

-906,443

1,102,886

Profit before tax

-1,179,757

1,787,103

1,493,531

2,784,795

5,056,006

Income tax
Resultados oper.
descontinuação
Net profit for the year

2016

Amortization and
depreciation
Provisions and assets
impairment
Operating profit
Net financial costs
(Note 23)
Profit before tax
Income tax
Resultados oper.
descontinuação

Attributable:

Net profit for the year

Shareholders

Attributable:

Minority Interests

Shareholders
Minority Interests

2,846,227

2,830,643

787,535

-597,498

23,197,561

-15,076

-173,984

-125,952

-3,785,498

-9,039,648

-1,293,762

-28,250

0

-1,265,885

-2 029,128

1,398,389

2,628,409

661,583

-5,648,880

12,128,785

-31,796

-829,055

-192,144

- 2,886,926

-7,087,528

1,366,593

1,799,354

469,438

-8,535,806

5,041,257
- 56,004
-675,287
4,309,966
4,309,736
230
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The following table shows the balance sheet split by business segment, as well as the allocation of

The breakdown of revenues by market destination for the year ended on 31 December 2017 and 31

investments in the period.

December 2016 is as follows:

2017

2016

Portugal

94,948,062

103,829,926

135,660,130

Angola

51,148,018

48,455,700

1,701,879

Magreb

42,405,611

20,860,056

2016

United Kingdom

36,879,363

42,115,986

Total assets

United States

31,779,065

27,808,854

Spain

22,247,151

24,567,052

Middle East

18,428,356

9,996,100

France

16,923,530

10,915,376

Mozambique

15,344,757

12,163,508

Irland

15,329,310

12,126,143

Central Europe

11,469,721

18,140,094

Chile

10,804,064

23,968,035

TRANSFORMERS

SERVICE

SWITCHGEAR

AUTOMATION

ENERGY

2017
Total assets
Investments

Investments

165,540,035
4,143,392
193,002,282
2,381,058

32,184,713
791,455
33,916,331
253,146

85,003,969
1,712,705
85,275,067
1,453,796

55,889,445
1,115,250
48,127,228
444,710

125,189,773
135,294

OTHER NON
ENVIRONMENT
AND INDUSTRY

TRANSPORT.

ELECTRIC
MOBILITY

ALLOCATED
AND

TOTAL

ADJUSTMENTS

2017

Germany

6,122,675

6 ,585,781

Argentina

5,248,712

10,908,283

Other markes

Total assets

77,745,410

34,478,374

30,478,645

56,364,096

673,344,817

Investments

1,104,822

362,727

1,575,369

32,145,507

44,653,105

Total assets

67,607,540

30,603,367

22,785,126

31,709,594

638,216,309

Investments

32,023

23,055

218,428

75,719

5,017,230

Total

52,808,375

65,513,281

431,886,770

437,954,175

2016

G. Other Notes
28. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The assets of each segment mainly include tangible and intangible assets, inventories, accounts
receivable and cash and cash equivalents. Investments include, for those periods, additions to
tangible and intangible assets, including the goodwill (Notes 6, 7 and 8).

The scope of this note is the disclosure of transactions and balance between the EPS Group, formed
by Efacec Power Solutions and its subsidiaries, and the entities classified as interested parties.
Related parties are considered to be associated companies, Shareholder and Board Directors. The «
Shareholders» category includes entities where shareholders hold an important position, with weight

As noted above, the caption ‘Other non allocated and adjustments’ relates to the assets that are

in decision making, as well as the entities participating in direct shareholders.

assigned to the corporate centers. The investments in 2017 include the properties transferred to
EPS in 2017, amounting to 28.4 million euros and the respective Property Transfer Tax and Stamp
duty of 2 million euros (Note 5).

In 2017, the public electricity distribution company in Angola (ENDE) ceased to have a qualified
investment in Winterfell 2 (EPS Group main shareholder). Therefore, ENDE was excluded from related
parties, as well as all the other companies owned by the Angolan State. As a result, the transactions

27.2 Information by geography

and balances disclosed below show significant variations with respect to the year 2016, especially

In terms of geography, the EPS Group analyses its business indicators from the perspective of

with regard to “Sales and Services” and “Customers”.

target markets.
Transactions and balances between the Group’s companies that, in the meantime were excluded from
the consolidation process, are not disclosed.
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28.1 Transactions in 2017

28.3 Details by entity of balance with related parties
31.12.2017

The breakdown by entity of assets and liabilities presented above is as follows:

31.12.2016

Current transactions:
Shareholders

151,758

31.12.2017

20,058,335

4,505,641

6,095,987

Financial income and gains

156,517

1,346,384

Operating costs and losses

4,500,882

24,807,938

Operating income

C O N S O L I D A T E D
F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S

LOANS

CURRENT

LOANS

CURRENT

Shareholders

0

-38,750

0

17,562,971

724,605

12,842,256

724,605

12,998,408

0

-4,587,445

0

-5,645,334

724,605

8,216,061

724,605

24,916,045

EME2 - Engenharia, Manutenção
e Serviços, ACE

0

111,915

0

117,548

Ensul Meci-Efacec - Cogeração
do Porto, ACE

0

31 960

0

31,880

Winterfell Group and ascendants
The commercial terms in transactions are identical to those applied to independent third parties.

31.12.2016

MGI Group and ascendants
Impairment

Associates

28.2 Balance with Related Parties

The balances presented in the table below relate primarily to the group of entities that form Winterfell and its shareholders that, on 23 October 2015, became the majority shareholders on Efacec
Power Solutions, and the MGI Capital Group, a minority shareholder.

The EPS Group’s assets and liabilities included in the different items of the financial statement and
relating to related parties are the following:
31.12.2017

Totais

0

143,874

0

149,428

724,605

8,359,936

724,605

25,065,473

9,084,540

Net total

25,790,078

31.12.2016

28.4 Commitments and contingencies with related parties
Debts of Related Parties:
Shareholders
Current loans (Note 3.4)

724,605

724,605

1,419,693

19,671,801

Customers - impairment

-11,878

-1,069,767

Other debtors (Note 11)

13,824,292

13,061,968

Other debtors - impairment

-4,575,567

-4,575,567

Customers (Note 10)

111,915

117,548

31,960

31,880

11,525,019

27,962,467

Suppliers (Note 15)

1,299,702

1,156,774

Other creditors (Note 16)

1,140,778

1,015,615

2,440,479

2,172,390

9,084,540

25,790,078

Other debtors (Note 11)

28.5 Remuneration of the Board of Directors
In 2017 and 2016, the Board of Directors of Efacec Power Solutions received the following remuneration:

Associates
Customers (Note 10)

There are no purchase commitments or contingent liabilities with related parties.

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Debts to related parties:
Shareholders

Net total

Fixed remuneration

The impairment of other debtors relates to an old balance with Liaoyang - Efacec Electrical Equipment,
an associated company of MGI Capital.

Variable remuneration

1,627,408

1,508,600

513,974

0

2,141,382

1,508,600

A N N UA L

R E P O R T

2 0 1 7

382

29. CONTINGENCIES

383

C O N S O L I D A T E D
F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S

The decision was to keep the current provision, which is considered to be sufficient in light of the
reasons inherent to the arbitration process.

Contingent assets and liabilities arising from contractual disputes
We indicate below the values of contingent assets and liabilities arising from contractual disputes

3. Bouaghi Contingency

in which the EPS Group is involved.

The contingency herein regards to a contract for construction of water treatment plant in Bouaghi,
Algeria. The client ONA terminated the contract on 8 January 2017 due to delays in the construction

1. CPTM Contingency

works. The works, for which Efacec was responsible for, were so far concluded in time. Thus, Efacec

The CPTM/STM Contingency, which has been reported by Efacec since 2014, refers to the contract

understand that it has no responsibility for the fact alleged by ONA to terminate the contract. For

for the refurbishment of the signaling of several lines in the railway system of the State of São

now, no claim for compensation has been made by ONA, having instead invited the Parties to carry

Paulo in Brazil, executed between the Brazilian company CPTM and the consortium constituted by

out a valuation of costs and work performed up to the date of termination of the contract.

Union Switch & Signal International Co. and Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A. This contract was
terminated, with cause, by the Consortium on 24 November 2014.

The main contingency arises from the fact that ONA holds bank guarantees provided by Efacec in
the amount if approximately 1 million euros, which may be executed by virtue of the joint liability

Following this termination, the Consortium made a claim in the amount of approximately 197 million

of the consortium, in which case Efacec would have a right of recourse against Hydrotreatment.

BRL (approximately 50 million euros) which includes compensation for the executed construction
works and manufactured equipment, as well as, the amount related to contract’s finance rebalanc-

4. Tovisi Contingency

ing. In November 2016, the client made a compensation counterclaim in the amount of approximate-

In Mozambique there is a judicial proceeding filed by Tovisi Mozambique, a Efacec Mozambique’s

ly 585 million BRL (approximately 148 million euros). The client CPTM/STM claims the reimburse-

subcontractor in an engineering project in Maputo. Disagreements regarding the work management

ment of the costs with equipment as well as the payment of penalties.

led to the termination of the contract by Efacec Mozambique due to contractual breach of Tovisi
Mozambique. Following the termination, Tovisi Mozambique filed a legal proceeding claiming an

Considering the probability of success of each of the claims presented, there is no provision made.

amount of 78.758.069 MZM (~ 1.632.450 euros). Efacec Mozambique contested the indemnification
claim and made a counter-claim of about 75.000 euros. The legal proceeding is pending in a court

On 30 June 2017, the Consortium started an Arbitration Proceedings under the International

ruling and Efacec Mozambique believes in a favorable decision outcome.

Chamber of Commerce to settle this dispute.

5. Fundimo Contingency
2. Vadeni Contingency

The contingency herein regards to a judicial proceeding filed by Fundimo Real Estate Investment

The contingency herein regards to a contract for the construction of a waste treatment central

Fund, as landlord of a property rented by Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A., whose contract was

in the city of Vadeni, Romania, entered into between the Braila County Council and a Consortium

terminated by that company in 2014. The disagreement arises from distinct interpretations regard-

between Efacec Central Europe, Srl, Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A., and Teloxim, Srl. The client

ing the date on which Efacec could terminate the contract. Fundimo claims the payment of rents

terminated the contract in December 2016 due to alleged delays in the works and claimed a compen-

equivalent of the 12 additional months which Fundimo considers the mandatory duration of the

sation in the amount of 936 thousand euros plus penalties of 665 thousand euros. Simultaneously,

rental agreement, which amount to 1.3 million euros. Efacec believes it has complied with the legal

the client executed the bank guarantees that had been contractually provided, in the amount of

term provided to the unilateral termination of the contract. It is a judicial proceeding which has

553 thousand euros. A 1.2 million euros provision was made in Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A.

initiated in October and there is not any development to be registered so far.

accounts, which already includes the value of the executed bank guarantees.

6. Ensul Meci Contingency
On December 2017, the Client filed an arbitration process claiming an indemnification of 22 million
RON (about 5 million euros at current exchange rate), resulting from alleged damages incurred
by the Client and contractual penalties. Efacec responded to the law suit, alleging the illegality of
the contractual termination, the inexistence of the alleged damages and of the right to apply the
contractual penalties in the claimed amount.

In the last financial year, Ensul Meci Efacec – Cogeração do Porto ACE was subject to a tax inspection
regarding corporation tax of 2013 and 2014 financial years. During the inspection, the Tax Authority
(Autoridade Tributária e Aduaneira) detected several contingencies which regard namely to (a) the
elimination of 2011 accrued revenues, (b) the regularization of balance statements of associated
accounts, (c) the elimination of suppliers’ statements, and (d) expenses not duly documented which
were rebutted by the Incorporated Joint Venture (“ACE”) in the respective right of preliminary hearing.
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In November 2017, the Tax Authority issued an inspection project report regarding all the incorporated

30.2 Pensions

joint venture entities – Efacec Energia and Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas – reflecting on those entities

In the EPS Group there are supplementary retirement pension complements according to what is

the identified contingencies. Each one of these entities exercised its right of preliminary hearing and

described in Note 1.21.1.

the Tax Authority issued a final report on the inspection accepting the documents presented regarding the expenses which were not documented, but keeping the other contingencies. The non-judicial

The existing cases are managed by the Group and are subject to an annual assessment by specialized

appeal regarding these amounts are being prepared by each entity affected by this proceeding – the

independent entities, the future liability being presented in the financial statement under the item

Incorporated Joint Venture, Efacec Energia and Efacec Engenharia, as joint participants, and MGI

‘Provisions for Pensions’ (Note 19), and corresponds to the present value of liabilities for benefits

Capital as controlling company of the Group for tax purposes during the tax years of 2013 and 2014.

defined at the date of the balance sheet. As at 31 December 2017, 17 persons are covered by this
benefit, and the respective provision amounting to 467 thousand euros. At the end of the previous

Taking into account the position adopted by the Incorporated Joint Venture Entities (Efacec Energia

year this provision amounted to 454 thousand euros.

and Efacec Engenharia) and their statutory liability which is in the proportion of their shares, the
contingency for EPS Group rises to approximately 7.2 million euros. On the other hand, pursuant to

30.3 Operating lease commitments in which the Group is the tenant

the Share Purchase Agreement signed between Winterfell 2 and MGI Capital, EPS Group has a right
of recourse against MGI Capital in connection with any potential liabilities that it may have to assume
under this contractual dispute.

The EPS Group leases various vehicles through non-revocable lease agreements. The lease terms
have various lease periods, readjustment clauses and renewal rights. On the date of the financial
statement, the Group held Long Term Rentals (“Renting”) contracts considered as an operating lease,
the value of the outstanding lease amounted to 1 916 thousands euros, with the following maturities:

30. COMMITMENTS

30.1 Guarantees
31.12.2017

31.12.2016

EPS Group has contingent liabilities related to bank guarantees and other contingencies related to
its business. The bank guarantees are mainly linked to the projects and orders received and their

Up to 1 year

beneficiaries are the EPS Group customers.

Between 1 and 5 years

The following table shows the volume of bank guarantees, distributed between:
a) Financial guarantees, which mainly include guarantees issued in favour of customers in order to

880,611

882,360

1,035,063

1,296,597

1,915,674

2,178,958

31. Joint arrangements

receive advance payments, amounts related to contractual retentions and stand-by letters of credit, and

The EPS Group has investments in joint operations and joint ventures, which take the legal form of

b) Other guarantees, especially guarantees for tenders and supply/performance guarantees.

Complementary Companies Groupings (ACEs) (Note 1.2). These entities provide services resulting
from contracts entered with customers, mainly in the Energy, Environment, Transportation and
Service business units.

31.12.2017

31.12.2016
The following tables show information concerning assets, equity, income and profits of each joint

65,417,388

67,359,823

Other guarantees

144,001,298

134,594,786

Total

209,418,686

201,954,609

Financial guarantees

These contingencies are not expected to result in significant liabilities, except for the guarantees
related to projects with significant contingencies (Note 29).

arrangements integrated in Efacec Power Solutions accounts in 2017. The values included in these
indicators correspond to the statutory accounts of entities expressed in Euro, before applying
integration rates.

The comparative figures for the year 2016 are as follows:
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The following amounts represent the share of the Group in the assets, liabilities and net worth of

31 December 2017

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

C O N S O L I D A T E D
F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S

HEAD
OFFICES

%

METHOD

ASSETS

EQUITY

joint operations, and are included in the consolidated financial statement by integrating the ACE’s.

TOTAL
INCOME

Joint Ventures
Siemens, Suez e Efacec Serv Manut, ACE

Amadora

33,0%

PRO

254,309

0

519,343

EME2 - Engenharia, Manutenção
e Serviços, ACE

Lisboa

40,0%

ECM

255,122

0

0

UTE Efacec Engenharia SA
y Cemesa SL

Tenerife /
Espanha

GACE - Gondomar, ACE

PRO

194,295

194,295

0

Porto

20,0%

PRO

45,901

0

0

UTE Efacec Bahía de Cádiz

Sevilha /
Espanha

50,0%

FULL

681,576

17,203

765,829

EfaServicing, ACE

Matosinhos

100,0%

FULL

1,216,050

354,334

1,576,617

Ensul Meci-Efacec - Cogeração
do Porto, ACE

2017

Matosinhos

Almada

100,0%

100,0%

FULL

ECM

209,683

506,412

17,866

-561,046

2016

Assets:

746

2,817

2,383,611

1,937,395

2,384,356

1,940,212

Non current assets

100,0%

Efacec, Manutenção do Sistema
de Saneamento do Oeste, ACE

JOINT OPERATIONS

Current assets

Liabilities:
Non current liabilities
Current liabilities

183,137

53,507
755,827

1,800,658

809,334

Equity

583,698

1,130,879

Profits

2,744,591

2,059,542

Losses

2,487,043

2 ,012,550

257,548

46,992

Profit after tax

25,965

82,638
1,718,020

EME2 - Engenharia, Manutenção e Serviços, ACE is a joint venture in which the EPS Group holds an

Joint Operations

interest of 40%, using the equity method, as indicated in the table above. This ACE has terminated
its substation maintenance contract, and is in the process of dissolution.

31 December 2016

JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

HEAD
OFFICES

%

METHOD

ASSETS

EQUITY

TOTAL
INCOME

32. MULTI-YEAR CONTRACTS
Multi-year contracts are accounted for revenue in accordance with the percentage-of-completion
method, as established in Note 1.16.3

SMA - Serv Manut Centrais
Termoelétricas, ACE

Oeiras

Siemens, Suez e Efacec - Serv
Manut, ACE

100,0%

INT

865,664

847,824

42,549

Amadora

33,0%

PRO

210,298

0

237,495

EME2 - Engenharia, Manutenção
e Serviços, ACE

Lisboa

40,0%

ECM

1,652,972

0

0

UTE Efacec Engenharia SA y
Cemesa SL

Tenerife /
Espanha

90,0%

PRO

228,574

198,079

36,141

GACE - Gondomar, ACE

Porto

20,0%

PRO

47,861

0

0

UTE Efacec Bahía de Cádiz

Sevilha /
Espanha

50,0%

FULL

658,340

22,769

747,599

Amounts relating to multi-year contracts as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:
The inventories relating to multi-year contracts refer to costs incurred which have not yet been
used in the work or site and consequently the margin resulting therefrom is not recognized.
2017

2016

344,168,150

344,314,376

Accumulated costs incurred (a)

1,758,621,237

1,599,932,333

Recognized margins at date (a)

254,240,456

207,809,509

2,740,112

5,590,158

Accrued income (Note 10)

78,054,271

70 ,154,026

Deferred income - advance payments

16,598,026

29,503,358

Deferred income - invoicing to be recognized

49,860,617

45,886,880

Income recognized in the year
(Closed and open contracts)
Multiyear contracts still open at closing balance date:

EfaServicing, ACE

Matosinhos

100,0%

FULL

839,398

82,014

1,077,613

Ensul Meci-Efacec - Cogeração
do Porto, ACE

Almada

100,0%

\ecm

1,505,833

-543,498

850

a) Amounts not consolidated, which
include multiyear contracts amounts
incurred in the 2017 financial year and
in previous years.

Inventories - Products and works in progress
(Note 12)
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The accrued income represents situations in which the stage of invoicing is lower than the stage

34. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

of completion, and an accrual is made to recognize the respective margin. This situation config-

fter the date referred to in the financial statements, there were no facts worthy of note.

ures a debit to the customer due to the work / installation already carried out (Note 10 - Accrued
Income). When the opposite situation occurs, the stage of the invoicing grade is higher than the

Leça do Balio, 23 March, 2018

stage of completion, there is a deferred income, which represents a credit of the client against the
developed work (Note 20 - Deferred Income), whose margin will only be recognized in subsequent
years.

The Consolidation Director
José Carlos Eiras Pinto de Oliveira

The reconciliation of the item ”Income recognized in the year” regarding multi-year contracts
closed or still open with the total sales and services rendered can be shown as follows:

The Board of Directors
Mário Filipe Moreira Leite da Silva – Chairman
2017

2016

Ângelo Manuel da Cruz Ramalho – Director
Francisco José Meira Silva Nunes – Director

Recognized income related to multiyear contracts
(Note 1.16)

Luís Henrique Marcelino Alves Delgado – Director

344,168,150

344,314,376

Income related to standard manufactured products

49,959,808

53,035,317

Income related to maintenance and assistance
services

19,763,926

20,348,140

Other income

17,994,886

20,256,342

431,886,771

437,954,175

Total consolidated sales and services rendered

Fernando José Gomes da Mota Lourenço – Director
António José Gonzalez Almela – Director
João Paulo dos Santos Pinto – Director
Rui Alexandre Pires Diniz – Director
Miguel Maria Pereira Vilardebó Loureiro – Director
Manuel António Carvalho Gonçalves – Director
Vanessa Ferreira Loureiro – Director

33. FEES PAID TO AUDITORS
In 2017 and 2016, the EPS Group contracted services of the Statutory Auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers & Associates and respective international network, for which it paid the following fees:

2017

2016

Audit:
Statutory audit
Reliability assurance services
Other services:
Tax consultancy services
Other consultancy services

198,872

197,017

4,807

752

203,679

197,769

89,447

51,164

513,961

309,513

603,408

360,677

807,086

558,446
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
NOTES

MONETARY VALUES ARE EXPRESSED IN EUROS

2017

2016

ASSETS
Non current assets
Tangible fixed assets

4

31 682,700

21,264

Financial investments

5.1

375,327,833

373,334,608

Financial assets held for sale

5.2

301,132

11,132

Loans to related parties

16

21,470,846

21,146,552

Deferred tax assets

11
Total non current assets

345,100

345,100

429,127,611

394,858,657

Current assets
CHAPTER

Customers and accrued income

05 5.2

Loans to related parties

6

186,897

6,637

16

8,760,843

3,985,706

Debtors and deferred costs

7

12,773,226

7,540,486

Income tax

7

1,118,062

266,343

Cash and cash equivalents

8

185,006

128,703

Total current assets

23,024,033

11,927,874

Total assets

452,151,644

406,786,530

285,874,030

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital

9.1

314,235,160

Share premium

9.2

1,947,730

8,000,000

Other equity instruments

9.3

35,900,000

35,900,000

Reserves and retained earnings

9.4

3,040,212

-6,052,270

9

355,123,102

323,721,760

Total Equity
Non current liabilities
Loans from related parties

16
Total non current liabilities

74,167,109

73,301,275

74,167,109

73,301,275
250,000

Current liabilities
Loans from related parties

16

12,598,748

Suppliers

10

1,174,399

600,136

Creditors and accrued costs

10

9,088,286

8,913,359

Total current liabilities

22,861,433

9,763,495

Total Equity and Liabilities

452,151,644

406,786,530

Attached notes hereafter are an integral part of the Financial Statements

The Certified Accountant

The Board of Directors
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F I N A N C I A L

INCOME STATEMENT BY NATURE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

NOTES

MONETARY VALUES ARE EXPRESSED IN EUROS

2017

2016
MONETARY VALUES ARE

5,812,454

5,893,930

-7,381,124

-2,284,015

-2,747,060

-1,992,639

-188,413

-4,459

-70,221

-174,809

Sales and services rendered
Third parties supplies

12

Personnel expenses
Amortization and depreciation

4

Other operating costs

1,873,592

1,800,005

-2,700,773

3,238,013

Other operating gains
Operating income
Financial losses

13

-3,684,356

-2,952,489

Financial gains

13

948,917

925,570

Losses/Gains in Associated Companies

13

7,374,629

0

1,938,416

1,211,093

Income before tax
Income tax - Deferred

14

0

-17,015

Income tax - Current

14

1,101,796

-487,320

Net Income

15

3,040,212

706,758

Net income per share
Basic

15

0,05

0,01

Diluted

15

0,05

0,01

EXPRESSED IN EUROS

RESERVES

OTHER

SHARE

SHARE

CAPITAL

PREMIUM

EQUITY
INSTRUM.

AND

TOTAL

RETAINED

EQUITY

EARNINGS

Balance as at
1 January 2016

285,874,030

8,000,000

35,900,000

-6,759,028

323,015,002

Capital increase

0

0

0

0

0

Other equity
instruments

0

0

0

0

0

Comprehensive
income for the year

0

0

0

706,758

706,758

Balance as at
31 December 2016

285,874,030

8,000,000

35,900,000

-6,052,270

323,721,760

Balance as at
1 January 2017

285 874,030

8,000,000

35,900,000

-6,052,270

323,721,760

Capital increase

28 361 130

0

0

0

28,361,130

Other equity
instruments

0

0

0

0

0

Loss coverage

0

-6,052,270

0

6,052,270

0

Comprehensive
income for the year

0

0

0

3,040,212

3,040,212

Balance as at
31 December 2017

314,235,160

1 ,947,730

35,900,000

3,040,212

355,123,102

Attached notes hereafter are an integral part of the Financial Statements

The Certified Accountant

The Board of Directors

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT

as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
MONETARY VALUES ARE EXPRESSED IN EUROS

Net Income

(1)

Other Comprehensive Income

(2)

Total comprehensive income for the year

(1)+(2)

2017

3,040,212

706,758

0

0

3,040,212

706,758

Attached notes hereafter are an integral part of the Financial Statements

The Certified Accountant

Attached notes hereafter are an integral part of the Financial Statements

2016

The Board of Directors

The Certified Accountant

The Board of Directors
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NOTES ON
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
MONETARY VALUES ARE EXPRESSED IN EUROS

NOTES

2017

2016

Operating Activities
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable

5,925,710

9,590,156

11,029,142

3,852,825

2,665,597

1,893,903

(7,769,029)

3,843,428

400,190

(2,029)

Other receipts / payments related to operating activities

(2,156,488)

3,165,157

with registered offices at Arroteia, Parish of Leça do Balio, Guifões and Custóias, Municipality of

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

(9,525,328)

7,006,556

Matosinhos, Portugal. EPS was incorporated on August 14, 2014, having as object the management of

Paid to personnel
Cash Flow generated by Activities
Payment / receipt of income tax

[1]

A. General Information
Efacec Power Solutions SGPS, S.A. (“Efacec Power Solutions” or “EPS”) is a limited liability company

shareholdings as an indirect form of performing economic activities. The formation of Efacec Power
Investing Activities

Solutions was part of the restructuring process that Efacec Capital, SGPS, SA ( “Efacec Capital”)

Inflows:

initiated from the end of 2013, and which continued throughout 2014, in order to align the corporate

Financial investments

106,775

8,520

Interests and similar income

339,472

519,172

7,374,629

0

7,820,876

527,692

Financial investments

1,790,000

1,647,450

Tangible assets

2,449,881

0

Dividends

structure of the Efacec Group with covered market segments and target geographies. At the end of
2014, Efacec Power Solutions became by itself a group of companies for the development of activities
in the fields of Energy, Engineering, Environment, Transportation and Electric Mobility solutions. The
EPS Group also covers a wide network of branches and agents across 4 continents.

Outflows:

Cash flow from Investing Activities

[2]

4,239,881

1,647,450

3,580,995

(1,119,758)

Financing Activities

On 23 October 2015, the society Winterfell 2 Limited acquired at Efacec Capital a shareholding of
Efacec Power Solutions and became the majority shareholder.

The financial information is presented in euros, unless indicated differently.

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2018.

Inflows:
Obtained / granted non current loans
Obtained / granted current loans

0

0

42,679,772

44,121,878

42,679,772

44,121,878

34,299,955

46,452,796

2,379,180

3,524,796

36,679,135

49,977,592

6,000,636

(5,855,714)

56,303

31,083

The financial statements of Efacec Power Solutions were prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in force since January 1, 2017, as adopted by the European Union.

Outflows:

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Obtained / granted current loans
Interests and similar expenses
Cash flow from financing activities

[3]

Change in cash and cash equivalents [A]-[B]-[C]=[1]+[2]+[3]
Impact of exchange rates [C]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year [B]
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year [A]

8

0

0

128,703

97,619

185,006

128,703

The principal accounting policies used to prepare these financial statements are described below.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared taking into account the historical cost convention except
for land, financial assets and financial liabilities, which are recorded at their fair value.

Attached notes hereafter are an integral part of the Financial Statements

The Certified Accountant

B. Summary of the principal accounting policies
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The preparation of financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

DESCRIPTION

requires the use of some important accounting estimates. It also requires that the Governing Bodies

CHANGES

F I N A N C I A L

I N D I V I D U A L
S T A T E M E N T S

EFFECTIVE
DATE

practice their judgment in the process applied to the accounting policies of the EPS Group. The areas

3. Standards (new and amendments) and interpretations that will become effective, on or after 1 January 2018, not yet
endorsed by the EU

involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 2.

3.1 – Standards
The standards, interpretations and revisions issued by the different bodies that oversee the implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards - IASB, IASC, SIC and IFRIC - are listed below,

Annual improvements to IFRS
2014 - 2016

Clarifications to IFRS 1, IFRS 12 and IAS 28

01-01-2017/
/01-01-2018

IAS 40 – Investment property

Clarification that evidence of the change in use is required,
when assets are transferred to, or from investment
properties category

01/01/2018

IFRS 2 – Share-based payments

Measurement of cash-settled share-based payments,
accounting for modifications and classification as equitysettled share-based payments when employer withholds tax

01/01/2018

IFRS 9 – Financial instruments

Accounting treatment options for financial assets with
negative compensation features

01/01/2019

IAS 28 – Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Clarification regarding long-term investments in associates
and joint ventures that are not being measured through the
equity method

01/01/2019

Annual improvements
to IFRS 2015 - 2017

Clarifications: IAS 23, IAS 12, IFRS 3, IFRS 11

01/01/2019

IFRS 17 – Insurance contracts

New accounting for insurance contracts, reinsurance
contracts and investment contracts with discretionary
participation characteristics.

01/01/2021

IFRIC 22 – Foreign currency
transactions and advance consideration

Foreign exchange rate to apply when consideration is paid
or received in advance

01/01/2018

IFRIC 23 – Uncertainty over income tax
treatments

Clarifies how the recognition and measurement
requirements of IAS 12 ‘Income taxes’, are applied where
there is uncertainty over income tax treatments

01/01/2019

together with the date of application and approval by the European Union.

DESCRIPTION

CHANGES

EFFECTIVE
DATE

1. Effective amendments to standards as at 1 January 2017

IAS 7 – Cash flow statement

Reconciliation of changes in financing liabilities with Cash
flows for financing activities

01/01/2017

IAS 12 – Income taxes

Accounting for deferred tax assets on assets measured at
fair value, the impact of deductible temporary differences
in future taxable income estimates and the impact of
restrictions on the recoverability of deferred tax assets

01/01/2017

2. Standards (new and amendments) that will become effective, on or after 1 January 2018, endorsed by the EU
3.2 - Interpretations
IFRS 9 – Financial instruments

New standard for the accounting of financial instruments’

IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts
with customers

Revenue recognition for the provision of goods or services,
following a five step approach

IFRS 16 – Leases

New definition of lease. New accounting of lease contracts to
lessees. No major changes to lessors lease accounting.

IFRS 4 – Applying IFRS 4 with IFRS 9

Temporary exemption for insurance companies only, from
applying IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2021.
Overlay approach for assets within IFRS 4 that qualify as
FVTPL under IFRS 9 and at amortised cost under IAS 39,
being the measurement difference reclassified to OCI.

01/01/2018

01/01/2018

01/01/2019

The possible impacts of adopting some of these standards are still under analysis, namely with
respect to the application of IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16, therefore up to this date it is not possible

Amendments to IFRS 15 - Revenue
from contracts with customers

Identification of performance obligations, timing of revenue
recognition from licenses of IP, change to principle versus
agent guidance, and new practical expedients on transition

01/01/2018

Alterações à IFRS 15 – Rédito de
contratos com clientes

Identificação das obrigações de desempenho, momento
do reconhecimento do rédito de licenças PI, revisão dos
indicadores para a classificação da relação principal versus
agente, e novos regimes para a simplificação da transição.

01/01/2018

to quantify the respective impacts.

1.2 Tangible Assets
Land and buildings consist primarily of factories and offices. Land is stated at fair value. Other
tangible assets are stated at historical cost, less depreciation, including all expenditures directly
attributable to the acquisition of property.
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Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the company and the cost can be measured
reliably. The other repairs and maintenance costs are recognized as expenses in the period they incur.
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1.3 Financial Assets
1.3.1 Classification
The company classifies its financial assets according to the following categories: at fair value through

According to the accounting policies of EPS for determining the fair value, land is subject to triennial

profit or loss, loans and receivables and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose

valuations by independent experts. Valuations rely on using the criteria of market comparison and

for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial

substitution costs. Revaluations are recognized in equity, net of the related deferred tax. Deprecia-

assets during the initial recognition.

tions, if any, are deducted from equity within the limits of the revaluation reserves existing for the
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

same assets. Profit is recognized through the excess of that limit.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial
When tangible assets recorded at fair value are disposed, the amount included in revaluation reserves

asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the short

is transferred to retained earnings.

term. Derivatives are also classified under this category unless designated for hedging. Currently,
EPS has no such financial assets.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of other assets is calculated by the straight-line method, on a
monthly basis on the cost or revaluation, in order to allocate their cost or revalued amount to their

(b) Loans granted and accounts receivable

residual value, depending on their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans granted and receivables are classified as current assets,

ITEM

YEARS

except if maturities are greater than 12 months after the closing date of the financial year, in which
case these are classified as non-current assets.

Buildings and other construction

25 – 50

Plant and Equipment

8 – 16

Vehicles

4–5

Tools and Utensils

4–8

Office Equipment

4–6

(c) Financial assets held to maturity
Currently, the company has no financial assets held to maturity.

(d) Financial assets available for sale
Financial assets available for sale are non-derivative financial assets that are not essential to the

The depreciation process starts in the month following the month in which the asset is brought into

continued operation of the EPS. These financial assets are classified as non-current, unless the assets

operation.

expire or if management intends to sell them within 12 months after the reporting date.

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the closing

1.3.2 Recognition and measurement

date of financial statement. If the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the asset, it

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date - the date on which the

is immediately adjusted to the estimated recoverable amount.

Company commits itself to purchase or sell the assets. Investments are initially recognized at fair
value plus transaction costs, unless classified at fair value in the income statement. Financial assets

Gains and / or losses on disposals and write-offs are determined by the difference between their

at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and their transaction costs

carrying amount and value of sale or write-off, being in the latter case null and included in Income

recorded in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash

for the period.

flows from the investments have expired, or at the time the risks and benefits of their ownership are
transferred. Financial assets available for sale and financial assets at fair value through results are
subsequently measured at fair value. Credits and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of financial assets classified under the category of
“fair value through profit or loss” are recorded in the Income Statement as ‘Financial Costs’ in the
period in which they occur.
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Customers’ account receivables and other debtors are initially recognized at their nominal value or

The criteria used by the company to determine whether there is objective evidence of an impairment

fair value, if different, less any impairment loss.

loss include:
Significant financial difficulties of the issuer or debtor;

Customer’s receivables are derecognised when all the significant risks and benefits associated with

Breach of contract provisions, such as due date of payment of interests or capital;

the cash flows of the financial asset are transferred to another entity. If the entity retains its exposure

The possibility of the debtor opening for bankruptcy or undergoing a financial restructuring;

to the total voletility in the present value of future net cash flows associated with the financial asset,

The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset for reasons of financial difficulties; or

such asset is not derecognised.

Observable data, indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets, a decrease that took place after the initial recognition of those assets,

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impairment is recorded, the cumulative

but that cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets. These data include:

value of adjustments to fair value recognized in fair value reserves is recognized in the income

(i) Adverse changes in the payment status of debtors from that portfolio, and

statement as “Gains or losses in other businesses”.

(ii) National or local economic conditions in relation with the payment failure of the assets in the
portfolio.

Interest on securities classified as available for sale are calculated using the effective interest method,
and recognized in the income statement under “other income”. Dividends of shares available for sale

The company first assesses whether there is evidence of impairment.

are recognized in the income statement once the company is entitled to get them.
The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the value at which the asset is measured

1.3.3 Presentation by net value
Assets and financial liabilities are presented in the financial statement by their net amount reported
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and an intention to settle
on a net basis.

and the current estimate of future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
registered) discounted at the effective interest rate. The value to which the asset is measured is
reduced, and the amount of the loss is recognized in the income statement. As a practical expedient,
the company can measure the amount of impairment based on the fair value of the instrument, using
an observable market price. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases

1.3.4 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Loans granted and receivables
The adjustment for impairment of account receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the company will not receive all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The
adjustment amount is the difference between the value presented and the present estimated value
of future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The adjustment value is recognized
in the income statement.

(b) Assets carried at amortized cost
The company assesses at each date of its Financial Statement whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. If financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired, impairment losses being recorded only when there is objective evidence thereof
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event)
and that such an event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows produced by the
assets or group of assets that can be reliably estimated.

and the decrease can be objectively attributed to an event which occurred after the impairment was
recorded (such as improved credit rating of the debtor), then the previously recognized impairment
is reversed in the consolidated income statement.

(c) Assets classified as available for sale
(c1) The company assesses at the end of each reporting period date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the company uses
the criteria described above in (a). In the case of equity instruments of other entities classified
as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of shares relative to their
costs also constitute evidence of impairment. If such evidence exists for assets available for sale,
the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the fair value at
date, less any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or loss account for the financial asset
in question - is removed from equity and recognized in the income statement. Impairment losses
recognized in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income
statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt security rated available for sale increases and the increase can be objectively attributed to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized in the income, then the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.
(c2) AThe company assesses the investments made in companies of the group and associates when
there is evidence that a financial asset is impaired and recognized in the income statement possible
impairment losses. The company checks, on each financial statement date, where there is objective
evidence of impairment of any financial investment. If there is such evidence, the accumulated loss,
calculated by the difference between the balance sheet value and the current fair value, is recognized
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in the income statement of the period in which the impairment is verified. An impairment loss is

1.7 Payables to suppliers and other creditors

recognized for the excess of the amount of the asset book value over its recoverable amount. The

Payables to suppliers and other creditors are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently

recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value of an asset less selling costs and its value in use.

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The accounts payable are classified

In determining the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted using a discount rate

as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the

that reflects current market and reviews of specific risk of the asset.

business if longer). If not, the accounts payable are presented as non-current liabilities.

Income from financial investments in group companies and associates (dividends received) are

1.8 Current and Deferred Income Tax

recorded in the results of the period in which the respective distribution is announced.

Efacec Power Solutions and its national subsidiaries are subject to the Tax Consolidation Regime
(RETGS) applicable to groups that include companies in which they hold shares of 75% or above and

1.4 Cash and cash equivalents

which comply with the conditions of Article 63 of the Corporate Income Tax Code. The consolidat-

The item ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ includes cash, bank deposits and other short-term investments

ed tax is determined by the arithmetic sum of the taxable gains and losses as determined by each

with high liquidity. Bank overdrafts are presented in the financial statement, in current liabilities,

company on an individual basis.

under the heading “Loans”.
The income tax of the company includes current tax and deferred tax.

1.5 Equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Current tax is calculated based on current tax law, or substantially prevailing at the date of the financial
statement in countries where the subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income.

Additional costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, of capital inflows.

The management bodies review periodically their analysis in this area and recognize provisions
for probable tax contingencies for cases under review, as well as possible adjustments made by tax
authorities. These provisions are recorded at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

1.6 Debts to Financial Institutions and Related Parties
Loans obtained are initially recognized at their nominal value. Loans are subsequently stated at
amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the amortized
value is recognized in the income statement over the period of the loan using the effective interest
method.

Loans obtained are classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the date of the financial statement
closing date.

Interests and other financial charges related to loans are generally recognized as expenses in
accordance with the accrual accounting principle.

Interests and other financial charges on loans, which are directly related to the acquisition,
construction or production of fixed assets, are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. The
capitalization begins after the start of preparation of the construction or development of the asset
and stops when the asset is ready for use or when the project is suspended. Any income earned on
loans, directly related to a specific investment is deducted from financial costs eligible for capitalization.

Deferred tax is calculated based on the value of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities and their tax base. However, deferred tax is not recorded if it occurs from
the initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction, which does not constitute a business
combination that at the time of the transaction does not affect the income and costs, not accounting
or not taxable. Deferred tax is determined in the light of current legislation and rates, or substantively
in force at the reporting date, and are expected to apply when performing the deferred tax asset or
settlement of the deferred tax liability.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only when the existence of future taxable income is expected,
under which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred taxes are calculated based on the current tax rate, which is estimated to be applicable on
the date of realization of deferred tax assets or on the date of payment of deferred tax liabilities.

Assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented in the financial statement at net value when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current assets and deferred tax liabilities by this amount.
Deferred taxes are classified as non-current, as shown in the financial statement.
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1.9 Provisions
Provisions are measured at fair value of the costs that are expected to occur in order to settle the

1.14 Cash Flow Statement

obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects the time value of money, as well as specific risks to the

The statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the direct method. EPS classifies assets

liability, as assigned by market. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

with maturity up to one year, with high liquidity and for which the risk of change in value is negligible
under “Cash and cash equivalents”.

1.10 Recognition of revenue
Revenue comprises the fair value of sales of goods and services, net of taxes and trade discounts,
and after elimination of internal sales.
Revenues are recognized at fair value of the amount received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of business of the company. Sales are recognized at net value of the
amount of value added tax, returns and discounts.
The company recognizes revenue when the amount can be measured reliably, when it is probable
that future economic benefits give input on the entity and when specific criteria are met for each

The cash flow statement is divided into operating activities, investing activities and financing activities. Operating activities include cash receipts from customers and payments to suppliers, employees
and other payments related to operating activities.
Cash flows included in investment activities include acquisitions and disposals of investments in
subsidiaries, received cash and payments resulting from the purchase and sale of tangible and
intangible assets.
Financing activities include cash receipts and cash payments to equity capital and loans, including
bank overdrafts. They also include payments for interest, dividends and finance leases.

of the group’s activities as described below. The company bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer, as well as the transaction type and its characteristics.

2. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
Provision of services

The preparation of financial statements requires that management applies judgments and estimates

The provision of services is recognized in the accounting period in which they are rendered, by

that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, actives and liabilities and disclosures at the

reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the date of accounts closing.

date of the financial statements.
These estimates are determined by the judgment of the company management, based on: (i) the

1.11 Distribution of dividends
The distribution of dividends to shareholders is recognized as a liability in the financial statements
of the company in the period in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders at the General
Meeting.

best information and knowledge of present events and in some cases reports of independent experts
(ii) the actions that the company considers it may develop in the future. However, at the date of
completion of operations, the results may differ from estimates.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are presented below.

1.12 Contingent assets and liabilities
Contingent liabilities for which an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is only possible,

2.1 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed in the notes, unless the possibility of

To determine the fair value of a financial asset or liabilities where an active market exists, the market

the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote , in which case they are not subject

price is used. When there is no active market, which is found in some of the assets and liabilities

to disclosure. We recognize provisions for liabilities that meet the conditions laid down in Note 1.9.

of the company, fair value valuation techniques are used which are generally accepted, based on

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the Notes to

market assumptions.

the financial statements when a future economic benefit is probable.

The Company utilizes valuation techniques for financial instruments not quoted as derivatives,
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and assets available for sale. The evaluation

1.13 Subsequent Events

methods, which are used most often, are based on models of discounted cash flow and options models,

Events subsequent to the balance sheet date that provide additional information about conditions

including, for example, interest rates, exchange rates, prices of raw materials and volatility curves.

existing on that date are reflected in the financial statements. Events subsequent to the balance

Currently, the company does not detain financial instrument that are not quoted.

sheet date, which provide information on conditions that arose after that date, are disclosed in the
annex to the financial statements, whether material.

2.2 Income tax
The company recognizes liabilities for additional taxes that may result from review by the tax authorities.
When the outcome of these situations is different from the amounts initially recorded, the differences
will impact the income tax and deferred taxes in the period in which such differences are identified.
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Additionally, the company recognizes deferred tax assets on losses, to the extent that future taxable

3.1.1 Market risks – interest rate

profits are expected.

The risk of the company’s interest rate comes mainly from loans, since the company has no deriva-

This evaluation requires the use of estimates and future taxable profits which differ from review

tives from interest rate or long-term earning assets. Loans contracted with variable interest rates,

held every closing date. The difference will impact the income tax.

exclusively denominated in euros, expose the Company to the risk of changes in cash flows.

2.3 Recognition of provisions

Exposure to interest rate risk is monitored dynamically. In addition to the assessment of future

The Company periodically reviews the obligations arising from past events that should be recognized

expenditures, based on forward rates, sensitivity tests to variations in the level of interest rates are

or disclosed. The subjectivity involved in determining the likelihood and amount of internal resources

carried out. The company is essentially exposed to the interest rate of the euro curve. The sensitivity

needed to meet obligations may result in significant adjustments due to changes in the assumptions

analysis is based on the following assumptions:

made, or due to future recognition of provisions previously disclosed as contingent liabilities.
Management exercises significant judgment in determining whether a present obligation exists as

Changes in market interest rates affect interest gains and losses on variable rate financial instruments;

a result of a past event, or whether it is likely, on the date of the financial statements, that from

Changes in market interest rates only affect gains and losses in interest on financial instruments

past events may result outflows, and if the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably. The
Company periodically reviews the status of these processes using counselling, both internal and
external. These decisions are subject to change as new information becomes available. The amount
of provision may change in the future due to new developments in this area in particular.

with fixed interest rates if these are recognized at fair value;
Changes in market interest rates affect the fair value of derivative financial instruments and other
financial assets and liabilities; and
Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments and other financial assets and liabilities are estimated by discounting future cash flows from current net values, using the market rates

2.4 Impairment of receivables
The credit risk on receivables is valued at the closing date, taking into account the knowledge of
the client and its risk profile. Accounts receivable are adjusted based on the assessment made by
the management of the estimated collection risks at the reporting date, which may differ from the
actual risks incurred.

at the end of the year.

For each analysis, regardless of the currency, the same changes to interest rate curves are used. The
analyses are performed for the net debt, i.e., deposits and investments in financial institutions are
deducted. Simulations are performed based on the net value of debt and the fair value of derivative
financial instruments, if any, reference dates and the respective change in interest rate curves.
On the date of the financial statement, the company had total borrowings amounting to 86,8 million

C. Risk Management
3. Management of financial risk

euros, and loans granted amounting to 30,2 million euros, totally with related parties. If interest
rates on loans and deposits had been 0.25% higher / lower, considering all other constant variables,
the result of the financial year before tax would have been lower/higher by 141 thousand euros,
respectively. The equity capital would not have been affected. These effects are mainly due to the
higher or lower interest expense on floating rate loans.

3.1 Financial risk factors
The company’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the company, being possible to use various
financial instruments to minimize the risks associated with its operations.
The financial risk management is carried out by the Corporate Finance Management of the EPS
Group under policies and guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. This Finance Management
is responsible for identifying, assessing and hedging the financial risks in close cooperation with the
operating units of the group. Principles for overall risk management are established by the Board of
Directors, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, price risk, interest
rate risk, and credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative and investment
of surplus liquidity. The Board of Directors carries out a very close monitoring of such transactions.

3.1.2 Liquidity risk
Cash flow forecast is performed by the company to ensure the maintenance of adequate cash to
meet operational level needs, while taking into account the impact of possible financial facilities.
This forecast takes into account the financing plans for the company debts, compliance with internal
level of balance sheet ratios objectives and, if applicable, compliance with external regulatory or legal
requirements - for example, restrictions on foreign currency, and compliance debt covenants, including:
Cross default, Pari Passu, Negative Pledges, ratios of debt and equity, change of shareholders and
other related operational activities and the legal, fiscal and operational obligations of the company.
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Cash surplus, beyond those necessary to maintain balance in the management of working capital,

3.3 Financial instruments by category

are managed taking into account the instructions of the EPS Group with respect to maturity, liquid-

On 31 December 2017 and 2016 , financial assets were classified in the following categories:

ity and counterparty. Surplus cash held by the Company is invested, choosing instruments with
appropriate maturities or sufficient liquidity and that provide sufficient margin as determined by
the above-mentioned forecasts.

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Assets as per Balance Sheet

HELD AT AMORTIZED
COST

ASSETS HELD
FOR SALE

NON
FINANCIAL
ASSETS

TOTAL

At the date of the financial statements, the Company held cash and current deposits amounting to
185 thousand euros, which were expected to readily generate capital inflows able to facilitate the
management of liquidity risk.There are not negotiated credit facilities or derivative financial instruments. Financial liabilities of the company are almost exclusively with related party. There are also

31 December 2017
Financial investments and assets
held for sale

0

301,132

301,132

significant financial assets, also with related parties.
Loans to related parties

3.2 Capital risk management
The company seeks to maintain an adequate level of capital that allows it, not only to ensure its
continuity and development, but as well to provide adequate returns for shareholders and optimize

Trade receivables and accrued
income
Debtors and deferred costs
Cash and cash equivalents

the cost of capital.
The company may adjust the amount of dividends payable and the return of capital to shareholders

30,231,689

30,231,689

21,127

165,771

186,897

11,958,046

1,933,241

13,891,287

185,006

185,006

42,395,868

301,132

106,775

11,132

2,099,011

44,796,011

or make an issue of new shares or debt in order to maintain or adjust its capital structure.
In accordance with the practices of the industry market, the balance of the capital structure is
monitored based on financial leverage (gearing) ratio, calculated in accordance with the ratio
Net Debt/Total Equity. Net debt comprises total loans (including banking and related companies’

31 December 2016
Financial investments and assets
held for sale

117,907

current and non-current loans as shown in the financial statement) less cash and cash equivalents,
other financial investments and current loans. The total equity consists of equity as presented in the
financial statements, plus net debt.

Loans to related parties
Trade receivables and accrued
income

The gearing ratio on December 31, 2017 and 2016 shows the following calculation:

Debtors and deferred costs
Cash and cash equivalents

31.12.2017

Debts to credit institutions
Debts to related parties

(Note 16)

(-) Cash and cash equivalents

(Note 8)

(-) Loans to related parties

(Note 16)

31.12.2016

0

0

86,765,857

73,551,275

86,765,857

73,551,275

185,006

128,703

30,231,689

25,132,258

56,349,162

48,290,315

Equity

355,123,102

323,721,760

Total Equity

411,472,264

372,012,075

14%

13%

Net debt

Gearing

25,132,258

25,132,258

6,637

0

6,637

5,783,519

2,023,310

7,806,829

128,703
31,157,891

128,703
11,132

2,023,310

33,192,333

I N D I V I D U A L
S T A T E M E N T S
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Liabilities as per balance sheet

LIABILITIES
HELD AT
AMORTIZED COST

I N D I V I D U A L
S T A T E M E N T S

D. Notes concerning Financial Statements
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

Regarding financial liabilities, their breakdown by category was as follows:

OTHER FINANCIAL

F I N A N C I A L

NON
FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

4. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
TOTAL
Tangible assets on December 31, 2017 and 2016 and the changes in their value were as follows:

31 December 2017
Loans from related parties
Suppliers
Creditors and accrued costs

86,765,857

86,765,857

1,174,399

1,174,399

8,322,312

765,975

9,088,286

96,262,567

765,975

97,028,542

OFFICE
EQUIPMENT

LAND AND
BUILDINGS

TOTAL

31 December 2016
31 December 2016
Loans from related parties
Suppliers
Creditors and accrued costs

73,551,275

1,211,856

600,136

25,132,258

7,701,503

1,211,856

6,637

81,852,914

1,211,856

83,064,770

Opening net book value

0

20,306

Additions

0

5,418

20,306
5,418

Depreciation allocations

0

-4,459

-4,459

Closing net value

0

21,264

21,264

0

21,264

21,264

30,958,014

63,789

31,849,849

31 December 2017
Opening net book value
Additions
Depreciation allocations
Closing net value

-179,646

-8,767

-188,413

30,778,368

76,287

31,682,700

30,958,014

89,513

31,875,572

-179,646

-13,226

-192,873

30,778,368

76,287

31,682,700

Detail
Cost or fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

On 31 July, 2017, Efacec Power Solutions had a capital increase in kind through the acquisition of the
properties that constitute its base of operations in Portugal, located in Arroteia and Maia (which did
not belong to the company until then). Pursuant to legal requirements, experts valued the properties
and the respective valuation was subject to the opinion of an independent auditor. The respective
assets were valued at 28.4 million euros, which corresponds to the value of the capital increase (Note
9). Expenses with IMT (Property Transfer Tax) and Stamp duty related to this transaction, amounting to 2 million euros, were added to the respective assets in compliance with IAS 16 since they are
expenses directly incurred and necessary for the legalization of such assets.
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5. INVESTMENTS IN CAPITAL INSTRUMENT AND FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
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The additional paid-in capital is ruled by the regulation of supplementary payment and, as such, do
not bear interest.
The company’s investment in Group companies and associated companies, none of them listed on

5.1 Investments in group companies and associates

the stock exchange, is as follows:

This item includes the value of the holdings, additional paid-in capital and loans to group companies
and associates.
Equity investments in group companies and associates are recorded at aquisition cost (Note 1.3.2)

31.12.2017
FINANCIAL

Movements occurred in 2017

INVESTMENTS

In 2017 the Company subscribed additional paid in capital to its subsidiary Efacec Serviços Corpora-

OTHER
EQUITY
INSTRUMENTS

FINANCING

%

LOANS

PART

EQUITY

NET
INCOME

tivos, SA, in the amount of 2.1 million euros, and its subsidiary Efacec Contracting Central Europe
Capital instruments

liquidated the entire financing loan.

2,400,000

1,600,000

100,00%

2,580,045

-266,867

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, SA

99,500,000

32,500,000

100,00%

76,840,527

10,940,917

Efacec Electric Mobility, SA

13,350,000

1,500,000

100,00%

4 838,284

1,338,046

Efacec Marketing Internacional, SA
31.12.2017

31.12.2016

373,334,608

371,687,158

50,000

2,100,000

100,00%

102,093

-583,193

Efacec Energia, SA

124,078,188

58,811,255

100,00%

92,256,677

4,687,098

Efacec Angola, Lda

1,407,215

98,33%

-5,437,278

1,205,538

84,75%

487,155

285,827

Efacec Serviços Corporativos, SA
Opening balance
Financial investments increase

0

147,450

2,100,000

1,500,000

Financing loans

-106,775

0

Closing balance

375,327,833

373,334,608

Other equity instruments

Efacec Moçambique, Lda.

15,255

6 582 000

Efacec Praha s.r.o.

6 ,100,000

100,00%

1,847,421

254,645

Efacec USA, Inc.

1,500,000

100,00%

749,882

-349,610

213,570

96,92%

67,664

-1,428,938

Efacec Central Europe Limited SRL

7,100,000

100,00%

401,686

-555,568

Efacec Contracting Central Europe GmbH

9,451,597

100,00%

616,854

-1,116,438

Efacec Índia Pvt. Ltd

3,259,878

93,18%

2,380,322

318,767

Efacec Equipos Eléctricos, S.L.

2,870,000

100,00%

3,540,378

654,716

938,875

99,00%

481,242

78,292

Efacec Chile, SA

Power Solution Brasil, Ltda.
Total

272,234,578

103,093,255
375,327,833

0
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For identical reasons the international subsidiaries Efacec Contracting Central Europe, Efacec

31.12.2016

Algérie and Efacec Chile were consolidated in Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas. These three legal
FINANCIAL
INVESTMENTS

OTHER
EQUITY
INSTRUMENTS

FINANCING

%

LOANS

PART

EQUITY

NET

entities operations are strongly focused on Contracting business segment; and are particularly

INCOME

dependent on Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, with regard to references, specific technical skills and
financial resources, working mainly as extensions of Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas activity in the
Algerian market and in some Central Europe countries.

Capital instruments

2,400,000

1,600,000

100,00%

2,846,912

-46,940

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, SA

99,500,000

32,500,000

100,00%

69,885,956

3,804,277

The subsidiaries of Angola and Mozambique develop their activities in different segments of

Efacec Electric Mobility, SA

13,350,000

1,500,000

100,00%

3,500,238

919,834

Products and Systems, with business plans defined by business unit. The projections prepared for

100,00%

-1,414,713

-1,868,121

100,00%

90,685,967

4,907,388

98,33%

-7,492,280

-1,821,059

84,75%

188,315

-347,087

Efacec Marketing Internacional, SA

Efacec Serviços Corporativos, SA

50,000

Efacec Energia, SA

124,078,188

Efacec Angola, Lda

1,407,215

Efacec Moçambique, Lda.

15,255

58,811,255
6,582,000

each BU are allocated to the respective CGU’s.

The assumptions used in the impairment tests performed on December 31, 2017 were as follows:

Efacec Praha s.r.o.

6,100,000

100,00%

1,499,231

6,871

Efacec USA, Inc.

1,500,000

100,00%

1,229,553

-569,026

Efacec Chile, SA

213,570

96,92%

1,531,773

703,929

Efacec Central Europe Limited SRL

7,100,000

100,00%

672,141

-518,696

Efacec Contracting Central Europe GmbH

9,451,597

100,00%

1,733,293

-840,200

Efacec Índia Pvt. Ltd

3,259,878

93,18%

2,223,431

-188,946

Efacec Equipos Eléctricos, S.L.

2,870,000

100,00%

2,776,989

326,582

Efacec Energia

938,875

99,00%

505,501

-16,743

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas

Power Solution Brasil, Ltda.

2017

Efacec Electric Mobility

Credits

EBITDA

DISCOUNT RATE

PERPETUAL

MARGIN

BEFORE TAX

GROWTH RATE

5,0%

9,7%

8,7%

2,1%

5,0%

7,0%

9,0%

2,3%

22,0%

12,9%

12,7%

2,3%

Efacec Moçambique

Efacec Contracting Central Europe
GmbH

106,775
272,234,578

Total

REVENUE
GROWTH RATE

100,993,255

Efacec Angola

106,775
2016

373,334,608

Impairment Tests
At year end, impairment tests are performed for the main investments in group companies. The
tests are performed in order to evaluate the recoverability of the investment, considering the
historical performance and / or business development expectations. The ratings are based on cash
flows projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period,
which are discounted at a rate calculated in accordance with the CAPM (Capital Asset Pricing
Model). After this five-year period, cash flows are extrapolated using growth rates estimated on

Efacec Energia

REVENUE

EBITDA

DISCOUNT RATE

PERPETUAL

GROWTH RATE

MARGIN

BEFORE TAX

GROWTH RATE

4,4%

8,6%

strongly concentrated in the Automation business segment. Likewise, the subsidiaries Efacec India,
Efacec Equipos Eléctricos and Efacec Praha also carry out their activity in the Switchgear business
unit. The management of these subsidiaries is under the operational management of the business
units to which they report, and driven from Portugal, acting mainly as representations of Efacec
Energia’s activity in the respective markets. Under this assumption, the business plans of these
subsidiaries were consolidated at Efacec Energia.

1,9%

5,6%

7,0%

9,5%

1,8%

29,7%

12,7%

12,4%

2,1%

Efacec Moçambique

16,7%

8,7%

11,6%

5,6%

Efacec Angola

20,1%

8,2%

16,0%

1,0%

business development expectations.

The international subsidiaries Efacec Central Europe and Power Solutions Brasil have activities

9,0%

Efacec Electric Mobility

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas

No impairment arose from the tests performed.
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Sensitivity analyses

6. CUSTOMERS AND ACCRUED INCOME

Evaluations were still subject to sensitivity analyses to the main variables used in order to test the

Details of this item as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are demonstrated below:

I N D I V I D U A L
S T A T E M E N T S

resistance of the recoverable value of the assets to unfavourable changes of each. Variables were
thus subject to the following impacts:
31.12.2017
REVENUE

EBITDA

DISCOUNT RATE

PERPETUAL

GROWTH RATE

MARGIN

BEFORE TAX

GROWTH RATE

Variation of assumptions

-10,0%

-10,0%

+1,0 p.p.

-1,0 p.p.

31.12.2016

Customers - related parties (Note 16.2)

21,127

6,637

Account receivables - net

21,127

6,637

Accrued income - Non financial assets

165,771

0

Total

186,897

6,637

Non current
Current

0

0

186,897

6,637

In general, the discount rate and the EBITDA margin are the most sensitive variables in the tests
performed. However, the impacts produced by these variations are not likely to generate any
impairment.
The fair value of accounts receivable does not differ from their book value.
The item of accrued income corresponds entirely to services to be invoiced to the MGI Group.

5.2 Net assets available for sale
7. OTHER RECEIVABLES AND DEFERRED COSTS
31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Details of this heading as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Financial assets held for sale
Financial investments
NET - Novas Empresas e Tecnologias, S.A.

11,132

11,132
31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Other
INEGI - Instituto de Ciência e Inovação em
Engenharia Mecânica e Industrial
HCapital New Ideas - Fundo de capital de risco
Total net investment

15,000

0

275,000

0

301,132

11,132

Financial assets held for sale include shares in unlisted companies whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured as there are no market prices or comparable transactions and as such, they are
recognized at cost.

Advance to suppliers
Other debtors - several
Other debtors - related parties (Note 16.2)
Other Debtors- Financial assets IFRS 7
Other debtors - Non financial assets
State and other public entities
Deferred costs
Total
Non current

In 2017, EPS decided to subscribe a 25% stake in the HCapital New Ideas Venture Capital Fund

Current

which will have the purpose of investing in technological and innovative Portuguese companies,

Income tax

2,002,133

0

3,132

2,716

9,952,782

5,780,803

11,958,046

5,783,519

1,563,740

1,561,073

351,923

435,523

17,578

26,714

13,891,287

7,806,829

0

0

12,773,226

7,540,486

1,118,062

266,343

especially SMEs, with the potential to generate synergies with EPS. Any investment to be made by
the Fund must first be approved by EPS.

In the ‘Advances to suppliers’ account is recorded an advance made to external consultants of 2
million euros carried out in December 2017.
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The amount of accounts receivable from related parties includes credits on customers assigned to

On 31 July, 2017, a capital increase in the amount of 28,361,130 euros took place, with the issuance

MGI Capital, as provided for in the shareholders agreement entered into on October 23, 2015. In

of 5,672,226 new shares, carried out by the shareholder MGI Capital, with the contribution in kind

2016, it also included a value of 4.6 million euros of a credit note issued to the subsidiary Efacec

of the properties where EPS develops its productive activity.

Energia, relating to an insurance indemnity received at the end of the year. The amount in question

The company has no shares of its own.

was settled only at the beginning of 2017, and justifies substantially the variation in the year.

9.2 Share premiums

The amount of Other debtors – non financial assets refers to advances made to Efacec Angola in

In 2017, Efacec Power Solutions transferred the amount of 6,052,270 euros related to share

2015, within the scope of the project to acquire this stake in MGI Capital.

premiums to the heading of ‘Reserves and Retained Earnings’, to cover losses from prior years,
following a resolution of the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 4 August 2017.

The caption State and other public entities is broken down as follows:

9.3 Additional paid in capital and other equity instruments
31.12.2017

0

435,523

351,923

0

351,923

435,523

Income tax
Value Added Tax to be recovered

31.12.2016

Efacec Power Solutions also has additional paid-in capital amounting to 35.900.000 euros
(26.074.170 euros by Winterfell 2 Limited and 9.825.830 euros by MGI Capital, SGPS, S.A.). The
additional paid in capital is ruled by the regulations of supplementary capital.

9.4 Reserves and Accumulated Income
8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

In 2017 this caption is composed only by the profit for the year.

31.12.2017

10. SUPPLIERS, CREDITORS AND ACCRUED COSTS

31.12.2016

Cash and cash equivalents

This item breaks down as follows:

185,006

Cash and Current deposits

128,703

9. EQUITY

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Suppliers
Suppliers - current account

9.1 Share Capital

Suppliers - related parties (Note 16.2)
Suppliers - invoices received pending from approval

On December 31, 2017, the share capital, fully paid, was represented by 62.847.032 ordinary shares
with a nominal value of 5 euros. The shareholders’ breakdown on that date and at the end of the

Investment suppliers

previous year was as follows:

Total
Non current
Current
31.12.2017

ENTITY

Winterfell 2 Limited

NO. SHARES

41,525,275

207,724

708,472

268,959

2,242

-237,353

-110,578

239,330

600,136

935,069

0

1,174,399

600,136

0

0

1,174,399

600,136

31.12.2016

%

NO. SHARES

66,1%

41,525,275

Current debts to suppliers and other creditors are entirely due within 90 days, a situation that

%

reflects the normal conditions negotiated with the company’s suppliers.

72,6%

MGI Capital, SGPS, S.A.

21,321,757

33,9%

15,649,531

27,4%

Total

62,847,032

100,0%

57,174,806

100,0%

The balance is denominated in euros.
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At the end of 2017, deferred tax assets amounted to 345 100 euros, subject to deduction until 2028,
under the conditions established by law.

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Outros Credores
Other creditors - related parties (Note 16.2)

4,276,820

7,684,519

Other creditors - Financial liabilities IFRS 7

4,276,820

7,684,519

74,437

574,438

403,835

343,791

Other creditors - Non financial liabilities
State and other public entities

4,333,194

310,611

287,703

293,627

Accrued costs - others

4,045,492

16,984

Total

9,088,286

8,913,359

Accrued costs
Accrued costs - payable remunerations

Creditors and accrued not current costs
Creditors and current accrued costs

0

0

9,088,286

8,913,359

The item Accrued costs increased by approximately 4 million euros related to expenses with consul-

FISCAL
LOSSES

1 January 2016

362,115

Charged to the income statement

-17,015

31 December 2016

345,100
0

Charged to the income statement
31 December 2017

345,100

E. Notes to the Income Statement
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016

tants attributable to 2017, but whose invoices were only recorded in 2018.

12. EXTERNAL SUPPLIES AND SERVICES
The balance of the item “State and other public entities” breaks down as follows:

During the year ended on December 31, 2017 and 2016, the main supplies and services provided by
external entities were as follows:

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

227,147

0

Value added tax – due

87,801

247,846

Social security contributions

41,751

43,647

Personal income tax

47,136

52,299

403,835

343,791

Income tax

2017

2016

6,411,289

1,542,078

Travel and accommodation expenses

313,415

211,683

Advertising

228,348

104,238

Rents and leasing

218,230

167,439

Professional Fees

Other supplies and services

209,843

258,577

7,381,124

2,284,015

The amount recorded as income tax refers to the amount payable to the State under the RETGS,
that is, by grouping the tax group of which Efacec Power Solutions is the parent company. The value
results from the tax estimate of the group of companies that compose the tax group, deducted from
the payments already made.

11. DEFERRED TAX
Assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the EPS company has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets with current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same
tax authority.

Professional fees grew significantly in relation to the previous year due to strategic consulting services.
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The reconciliation of the tax is as follows:

Net financial costs
2017
2017

2016

Earnings before taxes
Notional tax rate

Interests paid

-3,607,195

-3,065,831

0

115,810

Foreign currency exchange losses

Notional tax

-77,161

-2,468

-3,684,356

-2,952,489

Interests earned

948,917

925,570

Autonomous taxation

Total financial income and gains

948,917

925,570

Municipal tax

-2,735,440

-2,026,919

Other financial costs and losses
Total Financial Costs and Losses

Financial Income - net

Dividends received

2016

1,938,416

21,0%

407,067

254,330

-1,548,672

0

0

179,544

Costs non-deductible for tax purposes

36,489

35,224

0

18,166

0

17,015

-1,105,116

504,279

n.a

41,6%

Prior year adjustments
Tax rate differences

1 211,093

21,0%

Effective rate
Interests paid and earned refer essentially to the remuneration of loans obtained / granted to
companies of the EPS Group and related entities. These loans are paid in the same conditions as
those paid in the market, Euribor being the reference rate (Note 16.3).

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Losses / Gains in Associated Companies
In 2017, the company received, as dividends, the amount of 7 374 629 euros from its subsidiaries

Basic

Efacec Engenharia (3 804 277 euros) and Efacec Energia (3 570 532 euros).

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares issued during the year, excluding the eventual shares
detained by EPS (note 9).

14. INCOME TAX
The break down of the income tax recorded in the financial statement is as follows:

2017
2017

2016

Profit attributable to the company’s equity holders
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

Current tax
Defered tax (Note 11)
Income tax
Previous years taxes

-1 105 116

487 264

0

17 015

-1 105 116

504 279

3 320

56

-1 101 796

504 335

Basic earnings per share (euro per share)

2016

3,040,212

706,758

58,850,193

57,174,806

0,05

0,01

Diluted
Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of outstanding
ordinary shares to incorporate the effects of the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
when applicable. In the 2017 years and 2016 there is no dilutive effect.
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16.2 Closing balances resulting from business and financial transactions

F. Other Notes

31.12.2017

16. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Related parties

ers and Board Directors), and debit and credit balances with these same entities existing at end of

Financial loana (a)

year.

Non current loans
Current loans

16.1 Transactions performed

Customers and accrued income (Note 6)
Debtors and deferred costs (Note 7)
2017

0

106,775

21,470,846

21,146,552

8,036,238

3,261,101

21,127

6,637

3,607,271

494,893

Shareholders

2016

724,605

724,605

6,345,511

5,285,910

40,205,597

31,026,473

Non current loans (b)

74,167,109

73,301,275

Current loans

12 598 748

250,000

Current transactions

Current loans

Related parties

Debtors and deferred costs (Note 7)

7,002,374

7,693,930

Operating costs and losses

271,284

3,715

Financial income and gains

8,323,546

925,570

Financial costs and losses

3,607,183

3,065,820

(a)

31.12.2016

Debts of Related Parties

We identify hereby the transactions with related parties (Group companies, Associates, Sharehold-

Operating income and gains

F I N A N C I A L

Shareholders
Financial income and gains

683,672

0

Financial costs and losses

126,000

0

12,005,125

5,549,965

Debts to related parties
(a)
This caption includes management
fees amounting to 5,8 million euros
(5.9 million euros in 2016) and
1,2 million euros of rents from
subsidiaries (1.8 million euros in
2016).

Related parties

Suppliers (Note 10)
Creditors and accrued costs (Note 10)

0

2,242

4 207 992

7,752,343

Shareholders
Suppliers (Nota 13)
Creditors and accrued costs (Note 10)
Net total

268,959

0

68,828

-67,824

91,311,636

81,238,036

-51,106,039

-50,211,564

(a) Shareholder loans made to Efacec Contracting Central Europe.
(b) This caption includes non-current loans obtained from the subsidiaries Efacec Energia and Efacec Engenharia.
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16.3 Detail by entity of the balances with related parties

The decrease in the outstanding balance with Efacec Energia results essentially from a credit

Detail by entity of the balances with related parties breaks down as follows:

assignment occurred in 2016, to be settled in 2017.

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Detail by entity of the balances with related parties breaks down as follows:

Customers and accrued income (Note 6)

6,637

6,637

Efacec Serviços Corporativos, S.A.

14,489

0

Total customers and accrued income (Note 6)

21,127

6,637

Efacec Central Europe Limited SRL

31.12.2017
ASSETS

31.12.2016

LIABILITIES

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Loans
Non current

Debtors and deferred costs (Note 7)
Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A.
Efacec Energia, S.A.

Efacec Marketing Internacional, S.A.

1,753,482

-8,592

134,500

-256,074

Efacec Serviços Corporativos, S.A.

4,013

0

Efacec Energia, S.A.

Efacec Eletric Mobility, S.A.

420,617

0

Efacec Angola, Lda.

Efacec Serviços Corporativos, S.A.

242,454

0

Efacec Contract. Central Europe GmbH

920

264,665

114,823

60,603

Efacec Marketing Internacional, S.A.

Efacec Angola, Lda.
Efacec Moçambique, Lda.
Efacec Central Europe Limited SRL
Efacec Contracting Central Europe GmbH
Efacec Equipos Electricos, SL
Grupo MGI Capital
Outros
Total debtors and deferred costs (Note 7)

57,149

10

782,671

406,102

49,518

27,098

6,354,103

5,285,928

38,532

1,061

9,952,782

5,780,802

4,968,762

4,968,762
71,000,000

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A.

2,500,000

70,134,166
2,440,372

3,167,109
12,973,854

3,167,109
12,709,189

1,028,230

1,135,005

21 470 846

74,167,109

21 253 327

Efacec Marketing Internacional, S.A.

1,606,238

Efacec Electric Mobility, S.A.

3,700,000

Efacec Serviços Corporativos, S.A.

1,313,890

587,500

77
12,477,993

Efacec Energia, S.A.

-218
250,000

Efacec Praha s.r.o.
Efacec Central Europe Limited SRL

842,500

842,500

Efacec Contract. Central Europe GmbH

850,000

650,000

Balance with Group MGI results mainly from a transfer of the account receivable of a customer, in

Efacec Equipos Electricos, SL

450,000

450,000

accordance with the shareholders’ agreement signed on 23 October 2015.

EfaServicing, ACE

4,929
120,678

Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A.
31.12.2017

31.12.2016

Grupo MGI Capital e ascendentes

Debts to related parties
Suplliers (Note 10)
Efacec Serviços Corporativos, S.A.
Grupo MGI Capital
Grupo Winterfell
Total Suppliers (Note 10)

Total

0

2,242

230,209

0

38,750

0

268,959

2,242

724,605

724,605

8,760,843

12,598,748

3,985,706

250,000

30,231,689

86,765,857

25,239,033

73,551,275

-56,534,168

Net total

-48,312,242

The loans are remunerated under market conditions, with Euribor as an index.
Creditors and accrued costs (Note 10)
Efacec Marketing Internacional, S.A.
Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A.
Efacec Electric Mobility, S.A.
Efacec Serviços Corporativos, S.A.
Efacec Energia, S.A.
Grupo MGI Capital
Other
Total Creditors and accrued costs (Note 10)

0

-109,492

834,484

461,624

0

-298,973

630,257

-188,066

2,735,681

7,888,047

68,828

-67,824

7 ,570

-798

4,276,820

7,684,519

73,301,275

Current

Total of all items - net

2017

2016

-51,106,039

-50,211,564
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16.4 Remuneration of the Board of Directors

2. Vadeni Contigency

In 2017 and 2016, the Board of Directors of Efacec Power Solutions received the following remuner-

The contingency herein regards to a contract for the construction of a waste treatment central in

ation:

the city of Vadeni, Romania, entered into between the Braila County Council and a Consourtium
between Efacec Central Europe, Srl, Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A., and Teloxim, Srl. The client
2017

terminated the contract in December 2016 due to alleged delays in the works and claimed a compen-

2016

sation in the amount of 936 thousand euros plus penalties of 665 thousand euros. Simultaneously,
Fixed remuneration
Variable remuneration

1,627,408

1,508,600

the client executed the bank guarantees that had been contractually provided, in the amount of

513,974

0

553 thousand euros. A 1.2 million euros provision was made in Efacec Engenharia & Sistemas, S.A.

2 ,141,382

1,508,600

accounts, which already includes the value of the executed bank guarantees.
On December 2017, the Client filed an arbitration process claiming an indemnification of 22 million
RON (about 5 million euros at current exchange rate), resulting from alleged damages incurred
by the Client and contractual penalties. Efacec responded to the law suit, alleging the illegality of

17. CONTINGENCIES

the contractual termination, the inexistence of the alleged damages and of the right to apply the
contractual penalties in the claimed amount.

Contingent assets and liabilities arising from contractual disputes

Taking into account the reasons for the arbitration action it was considered sufficient to maintain
the existing provision.

We indicate below the values of contingent assets and liabilities arising from contractual disputes
in which the EPS Group is involved.

3. Bouaghi Contigency
1. CPTM Contigency

The contingency herein regards to a contract for construction of water treatment plant in Bouhagi,

The CPTM/STM Contingency, which has been reported by Efacec since 2014, refers to the contract

Algeria. The client ONA terminated the contract on January 8, 2017 due to delays in the construction

for the refurbishment of the signalling of several lines in the railway system of the State of São

works. The works, for which Efacec was responsible for, were so far concluded in time. Thus, Efacec

Paulo in Brazil, executed between the Brazilian company CPTM and the consortium constituted by

understand that it has no responsibility for the fact alleged by ONA to terminate the contract. For

Union Switch & Signal International Co. and Efacec Engenharia & Sistemas, S.A.. This contract was

now, no claim for compensation has been made by ONA, having instead invited the Parties to carry

terminated, with cause, by the Consortium on November 24, 2014.

out a valuation of costs and work performed up to the date of termination of the contract.

Following this termination, the Consortium made a claim in the amount of approximately 197 million

The main contingency arises from the fact that ONA holds bank guarantees provided by Efacec in

BRL (approximately 50 million euros) which includes compensation for the executed construction

the amount if approximately 1 million euros, which may be executed by virtue of the joint liability

works and manufactured equipment, as well as, the amount related to contract’s finance rebalanc-

of the consortium, in which case Efacec would have a right of recourse against Hydrotreatment.

ing. In November 2016, the client made a compensation counterclaim in the amount of approximately 585 million BRL (approximately 148 million euros). The client CPTM/STM claims the reimbursement of the costs with equipment as well as the payment of penalties.
Considering the probability of success of each of the claims presented, there is no provision made.
On June 30th 2017, the Consortium started an Arbitration Proceedings under the International
Chamber of Commerce to settle this dispute.

4. Tovisi Contigency
In Mozambique there is a judicial proceeding filed by Tovisi Mozambique, a Efacec Mozambique’s
subcontractor in an engineering project in Maputo. Disagreements regarding the work management
led to the termination of the contract by Efacec Mozambique due to contractual breach of Tovisi
Mozambique. Following the termination, Tovisi Mozambique filed a legal proceeding claiming an
amount of 78.758.069 MZM (~ 1.632.450 euros). Efacec Mozambique contested the indemnification
claim and made a counter-claim of about 75.000 euros. The legal proceeding is pending in a court
ruling and Efacec Mozambique believes in a favourable decision outcome.
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18. COMMITEMENTS

The contingency herein regards to a judicial proceeding filed by Fundimo Real Estate Investment
Fund, as landlord of a property rented by Efacec Engenharia & Sistemas, S.A., whose contract was
terminated by that company in 2014. The disagreement arises from distinct interpretations regarding the date on which Efacec could terminate the contract. Fundimo claims the payment of rents
equivalent of the 12 additional months which Fundimo considers the mandatory duration of the
rental agreement, which amount to 1.3 million euros. Efacec believes it has complied with the legal
term provided to the unilateral termination of the contract. It is a judicial proceeding which has

18.1 Provided Guarantees
EPS has contingent liabilities related to guarantees provided by financial institutions for the benefit
of third parties. In particular, EPS had, as of December 31, 2017, a liability arising from a guarantee
issued for the purpose of granting financing to a subsidiary abroad, amounting to 2 172 276 euros,
which is included in the following table.

initiated in October and there is not any development to be registered so far.
31.12.2017

6. Ensul Meci Contigency
In the last financial year, Ensul Meci Efacec – Cogeração do Porto ACE was subject to a tax inspection
regarding corporation tax of 2013 and 2014 financial years. During the inspection, the Tax Authority

Financial guarantees
Other guarantees
Total

31.12.2016

3,414,623

4,086,042

299,460

0

3,714,083

4,086,042

(Autoridade Tributária e Aduaneira) detected several contingencies which regard namely to (a) the
elimination of 2011 accrued revenues, (b) the regularization of balance statements of associated
accounts, (c) the elimination of suppliers’ statements, and (d) expenses not dully documented which
were rebutted by the Incorporated Joint Venture (“ACE”) in the respective right of preliminary hearing.
In November 2017, the Tax Authority issued an inspection project report regarding all the incorporated
joint venture entities – Efacec Energia and Efacec Engenharia & Sistemas – reflecting on those entities
the identified contingencies. Each one of these entities exercised its right of preliminary hearing and
the Tax Authority issued a final report on the inspection accepting the documents presented regarding the expenses which were not documented, but keeping the other contingencies. The non-judicial
appeal regarding these amounts are being prepared by each entity affected by this proceeding – the
Incorporated Joint Venture, Efacec Energia and Efacec Engenharia, as joint participants, and MGI

Financing
In the syndicated loan taken out jointly by the subsidiaries Efacec Energia and Efacec Engenharia e
Sistemas, Efacec Power Solutions made the following guarantees:
Endorsement of promissory notes subscribed by Efacec Energia and by Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas;
Financial pledge of the shares of Efacec Energia and Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas.
In addition to the guarantees, the same contract contains clauses that define compliance with a Debt
Ratio, defined as Net Debt / EBITDA, whose maximum value should be 2,75. This contract ratio is
observable in the consolidated accounts of Efacec Power Solutions, every six months. At 31 December
2017 the value of this ratio was 1.3.

Capital as controlling company of the Group for tax purposes during the tax years of 2013 and 2014.

18.2 Operating lease commitments
Taking into account the position adopted by the Incorporated Joint Venture Entities (Efacec Energia
and Efacec Engenharia) and their statutory liability which is in the proportion of their shares, the

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

contingency for EPS Group rises to approximately 7.2 million euros. On the other hand, pursuant to
the Share Purchase Agreement signed between Winterfell 2 and MGI Capital, EPS Group has a right

Up to 1 year

of recourse against MGI Capital in connection with any potential liabilities that it may have to assume

Between 1 year and 5 years

under this contractual dispute.

58,352

139,956

109,653

348,900

168,005

488,856
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The company leases various vehicles through non-revocable lease agreements. The lease agreements

20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

have various lease periods, readjustment clauses and renewal rights. On the date of the financial

After the date referred to in the financial statements, there were no facts worthy of note.

statement, the Group held Long Term Rentals (“Renting”) contracts considered as an operating lease,
the value of the outstanding lease amounted to 168 thousand euros, with the following maturities:

Leça do Balio, 23 March 2018

19. AUDITORS’ FEES
The accountant
2017

Statutory audit
Tax consultancy services
Other services

54,812

2016

Sofia Marlene Ferreira Pereira

54,812

5,850

24,688

102,833

281,050

163,495

313,738

The Board of Directors
Mário Filipe Moreira Leite da Silva – Chariman
Ângelo Manuel da Cruz Ramalho – Director
Francisco José Meira Silva Nunes – Director
Luís Henrique Marcelino Alves Delgado – Director
Fernando José Gomes da Mota Lourenço – Director
António José Gonzalez Almela – Director
João Paulo dos Santos Pinto – Director
Rui Alexandre Pires Diniz – Director
Miguel Maria Pereira Vilardebó Loureiro – Director
Manuel António Carvalho Gonçalves – Director
Vanessa Ferreira Loureiro – Director
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ENVIRONMENTAL INDICATORS
ITEM

INDICATOR

SCOPE

Magnetic Sheet Consumption

Ton

Magnetic Sheet Recycling

%

Copper Consumption

Ton

Copper Recycling
Aluminium Consumption

05 5.3

20

20

2347

1366

0

0

639

803

0

0

5856

4639

0

0

Arroteia

500

600

Maia

759

707

1000

1200

708

465

72050

66800

629

525

Arroteia

0

0

Maia

0

0

27259

18383 (5)

3974

1655 (6)

31233

20038

%
Ton
%

Oil Consumption

Ton

Oil Recycling

%

Arroteia

Packaging Consumption Paper/Cardboard

Maia

Packaging

Arroteia

Packaging Consumption Wood

Kg

Maia

Packaging Consumption Other

Arroteia
Consumption Natural Gas

Maia

(1)

GJ

Total
Energy Consumption Thermal (gasoline)
Energy Consumption Thermal (diesel)

(1)

(1)

Domestic

GJ

248

199

Domestic

GJ

26865

27464

62763

57318 (6)

23846

22695 (6)

86609

80013

18775

8169

18083

19543

9007

13616

Arroteia

Energy

Electric Power Consumption

Maia

(2)

GJ

Domestic
Indirect hydroelectric power consumption
Indirect wind power consumption

(3)

Indirect natural gas consumption

(3)

2017

5847

Aluminium Recycling

Packaging Consumption Plastic

2016

6414

Arroteia

Materials

CHAPTER

UNITS

(3)

Domestic

GJ
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ENVIRONMENTAL INDICATORS

ENVIRONMENTAL INDICATORS
ITEM

INDICADOR

Indirect coal power consumption
Indirect consumption
of other non-renewable power (3)
Energy

ÂMBITO

UNIDADES

(3)

Domestic

GJ

Indirect Consumption
of other renewable power (3)
Production of Renewable Power

Water

Water consumption – Boreholes

Biodiversity

23548

18892

9772

1110 (7)

21812

26546 (5)

18864

23249

Domestic

40676

49795

Arroteia

15361

11857

5315

8616

20677

20473

Maia

Maia

m3

m3

Affected Water Sources

Domestic

-

0

0

Reused / Recycled Water

Domestic

m3

0

0

m3

1759

1534

-

6

4

m2

0

0

1543

1040

225

90

1768

1134

18

1815

1980

2035

5389

6510

2047

2577

7436

9087

4328

1156

358

40

Water Discharge

Arroteia

Spills
Protected Area Affected

Domestic
Arroteia

CO2 – Natural Gas

(1)

Maia

TonCO 2e

Total
CO 2 – gasoline
Emissions

21198

1116

Domestic

Effluents

ITEM

2017

5366

Arroteia
Water Consumption – Public
Network

2016

6662
Maia

CO 2 – diesel

(1)

Domestic

(1)

TonCO 2e

Arroteia
CO 2 – electricity

(3)

Maia

TonCO 2e

Total
CO

Arroteia
(4)

Maia

Kg

P E R F O R M A N C E I N D I C A T O R S :
E N V I R O N M E N T A L A N D S O C I A L

INDICADOR

COVs

UNIDADES

Arroteia

2017

8515

10383

390

390

2426

2677

396

198

808

244

17

1228

6739

13190

61

235

Arroteia

0

0

Arroteia

14

9

5

0

1

0

Total

20

9

Arroteia

33

13

13

22

0

0

46

35

313

287

5

8

1

0

66

294

2330

2261

182

206

181

0

Total

2693

2173

Arroteia

2645

2261

196

206

181

0

3023

2467

Maia
Arroteia
Maia
Arroteia

SO 2 (4)

Particles

Kg

Maia
Arroteia
(4)

Ozone-Depleting Substances

Hazardous Waste Disposed Of

Non-Hazardous Waste Disposed Of

Maia

Maia
Lagoas

Maia
Lagoas

Ton

Ton

Total
Arroteia
Waste

2016

(4)

NO x (4)
Emissions

ÂMBITO

Hazardous Waste Recovered

Maia
Lagoas

Ton

Total
Arroteia
Non-Hazardous Waste Recovered

Waste Recovered

Maia
Lagoas

Maia
Lagoas
Total

Ton

Ton

(1) Values calculated from the Lower Calorific Values (LCV) listed in the National Inventory of Greenhouse Gas Emission 2013-2020. (2) Conversion Factor: 1kWh=0,0036GJ.
(3) Values calculated from data published by EDP Comercial, which reflect the origin of the electricity consumed and the CO 2 emissions in 2017. (4) Data availability depends on the monitoring frequency, which is based on the values obtained and on CCDR’s opinion. The figures of the previous year are kept until the next measurement. (5) Includes two estimated months (November, December). (6)
Includes three estimated months (January, February and December). (7) Includes one estimated month (December). (8) Estimated figures subject to confirmation under the current works in the field
of C ircular Economy. (9) Increase in consumption related to a large number of works carried out at this industrial centre.
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SOCIAL INDICATORS
ITEM

INDICATOR

SCOPE

SOCIAL INDICATORS
UNITS

Permanent / Effective Employees

2016

1,742

171

214

6

6

350

343

330

2.305

Full-Time Employees

2,329

2,304

Part-Time Employees

1

1

46

91

Executive Directors
Employees of Subsidiaries

#Employees (3)

Group

Overall Permanent Employees
(Group + Subsidiaries)

Professional Internships
Self-Employed Professionals
Employees
Non-Permanent

48

43

113

85

207

219

2,537

2,524

Departures of employees <30 years

40

28

Departures of employees aged 30
to 39 years

87

88

Departures of employees aged 40
to 49 years

26

41

Temporary Workers

# Colab’s

(3)

Group

Global Non-Permanent Employees
(Group + Subsidiaries)
Permanent

Turnover
Permanent

Overall (Group + Subsidiaries)

Departures of Employees aged
50 or over

# Colab’s

(3)

Group

163

83

Overall (Group + Subsidiaries)

316

240

Departures of Male Employees

261

202

55

38

13,10%

10,36%

15%

15%

15

15

Turnover rate
Unionised Employees
Deadline for notification of changes

# Colab’s

(3)

Domestic

Volume of training by category
Director
Training
Permanent

2,356

Managers
Coordinators
Experts
Technical Staff

INDICATOR

4,322
# Hours

Group

Nd

(1)(2)

5,196
18,017
3,741

SCOPE

UNITS

2016

2017

Supervisor
Operational Staff
Administrative Staff

2,050
# Hours

Grup

Nd

7,554
(1)(2)

481

Total

43,716

Average Training by Categories

Training
Permanent
Employees

Director

37

Managers

45

Coordinators

31

Experts
Technical Staff

21
# Hours/
Employee

Grup

Nd

(1)(2)

18

Operational Staff

12

Administrative Staff

5

Overall

19
# Incidents

Operations at Risk
of Freedom of Association
Human
Rights

12

Supervisors

Cases of Discrimination

Departures of Female Employees

Employment
Relationships

ITEM

2017

1,803

Employees under fixed-term

Employment
Permanent

P E R F O R M A N C E I N D I C A T O R S :
E N V I R O N M E N T A L A N D S O C I A L

Operations at Risk
of Child Labour
Operations at Risk
of Forced Labour

# Operations

Grup

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

(1) The scopes for the 2017 indicators have been broadened in relation to previously published scopes. Given the lack of comparability that this change entails, we decided not to include information
for 2016. (2) In 2016, Efacec significantly changed its professional categories. These new categories were presented in the People chapter, but the change was not reflected in Social Indicators. This
situation has been corrected in this report. (3) Indicators involving the number of employees (# Employees) refer to 31 December 2017.
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M O N I T O R I N G A N D R E P O R T I N G
S Y S T E M C E R T I F I C A T I O N S

MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
CERTIFICATIONS
COMPANY

REFERENCE STANDARDS

Efacec Energia, Máquinas e Equipamentos Eléctricos, S.A.
Power Transformers
Efacec Energia, Máquinas e Equipamentos Eléctricos, S.A.
Distribution Transformers

ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OSHAS 18001

Efacec Energia, Máquinas e Equipamentos Eléctricos, S.A.
Service
CHAPTER

05 5.4

Efacec Energia, Máquinas e Equipamentos Eléctricos, S.A.
Equipment

ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OSHAS 18001, NP 4457
Efacec Energia, Máquinas e Equipamentos Eléctricos, S.A.
Automation
Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A.
Energy

ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OSHAS 18001
Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A.
Environment
Efacec Engenharia e Sistemas, S.A.
Transports
Efacec Electric Mobility, S.A.
Mobility
Efacec Central Europe Limited S.R.L

ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OSHAS 18001, NP 4457, IRIS

ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OSHAS 18001, NP 4457

ISO 9001, ISO 14001, OSHAS 18001

Efacec Praha

Power Solutions Brasil

Efacec India PVT

Efacec Equipos
Efacec Energia, Máquinas e Equipamentos Elétricos –
Sucursal España

ISO 9001
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STATUTORY AUDIT
OF ACCOUNTS

CHAPTER

05 5.5
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REPORT AND OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Dear Shareholders,
In accordance with legal requirements and the articles of incorporation, the Supervisory
Board of Efacec Power Solutions, SGPS, S.A., with its registered oﬃce at Lugar da
Arroteia, 4465-587 Matosinhos, hereby submits the report on its supervisory action and
provides its opinion on the management report and the consolidated accounts submitted
by the Board relative to the ﬁscal year ended 31 December 2017.

1. In accordance with legal requirements and the articles of incorporation, we
proceeded to:
- supervise the Board's actions, by holding meetings with heads of accounting and
ﬁnancial, risk and legal departments, consulting minutes and accounting documents,
as well as information clariﬁcations obtained;
- inspect the compliance with the law and with the company contract;
- use the thoroughness and to the extent deemed suitable under the circumstances, to
inspect the group's activity and business, documents, regularity of records and
bookkeeping, as well as the existence of main assets;
- assess whether the accounting policies and valuation/measurement criteria adopted
by the group are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, while
leading to a proper evaluation of assets and results;
- identify the internal control system implemented by the Board;
- oversee the process involved in preparing and disseminating the consolidated
ﬁnancial information, namely with regard to account consolidation procedures and
operations;
- ascertain the exactness of the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated income
statement by nature, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated
cash-ﬂow statements for the ﬁscal year, and the corresponding Annex;
- evaluate the consolidated Management Report issued by the Board;
- evaluate the work conducted by the Statutory Auditor, leading to the legal review and
to additional services;
- assess the Legal Certiﬁcation of Accounts issued on 23 March 2018 by the Statutory
Auditor, to express an unqualiﬁed opinion.
2. Of the work we have carried out, we feel it is important to highlight the following:
- the added growth of the order book, even though some areas have yet to attain levels
according to the ambition implicit in the strategic plan;
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REPORT AND OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Dear Shareholders,
In accordance with legal requirements and the articles of incorporation, the Supervisory
Board of Efacec Power Solutions, SGPS, S.A., with its registered oﬃce at Lugar da
Arroteia, 4465-587 Matosinhos, hereby submits the report on its supervisory action and
provides its opinion on the management report and the consolidated accounts submitted
by the Board relative to the ﬁscal year ended 31 December 2017.

1. In accordance with legal requirements and the articles of incorporation, we
proceeded to:
- supervise the Board's actions, by holding meetings with heads of ﬁnancial, internal
auditing and legal departments, consulting minutes and accounting documents, as
well as information clariﬁcations obtained;
- inspect the compliance with the law and with the company contract;
- use the thoroughness and to the extent deemed suitable under the circumstances, to
inspect the company's activity and business, documents, regularity of records and
bookkeeping, as well as the existence of main assets;
- assess whether the accounting policies and valuation/measurement criteria adopted
by the company are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
while leading to a proper evaluation of assets and results;
- identify the internal control system implemented by the Board;
- supervise the process involving preparation and disclosure of ﬁnancial information;
- ascertain the exactness of the Balance Sheet, the income statement by nature, the
statement of changes in equity, cash-ﬂow statements for the ﬁscal year, and the
corresponding Annex;
- evaluate the Management Report issued by the Board, as well as the proposed
appropriation of proﬁts included therein;
- evaluate the work conducted by the Statutory Auditor, leading to the legal review and
to additional services;
- assess the Legal Certiﬁcation of Accounts issued on 23 March 2018 by the Statutory
Auditor, to issue an unqualiﬁed opinion.
2. Of the work we have carried out, we feel it is important to highlight the following:
- the added growth of the order book, even though some areas have yet to attain levels
according to the ambition implicit in the strategic plan;
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